
SEVENOAKS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

FINANCE ADVISORY GROUP 
 

02 November 2011 at 9.30 am in the  
 

AGENDA 
 

Membership: 
 

Chairman: Cllr. Cllr. B Ramsey 
 

 

Cllr. Mrs A Firth, Cllr. M Fittock, Cllr. J Grint, Cllr. P McGarvey and Cllr. J Scholey 
 

 
1. Apologies for absence   

 

  
 

2. Notes of meeting of the Group held on 27 July 2011  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

  
 

3. Declarations of Interest   
 

  
 

4. Matters Arising including actions from last meeting  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

Tricia Marshall  
 

5. Referrals from Performance & Governance Committee:  
 

(Pages 7 - 8) 
 

  

 
 Performance Monitoring: LPI DS 002 – Total Trading Account 

Position (27.09.11)  
 

 

6. Building Control Budget (circulated separately)   
 

Richard Wilson  
 

7. Kent and Medway Investment Fund  (Pages 9 - 102) 
 

Lesley Bowles  
 

8. Financial Results 2011/12 - to the end of September 2011  (Pages 103 - 136) 
 

Adrian Rowbotham  
 

9. Financial Performance Indicators 2011/12 - to the end of 
September 2011  

(Pages 137 - 144) 
 

Adrian Rowbotham  
 

10. Investment Strategy Update  (Pages 145 - 150) 
 

Roy Parsons  
 

11. Forward Programme  (Pages 151 - 152) 
 

  
 

12. Any Other Business   
 

  
 



 
 

 Please note: The date of the next meeting is 25 January 2012. 

Members wishing to obtain factual information on above items are asked to enquire of 
the appropriate Director or Contact Officer before the meeting 

 



1 

FINANCE ADVISORY GROUP 

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Finance Advisory Group 

 held on 27 July 2011 commencing at 9.30 am 
 
 

Present: Cllr. B Ramsey (Chairman) 
  
 Cllr. Mrs A Firth, Cllr. M Fittock, Cllr. J Grint, Cllr. P McGarvey and 

Cllr. J Scholey 
 

 

 
12. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

13. NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

The notes of the meeting of 15 June 2011 were agreed as a correct record. 

 
14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

15. MATTERS ARISING INCLUDING ACTIONS FROM LAST MEETING  
 
The responses to the actions were noted. 
 

16. INVESTMENT STRATEGY UPDATE  
 
The Principal Accountant explained that the report updated Members on 
treasury activity for the first quarter of the financial year. Changes in the 
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services 
meant that regular reports would be presented to Members to enable them to 
have an informed view of the Council’s treasury operations. The annual report 
was due to be reported to the Performance and Governance Committee 
following the annual audit of the Council’s accounts. The Principal Accountant 
also noted the developments with regard to Landsbanki as outlined in the 
report.  
 
Following a query, the Principal Accountant advised that Sector, the Council’s 
treasury advisors, had developed a system where credit default swaps were 
used to indicate a financial institution’s standing amongst its peers. This 
system supplemented the data on credit ratings to provide up to date 
information on the institutions to which the Council loaned money. It was 
hoped that this system was more responsive to market sentiment than using 
credit ratings alone.  
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Finance Advisory Group - Wednesday, 27 July 2011 
 
 

2 

Action 1: Members requested that a formal review of agencies like Sector 
be carried out once during every four year council term to ensure the quality 
of the information they provided. 
 
For the benefit of new Members, the Principal Accountant explained the 
Council’s situation with regard to the Icelandic bank investment. Current 
advice was that the Council would recover 95% of the funds, but this was 
dependent on the eventual outcome of the Appeal still to be heard in Iceland.   
Resolved: That the update on treasury activity in the first quarter of 
2011/12 be noted. 
 

17. DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11  
 
The Finance Manager explained that the Provisional Outturn figures and carry 
forward requests had been reported to the last meeting of the Group. Some of 
the carry forward requests had been rejected by Cabinet and as such the end 
of year favourable outturn position had been amended to £590,000. He also 
explained that the Council was now required to compile the Statement of 
Accounts in line with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The 
Finance Manager noted the changes to the classification and valuation 
methodology of fixed assets and leases. He also noted the balance sheet on 
page 45 of the report which showed a positive bottom line. This was due to 
changes in the IAS19 valuation of the pension fund. It was also highlighted 
that the Statement of Accounts contained a number of new statements, notes 
and tables. 
 
The Finance Manager also explained that the external audit was currently in 
progress and that the final audited accounts would be presented to the 
Performance and Governance Committee in September 2011. As this was the 
first year of preparing the accounts under IFRS, it was to be expected that 
some amendments would arise from the audit process.  
Members shared the Officers’ disappointment with the new reporting 
requirements. They felt the accounts were not user friendly and longer than 
necessary.  
 
Action 2: The Finance Manager undertook to provide Members with a 
reconciliation of the Monitoring Report figures to those in the Statement of 
Accounts. 
 
Members were pleased that changes to the Pensions Interest Costs would be 
highlighted as a separate line in the final version of the Accounts.  
A Member felt it would be helpful to have some high level financial historical 
trend information and it was suggested that this could be incorporated into the 
budget setting papers. 
 
Action 3: Following a query, the Finance Manager undertook to provide 
Members with CIPFAs definition of the word “derecognition” as outlined on 
page 69 of the report.  
 
Action 4:  In response to a query, the Finance Manager undertook to 
inform Members of the amount of Section 106 and Affordable Housing 
contributions in the Statement of Accounts. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 2



Finance Advisory Group - Wednesday, 27 July 2011 
 
 

3 

 
Members thanked the Finance Manager for all his hard work in producing the 
Accounts, particularly given the onerous reporting requirements this year.   
Resolved:  That the Draft Statutory Statement of Accounts attached as an 
Appendix the report be noted. 
 

18. FINANCIAL RESULTS 2011/12 - TO THE END OF JUNE 2011  
 
The Finance Manager explained that three months into the financial year the 
results showed an overall favourable variance of £139,000 and an overspend 
of £182,000 was forecast for the year. Heads of Service were currently 
investigating ways to address the forecast overspend and therefore keep 
within budget. One good news item was that the income from Swanley Market 
had risen. The Finance Manager also highlighted the risk areas outlined in the 
report.  
 
Members noted that savings related to partnership working would not be 
realised until later in the financial year.  
 
Following a Member’s concern, the Head of Finance and Human Resources 
explained the process that Heads of Service and Management Team followed 
to keep net expenditure within budget. It was expected that when the Finance 
Advisory Group considered the September results, they would also be able to 
see the plans that had been put in place to bring the budget back in to 
balance.  
 
Resolved:  That the Financial Results 2011/12 to the end of June 2011 be 
noted. 
 

19. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2011/12 - TO THE END OF 

JUNE 2011  
 
Due to a printing error, the Finance Manager tabled an updated version of the 
tables. He noted that investment returns were slightly higher than anticipated 
and that Sundry Debtors over 61 days was above target.  
Action 5: In response to Members’ comments, the Finance Manager 
undertook to change the wording “monthly cash balance” to “monthly 
investment balance”.  
 
It was noted that the variance in monthly employee costs was related to the 
use of casual staff.  
 
In response to a query, the Head of Finance and Human Resources assured 
Members that Officers always encouraged residents to pay Council Tax by 
direct debit. The target for this was shared between the District Council and its 
partnership authority, Dartford Borough Council.  
 
Resolved: That the Financial Performance Indicators 2011/12 to the end of 
June 2011 be noted.   
 

20. FORWARD PROGRAMME  
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 3



Finance Advisory Group - Wednesday, 27 July 2011 
 
 

4 

• The Chairman noted that the Performance and Governance Committee 
had been interested in establishing a sub-group to investigate property 
disposal. He suggested that the Finance Advisory Group were well 
placed to consider property disposals in the first instance. Members felt 
that it was important to consider the financial viability and social 
circumstances of property disposal and that the Group should consider 
these items before they were passed to the Performance and 
Governance Committee for consideration. They felt this approach 
would streamline the process and discussion at that Committee.  

 
• Members requested that, in future, Officers try to avoid setting 

meetings during school holidays.  
 

Action 6:  The Group requested that the date of the next meeting be 
changed as it fell within schools half term.  

 
• An item relating to Building Control was scheduled for the next meeting 

of the Group. Members requested that they be informed of how 
Building Control and Development Control worked with each other at 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council, the Council’s Development Services 
partnership authority. They also requested an update on cost savings, 
the market in general and how eco friendly initiatives were being 
achieved. 

 
21. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 
No other business was discussed. 
 
Informative: The next meeting of the Group has been rescheduled for 2 
November 2011.  
 
 

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT  11.00 am 
 

  
 
 
 

Chairman 

Agenda Item 2

Page 4



 

Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011  

ACTION SHEET - Actions from the previous meeting  

ACTIONS FROM 27.07.11 

Action Description Status and last updated Contact Officer 

ACTION 1 Members requested that a formal review of 
agencies like Sector be carried out once 
during every four year council term to ensure 
the quality of the information they provided. 

The matter is still being investigated. The 
Officer hopes to report within the next 
financial year. 

Roy Parsons 

Ext: 7204 

ACTION 2 The Finance Manager undertook to provide 
Members with a reconciliation of the 
Monitoring Report figures to those in the 
Statement of Accounts. 

Response sent via email on 05.09.11. Adrian Rowbotham 

Ext: 7153 

ACTION 3 Following a query, the Finance Manager 
undertook to provide Members with CIPFAs 
definition of the word “derecognition” as 
outlined on page 69 of the report. 

Response sent via email on 05.09.11. Adrian Rowbotham 

Ext: 7153 

A
genda Item

 4

P
age 5



 

Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011  

 

ACTION 4 In response to a query, the Finance Manager 
undertook to inform Members of the amount 
of Section 106 and Affordable Housing 
contributions in the Statement of Accounts. 

Response sent via email on 05.09.11. Adrian Rowbotham 

Ext: 7153 

ACTION 5 In response to Members’ comments, the 
Finance Manager undertook to change the 
wording “monthly cash balance” to “monthly 
investment balance”. 

Noted. Adrian Rowbotham 

Ext: 7153 

ACTION 6 The Group requested that the date of the 
next meeting be changed as it fell within 
schools half term. 

The next meeting of the Group has been 
rescheduled for 2 November 2011. 

 

 

 

 

A
genda Item

 4

P
age 6



 

Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

MATTERS REFERRED BY PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE 

COMMITTEE 

Performance Monitoring: LPI DS 002 – Total Trading Account Position 
(Performance and Governance Committee – 27 September 2011) 

The Chairman, with the agreement of the Committee, brought consideration of 
this item forward on the agenda.  Members’ attention was brought to the 
paper tabled at the meeting which reported the Services Select Committee 
Performance Indicators (PIs) for August 2011/12, and the Deputy Chief 
Executive and Director of Corporate Resources referred Members to the 
changes from the July information contained in the agenda.   

A Member was concerned that the target set for LPI DC 004 seemed a little 
tough and asked whether it was management aspiration or a historical figure. 
In response, the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Corporate Resources 
advised that in general targets were set with reference to historical 
performance, feedback, requests from Portfolio Holders, and where resources 
allowed, an aspiration to perform in the top quartile of national performance.  
In general they were quite tough to give Service Managers something to 
aspire to.  It was noted that this was an overall performance indicator and did 
not differentiate between delegated and committee decisions.  The Portfolio 
Holder for Planning and Improvement advised the Committee that lessons 
had been learnt and more comprehensive reasons for refusal were being 
formulated whenever applications were turned down within the Green Belt.   

The Head of  Environmental and Operational Services was asked whether it 
would be appropriate to increase the charges for collection of trade waste and 
cesspool emptying, whether it was a legal duty to provide these services, and 
whether it was profitable enough to continue.  In response he explained that 
charges were put up annually, there was only a legal duty to provide the 
service if it was requested – but that it could be delegated to contractors, and 
that it was profitable and helped to offset other costs.  The Leader of the 
Council advised that it gave a degree of flexibility to matters such as 
household waste collections, and allowed more effective use of labour.  
Members agreed that the issues would benefit from a more in depth review by 
the Finance Advisory Group. 

Members considered red indicators for Housing Benefits and agreed to refer 
this for further consideration to the next meeting of Services Select 
Committee, along with the September figures.  Members discussed the 
difficulties in recruiting experienced  Benefits Assessors.   

Concern was expressed at the possible dangers of having targets that were 
reliant on third party action and out of the Council’s control.   

Resolved:  That: 

 (i) the contents of the report be noted;  

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



 

Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

(ii) LPI DS 002 – be referred to the Finance Advisory Group for 
further consideration;  and 

(iii) LPI HB 001, 002, 005 & 006 be referred to Services Select 
Committee  for further consideration. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 8



Item No. 7 

FINANCE ADVISORY GROUP – 2 NOVEMBER 2011 

KENT AND MEDWAY INVESTMENT FUND 

Report of the: Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Resources Director 

Also considered by: Cabinet – 3 November 2011 

Status: For consideration 

Executive Summary: District and Borough Councils in the County have been 
approached by Kent County Council to take part in a proposed Kent and Medway 
Investment Fund. The proposal is aimed at providing an investment opportunity for all 
councils in the County at the same time as ensuring a supply of funding for 
development and attracting development to the County.   

Taking part in the next phase of the development of the proposed Fund would require 
from the Council a non-refundable contribution of £25,000.  This phase will involve 
agreeing an investment strategy and partnership structure.  After this phase, the 
Council would be invited to make an investment contribution of £2million in cash or 
property.  The investment period would be 10 years.  A Fund Manager would be 
appointed to run the Fund, ensuring the maximum return for investors.   

This report may support the Key Aims of Value for Money and the Community 
Plan priority ‘A thriving economy’.   

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Ramsay, Finance Portfolio Holder 

Head of Service Head of Finance and Human Resources –Tricia Marshall 

Head of Community Development – Lesley Bowles 

Recommendation:  Members views are sought. 

Background 

1 Kent County Council is seeking support from District Councils to create a Kent 
and Medway Investment Fund (KMIF).   

2 The County Council has appointed consultants CBRE to develop proposals 
based on experience of setting up an ‘Evergreen Fund’ in the North West of 
England.  The CBRE feasibility study is attached at Appendix A and a 
summary is given on page 6 of the appendix.  Answers to Frequently Asked 
Questions are attached at Appendix B. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

Item No. 7 

Introduction 

3 The primary purpose of the proposed fund is to enable regeneration.  The 
KMIF would provide a commercial market return on investments.   

4 The KMIF would be structured as a fund with an independent professional 
fund manager appointed to deliver an investment strategy agreed by the 
partners.  The investment strategy would set out the objectives of the fund, 
determine the rate of return and risk profile as well as the type of investment 
the Fund Manager makes. 

5 Projects for investment would be selected not only on the basis of a sound 
business case but also for the regeneration benefits that they will deliver.  At 
the moment, it is understood that applications for funding will only be 
considered in districts where the district or borough council is an investor. 

6 The Fund would be set up for an initial ten year term with the option for 
partners to agree to extend the fund for a further ten years. 

7 The County Council is inviting all district and borough councils to be part of the 
scheme and has indicated that other investors, e.g. the Kent Pension Fund 
and the Homes and Communities Agency may also wish to be involved. 

8 In order to take part in the scheme each district is being asked to commit 
£25,000 to enable the next stage of work to take place.  Kent County Council 
will contribute up to £500,000 and Medway Council £50,000.  This stage will 
involve drawing up the investment strategy and the terms of the partnership.  
This sum is not refundable.  

9 Following the next stage of work, district councils will be invited to invest a very 
significant amount in the Fund. The amount currently being discussed is 
£2million per district, which can be contributed in cash or in property. 

10 All district and borough councils in Kent have been invited to take part in an 
asset review, conducted by CBRE, to help assess whether they wish to use 
assets rather than cash as their investment. 

11 Another option may be to take part in the subsequent phase of the scheme, 
which would be the full investment stage. At that stage an equalisation 
payment would have to be paid in order to compensate original partners for 
their higher level of risk.  It is not known at this stage what size of payment this 
might be. 

12 In essence, the KMIF proposal could have the ability to provide district 
councils with regeneration and/or financial returns. 

Regeneration objectives 

13 The consultants’ study identifies that the Fund needs to deliver regeneration 
outputs to Kent and Medway.  The regeneration that is achieved will depend 
upon a series of quantifiable outputs that will be used as an important part of 

Agenda Item 7

Page 10



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

Item No. 7 

the project selection mechanism. These might include for example the number 
of jobs or the number of affordable housing units created. 

14 Different parts of the County will have different priorities for these quantifiable 
outputs and these will be set as part of the next phase of the development of 
the fund.   

15 Although it is possible that local regeneration projects could benefit from the 
fund, there is no guarantee of this.  The Fund Manager’s role will be to ensure 
that the schemes that best meet the objectives and, most importantly, those 
that are fully worked up, achievable and offer the best returns, are funded.  
The purpose of the Fund is not to provide gap funding for schemes that would 
otherwise fail. 

Key Implications 

Financial  

16 Should Members wish to consider taking part in the scheme, it would be 
necessary to make a £25,000 contribution which is non-refundable.  Following 
this, Investment in the Fund will require a contribution of £2 million in cash or 
property assets the ownership of these assets would then pass on to the fund.  
Rates of return will depend on the level of risk adopted as part of the 
investment strategy.  It has been suggested that these could be as high as 
10%.  However, if a lower level of risk is decided upon, rates could be much 
lower. 

17 Under the Council’s current Investment Strategy, lending is restricted to 
counterparties based in either the UK or the EU, satisfying the credit rating 
matrix supplied by Sector, the Council’s investment advisers. The minimum 
acceptable long term credit rating is AA- or better. Investments are currently in 
place for a maximum of  one year, although in the current climate new 
investments are being placed for no longer than three months. 

18 No more than £5m is placed with any single counterparty, increased to £6m 
including call accounts. A maximum of 25% of the total fund is be lent to any 
single counterparty or counterparties in the same group. Current investment 
rates with institutions on our lending list vary between 1.65% and 2.1% for one 
year. Looking at some low or non rated building societies (that fall outside the 
current Strategy) rates are around 2.0% to 2.2%.  

19 Should the Council wish to pursue this beyond the feasibility stage and in 
recognition of the fact that the KMIF is not credit rated and that the lending 
would be in excess of one year, the Investment Strategy would need to be 
amended by full Council in order to invest in the Fund.  

Legal, Human Rights etc.  

20 The Feasibility Report recommends that the KMIF is established through a 
limited partnership. Appendix C is a copy of a report written by Kent County 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

Item No. 7 

Council Officers. Page 7 of Appendix C sets out the legal implications.  
However, if Members wish to pursue the proposal further, it would be 
necessary for Officers to obtain the Council’s own legal advice. 

Resource (non-financial) 

21 It would be possible to invest in the Fund using property assets instead of 
cash.  The CBRE property review report is attached at Appendix D.  This has 
just been received from Kent County Council and the Property Manager is in 
the process of reviewing its findings and these should be tabled at the 
meeting.   

Value For Money and Asset Management 

22 It is not possible to assess value for money until more information is known 
about the investment strategy and what sort of yield is anticipated.  It is hoped 
that once the feasibility study has been completed, more detailed information 
to enable decision making will be available. 

Equality  

23 There are no equality issues associated with this report. 

Community Impact 

24 There may be some positive community impact associated with the scheme.  
For example, in the right circumstances the Fund could lever in funding for 
housing or regeneration.  However this cannot be measured in advance.   

Conclusions 

25 The proposed purpose of the Kent & Medway Investment Fund is to enable 
development  and lever private finance across the area at a time when it is 
difficult for developers to attract investment funding.  At the same time it is 
intended to provide an investment opportunity for local authorities.   

26 In terms of the investment opportunity, the level of return is dependent upon 
the risk profile that partners decide upon in drafting the proposed investment 
strategy as well as the success of the projects in the development pipeline. 

23 The scheme falls outside the District Council’s own Investment Strategy as it 
stands at the moment. 

24 The regeneration benefits to this District will be dependent upon the 
regeneration outcomes decided in the next phase of the development of the 
Fund.  However, Members should note that although the Council would be 
keen to move forward projects in the District, there is no guarantee that any of 
the projects accepted for funding will be in this District. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 12



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

Item No. 7 

Risk Assessment Statement  

Risk associated with the £25,000 
investment in the next stage  

Mitigation 

The Council cannot be assured that there 
is value in investing £25,000 in the next 
phase of the project.   

It may be possible to enter the Fund at a 
later stage once the investment strategy 
is set, although there would be financial 
penalties associated with this. 

If the Council does not take part in the 
next phase, it will not be able to influence 
the regeneration outputs which may then 
favour other parts of the County. 

 

If the Council does not take part in the 
investigation phase of the project, and 
subsequently does not invest in the 
Fund, developments in the District may 
not be able to access the Fund and the 
Council may be criticised for this.  

Because of high property values in the 
District it may be easier for developments 
in the District to be funded by private 
funders than is experienced elsewhere in 
the County.   

If the Council does not investigate 
investment in the scheme, it may miss 
the opportunity to benefit from a higher 
rate of interest on its investments. 

The Council’s investment policy has been 
extremely sound and subject to minimal 
risk. 

Note: if, after the next phase, there was a proposal to invest in the scheme, a 
full risk assessment would be carried out as part of the decision-making 
process.  

Sources of Information: Appendices A, B & C  

Contact Officer(s): Lesley Bowles, ext 7335 

 

DR. PAV RAMEWAL 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE & CORPORATE RESOURCES DIRECTOR 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

Item No. 7 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 14



�

� �

�

���������	
�������

����������	
������������

�����

�����������	
�
�
���������

�����������������������

����������

�

�
�

�
�
�
�

Agenda Item 7

Page 15



�

� �

�

���������
� �!�"#������#$$��%�                                                                   �&�

' �#����#$$��%�                                                                         �(�

) ��"�������*�������#"�����                                                            �+�

& ��"�����'�*��#�,#���-.�"����/�����0���#���                               ��)�

1 ��"�����'�*���$-��/0�,�                                                          ��)�

( ��"�����)�*��#���2�������"�����#"�#���                                   �''�

3 ��"�����&�*�2�������"��������.�"��4�����                                  �'1�

5 ��"�����1�*��#�,#�/�                                                                 �'3�

+ ��"�����(�*�����/�$����������6%�                                               �'5�

�7 ��"�����3�*����.�"����,������������,$������������"�����

���"�//�                                                                                   �)'�

�� ��"�����5�*�����"���������.�"�/�                                                 �)(�

�' ��"�����+�*�8�9��0���#���"�#���-���������                             �&)�

�) ��"������7�*���!�����,/�                                                           �&3�

�& ��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���                 �&+�

�
�
�
�

��/"���$���

����
���������
	����
���������	����������
��	� 
�
����
	�������
	�����������������������

�
����
�������
��	�!�����
�"�

#���
�$�����
���
����
	����	�����
�����	����������������	
�������%��&����������

�����	����
����$�����������&	��������
	���
���&�
���������	��'��������������
�������

���������"�

(�
���������
�$�����
��)����������
�
����*���		�������
�����	�
����	���	��
�
���
��)����

�����������
������	��$�����������	�)����	�����$����	����
�
�	)�������������$
����
���


�	�������	"��#��������
�������
�������	�
	�
��������$�������	�����	���$��������	������$
���

���&����
��
	�����
���"��!�����������
�������
	��
���
����$���
	������
�&)�
��&��������
��

����)���������
	���	�����$�
�	��������	)�&
������������
���&�
��������	����
	�����
�
���"��

(���
���
����
	��������������
����������
���������
	����
���������	����������
��	� 
�
����
	�


��������������	�
�������*)��������
��)����������)�������������������
��"�

�
�

Agenda Item 7

Page 16



�

� �

�

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



�

� �

�

�

����������9�%�����/�$�����#���;����<�*�	0%=�

�����������
	���)��		
	������������	������+�����
����������������$
����
��,���	����������
����

���������������������������������	�	�����	����� �����-�����������!����
�	���������

.���	�����������
�
�	�!���������		
	��������������
�
�	�
�����
���
���	������
��

$����&��%	"������������)���
	�
	���&��������
����������������������
�
�	�������/�
�������

	���������
���&��
��������������	�����	��������
�������'���	��	
������
���&��
�
�
��
��"�

���������
	
��������������	
������������&
��������/�
����������
����0���1	��������
��

�����&��%)����������	
����	���������)�0���������������
����	�
�	������������������������

�������������$���0����&
���$���"�#�����
��
����
	����������$����&
������	������&
��� �����

!�����
���		��	�����$���	)������	����	������
��������������������
�����	������$
�����)��
�����

�����$����������'���������)����������%����	���	���$����
�������������������������$���
���

	�����	�����
�
�
��
��	�	�����	����
�����2��&�������)�(�&�.���	�����	�������	
��		�

�����������
��"�

���
	�������������������$����&
���'�
��������	��������
�
�	�&
��
��0���"�#�����
����$�����

������
�
�	�&
�����������������������&
����������
�
����$��������������
�������$
�	��$�

����������������		����������)�������	��������	�����
�
������		��$����'���	)�����		����

���'���	�����$
�����)�&�
�����%�	�
���$���	
3�������������	��$�
�����	���������&
�������%��"�

#�
	�����
����$���	�����	�&
�������&���������$$
�
������	����
���	���������������	��������

���
�����������		�����/���
�����
���
������	���$$
�
����������"�

#���$����&
���
	�����*����
���	�������$���&�����$����������%�+	��'�������������������

����������
���4������	����
���������*�����	�",�

	0����/���=�

#���05���&
������	�����������	���$���)�&
������
��������������$�		
����������5�������

����
�����������
�����������	���������������������������4������	"�#�
	�����	��������������

&
���	�������������'���
��	��$�����$���)�������
�������������$�������������
	%����$
������������

$����������	)��	�&�����	����������$�
���	���������������5���������%�	"�

#���05���&
��������/�
�������
���	��
���
���&
���������!
���������
��	����������$����&
������


���	�
�����������%�������"����&
����
��������
�������������
�������������
�	�
���	���	"�#���

05���
	���������������$���
��)������		
	�
������'���	�����������/�
�������������	
������

$
����
���	����
���������������%��������$$������
�	��&�"�

05���
���	�����	�������
������$�����$�����)��/�
��������������)����������%��$
�	�����

	�����
������	����
��+&�
���&
����$$��������������$�������,"�

4��'���	�$���
���	������&
������	�������������������������	
	��$���	�������	
��		���	�)�����

��	��$����������������
�������$
�	����������&
������
����$����������
��"�

#���$����
	��*������������������
�
�
����
$���$�������	)�&
������
��������������
����������	�

�������������
����������
�������
����������$����$�����
���	���������
�����
	����
���+���

6���������1�$���,"��

���
	�����������$����&
������	������&
������&����7��������78�����������������
�
�	)����

$����������
�������������0����4��	
�����������&
	�����
���	�������������������������

$���
����������������$�����������������
�
�
��
��	"�

���#"�#���

���
	����������������������$����
	�	�������	��������
	�� 
�
����4������	�
�"�#���4������	�

&�����������������$������������������
�	)�0���������������
������5��&�������
�"�

�!�"#������#$$��%�

Agenda Item 7

Page 18



�

� �

�

#�����
	���	��
�����	��$��������0����4��	
��������
�������
�����4������)���������	���������

&���������&���������������
�����	������
���	������������&
	�����'�
��
������$������������	��

+	��'����������������������$��*
	�
����������	,"�

���
	����
	���������������������	�&
��������/�
�������
���	�����
�
����	��)���������4������	�

&
���������/�������
����
���	)�&
���������	����4������	��/���
	�������������������	
	�

��������������������������$����
��
�
�
���
���	�����"�

#����������	�&
������������&�����������������	�������������)������
��	����&����$�


���	��������������������	��$������	�������������������5������"�#��������5�������&
���

�����������$�����������9��9�����	
	)�&
��������		
	�������$�$������&��	�������$����

���
�
	������"�

(�&�4������	����'�
������$�������	���
$
�����
��	����
���
�	��
$��&
������������������$�����

4������	"��

>������/�����0�������

��������
�������	
�
���
������$���
������%�����������%	�����������
�����	�����������

����������$���)���������������
�������
��&
��
�)�����05���&
�����������������	
��������

��������$����
�
����������������������
��0���"��

�����	�����'���	�&
���������������
����)����������&
��������������$����
���	������������

$���"�������
�
��)����'���	�&
������������������&
�����������	�������������)�&�
���&
���

��	����������������
��������$
�
���������	�����������
��"��

#��	������$
�	����������������		
������������	
��������������
���������������$�

������
�
�	)���	���
���
������
�
������		�����������������	��������
������
�	�
���
�����
���	���	:�

&�����������&
���&
	�����
���	��������'�������$���������)�����		��������$���	���������������

���
������&
����������"�

������������������������/����������

���������0���������������
�������������
	��		
��	�&
��������������������
�	�����

5��&�������
������
	��		�������
��
���	��$�����05��"�#�������&����
�����'��
�������

	��&��
�����	��
����
���
��������
���������
���������������$������"�#���0����4��	
��������

��	���	�������
��������
���
	��		
��	"�

���#"�#����?�"�$$��������/�

4
�	����5�	��	���	����������
������������
������
����������������	�������
����$�����$���)�

������	�&��%���&
��������
��������
�����	��
�	��$������������
��	�$�������$���"�#���

�*����
���	������$������	��
	�����
�����	���/�
�%���$��������������������$����&
�������	"�

�

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 19



�

� �

�

�

�

0�;����<55�(-!#�<(�0�;����<55�(-!#�<(�0�;����<55�(-!#�<(�0�;����<55�(-!#�<(����� 0�;��!#�<(! �0�;��!#�<(! �0�;��!#�<(! �0�;��!#�<(! �����

<=�<=�<=�<=��=��>�=��>�=��>�=��>����

#��������&
���#��������&
���#��������&
���#��������&
���
�
�
����
�
�
����
�
�
����
�
�
�������$�������$������
�	�&
��
��0�������$�������$������
�	�&
��
��0�������$�������$������
�	�&
��
��0�������$�������$������
�	�&
��
��0����
����5��&�����5��&�����5��&�����5��&�

#������
���������	
�������������������������������

���	����������		��������
��"����&
��������		
����+��
���������,�$�����
�����	������
���	���	����'�
��
������$�����

#��������&
�������������������
�����������#��������&
�������������������
�����������#��������&
�������������������
�����������#��������&
�������������������
�����������
���$�		
����������5���������$�		
����������5���������$�		
����������5���������$�		
����������5����������

#������
��������
�
�����
�����������������������

��������
��������
�	��$�����$������������
������$
������
���������������
���
���	���	�

����	�����	�&
�����������
���������������������������	�����	�&
�����������
���������������������������	�����	�&
�����������
���������������������������	�����	�&
�����������
�����������������������
5�������
���
���&
����������	���������������������������5�������
���
���&
����������	���������������������������5�������
���
���&
����������	���������������������������5�������
���
���&
����������	���������������������������

���	���	
���	���	
���	���	
���	���	����

#������
������������5�������&
����������������	����$�
��
���
���������������	��������%��
���	�����	�&
������
��/�
�
������
$
���
���������
��)����	������
�������������

#��������&
��������������%�������	�����&
��������		�����#��������&
��������������%�������	�����&
��������		�����#��������&
��������������%�������	�����&
��������		�����#��������&
��������������%�������	�����&
��������		�����
$���
������������������������
��
�
�����$���
������������������������
��
�
�����$���
������������������������
��
�
�����$���
������������������������
��
�
���������

#�
	�
	���/�
������������!
���������
��	�

#��������&
���#��������&
���#��������&
���#��������&
�������������������������������	���
$
��������	�+	�����	�'��	����,��	�	���
$
��������	�+	�����	�'��	����,��	�	���
$
��������	�+	�����	�'��	����,��	�	���
$
��������	�+	�����	�'��	����,��	�
&����&����&����&�����	�$
����
���������	��	�$
����
���������	��	�$
����
���������	��	�$
����
���������	�����

#����	����������$����
	%���%�����
���	���	�

#��������&
������	����������	�������		��	�������������#��������&
������	����������	�������		��	�������������#��������&
������	����������	�������		��	�������������#��������&
������	����������	�������		��	�������������
����������
���
���&
�����������	�����������������������
���
���&
�����������	�����������������������
���
���&
�����������	�����������������������
���
���&
�����������	�����������������

#�����
������$���������
���$
�������
��������
�����		��	�
&��������������������������
����

-��
��������
$���$���������)�-��
��������
$���$���������)�-��
��������
$���$���������)�-��
��������
$���$���������)����
������
������
������
�������&��������������������&��������������������&��������������������&��������������������
��
���	����������������
���	����������������
���	����������������
���	������������������

#������
����������
���
�
�������
����$�
���	����������
��*
�
	������	�����
�
���$����������

5�5����.�45�5����.�45�5����.�45�5����.�4����

�

4������	�&
���'�
�����������
��$������	����	����?���	
��	?�4������	�&
���'�
�����������
��$������	����	����?���	
��	?�4������	�&
���'�
�����������
��$������	����	����?���	
��	?�4������	�&
���'�
�����������
��$������	����	����?���	
��	?�
+�
�
��	�������������,+�
�
��	�������������,+�
�
��	�������������,+�
�
��	�������������,����

#�
	�&
�������������������������&�
����������������
���
���
	��������
�
�����
���	�������$$��	�

�
3���$��������	�
�����$
�	�����	��&
���������
�
	���
3���$��������	�
�����$
�	�����	��&
���������
�
	���
3���$��������	�
�����$
�	�����	��&
���������
�
	���
3���$��������	�
�����$
�	�����	��&
���������
�
	������ #�
	��
��	�����������������������
�����������
������$���	�
����&
��������	���
�
	���������������
������

�����
���4������	������
���4������	������
���4������	������
���4������	�'�
�
�������������������'�
�
�������������������'�
�
�������������������'�
�
�������������������&
���������&
���������&
���������&
���������
�/���
	��
����������/���
	��
����������/���
	��
����������/���
	��
�������������

#�
	�&
���������������������
���$
���������	������4������	�
�	����	��'�
�
������	���������	��	�/��������	��&
������
'�
�
����������&
������
$$�������
	%����$
���

 �2 �2 �2 �2! ��#�@�#@��! ��#�@�#@��! ��#�@�#@��! ��#�@�#@������

����

#��������&
�������� 
�
����4������	�
�#��������&
�������� 
�
����4������	�
�#��������&
�������� 
�
����4������	�
�#��������&
�������� 
�
����4������	�
����� -������
�	���*�����	�������$������������������������
��
4������	��������������9��*���
���4������	�	�����	�

�	�
���
�����
���	���	:����
�
�����*����%����

���*
�
�
��
������&��������	������
	��
�������

���
�
������
���A����������	���
��������
�����
���	������
���%���

��2@ !#<�;��2@ !#<�;��2@ !#<�;��2@ !#<�;����

�

�#����#$$��%�

Agenda Item 7

Page 20



�

� �

�

#���������������
���������	�&
����
%�������������
*��$�#���������������
���������	�&
����
%�������������
*��$�#���������������
���������	�&
����
%�������������
*��$�#���������������
���������	�&
����
%�������������
*��$�
��&��	��������
�
�����
������+
$�����
�����,�����	$����������&��	��������
�
�����
������+
$�����
�����,�����	$����������&��	��������
�
�����
������+
$�����
�����,�����	$����������&��	��������
�
�����
������+
$�����
�����,�����	$��������
������������������������������������������������+	�����������	����
�
�����������	�
�,�+	�����������	����
�
�����������	�
�,�+	�����������	����
�
�����������	�
�,�+	�����������	����
�
�����������	�
�,�������������
���'���	B
���	�����	���'���	B
���	�����	���'���	B
���	�����	���'���	B
���	�����	����

#���>���9��
�����&���+������
��������
����&
���

���	����������
��
���������&��	,�&
����
%���������
������
��
	��$����	�&���9��
���
	�������
���������	��$���
�����������

�����������+���&
��	����
�����������������
	����������,�

#������#������#������#������
	
������������&��	���
������
������&
��������������
	
������������&��	���
������
������&
��������������
	
������������&��	���
������
������&
��������������
	
������������&��	���
������
������&
��������������
������
���������������������
��������
�������	����������
���������������������
��������
�������	����������
���������������������
��������
�������	����������
���������������������
��������
�������	����
�
$$����������
���
����$���&��	�
$$����������
���
����$���&��	�
$$����������
���
����$���&��	�
$$����������
���
����$���&��	����

!$��������
��������
����$����� ����
	���
��)�
���	����������

��
���������&��	����������
�����"�!�������
��������������
������
���������	�����������
�
�����
����������������������

�������
����������

#���������������	������&
�������������������
���������	�#���������������	������&
�������������������
���������	�#���������������	������&
�������������������
���������	�#���������������	������&
�������������������
���������	�
+����������������
�����	
���$���,�&
��������������
�
���+����������������
�����	
���$���,�&
��������������
�
���+����������������
�����	
���$���,�&
��������������
�
���+����������������
�����	
���$���,�&
��������������
�
���
����������������������������������������������������

�	����
	�������$����������&
���������
���	������������������
���������������$�&��%	)�����	����	���
��	�

!����
�����	������
���	����	���������	����������������!����
�����	������
���	����	���������	����������������!����
�����	������
���	����	���������	����������������!����
�����	������
���	����	���������	����������������
	����$�����$�������
�
��������			����$�����$�������
�
��������			����$�����$�������
�
��������			����$�����$�������
�
��������		����

�$�����
���	��������������
��
	��������
�
���)�	����$�����$�
������
�
���	��������������������
������
	����
����$�
������
�
����

�$����
���	������
������	������������������$�&��%	)��$����
���	������
������	������������������$�&��%	)��$����
���	������
������	������������������$�&��%	)��$����
���	������
������	������������������$�&��%	)�
����	����B���	���
��	�	�$$
�
����������������4���
������	����B���	���
��	�	�$$
�
����������������4���
������	����B���	���
��	�	�$$
�
����������������4���
������	����B���	���
��	�	�$$
�
����������������4���
��
���������
�C	�	�����
���&
�����������������&
����������������
�C	�	�����
���&
�����������������&
����������������
�C	�	�����
���&
�����������������&
����������������
�C	�	�����
���&
�����������������&
�������
4���������������	4���������������	4���������������	4���������������	����

<���������)����������
	��
%�������������������
���������
��

�@(-�(2�!(-���#@�(��@(-�(2�!(-���#@�(��@(-�(2�!(-���#@�(��@(-�(2�!(-���#@�(�����

#��������&
������$������
�
�
������
�	�4������	�#��������&
������$������
�
�
������
�	�4������	�#��������&
������$������
�
�
������
�	�4������	�#��������&
������$������
�
�
������
�	�4������	�)��	�&����)��	�&����)��	�&����)��	�&����
�	�����
���$����������������������$���
���	�����
���$����������������������$���
���	�����
���$����������������������$���
���	�����
���$����������������������$���
������

#��������&
�����/�
���	������	���
/�
�
��

#���������
�����	�&
�������������&����&������������#���������
�����	�&
�������������&����&������������#���������
�����	�&
�������������&����&������������#���������
�����	�&
�������������&����&������������
����4������	�&
���������
�������������������������������������4������	�&
���������
�������������������������������������4������	�&
���������
�������������������������������������4������	�&
���������
���������������������������������
��%��$���
������
������$������&���&���������������%��$���
������
������$������&���&���������������%��$���
������
������$������&���&���������������%��$���
������
������$������&���&�������������
����������������'���������'������	
	����������������'���������'������	
	����������������'���������'������	
	����������������'���������'������	
	����

���&��������$
����
����
��$$
�
����$��������
���
��	�������
�����
�����������$�����"�.�&����)�������������&
���
����������
����$�$���
���

2<=��(!(��2<=��(!(��2<=��(!(��2<=��(!(������

#���4������	�&
��������������/�������
���������������#���4������	�&
��������������/�������
���������������#���4������	�&
��������������/�������
���������������#���4������	�&
��������������/�������
���������������
�
���	��
���	��
���	��
���	�+��	���������
�
����$���
��������
���
��,+��	���������
�
����$���
��������
���
��,+��	���������
�
����$���
��������
���
��,+��	���������
�
����$���
��������
���
��,����

=��
����
���	�&�
���������
���	������&�������/�
����������
������*������������	��������������&�����������$����������
����������������
��4������	��������
��������
����'���
��	�
&�
������������	
�����������
������
��
���	������

5�	�� 
�
����4����������
	
��	�&
��������%�����	
�����5�	�� 
�
����4����������
	
��	�&
��������%�����	
�����5�	�� 
�
����4����������
	
��	�&
��������%�����	
�����5�	�� 
�
����4����������
	
��	�&
��������%�����	
�����
��'��
�����������	����&
�����/�
�����DEF���'��
����'��
�����������	����&
�����/�
�����DEF���'��
����'��
�����������	����&
�����/�
�����DEF���'��
����'��
�����������	����&
�����/�
�����DEF���'��
������

����

�
�������'��
��������������	���	������������
����$�����
4������	�$��������
�
�
���������		
����$���	����
��	�&�
���
�������'��
��	������"�!�DEF�����	�����
	��	����$���
$�����������������	�&�
������������������������������$���
4������C	�
���	������+
"�"��
���
��	������������������
���
������	,"�

#��������&
�����������������������������!�����������#��������&
�����������������������������!�����������#��������&
�����������������������������!�����������#��������&
�����������������������������!�����������
�����
	��
�������
	��
�������
	��
�������
	��
������

#���
������������$������!�������
	������
��&
�������
���
���$����������
��������������������������$���������C	�
�$$�
�	�

#���2�������4�������������������&
���$����������$�����#���2�������4�������������������&
���$����������$�����#���2�������4�������������������&
���$����������$�����#���2�������4�������������������&
���$����������$�����
	������*��	������*��	������*��	������*�������+�	�����	����������2�������4������������+�	�����	����������2�������4������������+�	�����	����������2�������4������������+�	�����	����������2�������4�������
��
�������4=��&����������4������	,��
�������4=��&����������4������	,��
�������4=��&����������4������	,��
�������4=��&����������4������	,����

#�
	�&
��������=!#�	��
��	����������������������	�	�����
&�������������
�������
�����	��������4������	��

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



�

� �

�

4�<���#�4�<���#�4�<���#�4�<���#�����

#��������&
������������
���$����&�
���&
���
���	��
����#��������&
������������
���$����&�
���&
���
���	��
����#��������&
������������
���$����&�
���&
���
���	��
����#��������&
������������
���$����&�
���&
���
���	��
����
	��
�	��$��	��
�	��$��	��
�	��$��	��
�	��$����'�������
���	�+&�
�������	����	�&
���
���	����'�������
���	�+&�
�������	����	�&
���
���	����'�������
���	�+&�
�������	����	�&
���
���	����'�������
���	�+&�
�������	����	�&
���
���	��
��&�	�����,��&�	�����,��&�	�����,��&�	�����,����

 ���������$
����
����
���$���
����$����'���	�

!�
�
����������������������
�	��	���
$
���		��	�

!���&	�������������
�����	��
�	�����$��
��
������������

���*
�
�
��$����
���	
���$�
���	������

!�
�
���������
	��
���	���������������
	��	��	"�

������	�	��������
����		�������'������9
���	���	�

#��������&
���
���	��
�������������&
����������#��������&
���
���	��
�������������&
����������#��������&
���
���	��
�������������&
����������#��������&
���
���	��
�������������&
����������
���������	�	�������
���������	�������������"�#�
	�&
���������������	�	�������
���������	�������������"�#�
	�&
���������������	�	�������
���������	�������������"�#�
	�&
���������������	�	�������
���������	�������������"�#�
	�&
������
	����������������'�����
���
��	����������������'�����
���
��	����������������'�����
���
��	����������������'�����
���
������

#�
	�����
��	���$����&��%�&
��
��&�
�������������������
�������������������������&	�����4������	����	�������%�$����
���������������
��	�

��������'����&
��������
�	��&������	���������������������'����&
��������
�	��&������	���������������������'����&
��������
�	��&������	���������������������'����&
��������
�	��&������	�������������
�����������	�����������	�����������	�����������	����

���
	�%����������'�������
���	������'��
	�
��
������������
���
��&����
��	�����	B���'���	��������
�����:���
	�&���������
$����&
��
���������
���$�����2�������4���������B�5�������

#��������&
����	�����
���	�������������������
�������	"�#��������&
����	�����
���	�������������������
�������	"�#��������&
����	�����
���	�������������������
�������	"�#��������&
����	�����
���	�������������������
�������	"�
�$�
��+��������
��4������	,�&
	��	����
���	������$�
��+��������
��4������	,�&
	��	����
���	������$�
��+��������
��4������	,�&
	��	����
���	������$�
��+��������
��4������	,�&
	��	����
���	������������%����������%����������%����������%���
����	��������
���������$���
�����
	�&
�����������	��������
���������$���
�����
	�&
�����������	��������
���������$���
�����
	�&
�����������	��������
���������$���
�����
	�&
�����������������������������������
����������	������
�������
�������������������	������
�������
�������������������	������
�������
�������������������	������
�������
�������������

#��������&
���
���	��&
������
�&������%
���������	�$���
��
���	���������)����
�����)��
	��
���
����������4������	�

�G�#�G�#�G�#�G�#����

#��������&
������	������$������
�
�
����������������+&
���#��������&
������	������$������
�
�
����������������+&
���#��������&
������	������$������
�
�
����������������+&
���#��������&
������	������$������
�
�
����������������+&
���
�������
���$�������4������	�����������
���$�������4������	�����������
���$�������4������	�����������
���$�������4������	��������������*������������������������*������������������������*������������������������*��������������
$�����$�������������	,$�����$�������������	,$�����$�������������	,$�����$�������������	,���� ��������

#������	�������	������������������%�������
�����������
������
�&����
���	�����	�&�
���
	��		���
��������
���������	�
�����������$���	"�#���4������	����������$��*
�
�
�����
�*��������������
$�
����	����
������
���
����

 
�
����4������	�&
�������������
��������&
�����&�$�������� 
�
����4������	�&
�������������
��������&
�����&�$�������� 
�
����4������	�&
�������������
��������&
�����&�$�������� 
�
����4������	�&
�������������
��������&
�����&�$��������
���������&
������������������
	�����
��
���	��������������������&
������������������
	�����
��
���	��������������������&
������������������
	�����
��
���	��������������������&
������������������
	�����
��
���	�����������
�����������
	��	����$����
��
�����	������������
	��	����$����
��
�����	������������
	��	����$����
��
�����	������������
	��	����$����
��
�����	�����

#�����
�
���$����� 
�
����4������	����&
�����&����&
���&�����
������������	����������"�#�����������&��������������
�����
�����������
������$���	�������
�����	������
���	���	�
&���������
	���������

#���4������	�&�����������������
����$������
�����������#���4������	�&�����������������
����$������
�����������#���4������	�&�����������������
����$������
�����������#���4������	�&�����������������
����$������
�����������
&
��
������&
��
������&
��
������&
��
����������

!���&	�4������	��������
	�����
��
���	������
$����������
	�
	����		$���
��
�	���������	�

�

�
�

Agenda Item 7

Page 22



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�������*�������#"�����

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
��
��
 �

�
��
 �

�

����������	
�����������������;����<�

0����
	��*����
������
��	��������������
���	�������������
�������
�����$�	����������&
��������

��
���������
�����&����������	���
������		����������"���

!�	������
��$����&��%���	�������������	���
�����������*���$����������	
����	���������"��#���

$����&��%�	��	�����$
���%�����������	����������������������		��A9�

�" ��
��
�������&������
��	�
��&
���0������	
��		:�

�" @����%
�������������	�����������0����������:�

8" ������
��������&
������������
����������
��:�

H" ��
��
�������	�����������
�
�	:������

E" -��
���
������&���&
����������	�������
����%"��

#�����
	���	�������		9����
����������$�����
�����
�������������������	�	��
���
�
��

��'���
��	���������	�����		������$�����$
�������	"���

#�
	�������������$�����������	����������	
�
���$�������05�������
����
����������
�������
���

4�����+������������������,)�����		
	��������
����
�����
���
������'���	�����������	�����$�

���	�����������	����������	�����������
�������"���������	����&����������������)�5��&��

����-
	��
��	��������������������������������	������
����	
�
��	�����������������
���

$����&��%�������	���������)��������	
���	������)���	
�
������
����������
�������

�����	
�
���$����������	�����������&
�����	������
	������������	��������
�������$
�"�

>�"@6��#���

�����������
	���)�	�������������	������+
�����
���$
����
��,���	����������
��������������

�����������������������	�	�����	����� �����-�����������!����
�	���������.���	�����

������
�
�	�!���������		
	��������������
�
�	�
�����
���
���	������
��$����&��%	"�������

�����)���
	�
	���&��������
����������������������
�
�	�������/�
�������	���������
���&��


��������������	�����	��������
�������'���	��	
������
���&��
�
�
��
��"�

!���������$�������������
�
�	��������������%
����������������
������	���������
�������
���	�

�$����	�����������	� �����!		������%���=��
���	�+ !�=,"��#��������	���$����	�����
���	�
	����

�����������������������
�����	�������*����
	������
���	��������������		�	���
$
�)��$����

�����������9$���	�����'���
��	"��.�&����)�&
�����������
�������������	��	�/�����

����		
��)������
	���
����	����������$����	�����
�������
���	���	������/��	�
����"���������

����������
���������	$���
������������		��	�
���������
�������������)��������������������
��

������
���
�����������
��������6��	�����	
�����
������	����������
�����1�$��������
	��	���

�$�
�	��		��	"������
����&
�����
	����%���
		��)�������������$
������
	���&������������

������*���	
������	����������&�
�	���/�
��
	����
�����)�
��
	��*���	
���������/�
��	����
���

������"���

�������	�&��%��������������$������
���	������$����&
���0���������������
�)����	������


����
	�������)�&�
��������		�	�����
		��	���������
��	�������
������������
��"�>�
�	������

$�������������� !�=����)�
��
	��
$$������$������ !�=�
�������
��&
����������������%��


���	�����	�
����&
������
����$����'���	�
���
$$������&�	)�
�����
�������������/�
����������

��	�"����&
���������������������������������������
����������
���	�����	)�����&
���
���	��
���
���

&
�����	������������&
���������������������
��������������
�����$�	���
$
�����'���	"�

�

�

��"�������*�������#"�����

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�������*�������#"�����

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
��
��
 �

�
��
 �

�

���,�/����

0��������5��&�������*����
�������������
���������������$�������������
���	��������	��

�����		���������$
�	��$�	�����������������������
	�����������������
���
����$�������

������
�
�	�&��%
������������
���������	�
�����	�������������
������0��������5��&��&
���


���	������$���"���

>�
�	����
	������������	�&
�������	������$�������
������
��	�����
		��	����������	
�����)�
��
	�


����������������������	������������������	������/�
�%��������
���
	�����������
�������
��

$���
���	�����	)�
�
�
��������	�������������$��
��
�������������
�����2��&�������)�����

�����������$���������������
���$����������(�&�.���	�����	�$���
������������
	��
����$�

��	
��		�����	)������$�&�
���&
����$$�����������
�"�

#���$����&
�����	�����
������	
�
���������
���
	�����������������������������
�
�	����	������

��������
���&�����		��	)�
������
���������	��
����
$
���������������#�����4�����
�
�
��
��"�

#���
�����
���
	�������������
����&
��
������$����&
�������������)������		
����		��	�����

���
�������������������	������
���������
��������
����0���1	�	������
��$����&��%"�

?����9����������6/�

�
������������
���4����)�����������$�����
��	���������������"���
�
�������	������������


���������������
��	�����*������������	
	��$�����$����&
�����
�$��*����
��	"�#�������
��	�

���������������������	
�
���
������)�&
�������������
����������	��*���		
������
�����	��
��

&��%
�����������������������$������"�!	���$����&��������
	��		
��	�&
���������
�$��*����
��	)�

����
��	����������������&
������������������������
�������������	�����*������������
���

���'���	�����������%��������������
���	�����	��$�����$���"�!���������$����	������������

�
	��		���
������
��������
������������)����
���	�
�������&�����$�����
����������������
�����$�

����"�#���$����&
���������������
�
�	�����
�����	��������
�	������������
	
���A�

�

��"#����

��$#%&$'�

($�)�*+�,�

��'-�.�

�-�/��

��"#�$01$.�

�+�"�#�

�&)�$�

�+�2-�.�

�*+%&$'�

��3'*#&"��

�1"0$3'�����//*�

��*#���"#��2�#3�/���)�/&2,�"#��&,2�".�

�

8�9��0���#���0�/������������"���"�,��6���,���

�����&
�����������
�
��������������������		)�4
�	����5�	��	���	����������
�������0���

�	����������
	���$�����
	�	������$��������
����������������$�����$���"�>
�����������$
���$�

Agenda Item 7

Page 24



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�������*�������#"�����

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
��
��
 �

�
��
 �

�

4
�	����5�	��	1	����
��)�&���������&�������������	
�
���������
	��������	���������
����

����
���	����������$�$���"�4
�	����5�	��	���	����������������������	
������������

�����������	��������)�&�
���
	�
��������&
��
����
	�������"��

#���������
������������$������������/��	�
��	��������������������$���&���������
�
���
���

4������	�&
���&
	������$�������������)��������	��&
��������������&��%��������������������

��*��	������$�����$������������������4������������	�����
��	"�

�����&
�������	���
��������)�������		���	���������������������
���
�$�����
���������'���	�

��������������	����������		����������)�������������	����
����$�����&��%������&
������

��/�
����������'�����
���
�����	������$�����"�

?�,�������#"�#���

#�
	������������	�&
����������������������������
�	��$�����$���)�������������%	���������	���

�����������
������
		��	��������
	��
����
���������
����
�"������������
��	�$���	����
��	�����

����)�&
�������
�������
���������
������	�������������
��	"�#�����*��	������$�����&��%�

&
�����������%�����	�������������
��	������	����
������������������$������	�����
��	��$�����

�������	"��

>�
�	���������������$�����$����
	�&�������������)������������������������	�����������
����

��������)����������������
��	����������������$����������������������������������

�������	�
�����'����
���&
������������	��������5������"���

�������9�����0���#���

#����
���$�����05���
	�������
�
	������������
���������������
�������$
�	�$��������$���
���

��������
�������������������	�I��������
��)���������	�������
����
��	��$���
�����$
������$���

���'���	������&����������&
	��������
������I�&�
�	������
�
�������������
�����������
���

���%�����������������������$���	�
���	���"�#���$����
	�������	
���������$$����������$���
���

$������
�����	�����	"�

#�
	����
��&
�����	�������������$���	����
����������
���������	��������
������	��$�������	�

����		����������"�<����
	���	
	)�����$����&
�������
���	��
���
����	�����	�&�����
�	�


��������
��������������/���
$
������'���	������������
���
����	�����	�&�������
	�&�����

�������������	��
$���������
������$
������"���

�����
	�&�)�����
�����
���
	���������������������$
�	��$�����0����$����
���	�������	�$����	�

��		
����I�����
���$���
���&�
���
	�������������������
�����	������	��
������������

�/�
�"���

#������������*����
��	������
	)�&���������$������	���������
�
�	����
���	��
�������������

���'���	������&
�������
�����	������������)�&�������
	�&
����		
	������	������������������%�

������"�

���
	�������������$�������
���	��
���/�
����������)������	��
���������33��
��)�
���
���&
���

���
���	������	������������
	������������������������4������	"���������
�����
	�&�����

���������$�����
������&�
�����	������$����������������'���	)��������
������������
�����
��

����	
�
���&�����
����%�	����
����
	%���	
�
���+	�
����������������,)��������&��
	%���	
�
���

&
�������		���������"�

������		
�)�����$����&
�����������&
��
������$����&��%��$������@�������!
���������
��	)�����


���
���
����$�&�
���
	���������
���	�����	���	������������������%���������	����������)�

���
�������������&
�����������!
�����������	�����"�

Agenda Item 7

Page 25



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�������*�������#"�����

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
��
��
 �

�
��
 �

�

#���������$�
�����	�)�	����
����������������	���������
�
��	�$�����������'����&
������

�		�		���������
�������������	
	�������
�����������
����	�����	��$������	�����"��!	�
��
	�

���
	��������������&
�������	����
	����&
��������	
�����������������$�����
��	������

$���
��)���������
�������	�&
�������	����
	�������
����������������������
��������	����������

!
�������
����"�

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 26



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����'�*��#�,#���-.�"����/�����0���#���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
4�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
 


��

�
� 
�	
��
��
��
��
 �
���

��
�

��

�

���>�?�8���

���������$�������$����������
����	
�������		��������
��)�������	���������
��������
�
���������&�

��
�����	������
���	���	����'�
��
$��������
����
������$�����)�����������	�
��	��������)�


���	������������
	�������������	�
�����������������$������	
�����
���$��������	����"����


	��		���
�����	����������	���������	��$�����$���������/�
����������$�
�)������������	�����
���

���	���	���%�����������		���
	����1����	����
�������&
�������
���"�#���$����&
���

�����������
��	�+&�
���&
���������������������������*��	����,������������������4
�	����

5�	��	�������������
	"�

�-.�"����/��

���
	�
����������������������&
������������
�B��
����������&
�������
�
�
�������
�
����	�

+?4������4������4������4������				?,���
���������������
�
�	�����		�����0�������
�������������
��������0����4��	
���

����"��#���	�������������	��������
��������
�
��������
�����
�
�����
���	���	����$��������
��+	,�

���?���	
��	?������������������������*����������*���
����������
�
�	����
�����	�����
������

$���
��"�

�����������������������
������
�
����	�&
���'�
��������������������"��$�����������������
����

��	
�
���������	�)�������&
����������/���
	��
���������
	�������$����������4������	�'�
�
���

	��	�/������&
������
���	�
���
���������&
������
$$�������
	%����$
������������	�������������

$�������4������	���������
����������	����	
�
���$���'�
�
���������������$
�	�����	�"�

?�"�$$��������/�

����������������������������$���������	
��	$���������	
��	$���������	
��	$���������	
��	A�4������	�&
���'�
�����������
��$�����)����9������
����	����	����

?���	
��	?"���������4������	�&
���'�
��������������?$
�	�����	�?�+	�������$����	�����,"������&
���

��
	)���&�4������	�&
��������������'�
��+����
��������$��$
�������
������&����
���
�,�����

�*
	�
���4������	�&
���������
��������
�����	��������������$����
��
���	���������$������

���	
��	"�4�����
���4������	�&
��������$������
		
�����
��
���
����������
���
���$����&
�����

?�����$���4������	?"�(�&�4������	�&
�������������
�����������������&
�����������������$�DEF�

�$������*
	�
���4������	�+
������	��$��������������������
���	������	
3�,����	����������

����	������	������������������	�������
����������C	����	�
���
�������������	"�4������	�
��

	
3��&
�����������
�
���"�

�
3���$��������	�
��
3���$��������	�
��
3���$��������	�
��
3���$��������	�
�����������������$
�	�����	��&
���������
�
	��A$
�	�����	��&
���������
�
	��A$
�	�����	��&
���������
�
	��A$
�	�����	��&
���������
�
	��A�(��&
��	����
�������������
���$���

���
�
�����4������	����'�
�����	��	�/��������	
��	)����������&
���	��%������*
�
	������

��������$�4������	����$
�	�����	�"�

2���&����
���
�2���&����
���
�2���&����
���
�2���&����
���
�A�A�A�A������
���4������	�&
��������/�
�����������
���������
���������$�$���
���

+����?��	��!�������	��!�������	��!�������	��!�����?,)�	��	��
����������4������	�
��!���������������%������/���
	��
���

�������+	�������&,"�(�&�4������	�+���	
����$�$���������	
��	,�&
������������������
��

$����&
��������*���
	�����&�
�����$��*
	�
���4����������9����
����
���	"������
���4������	�

�������$���
����������2���&����
���
��&�������/�
�����������������$��*
	�
���4������	"�

�/���
	��
����������/���
	��
����������/���
	��
����������/���
	��
���������A�A�A�A�������
�
����������
��
���������������	��!�����)����4������	�'�
�
���

���	���������	��+������4������	�
�����	
���������������$����
��
���	�����,�&
�������
�����

��
��A9�

�

�" ���
��
���	����������
������+&�
���&
������������	��������	��!�����,:����	�

�" �������������&�
��������������$������������	�
�����	���	
������������������������

������������$������4������C	�
���	����������
�����	�+�*���		���������������

$����&
���$������A9�

��"�����'�*��#�,#���-.�"����/�����0���#�����"�����'�*���$-��/0�,�

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����'�*���$-��/0�,�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
5�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
�
��

��
��
��
��

����	����������
�������$�
����
���4������J�7�������	����������
�������$�
����
���4������J�7�������	����������
�������$�
����
���4������J�7�������	����������
�������$�
����
���4������J�7�������

#�����
���	�����	�K+�*����
���
����
���4������,L�J�7�����#�����
���	�����	�K+�*����
���
����
���4������,L�J�7�����#�����
���	�����	�K+�*����
���
����
���4������,L�J�7�����#�����
���	�����	�K+�*����
���
����
���4������,L�J�7���������

=������$��������������J�7����=������$��������������J�7����=������$��������������J�7����=������$��������������J�7��������

=������$���������������������	��J�78���=������$���������������������	��J�78���=������$���������������������	��J�78���=������$���������������������	��J�78�������

!�������������J��+8���!�������������J��+8���!�������������J��+8���!�������������J��+8���IIII�������,�*�+��B���,�J�7E�L���,�*�+��B���,�J�7E�L���,�*�+��B���,�J�7E�L���,�*�+��B���,�J�7E�L::::����	����

�" !��
	%��������	������������	
�����)�����������������&���������������	�����

��		
��������8F��$�����
���	����������
�����)������������$�����������
	%������$
���

�$�����$���:�

�" �����������/�����������	��������	�	��$����������������������������
����
���4������C	�

����
������+�������/���
	��������	�������*
	�
���4������	,:�

!��������	������������������	����	��	�/��������	
��	!��������	������������������	����	��	�/��������	
��	!��������	������������������	����	��	�/��������	
��	!��������	������������������	����	��	�/��������	
��	A�!	�������$�����
���	���������%����

�����
�����&
���
����
���4������	)������������������
��������������	��������������

����������
����������	����������$���������"�!��	�������������	�&����������������

����������������*
	�
���4������	�
�������������&
�����������������
	
�����%
���

������
	�	"�

?���������

���6������$���"��/��6/�

�" ������	����������������&�
�����������"�

�" ������	����������������
���
	��������
�
�����
���	�������$$��	"�

4��
��
�4��
��
�4��
��
�4��
��
��������	
��	���	
��	���	
��	���	
��	����+�
�
��	�������������,+�
�
��	�������������,+�
�
��	�������������,+�
�
��	�������������,����

�" 4���
��	�	�$$
�
�����
���$����������������	����
	���������%���
�	��$����
�����	��

�����
���$���$�������
���	�����"�

�" !���&	�$����������������������������	����
	���:�����
���
��
	���������������
���

�����	
�
������������
���	���������	��
���	���	"�

�" �������	������	�	�+����������������������
		
��	������������,��
������������

�������������
������������$���	����
������$���
���	����������4������	������
���

���������	
3���$�����������������
���������������
�"��

��!�$�/��6��0���#$-������,������/�������/��"��/���

�" +���'��������
�
��,��������&�������������
��4������	��������
�
��������
������

��������	����������&��	�+	����
��	)�	���
����������&,"�

�" 2
��	����������������������������
��������$���	����
������$���
���	�����"�

�" >
��������	���
�
	���������������
��"�

�A#���/������,�%$����

�" #��������������������
���$
���������	������4������	������$�������������	��'�
�
������

	���������	��	�/��������	��&
������'�
�
����������&
������
$$�������
	%����$
��"��

�" #���
���	�����������	���	�
�������	��������������
������4������	�'�
�
������	���������

	��	�/��������	�"�#����/���
	��
����������
	���&���$�������
����������
���$
�����

����������	�������������������������
���������	��'�
�
������	��	�/��������	
��	�

Agenda Item 7

Page 28



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����'�*���$-��/0�,�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
6�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
�
��

��
��
��
��

�����������������
	�	�	�����	���������������	�+������������
���	�����,������������

���
����
���	�$������������
����$����
������
�
���
��"�

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����'�*���$-��/0�,�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
7�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
�
��

��
��
��
��

������2��?���4��

?�"�$$���������

#��������&
������$������
�
�
����������4������	�+����������	�����B����		��������
���
��	,"�

#���4������	�&
��������������
��������������
��������
�
�����������+������	��!�������	�

��$��������������,�����&
���������
������������
��������	���������
	"�������	�&
����������

��������������	�����
�����+&�������������������������&����&�,"�#���4������	�&
���

�����$��������������/����$���
�������
�����	�����&
���	�
���������/�������������������
���

�
���	"�

>������		��	��������������������������	��������
���������
���
��	���&���	�?���'���?�

���
����+	�����	������&�$
����	
��������������$�����9�����������,�
���
���&
�������

����	�������������)�4������	��������������������
�����������	��!������������������

����	$����$����	���		��	�
��������	��������"����	�����
����	�����	)�
��
	�������
%��������	����

�		��	�&
����������	$�������
�����������'�������
���	����������������������
�	��$�+	���	���
���M:�

����
�����������,"�

4������	�&
�������������
��������������������&������
�����	"�

#���4������	�&
������������
���������+
$���,�$���
������������"���	����)��	�
���	�����	�B�

���'���	�����
����
$
��)������
	���������������$��&���	�+
�������������&
�����������	������

�������,����������&
������&���&��$���
���$����������$�����4������	�
���������
��	����������

������
��������$���
�������
�����"������ 
�
����4�������&
���
���	��
����������C	����
���

����$��
��+
"�"�������&
���������?�*��	���
���	���?�����
	
��	,"�

<���������
��������
�����	��������9
���	������&
������	�����������������B������'����B�


���	�����������"�#�������	��$��������
��������$���
���+	�����	����
�����2��&��������

$���
��,�&
�������������������
���&
��"�#�
	���)�$����*�����)���/�
���	����$���	��������
���

$��������������������$���	���
$
�������	�	"�

?���������

���&��������$
����
����
��$$
�
����$���4������	���������
�����$���	�������������
�����������$�

����"�.�&����)�����4������	�&
���������
��������������
��
�������
������������
		
������

����������������
����	���
$
�����������$�$���
��"�

2?������?����?��

?�"�$$���������

#��������&
������������
���$����&�
���&
���
���	��
����	��
�	��$����'�������
���	�+&�
���

����	����	�&
���
���	����&�	�����,�����
�����
�������'���	"�����	�����	�
�����'���	����������

	�����������	��/�
�)���33��
�����������$
�����"������*�����)�
��&����������		
����$�������

�������A�

�" �	����
	��&������&�������
���	����B���
���	��
������
����
������������
������
��

���
���	�	������$����
$$������
���	�����������	�	�+	�����	�
�$��	������������
���)�

 !�=	)��������$���	,�����&
����
$$�������
	%����$
��	:�

�" ����	��
�����'���	��	�
����
$
���������&��������*
	�
��������&"��

#�����������	��%����
���	�������	
�����
��������B���
�����
���	������&�������
	�
	�

$�������
�������
�����
��
�	��&���
���"�>��������������
���	�	)�����		�������
	�������
������

	������
�����������	����������*����
��)�����$���
���	�������������
����������
���		��

Agenda Item 7

Page 30



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����'�*���$-��/0�,�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
8�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
�
��

��
��
��
��

����	�+&�����
�����'����
���&
�����
�������
�	,����������%�������	�+&������
�����
��
�	��&��

�
���,������	����������
	��������&$���	������
�"�+��������
������������!
������&,"�

 
�
����4������	���������9
���	���
�����
�������'�������
���	��������������������������������

	�����	�
��&�
������������������
������
�����	�"���������'���	����
�����������
���		��	�

+�"�"�$��������������������
�$��	������������
���,"�>�������������������
��4�������
	�

����	$���
�������		�����������'�������
���)���������	$�����������	�&
�����������
�������

�������
�����������
��	������������	�$�������������������
�"�.�&����)����	�����������	�&
���

��������������
�&���$����������
�����������������	����
�������	����
	��&�����������

���
���
��	�����������'�������
��������	�$$
�
����������������4���
�����������$������������	�	�

�$������@�����@0�����
������������������	��+����?4���������������	4���������������	4���������������	4���������������	?,"���

#������$���������������
����$������'�������
���	�&
����
%������������
������������	����*�

�$$
�
����	������������������
��	�����	
	�+	����
��	)�����
����������&,"�#�����*����$
����$����

��9
���	���	�&
��������������������+	�����*)�����
����������&,"�

�����
���	������B����'����&
����������������
��������
�	��&������	�������������

�����������	"���/�
������	�&
������	�������
����������C	�����	��������������������
������

�$���
	�&�����+�����	�������	,���������9����
�
�����������
���	�����"����
	�%����������'����

���
���	�&����������'��
	�
��
������������
�����&����
��	�����	B���'���	��������
�����:���
	�

&���������$����&
��
���������
���$�����2�������4���������B�5�������+������������������&
���

��/�
�������5�������B�2�������4�������������
���������
�����&
�����������C	��$���������C	�


���	�����,"�

?���������

 ���������$
����
����
���$���
����$����'���	:�
�����
���������
�
����������������������
�	��

	���
$
���		��	"�

!���&	�������������
�����	��
�	�����$��
��
�����������"�

���*
�
�
��$����
���	
���$�
���	�����"�

!�
�
���������
	��
���	���������������
	��	��	"�

������	�	��������
����		������9
���	���	�+����&	�$���
���	������
���������'��������������������

����C	����
�������$��
�,"�

�?���??����
?���?�8�������4�

?�"�$$��������/�

#�������������������$����
������������	��������	������������&��%�����"�����
������	��	�����

����%��$������	��$�������$����	�����
���	��������
�����������	������
	���������	"�

.�&������������$���������
���
	����	�������������������	��� 
�
����4������	�
�"������
	�����

�$�	��������)�����4������	�������9$�����	����������	"�#����������&�����	��$��������	:��
�
����

�������	�+&
����
�
�����
��
�
�,�����������	������2�������4�������+&
������
�
�����
��
�
��$���

��������	��$������������	�
�,"�#����$���)�
������0��������	����������)�����4������	�&�����

                                                

��-
����
������HB�NB����$��������������4���
�����������$����������
���$�8��5��������H��������

�����
���
����$����������	�$��������&�����$�����
��&��%	���������	)�����
��	�������������	�����

����
��	���
��	���������	)��	�
�����������
��������������>���	���#���4���
����������	�

�������
��	����O)��"�"����O�(�"�E�

Agenda Item 7

Page 31



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����'�*���$-��/0�,�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
9�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
�
��

��
��
��
��

����
�
������	� 
�
����4������	"�#���2�������4�������&���������������
����
���	������


�����	��
�����������+��
�������
	�
	�	�����������"�F�9�F,"��

#������
���
�
�����
��
�
�)������
�
�����������	�����������
��������
�����������$����

����������9���
	�&
�����������������������2�������4�������&���&
�������������������

�������"�4���
���������
�
�����
��
�
���$������������	�����
�	�
������)����
��$
����
����
	%�
��

�����
���������������&���������
���$���������������������$����
��
���	����������
�����"���

#���2�������4�������&
���������������������
���	������������$��������������
������� 
�
����

4������	�
�������������	����������&
��
���������
��������	���$���������C	���	
��		"�

#��������&
������������������������������!�������
	������
�"��$�����2�������4�������
	�����

	��������
	��)����������&
�����	�������������������	������������������������&�
�������

2�������4�������&
������������������'��
���$�
�	�$����
��	"�

#���
����
���$�����2�������4�������+���������$����&��������������������&
��������	��������

������������,�&
�������
���������������*�����	
	"�#�����������
��
�������
��	����������	���

��������&"���

�" <��
����A�2�������4�������<��
����A�2�������4�������<��
����A�2�������4�������<��
����A�2�������4���������	���
��������	�����
�����	����
	������	���
��������	�����
�����	����
	������	���
��������	�����
�����	����
	������	���
��������	�����
�����	����
	����������4������	������4������	������4������	������4������	""""�

#���4������	�
�����������&�������	�����	����������	��$�����2�������4�������

+��		
��������������
�������
������
���,"�#���2�������4����������������	�������	���

��������
�
������	����	�+����$$����
�	�	����������	��
�
�����
��
�
�,"�#�������$
���$�

��
	����
���&��������
�����	���4�������
�����������
����������������������

�����������	"�.�&����)���
	����
���&���������������
�
�����������$������������

����������*
������&�����
�����	��4��������
�������
�����	"�!��
�
��������
	
��	�

&������������������%����������2�������4�������������	�
���������
	
�����%
��"�

�����&���������������������
�����������������	������
�����&
�����������

���		���������
�����	������
���	���	����������2�������4�������&���������
����������


���	�����������		�B������������
��	"����������
��)�����2�������4�������&�����

���������������'��
���$�
�	�$����
��	�����������$�		
������������������$���

������
������$$
�
���"�#�
	��������
����$�$����
��	���	����	����������������$�

�����
���4��������
�������
�����	������������"�#�
	�
	����
������	�<��
����<��
����<��
����<��
���������&"�

�" <��
����A�2�������4�������������<��
����A�2�������4�������������<��
����A�2�������4�������������<��
����A�2�������4���������������������������������������������������������������������������������+�������������$�
�	���*�2����,�

$�����*������	�	�+	�����*�����	
	����	���
�����,"������
	����
��)�������������� 
�
����

4������	�&���������&���������
������
��������
��2�������4����������
	
�����%
��)�

����&��������������������������*�	�&
�������2�������4�������������������

4������	�
��!���������&�
���&�������	�����������
���������������������
	�	�

�������������
������������&����
�������"��!�4����������
�&���������������	�����

�	����
	��������
�������4������	����
�
������
	
�
�
��������������$���������$�����

2�������4�������+	���?���
�&�4����?�����&,"��������)�������<��
����)�������'��
���$�

����2�������4������C	�$����
��	�&��������������������������������������
�����

�����"�#�
	�
	����
������	�<��
����<��
����<��
����<��
���������&"�

�" <��
���8<��
���8<��
���8<��
���8A�2�������4���������A�2�������4���������A�2�������4���������A�2�������4���������������������������������������
��������
��������
��������
��	���
��������	�����
����	���
��������	�����
����	���
��������	�����
����	���
��������	�����
����
�
�
����&
�������
�
�
����&
�������
�
�
����&
�������
�
�
����&
�������

���
����������������
	�&
��������������������
��$�����"����
����������������
	�&
��������������������
��$�����"����
����������������
	�&
��������������������
��$�����"����
����������������
	�&
��������������������
��$�����"������
�
��������	�	)�����

2�������4�������������
�
�
���������	���
��������	�����
�����	����
	����������

4������	�+�	�<��
����,"�!���������������+�"�"��$�����������������������	������


����
$
��,�����
�
�
���2�������4��������������������������������������������+���

��������$�
�	���*������,�+�	�<��
����,"��

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 32



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����'�*���$-��/0�,�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
�
��

��
��
��
��

��������B�4��������
?���?��
?���8
?�8�4��?������8��2��

�

�������'B�8��2�����
����>�?�����8���
�
2�?C���
D�2?����

�

?���������

KCC

OPTION 2: THE GP IS A MEMBER OF THE 

MANAGER’S TAX GROUP

MEDWAY DISTRICT 

1

DISTRICT 

2

PENSION 

FUND

GENERAL 

PARTNER

MANAGERKMIF LP

KCC

INTERMEDIARY

VEHICLE?

MEDWAY

DISTRICT 

1

DISTRICT

2

PENSION 

FUND

KMIF LP

  KCC MEDWAY DISTRICT

1

DISTRICT

2

PENSION 

FUND

GENERAL 

PARTNER

KCC

Agenda Item 7

Page 33



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����'�*���$-��/0�,�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
�
��

��
��
��
��

 
�
����4������	�
�	�����&����������
	���
���	�����������	�
�������������
�������������
��

	������+�	��������������������@�����-����������������	��������)���<���(������	�����
�	�

��������
���	������'�
�����������&
��� ��������+<���
���(�������	�,������������C	�

������
��,�����
	��������$����������������������	�A9�

�" ���� 
�
����4������	�
��	���������
	�����	�������$�����*������	�	�����
�������������

������
��4������	�+�������������9��*���
���4������	,�&
�������	�$$�����*����%���:��

�" �������$�������
	�$�����	
���������
��������	���������+������������������
���	���	��������

����
���$��������������
�
���
��������9
���	�
����������������������$����	��������,"�

#����$��������	�����������	������������
��������9
���	���	"�#��� 
�
����4������	�
��

	�������������&	������
����������*��*�����
���	���	�+	�����	����	
���$���	,��������
�����
��

��*��*�����	����	�
�����������*���$���������
���	������&�����	�������	��������	�+�"�"�

�
�
�����
��
�
���������	�
�	,�������:�

8" ����4������	�&��������������$��*
�
�
�������%������������	�
$��������+��������		��
��
��

�������
������
���	��������
�����	�B����
���,:�

H" ����4������	�������	������������
��
�����	�	�	��������$�������������������	��������:�

E" 
��&���������
���������	����������������
��"�

�

���	������������������������ 
�
����4������	�
��	���������
	������������*������������

	��������	�������A9�

�" ������/�
�������$���������
�
��������
��+����2�������4������,:�

�" ���� 
�
����4������	�
��
�	��$�������
������	�����������
����������������
�	��$�������


������������	)������&�����������������������+��
	�&���������$$������������������

2�������4��������������	�������������,:�����

����  
�
����4������	�
� 
�
����4������	�
� 
�
����4������	�
� 
�
����4������	�
�����
 
�
���� 
��
�
�� 
�
���� 
��
�
�� 
�
���� 
��
�
�� 
�
���� 
��
�
��
4������	�
�4������	�
�4������	�
�4������	�
�����

������� �
�
����������� �
�
����������� �
�
����������� �
�
����
��	����	��	����	��	����	��	����	����

������� �
�
���� ��������� �
�
���� ��������� �
�
���� ��������� �
�
���� ��
����������������������������������������

#�*#�*#�*#�*���� #�*�����	�������+��*�
�*����� 
���	���	�
����
��� $���� ����$
��
�$��*�����	����	,�

(��� ��*�
�$$
�
���� $���
�����
�� ��*�
�*�����

���	���	�

���'���� ���
��������
��� ��*�
+��*� ���%���� $���
��*� �*�����

���	���	,�

���'���� ���
��������
��� ��*� +��*�
���%���� $��� ��*�
�*�����
���	���	,�

������	������	������	������	���� ���*
�
�
�� 
�� ����
&�� ������	� ����
�
	��
�������

� � -
$$
����� ��� ��%��
������	� ��� ����
������	�

5��%���5��%���5��%���5��%���
$��
�
��
�$��
�
��
�$��
�
��
�$��
�
��
�����

���
�
��� ���
���A�
�������� �	��� 
��
���� ��
�����

���	���������%���

� � @�$��
�
��� ���
���� ���
������
�����
���	������
���%��A� �����
�������� �	��� $���
�� ���� ����
�� 	������
�	� �� 	��������� ���
�������%�� ������
��
����	��
��� 
���	������
���
�
��

Agenda Item 7

Page 34



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����'�*���$-��/0�,�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
�
��

��
��
��
��

�" �����������*�����������*
�������������	A�
�����	�	���/�
����		
������"��

.�&����)��������%�����	�&����������
	�����	���	�	���������&
����������
�
�����������*
��

�$����� 
�
����4������	�
��	��������"�

#�����/�
�������$�������������������������
����������0����4��	
������������	����������

 
�
����4������	�
��	���������
	���$����������$�����������:�������*�����$
�	�
���$$��	�$���

���&�
����������������	��$��������
�
�����������*
�"�

�	����
	�
�������2�������4��������	���	���
��������	�����
�����&����������4������	�+�	�

<��
����������,�&����������������������������$
���������4������	��$�����
�
������
�
�����

���������������������"�.�&����)�
�������
��)�����2�������4�������&��������������
�	�

$����
��	�����������$�		
������������������
�������	�"�#�������
��������$���2�������

4�������������������$���
���������$�����	������*�������+�	�<��
����������,�&��������

=!#��$$
�
����+	�����*)�����
����������&,"�#��� 
�
����4������	�&������������������������

��*�	�&
�������2�������4�������������������4������	�
��!���������&�
���&�������	����

�������
���������������������
	�	�&����
�������"�

Agenda Item 7

Page 35



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����)�*��#���2�������"�����#"�#���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
��

�

��
��
� 
��
4�
!�
�

��

�(
 �
��
��
��
��
��
�

��

�
��

#�������������)�
�����
������
	
�����%
���$����	��$�����$���)�&
�����/�
������
��$��������

4������	������	������*
�������������������������
������������	
���������������

����������������		��������
��������
	��������������$�����05����������"�4
�	����5�	��	���	�

����
��������$����&
��������������
��	)�&�
���&
������	��'����������
�&������������*��

	����"�

����������
���2��
��4�

?�"�$$��������B�#�����&
�������&��+
$�24�
	���	���������,�������������
	
�����%
���

$����	�&
��
����������A����� 
�
����4������	)�����2�������4���������������������������"�

-��
	
��	���	������$������� 
�
����4������	�&
�������
�
�����	�$����	���		
����&
�������������

���������������$������������
��������������������2�������4���������������5�������

+&������
$$�����,"�

?��������B�#���2�������4�����������5�������+
$��
$$�����,����������$������������%��

���������������
���	���������
	
��	�&
���������	�������$���������%��������4������	"�#�����

������	���
��
�
��������!�����������
���
���
��	�$��� 
�
����4������	������
���
��������
��

�������������������"�#��� 
�
����4������	�&
���������������		����������������2�������

4�����������5�������+
$��
$$�����,�&
����������������
	����������&
��
���������������	��$�����

����	��������������+���������������������������
�� 
�
����4������	,"�

������
?�����
����

?�"�$$��������B�#���4������	�&
��������������/�������
����������������
���	�

+
���	����
����$������������$����
��$���
�������
����������&�����������'�
�������$
�	�����

	��	�/��������	�,"�#�
	�&
���
��������	����?	����������?��������
����
���	�	�����	�������
���

�������
���
���	)�����
������	����������
�&�4�����+	���?���
�&�4����?�����&,�������
�
�����

�����������2�������4�����������������,"�5�	�� 
�
����4����������
	
��	�&
��������%�����

	
�������'��
�����������	����&
�����/�
�����DEF���'��
��	�����	A9�

�" �����
������������������2�������4������������������+���9��$����,������

�" ���������	������������	��������������+��
	�&
�������������������������������	��

������/������	��$����� 
�
����4������	,:�

�"  
�
����4��������*
�	�+����������������������
	��	����������		��
����+��������

�������
��������	���$�����
�����	������ 
�
����4����������������������
������
��

������	���$���������
��	�����,:�����

�" !��
		
��	������������:��

���&����������		
����$����������
���	������������������
�&���������'�	�������	���������	��

+�"�"�������������������	��$�
����
���
���	���	,)���&����)�����$�������	
�
���&��������

�������
��������	���$�$�
�������������"�!�������
���)�
����
���
���	���	������������������

���
�
�����B��
$$�������
���	��������
��� �����������������	"��

?��������A�=��
����
���	�&�
���������
���	������&�������/�
����������������*�

�����������	��������"�!����������
	�
	��������
����
�����	������$���	)�
�����	�������$�����

���������������������
��4������	��������
��������
����'���
��	�&�
������������	
����

�������
������
��
���	�����"��$�4������	�'�
�
������	���������	�������
$$������+��		��,����
���

�
���	)����
����
	�&���������������������*�	�������������&�����C����$����������/���
	��
���

������
	��
�����������?�������������
���$
���?"�

?���	��
��4�

��"�����)�*��#���2�������"�����#"�#���

Agenda Item 7

Page 36



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����)�*��#���2�������"�����#"�#���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
4�

�

��
��
� 
��
4�
!�
�

��

�(
 �
��
��
��
��
��
�

��

�
��

?�"�$$��������/��

�$�����2�������4��������$����������
	�����������
��������+�"�"�����������������,)�����
�������

4������	����
�
������
	
�
�
������������������
��	)������
�&�4���������������	����
	����

+���	
	�
����$�
��
�
����	�����
����������� 
�
����4������	,���������	�������%��������

���$���������$�����2�������4�������+
$������������,�B�5������"�#���4�����&��������
�&�

���$���������	���/�
����+����������	���������,)����	
�������������
������$�
��	)�����&�����

�����������
�
������������������������$�����2�������4�������B�5�������������� 
�
����

4������	"�

4�����������	�&�������������$��������	���	
�
�
�
�	�����
��
�
�
�	�
�������
���������������

����&�����������������$���������
	
�����%
�����&��	"���	����)�����4�����&��������
�&�


���	�����	�+�����	����
���,����
�	����������	�������������������	����������������������

��%������������������
����������������������
��������	��$�
���	�����	�����
���
���&
�������

����C	���'���
��	"��#������
��������
	
������
���	��&���������
��&
�������2�������4�������B�

5������"�

5�����	�
���$��������
�&�4�����	����������
�
����������
��
�������
��������&
����$����"�

#���	
3��&
����
%�������������������������$� 
�
����4������	"�!��
��������������
��������

�������
��������$��
�
�����$���		���	����
���$���������C	��$$�
�	"�

?����������

���
	�
�����������������	����4��������	����������
�����������
���������������

������������$����������I���
	���	���������
�������������2�������4����������5�������+
$�

�
$$�����,��	����������������
�"�������
�
��)�	����
��������������������	������
��
���

 
�
����4������	������	�����
���
�
�����
��
�
��	����	"����
	���	��
������������������2�������

4�������B5���������	�������
�
�������%��
���	�����	����
	
��	�
�����
�����������&
������

���	�������$����������������
�&�4����"�

������
�
2�?�

?�"�$$��������A�#��������&
���+����������������
�
��������		,�����
�������������+���

����2�������4�������&
�����,���	���	
����$�������������������
�
�
�	��$����������
�����
���

�	����
	�
����������
��������������������������	�����
���������������	����	�$�����������

����C	����
�	�����
���	����������$��
�"�#���2�������4�������B���������&
�����������


������������	����������
�������	���	
����$��A9�

�" 4���$��
�������������


" 4��'����	�����
���



"  ���
���




" 5��
���
���

�" ����������������


" 5��
���
������$��������



" ��	����
������������
���������
�����/�
������	��������
����/�
������	�




" ������
���������� 
�
����4������	��

#�����&����������������������������������&�����������������������������&
���

�������
����������	��$������������
�������������$������������C	�$�
�����������$���"�#�������

��
	������������)�����4������	�����
��	�������������������������C	����
�
�
�	�+�����������
	�

&
���$����	������$�
�����������
�����������������
��	,"�

Agenda Item 7

Page 37



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����)�*��#���2�������"�����#"�#���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
5�

�

��
��
� 
��
4�
!�
�

��

�(
 �
��
��
��
��
��
�

��

�
��

?�"�$$��������A�@���		�����2�������4�������&
������������
��������
	���������������!�

������������������)����������&
�����������������������������������������
	��
���

+��������������	�������,"���!�������
	��
�������	�&
�����
��
���	9��	������
���
��	�


�����
������
���&
�����������)�	%
��������
�
�����)����
���&
���
�����
������������	�����
���

�$��������	�������	��$����%����������"�#����$���)�����
������������$������!�������
	���

���
��
������	���������&
�������
�������4������	�&
������$��������������������������������$�

��������C	��$$�
�	"�

?�"�$$��������B�#���5��������������
������������	������	�����		
	��&
�������������

���������
����$����������+	�����	��������!��
�
	���������������������������
�
	����
���

����������
���$����
��	,"�

�

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 38



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����&�*�2�������"��������.�"��4�����

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
6�

�

��
��
� 
��
5�
!�
( 
��
��
��
��
��
���

� 
	�
��
���
��
��

���
	��		���
�����������������
$$�����
��
������&��������$������������������������������

�$�
��
�
��������'���	�
	����&�"�#��������5������1	������&
���������
���	��$���	�
��	�
������

���'���	���������������
���	������	������)�����������
���������
�����&
�����������	)�����

���������������������'���	�����	����	"�#��������������
��	�����&�����
������4
�	����

5�	��	�	���������&����'������������������������&��%"�

2��?�
����
���?�E����4��4�

��������'�������
����&����������
�	��&�������������	��������"�#���	���������&��������

������
�����������&���	�
��	����������$��������'����+
"�"�&��������������'����
	���&�����

�&����	��	
�
����$���������������'�
��������������&���������������������9
���	���,"�

.�&����)�
���	����
����$������&���	�
��	��������)�
��
	����
	������������������'����&�����

�����
�	��&�������������	���������
�������	����&�"����&���������$����&
��
���������
���$�����

2�������4���������B�5����������������
�����&�	�����	B���'���	��������
������+���������

���������&
�����/�
�������5�������B�2�������4�������������
���������
�����&
�����������	�

�$���������C	�
���	�����,"�

������������?
��2��
����?�E��������4����

?�"�$$��������/��


��,����A�#��������&
���
���	��
�������������&
�������������������	�	�������
�����

����	��������������+	���	���
���O)�����	�������������,"��#�������	��������������&
����������

%�	��������������������
�����&�	�����	�$���������
���$���
�������
����
$
��)���&�����	�

�$�
���	���������������������$���
���
����������"��#�������	��������������&
������

������������	����
	�����"�#�
	����������
	�	�������������������������
��4������	:�����

�����5�������&
���������������
�$������������
������&
���	
����	��������
��
	�
����������"�

<��	���������	�)���������	�������������������������������������9���
$
��������$���������


�����	�	�������'���
��	��$�
����
��� 
�
����4������	"�

#������'�����
���
�������������������	�����
��������		�
	���	��
����
��	���
���D��$�����

������)�����&
���$����������	
	��$���&����'���	�������������������	����������������
���
������

	��������$���
���	�����"�


$���$���/�����0������/�$����������6%A�#�������	��������������&
��������$
���

������
��
�����
��
���	�����&
������$��*
���������������������
������
����
���	�+
��������$���

�*����
������
����	�����	,"��#�����&
��������������������
	��$��������	
������������
���

���������	���B���
	������	
��	��$��������
�"�!��������������
��+������������,� 
�
����

4���������������	�����������	������������	�����������������	������
�&	�+�������$���

$��/������	�����4������	���������
�����������	�����,"�4������	�&
�����	�����������$��*
�
�
�����

�����$��������
�&��$���������	�����������������	
����$����	��	������
�&	��������

�����������
����$��������
�&�4����)������������C	�����	����������
��������B����������

	�����������*������
����
����	������+�������*���
	���
���*����
�������	�	,�����������/�
�%�

��	���	��������%���������	"��!��������	�&
������������������
$����������������������

������
�� 
�
����4������	��	�	�������������+	���-��
	
���5�%
��,"�


$���$���/�����0��,�,�����A�#������'�����
���
���&
���������	�����������
����	�


���	�����	�����
����
$
��)������
	��������
�������%���$��&��������������"�#����
���
���&
���

��	����������������������
���������%�������
�
��	��������
����
��
�
�	��$�����4������	"�#���

�
���
���&
�����������������	�	�������
��	���
���D"�

?���������

��"�����&�*�2�������"��������.�"��4�����

Agenda Item 7

Page 39



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����&�*�2�������"��������.�"��4�����

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
7�

�

��
��
� 
��
5�
!�
( 
��
��
��
��
��
���

� 
	�
��
���
��
��

#��� 
�
����4������	������	%��������%�������
���������
�&����
���	�����	"�����������
�&	�

�$���������	�����������������
���	������������&����$��*
�
�
�������������������
���

�
����	�����	�+���%�������
�
��	��������
����
���	,�&�
�	���
�
�������2�������4�������B�

��������������
�����	������
���	���	������
������������
���	����������$��
�"������	������&	�

$����������
���������$��������������	�������	���	���������%���
����������������������
�&�

����"�

�������
4��?�E�����

?�"�$$��������B�<����$�����������
������'���	�
����
$
����	���
��
�
�	�$������������
	���

 !�=�+����
����
������������		������%������
���,"�#��� !�=�����������	����
	������)�$���

�*�����)����
�������������
���	�����	����B�������
����		�����������������B��������

���'���������
	���	���
��	"�#�������C	� !�=���������&�������������������������$��$�����

������������
�����������4������������������C	�������������$����
��"�!�������
���)�������

������������
���$�����	��0��������
���-������������������+������������������
���

���
���	,��������
��������������
������	�����������*����
	�"���������������������


���
���
��	��$����������������
������ !�=���������	���	���
�����"�

?��������A�0������$
�	��$�	���
������	���������
�������
���������������������	�������������
������
�
������*���
��������
�	��$�	�������A9��

+������
���,�
�����	��������$�������:�

��%������
�
���
���
������ !�=�	������������
���������������������
��4������	�&��)��$�

����	����	)����������������&
	�������������
����� !�=���	
��		���	�"�

?���?���

?�"�$$��������/�

���
	������	�����������
��������
$���$���������)�������	�+���������$�������	,�&����������������

������
���	���������������
�������������&
���
�	�����	��������������+��������������
���

�
	��
�������������4������	,"�

!�����������$���������C	��
$�)�����2�������4�������&������������ 
�
����4������	�������������

���
��
���	������+	
�
����������
�
����,�������������������������$����
������������
�������	�

	�������
������4������	�
��!��������"�

#���������	����
�������������������
�&������������/��	���$�
����
���
���	���	��������&�$���

+$����*�����,���������
	��
���
��	"��$���
	�&�	�������	�)����������&���������������
���������9

���&�������	�������������4������	���	���
���$�����"�"�	����������
���	�����	)���������


���	�����	������
��
���$
������	������"�

�

�

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 40



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����1�*��#�,#�/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
8�

�

��
��
� 
��
6�
!�
 


��

�
��

��������

>�
�	������$��������	������%�����������
�������������
���	�����	)�
����	������	�������
����

������������������
���������	����0��������5��&��������������	
����$��
�
���
����������

����������������		��������
��"�#���������	���������	��
�	��$�/����
$
�����������	����������

������������
��������������
������
	"�#��	��&
������������	����	����
���������������$�����

���'����	�����
���������
	�)�����&
�����	�����������	��������
	����
���������
�	��

���	���������
���
��"�

#���������	������
%���������	
	���$����������������������		��������
��:���&�����������������

�������������
����	�������������������	������	���������$���	�����
���	���������

��������
������/�
��������	
	"������*�������������
����������$�'��	�������������
��

���
��������$�����	��0�������
��)�&�����	�5��&���
��������$$�����������	
��"���������
����

����	)�	��
��
�������������	�
�������������������8�	�����������
��	�&
�������
$$
����"�

#������������������������
�	�����������	�&
��������������&��%���������
�������$����

�����������)�����&
�����/�
���
�����$��������4������	"�#���������	������
%�����������	���

����������*
	�
������
�
�	�$����������
��"�

>�
�	��
���������	�
���
���������
��$��������
���	����		
������������$�������	)�
����	�����

��������������������$������	��	�
����������������%��������������%����
���	���	�������������

�����
���
������������
���$�������
�����	������
���	�������'�
�����$���������:������$�������

���
�������	����$�������	�����7�
���	����	����������������
����������������$
�����
	�

�������"�

#����������������	�&
��������$����
������������'����	�����
��������		�������	��������
�
���

	��������"�

�*������������	���������������	
�����������	�$����&	A�

�

<������ 5��	�������

���	���������+���	
����
���	���

	���
$
�	����'������	:�����	����

��������$�����������������	�

���P,�

(�"����	�

���&�$
��������������������� .��

!$$�����������	
�����
�	�

+���	
�������
�	�����
�
�	,�

(�"���
�	�

4�
�����	���B��
�������������	
���

��
�	�+���	
�������
�	�����
�,�

(�"���
�	�

�������$�����
���������
��	� (���	����
$���
	�&��������

/����
$
����B��	
����������

���������������������!5�

6�*�������1�������

�/�$��

-����
���	�����

���������B�����������B
��������

�/�$��

�

��"�����1�*��#�,#�/�

Agenda Item 7

Page 41



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����(�*�����/�$����������6%�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
9�

�

��
��
� 
��
7�
!�
��
��
��
�
��
���

��
��
�(
��

������������?
��2��

#�������	�������������)��	��*�����������
��	�)�&
�����������������&�
�������4������	��
��	��


���	���������
	
��	�������������5�����������2�������4������"�#�������	��������������

&
������	
��������������$�$�����	�����
	��*��������������������$����&
��A�

� ����&����I���
	�&
�������
���������'���
��	��$�����$���)������
�������
����$���$�������$���

&�������������	���
$
���������	��$�����	�����������	��
�
���������
���"�#�
	�	���
���&
���

��$�����������	������
��$����&��%	��$��������
���+
�����
�������E�%�����������	,�����

&
���	������������*��$�������$���"����&
�������
��������������
�&�����������
�����$�����$����

�����&
������������������������������������	����������$����������	�$�������������$���

���%����&����������	������������	����������������������"�

� ��	
	�$�������	������I�����
�
���&�����	�����!
�������
�����&
��������/�
���)�����$���1	�

��	
�
����������B�/�
�)�����	��
��������33��
��)�������&����������&
���������
����"�

� -���������
���I������
	��		
��	�������������������'��������
���	������	����
��������

������*����
�������
������������$��
��������
������������*���������������������	�����)�

��������������$����'����	���	��	�
����
��
������'���	��������$���"�#�
	�	���
���&
���

����
�������
�������
	"�

� ����	�����������
���I���&�$���
����*��������������������������
�
�	�&
������	������"�

� ����	������4����		�I���
	�	���
���&
�����	��
������������		��$�
���	�����)�����
���&
���

�����
�
�����)�����������&�
�
��)������	���
�
��)�����������$�����
���	����������
�����

����%�����	�����"�

� ����	������4��
��I���
	�&
��������
����	������
�����
�)�	�����	�����$�����
$�����
��)�


���	���������������'���
��	�+����
�
���������������	,)�������	)����	�	��$�
���	������

������
���	�����)��������
��$�����	������"�

� #���	��$�4��'��������
���I� ����@����&�
�
�����
���
�"�#�
	�&
����	�����
�����������

����&A�

− ����	��B�����&��:�����%�������)�$
����
���	����	)��/�
�����
���
�
��

− 4��'���:����	�����
��������		)������
���	����	)����
�����)�����
�	��$��
���
��	)��*
��

	�������

− 4��'����#���:���
������������	��������
��$
����
�������
�
��)��������������
�	)�

&������
�	��������
�	��$�����:�������$
����
��	�

− �������=
��
�
�:������������������
	��)�$
����
�������	
	�����
����������������$�

�����������&
��)���	�B&��	����	��	�����
������	
	"�

�  ���
������������
���4����		�I�#�
	�&
����	�����
����������������	�	��&������������

6��
�
�����������1�	���
��"�

� �������	��
��
��	����� 
�
�	�I�-���
�
������	������������'������	��
��
��	)�����
����
�
�	)�

��
���	���������
��	)���������
���
�
�	���������
�
�����		��	"�

� >
��
���@��4���
	
��	�I�.�&�����$����&
������&��������������	�)�
�����
���&�������

�����������	���������
���$��������
����$�������	������$�����
/�
���
��"�

�0��4����������$$��"����?��#���

#�����������������$��������
����������$�������$����&
������	�������������	�������������"�

�����	������
���	�����	�&
���������������������������%����������	
	����������������!
��

�*�����������������	�����)������������$�����������������$����&
�������
���$�������
���	���	�

��"�����(�*�����/�$����������6%�

Agenda Item 7

Page 42



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����(�*�����/�$����������6%�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
��
��

�

��
��
� 
��
7�
!�
��
��
��
�
��
���

��
��
�(
��

&
���������
�����������������������������
	%����������������4������	����
����������������

&
��"�#�
	�
	������	���������%���&
�����&�	���
��������
	%�	
��
$
�������������$����������

�������	���������������
�����"�

#�
	�����	����������$����	��������&�	�����
������������$�����������	��������%��������$�������

��������
	%)�������	���
������������5�����������$��������������������������	��$������

���'����&������
�
���������������������$���������������������
�����$����	��������	"��

���"��6�
,,���"0�

#�����
�
����������������&�	��&	���&����������$�
���	����������$�����
������%��������

�����
���"�#�
	�	��&	�����
���������������������	���������
����
��������
	����������������

$�����	�������������5�������������	
����&������
�
���������"�#���&�
���
������������

���
��)�����
��&�����������
�����������	
���������
�����	��������������������

���������
���	���
������������������)�	��8EF"�#���������
	�
��
���
��)�����&��������
������

��������������		�����%������
�	��������������
������
���������%��������	����������!
��

�����
�����+������*�����	)��	�������	��
����
���
���&
���	�������
��������������	�������

���%�������
���
	������������
	������)������$����������&��������������%�������",��

#�
	������		�&
�������&���	�
�����������������&����$
����
����������������
�����'���
��	����

������"�

�

����� ����	
����	�������������	�	��
�����

������

�������� ��	���	���

��	����
�

������

�,2/&.,�"#��"'�

����"�$�#3&"�:2$��

��$��'�&1#21#*;�*���

<&1#21#*=�*�>#3&"?�

 1#21#�"1,0�$*�3"�$�@13$�'��$��*�

�03/3#.�%&$�1$0�"�$���"�$�#3&"�-3#+���*2�>3%3>�%&>1*�&"�*122&$#�%&$��"#$�2$�"�1$*+32;�/&>�/��,2/&.,�"#�

��"�$�#3&"��"'�>&,,1"3#.��>&"&,3>�'�)�/&2,�"#A�

�$&-"%3�/'�*3#��$���"�$�#3&"A�

(�&�$�2+3>��"'�*�>#&$�0�/�">��:�"'�1*�$�B&0�>$��#3&"?A�

�3,3"���"'��03/3#.�#&�$�>.>/��/&�"�3"#&��''3#3&"�/�$���"�$�#3&"��"'�B&0�>$��#3"��2$&B�>#*�

�

46C�

�2&"*&$� �D2�$3�">����"�$�//.��"'�*2�>3%3>�//.�$�/�#3"��#&�#+��2$&2&*�'�2$&B�>#A�

�"#��$3#.�&%�#+��0&$$&-�$A�

��*&1$>��>�2�03/3#.;�@1�/3#.��"'�>&,,3#,�"#A�

�&-�,�".�&#+�$�2$&B�>#*��$��0�3"��1"'�$#�E�"��"'�-+�#�3*�#+��#3,��/3"��&%�#+�*�A�

�3"�">3�/�*#�#1*��"'��"�/.*3*�&%�E�.�0�/�">��*+��#;������"'�>�*+�$�#3&*A�

�

�C�

�&"*#$1>#3&"���

��$E�#�

�+�$�>#�$3*#3>*�

�&>�#3&"�!�'�)�/&2,�"#�0�3"��'�/3)�$�'�3"#&���/3@13'�,�$E�#�-3#+��&&'�#�"�"#�'�,�"'A�

�13/'3"��@1�/3#.�!�*13#�03/3#.�%&$��"'�1*�$*;��������$�#3"���#>A�

�$&B�>#����,�F�G1�/3#.�&%�#+��2$&B�>#�#��,;�3">/1'3"��#+��,�3"��"'�*10�>&"#$�>#&$*A����)�3/�03/3#3�*�&%�

-�$$�"#3�*��"'�'1#3�*�&%�>�$��%&$�#+��#��,A�

�.2��&%�013/'3"��>&"#$�>#�0�3"���,2/&.�'A�

�

�6C�

�#$1>#1$�� �&-�#+��>�23#�/�*#$1>#1$��3*�*2/3#�0�#-��"��@13#.;�,�HH�"3"���"'�*�"3&$A��

�##�>+,�"#��"'�'�#�>+,�"#�2&3"#*�%&$�#+��,�HH�"3"��

�&-�-3//��@13#.�0��3")�*#�'�!�2�$3�2�**1I12�%$&"#J�

�+���"#�$F>$�'3#&$���"'�#+��$3�+#*�&%�#+��,�HH�"3"��/�"'�$�F��#�2F3"�>/�1*���#>�

�C�

Agenda Item 7

Page 43



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����(�*�����/�$����������6%�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�4
�

�

��
��
� 
��
7�
!�
��
��
��
�
��
���

��
��
�(
��

�&-��$��#+��$�#1$"*�#&�,�HH�"3"��'�$3)�'J�!�
2%$&"#�%��;�>1$$�"#�2�.;�>&12&"�$&//�'�12�#&�,�#1$3#.;�0�>E�

�"'�%��I2$&%3#�*+�$�I-�$$�"#*A�

�

�&#�/�����    

�

��	����
������� ����	��
�	���

��F��� /&-�

K���F�4� ,�'31,�

K4�F�5� +3�+�

K5� )�$.�+3�+�

�#������?��#��/��������/�$���/�

#�������������&�
	���������
��
���
����$����%�������	����
������$������	�����	��$����'���	"�

(�������������������������	�&
��������������������$�������'����������'���"�>�
�	������$����&
���

��������		��
���������
����������	��������	)�����������
���	�
���
�������������������

���%�����	�$�
����+���������$����������&
����������
���������������	,)���
	��
��	����
�����$�

���������$�������	������������������������
���������		������
	%�	�������"�

#��������$����'������������$
��
��������&����
	%������$�����	�������������������

�������������$���&������
���$$
�������������
��)����������$����&
�����������
��)�&
���

���������
��
����'�
�����������&
������������������	
���
�	����������������������������������"�

#������'����������$������&
���	��HEF��/�
��$������	�&����)�&
�������$������%
�����

	��
����������	
�
������������$����$
�	����������������������
�������������$���$����"�

!��
����
	%������$�
���	������������������
��	�������
����$$
���	�����)��&��������

����
���4����	��=��
����+�4=,�&
��������������)�&���������$��������	���	�����
���������

��33��
���	�
����$�����"������
	�
�	������
��������	���$���$���������$����&��������������	��

��������������
��	���������%)������������������$���	�
�������4=�����������������"�

�

����������� 	���������� 
�����������

� ��D��&�"�#&���/1�� �&#�/���#1$"L� ��D��&�"�#&���/1�� �&#�/���#1$"L�

��"3&$���0#� 76C� 5A9�C� 66C� 7A9�C�

��HH�"3"�M� 9C� �6C� 86C� �9C�

�������	����	����	������	��������	����	�����������	����	

 	�����	������	!��	������	"���	���������"	��	#$���%	����%	&''�������	������(	)�**�����	�������	���	

��	������"	+���,��	������	��-��������(	

.	$�"�����/�	��**�����	�������	����"	��	01,234	#�5	��"	11,614	#��	�����	���/�	������	��/��	"���(	

�//#�/��#���#����6�
,,��,������4����/����?��#��������#���

>�
�	�������$������
�	��$�����$����&
�����������%�����������
�������������
���	�����	)�����

	�������$�$���
���&
��������������������&�������	
���
��������������$�������	������	���������

�
����$��"������*�����)�
$�����	����$���
���
	����
����$�����������������	)�
���	�����	�
��

�
�������������'���	�&�������������������4�������
	����	�������*��	���������
������
	%��$�

��������
�
�������
�
�
���	��%�����%)����������$����������
������������������������"�#�
	��$�

Agenda Item 7

Page 44



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����(�*�����/�$����������6%�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�4
��

�

��
��
� 
��
7�
!�
��
��
��
�
��
���

��
��
�(
��

����	������	��������������������&
�������
�
������
��������������������������
�����	��

������	����������
�
��������"�

�����	�����
��&��������
�����	������	��������$����
	��
%���������	����		��
	%����������������
$�


��
	�1������
�)�
���������������
�������
���	����
	�
	��
������
	%�
���	�����	��	�����������	�

&
������������"�

#����$���������������	%����$��		��	��������
�����������	������	��������$����
	����$
����)�

����4������	�&
����������������	��%����
����������	�
�������
	%����$
���$�������$���"�#��������

5�������&
�������������������	������
���	�����	��������������
������
	����$
��"�#�
	�
	�


���	�������
��������������*�	�
�������
����������&"�

�

>
���������
�����$������������������
	%�������������
����������	)�����
����������������
�&�

�$����'���	)�
��
	�������		
�������$�����	��������	������
	�	����"��(�
�����
	�
����		
�������

��������%�������	����
�	�����������$���)��	���
	�
	�����
/��������	�������������	�&
������

��
�����������������
�����/�
������	��$�	�������
��
�
�����������
�
�	"�

KENT & MEDWAY INVESTMENT FUND

SPV 

Development 

Assets

Drip Feed Funding Streams

Eg development assets 

(low initial funding capacity)

Low Risk Investments

Public Operational 

Infrastructure Assets

High Risk Investments

Mezzanine Development 

Finance (high leverage)

Low Risk Profile Funding Streams

Operational Assets (Sale & 

Leaseback)

Investment Assets (Income 

Producing)

Prudential Borrowing, Bond Issue 

etc

High Risk Profile Funding 

Streams

Regional Growth Fund, 

New Homes Bonus,

TIF

Bank Facility

Grant

KCC Pension 

Fund

Developers

Medium Risk Investments 

Infrastructure  Investment

Agenda Item 7

Page 45



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����3�*����.�"����,������������,$��������

����"��������"�//�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�4
��

�

��
��
� 
��
8�
!�
��
 	
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
��

��
���

��
�

��
��
��
� 
��
��
 �
��
��

������#"�����

#�
	�	���
���	��	���������������
	��$���&�
���������
������'���	��������	������������

��������������������$��&����$���$
�	��������
���	������������$���"�#�
	������		�&
������

	��'�������$�����������������������������������&��%
��������	"�

#����	����
	�������$�������
���
��
	���	����������/�
������������A�

� #���	������������/�
������

� �����
������	���������

� �������
���

� ���	
�
���������������
���������	�

� �����
����&
�������$���1	�
���	������	�������

� !�$����&��%������*
�
	��������������$
�
���
�������$�����$�����������0�������
���

#����		�		�������
���
��&
�������������������
�
�
���
���	�����	���������������)�$���$������


���	�����	�
������$����
���
���&
�����������	��������������+&�
���
	��*�����������������

������
��,"�

�0�����"�//�

���
	�������������������������'����	�����
��������������
��������		�&
�������������%��������

8�	����	A�

��������+4
���
���-����������,���/�
��	� �����!�����
�
�	���������	��������
���	�
������

���'���	�$���
���	������+&�
������$����&����������$������'���	,"���

�����	�������8����������������
��������		��������%��������������5�����������	
������$$�

������2�������4������"��

��"�����3�*����.�"����,������������,$������������"�����

���"�//��

Agenda Item 7

Page 46



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����3�*����.�"����,������������,$��������

����"��������"�//�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�4
4�

�

��
��
� 
��
8�
!�
��
 	
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
��

��
���

��
�

��
��
��
� 
��
��
 �
��
��

�

���6������*���,������������,$����

<��������
�
�
����
���
�����	���������������)�
��&
����������������	���	
�
�
���$�����

�������	�+�
�����
��
�
�����������������������
������������,��������
�����������������
	"����


	��
%��������������������
�
�	�&
����	������	�	�����	�������������
���		��������������

	������
�	����������$������'���	�+�����������
��������
�����	�����	,�����������%����
	"�

 �����������
�
�	�����
��
�����������$��&�������'���	�$���$���
���
�������������&
���05���


���	��������
���
�"�#��	����������
������������
��	���������'���	���������4����������������

����		��
�����
��������
������)�����&
��������6	���	��1"�<��������
���	������	�������
	�

���������)���
	�&
���$����������
�����������4������	�&
���$����&����������
���&�����������

���'���	������
%����������������
���"�

#�
	�	�����
	���	
������������
��������������
��$���	��%�������	������$�������������
��
�
�	�
��

���
�
���&�
������'���	��������$��&���"���

���������$������'���	����������������������	��������������$����&
����������������%�����


���	���������
	
��)����	
��������&��%�&
��������/�
���"�4������	�&
������������
	��		�

&�������
��
�
�����������������
	��
��	�&
��������������
	�&��%)����&�����������������

��	������	����������������)������	���������
��
�
��������'���	)��������
�����
	"�

���6���9��

#�
	�
	�����		B$�
��	
$�
��������		���	����������
�$�����
�������$��&����&
��
��������������

���$����	"�#�
	�&
�������������%���������$�����������"�

#�����������	
$�������
	�	��&����	�	A9�

Agenda Item 7

Page 47



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����3�*����.�"����,������������,$��������

����"��������"�//�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�4
5�

�

��
��
� 
��
8�
!�
��
 	
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
��

��
���

��
�

��
��
��
� 
��
��
 �
��
��

�" !��
�
����
�!��
�
����
�!��
�
����
�!��
�
����
��I�&
���
���	������
���������'��������������
�
�����
���	������
������0����Q�

5��&�����
��P�K����������	����
���	�����	������������������������������
���

��	
	�������		�	��	
�
	���
	%�������������'���	L�

� (���
	�����������$�������$���
���	�����	�

� !��
�
�����������	�&�
���&��������������&
	���������������

� !��������
����$��������
�����$�������	�

�" �
����
����
��
�
���������
�����
�
��
����
����
��
�
���������
�����
�
��
����
����
��
�
���������
�����
�
��
����
����
��
�
���������
�����
�
�	7������������'�������
�����������&
��
������

�������
�����
��$���������
	�
��$
����
�����
�����&
������������	���
��������
��P���

���6���0����

������������
������	����%
������'���	����
�	�����������������������	���
���������
	��

����
��������		�		����������		�	�����������&"�

����
���������
	���	�������������		�		�����������&�
������	
���	��
	%�&�
��������	��

���
�	�����������
���������	"�

#�
	�����
��	�������	������)��/�
������������	������������������������%
�����������'����

&�
���������	
��������
���"�

#���������8��������
��������		�&��%	��	�$����&	A�

�"�"�"�" 2��		���	�2��		���	�2��		���	�2��		���	�����

� ���	
���	���������$����������
��
������������
���
��
	������$���

� !�	�����	
���	������
�����
���$���	����������'���	�+
���������
����$��
��������
	�

������%���$��������'�������
���&�
���
�������������	�����	�&�����I�6������
�
	��
��1,�

� #�����	����
	����
���&�
��������������
����	��

�"�"�"�" �
	%�>�
���
���
	%�>�
���
���
	%�>�
���
���
	%�>�
���
������

� #����
	%��������
�����
�
��&
���������	������	
�����������������
*�

� #�
	����	��	�������
��
��)�&�����������&��
	%����'���	������������
��
����$��������
����
	%�

�����������
��
����$��"E�

� #�
	�
	�����
����������62��		���	�1�

� #�����	����
	����
	%������
���&�
��������	��

8"8"8"8" ���������
���<�����	���������
���<�����	���������
���<�����	���������
���<�����	����

� �����������������������'���	)�������	������������������
����6���������
���4�
��	1������

�����������������
%��$����
%��

� #���������������	����
����������������'������������������
������
��	)�&
����������
���

��
����F��$�����������"�#�
	�������
��	��/����
���������������������������
���������"�

� ���������	����
	��������������
�����
����/���	��"MN�.�:��M"��'��	:�MN��	/�������!5�

	�����

� ��������'����
	�������		�		������
�	���������������	���	"�

& ��/�F?�6����������������

� #����
��������
	%�&�
��������	��
	�������
�
���������������
���4�
��	�

Agenda Item 7

Page 48



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����3�*����.�"����,������������,$��������

����"��������"�//�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�4
6�

�

��
��
� 
��
8�
!�
��
 	
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
��

��
���

��
�

��
��
��
� 
��
��
 �
��
��

� #�����	����
	�����	���������������
���4�
������
�)�������
	�����
��	�����	
	�$���

������
	����$��������$��������'���	�

����&���&��%����*�������������	���"�.�������'�����������	���	���������������������$�������

H"8B���������
���4�
����	�����	������O"OB���������
���4�
��"�

� ���������� ����������

���'�3"�2�$3&'� A6�.��$� ��.��$�

�&�"���$3&'� ��.��$*� 4�.��$*�

�$3">32/���1,� N9,� N��,�

�3*E���3�+#3"�� �A4� �A6�

�3*E����3,����3�+#�'��&#�/� :A6O�?L9L�A4�

�7�

:�O4?L��L�A6�

77�

����"�$�#3&"��&3"#*� 7� ��

�&*#I����"�$�#3&"��&3"#� :�7I7?�

5A4I�&3"#�

:77I�?�

7A7I�&3"#�

������8���������	�&
�������������������
������
��
���		�		������$������������$���������'����

��	������������$�������"�

8�9��	���'����	��"	�����'��:���	�����;	��	���<���	��	!����	���������	�!	�9�	'��'���"	

=���9����	���9������	��	'���������	�9�	����	=���9����>	

�����&
���������8)�$���������
�
���������������&�
�
���&
���������������"�#�
	�&
���
�������

����
����$
����
�������������������
	��	"�#��������		�������$����&���&
��������������������

��	��
����
����������	������4����		�	���
����$���������	��������������+	���	���
���O:�

����	�������������,"�

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����5�*�����"���������.�"�/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�4
7�

�

��
��
� 
��
9�
!�
��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
	�
��
��

�������	�����&
��������$����������
�	�
��0��������
	��		�&�
������'���	����������&�����$�

����������������&
�	�$�������$���"�!����
	�	����)������
	���$����'���	�
	�
��
���
��"�#��	��

���'���	���������������	���������	����$
��������'���	)�������
�������	�������������
��$���

$����������'���	������������������$�����������		��"��

2
���������������$�
�$�����
������
�����)�&��	����	������$$
�
��������$������'���	�
	������

���
���������*��	����"�#�
	�&
�����	���
���������������
�������������������
�&��$�&������
�����

	���������'���	��������
�������$�������$�������
���	��
�"��

#��	�����'���	������	
������������	����	�	�����	)�&�
�����������	�����������	������

��&�����$�����
��������	���
�����������	����	"���$����������'���	����������������	������

�������$���)�	�����
�����
���
��&
�����������������������)��������'���	���
��
�
	����	
�����
	"�

#�������
��	�	���
����$���
	��������+	���
���D,�����	�&
���	�����
�����
���
�"�

�������/��/�����

#���$����&
���������
���4������	������������
	
����������������
	��		����'���	A�

�

��*#���"#��2�#3�/���)�/&2,�"#��&,2�".�

($�)�*+�,�

��$#%&$'�

��"#����

�-�/��

��'-�.�

�&)�$�

��3'*#&"��

�+�"�#�

��"#�$01$.�

�*+%&$'�

�1"0$3'�����//*�

�+�2-�.�

#�
	��
	��
	������*���	�
��"�=
	
�	�&
�������
�����������������%�������	���������$�������

	�
���������'���	����������������	������
���	�������
$$���������������	����$�������
��)����	��

���������������"�

#��	������
��	��������������������&
�������	��$��������)�������
�����������������

���������
��)�$����&
�����$����������
�$��*����
��	��$����
�
�
����������
�$
�������
��	"�

#����
	��&
���������	�����������
����������������������������	����
�����������	���$�����

$���"�

���.�"�����������

�������	���������%
���$���6/�
�%�&
�1����'���	)�&�
���&
��������/�
������������%
�%�	���������

$����������������������������%�������"�

#������	��$����'���	�������������	���������%
���$��)�$�������/�
�%�&
�	�+����$����&
���


���
������������������
���	��������
��,)��������	�������&��������������&
��
��������*��

��"�����5�*�����"���������.�"�/�

Agenda Item 7

Page 50



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����5�*�����"���������.�"�/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�4
8�

�

��
��
� 
��
9�
!�
��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
	�
��
��

	����������&�����	"�#��	����	������
��������'���	)����
$��������������$���
������������

��
	�����������$������	�&����)��	�����$������	����%�����
������������$��������������	"�

��������������	�����'���	���������
������������
��	�����)������	�/�
�%�&
�����'���	�
��
	�

���
%������������$����&
����&����������������"�#���$����&
���	
������%�������
	
������

&�����������
���	�����1	��
	%����$
�������������
���������	�����
���
���&
�������
���	������

	������"��$�	�)�������
������/�
����������$
������+����������������
���$����	�����,�&
������

����
���"�#�����&
�������
�
����
����$�������$��������$����
���������'���)�&
��������*����
���

�$����
���
��������	���������$���	�������
����*��������	����������$������������������$�

�����
	���������
�����"�

R�
�%�&
�����'���	�	������������
��������/�
�%�)�����	������������
������	���)��	�������

������������������)���&��%������	������&
��������	���������������$�����*
��$�������$����

������������$�����������$���������"�!�����'����	���	���	���������	
����&��������
���

���'���	�$��&���	������
����	������������
���$���������4������	����
���	��
�)�&�
��������	�����

����&
�������	%���������������������$���"�

!�����������'������
���
��&
����������������$�������&
���4�������
����������)�������&
�������

����	�������������)�
��
	�	����	��������������
	�	�����������������
���
��
	��	�������*���
������

�����$����'���	����������$�������������������		
	�����
���������������	�	��$�����$���"�

���6��//���������

4�����		�����������	���������
��)�&
���	����������
����������	����
�������������

���
�����������'���	�����������	"������	������������������		��������
�������������������$�


�	
����
������
�����	���������'���	)�����
�����������
�����
�����$���
�����	���������'���	�
	�

���
��"�

���.�"������6����/�

>�����
�������������������$����	��$����'���	�	����������*�����������������
	������		)�����

���	�������������������������	�$����&	A�

4�9�?�/@:�4�9�?��#�������/�$���/�

������	�4���
�������������������
������"�

����#$�?�/@:�����#$�?��#�������/�$���/�

������	�
�$��	���������$�������	
���#�*������������
�����"�

8�60�?�/@:�8�60�?��#�������/�$���/�

5�33��
���
���	�����	"�

������,$����
//��/�

#���������������������������4="�

8�#/��6�?������

#�����
	�������		
�
�
���$�����05����	
����		��	�
��	����%
����$�'�
������������������������

���	
������
���"�

#�����������������$����'���	�����������
����
$
��������$����&
��
�����	���������
�	"�����&�
	�

���
���	����
����$����'���	�
����
$
������
�������
��	����
���	���������������$�
���	�����	������

������	�
�����"�#��	�������	������
���	���������������$�	����
��������������������������

Agenda Item 7

Page 51



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����5�*�����"���������.�"�/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�4
9�

�

��
��
� 
��
9�
!�
��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
	�
��
��

���
����$�������"����	����������������������
	��
	�����	�����
�$���&�
���	���
$
�����'���	�����

$�������
���	��
�)��������	�
�����������������'���	���������
����"�

4�9�?�/@:�4�9�?��#�������/�$���/�

���������>���#60���#�"�������"��������

���������-�������$�
���$������������&
��������
��
��	�&
���(��&��%���
���������-!����

���%��
����������������������	����������
���5��������&�
������
���$$
��	�	
�"�>�
�	������

��������������$����	�����$������������������$���&��$$
��	�&
��������������	��$�����	���)�

����������������������$���������$�
�)����������������
����	������������
�
�
��"�@	���$�����

$������������������������
���������������
�������
���
������444����	
�
���)�����&����������

����)����
���������������
���	������$�������$���"�>�
�	������$���1	������������������	������

�����
��
	����	
�������	��������
���$���)��������	������$�����������$����������)���&��
	%�


���	�����	�	�����	���
	����������	���
�
���������%�	�����$�����������
����������
�	�
���
�����

���%���
������$�����)���������&��������
������
	%B�������
���	�����	���	�&����"�

����#$�?�/@:�����#$�?��#�������/�$���/�

��������������8�#/�:�
/0�����

��������
�����.��	��
	������$��������-!��		��	������
	������������
����
	��	����$"����
	�

�������������������&������
	��	���&
���&��%)�������������		����
��������
������
�	�&
��
��

��������
��	�����)������������������������$��
�����!	�$���������
�����0���������������
�)�
��


	��
%����������
������
���	��������������
�"��

#���	������&�������	������	������������/�
��	������*
	�
�����
��
��������������
	�������

����������
���������&��%	���
����������%����������	
��:���
	�
	�����	���	����
����	�
������

$���������*
	�
���������	�&
��������	�)�����������
�������	��������	�&
���������������
���

��	�&����"������������		
������&�����$�����
	����
����������������
������)�����

������������&
��
����������
��������	�����&�
�	������������	�����
��
�������"�#�
	�&����������

����&����������
����������&��$$
��	)������������
�
�������	����������
�����������
�����

.��	�"��

���'��������������������������	�������$�������������		���	�����)���
	�	�����$����'����������

������
�������$������������05��)�����&
����������	�������������������������������

������������
�
����������
��
���$
�����"�#�������������
	%�&
����������	
�������

������
��������&��	�����������
	��	���
�����������&
�������&��������	��������������

���%	��
%�"�

�0��>���6����/���"��������:����������

#�����	
������
	��
	������#�����>
����&
�����������������*
������������$����	�	�����
������
���&
���������
	��
����������+��������	)���������
	������	��������������
��	����,)�����
	���������������
������
������	�������
���
���
�"�5���
��	�&
�����������������&��������
��/�
���������%����
	����$������)����������
	��
����������	���	����
�����	�����)�&�
���
	�1��
��
������
�����"�#���$������������������������������������
������
	)�������	����%���&
�����
�����������������$����#�����>
����$��������
����$����	)����������*
��&��������	�������
�������%���
��	������8�I�E�&����������
�	�����$�������"�

	����$����	0���:��0��0�$�

#�
	�
	������������������$�H���
�&�������	)������������
������	
��		�	����������
�	�+	����)�

�������	�	,"�#���	������
	�
��$�����������%����
����)�����
��
	���������"�5��&��$���������
��

��������		
�������
�������������	���$��������
������	���	���	��O���/�
��������������	
���

Agenda Item 7

Page 52



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����5�*�����"���������.�"�/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�4
��

�

��
��
� 
��
9�
!�
��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
	�
��
��

��*�������+��������
���	
��,)�&�
��������&������&
���������%��
���
����������	�"�#����$����

����$������������%���������$�������	����������
�	����������������)������	
�����	
��		�	����)�

���������
�����	��������������������
���������
���'��	)��������������
������������������

�����������������)����
��	������
�����������
�������������������
	�	�����$$�&��������������

�������
	�������������$���������������
�)�&
������������
����
�������
��������������

	"��O"�

�"�G���#�-�/0$�����#���

#������������
���#��	����	�������������4���
��4�
�����4������	�
��$
����
����������
����

����������������������������
�
�	����&��%�&
�������
����
���2�����-�������
	���
��"�

#�����
	������������
������������
	���������������		�0���"�#���������
	�����
�����������

�����$
��
�����
�����	���������	
���	���%)������������
���������	������������$
*�����	�����

�������
��	�+����������
	���/�
������������&��������
��&�����������������
���������������$
�",�

#�����
	�����		
�
�
��$�������$���������������
	��	�����/�
���������)���	��
��������$�����������

��33��
���$�����"�!�����	���)�����������
	���
������	
����������		�����������$�

������
�
�	)�&
����
��
�������
�������
�����
�����������������	
��		���	�������������

�������������
���������������
�����
	�	�����"�

#������������������+
$����
���	������%�	��������
����������	
�
��)��	��
��
���������
	�

���	
���
�����
��,�
	�$�����	���������"O"EF"�#������'����
	�	�������������������	�
�������

����������������$�	����"�

8�60�?�/@:�8�60�?��#�������/�$���/�

���E�$�/C/�������:�������

�������	1	��������
��-�����
	���������
��������&��������)����������&
��������	��������&���

����%)����������%������������
�����	�	������
���
�"�#�����
	�����*
	�
��������
������	����

$�����	�����������
	���&������
�������)���������&�����
���
���&
������	���
�������
	�

	�����)�&
�������	�����*�����������������
	���	"��

#������
	���	������&
�������
*����	�)�&
�����������������	��������$���	"����������-�����

�����
���&���"D�F��$���������)�������������������������������)�������
��-����������	"�

!�����	����
��
	������	���������������
��	�����������$�����$�����������������	�������

��	�������	���������������$�����
����
�	"�

��������%�$���
���
	����
������$�������	�����)�&�
���&�����������������
	��
����)���&�����

��$����&��%	�����	�����	����$�������������		�����
	���/�
���"����
	����
�
���������������$����

����������������$�������������	���$�������/�
��������)�	��'���������
�������&
�������


���	������	������)����
�	����������������$����������
����������	��������������$
������

������������������������$�������������	"�@	
������������
�1	����������&
����������
	�

���'����$�������
����
	%�
���	�������������&����
	%�
���	�����)�������
���&�����	�$
�	�������

�������	����
�"�

������,$���F�����/��#"�#�����"@�6��

#�����
	���	������������
����������
���	����	�����$�$���
������������)�����������)�&�������

-
	��
���������	���
�����������������	�
�����
��"������*�����)����������$���������
���	
���


	�������
������
���������������%���+&����������)��������������5�������&�������������

���$
�����
	,)��	�
����/�
��	�$��&����$���
����$�	��78�������
�������&��
����&���"�4�����	�

���	�����	��$�	
��	����������	����&
�����������$
���$��������������$���
��������������)�

&
�������-
	��
��1	�������������%
���
�)�����
���*�����������
�����������$�����	
���������������

Agenda Item 7

Page 53



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����5�*�����"���������.�"�/

�

�

�

�

	�����
�����&����������$����	���

��������������	
������
���"

8�#/��6�?�����

#���������������
��	�&
���������������
�
�	)�������

	�
�����
���
���	������
����&���
������������	���%"


���	���
������
������
����&���	
����
�����
�	�&��

$������)���������
������������������
��	������	���

�	�$����&	A�

 �����������
�
�	�
��	�����������
��	�

�������������$���������
�����������������"��!��
���

	�����������������
���������		�0���������%��
������

��%������������������"��������
�
����������
�
���
���������������


�/�
��
������$���)�����05�������������	��&�������

$����
���������$������������������������������	����

	��������/�
��
���	������&������	�������������*
�

��	�	)����"�

#��������������$���
	�	���������
	����������05���&�

/���
����
��������������
�	������&��������
������	

&�����	�������
����	���������
�������&�����������


&���������������������
��
�	��$���	����	��������
�

��F4
>�������,$����
//��/

����������
�%
������	���������$��4=�$����������������		��	�

���-!��		��	"�

��	�������������
	��		
��	�&
���������������
�
�	��

�������������		��	�����������
����
$
��"��������)�	

��������	
�����������
������4=)��������
	����������

	������	�	������������$������		��	���	����������	�$

���
���������
��
�
�����������������
�"��#�������

��������$
�	��$��� !�=���	�
����
��
���)��������	
�

	�����&�����	
������	���
��������	�����
���B�������

����"���������.�"�/�

�

	�����
�����&����������$����	������������������������
�����������������"�#�
	�&����

��������������	
������
���"�

8�#/��6�?������

#���������������
��	�&
���������������
�
�	)�������
	�
�����	�������	��	�����$������
��

	�
�����
���
���	������
����&���
������������	���%"�����&����������		
���


���	���
������
������
����&���	
����
�����
�	�&�����������������
	�������
�������
������������

$������)���������
������������������
��	������	���	����������	�����������������	����������

 �����������
�
�	�
��	�����������
��	�$��������������������������
����
$����
���&��	
��	

�������������$���������
�����������������"��!��
������%
���������$��
����������)�	�$$
�
����

	�����������������
���������		�0���������%��
���������
����������$��������	
�����������������

������"��������
�
����������
�
���
���������������
�
�	�
���	�
������
��������	�

�/�
��
������$���)�����05�������������	��&����������	
�������
�����
���	������
��������

$����
���������$������������������������������	������$����
�������&��"��#����������$��

	��������/�
��
���	������&������	�������������*
������EF�9�OF������$���
�	)�����
���

#��������������$���
	�	���������
	����������05���&����������	�
�����������������������$�

/���
����
��������������
�	������&��������
������	�&�����������
	�	���������������������	�

&�����	�������
����	���������
�������&�����������
�
�	"��#�����������$����
���	�
���
���		��	�

&���������������������
��
�	��$���	����	��������
�����	��������
	���������
���$�����$
�"

��F4
>�������,$����
//��/�


�%
������	���������$��4=�$����������������		��	�I�������������
����
�������

��	�������������
	��		
��	�&
���������������
�
�	�����		�0���)�����������$�����
����&����

�������������		��	�����������
����
$
��"��������)�	�����$�����������������

��������	
�����������
������4=)��������
	������������������������
����$����
���		��	"�����

	������	�	������������$������		��	���	����������	�$$
�
�������'�	�
$����������
����$�	������

���
���������
��
�
�����������������
�"��#������������$���
�����������������		��	�������
����

��������$
�	��$��� !�=���	�
����
��
���)��������	
�
��������
���"�#�����
������������		���

	�����&�����	
������	���
��������	�����
���B�������		������%������
������������������������

�

� ��
��
�5
�

�

��
��
� 
��
9�
!�
��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
	�
��
��

���������������������
�����������������"�#�
	�&�����


	�
�����	�������	��	�����$������
��

�����&����������		
����$�������05������

���������������
	�������
�������
������������

	����������	�����������������	����������

�

$��������������������������
����
$����
���&��	
��	�$���

���%
���������$��
����������)�	�$$
�
����

���
����������$��������	
�����������������

������"��������
�
����������
�
���
���������������
�
�	�
���	�
������
��������	�

���	
�������
�����
���	������
��������

��$����
�������&��"��#����������$��������$���

OF������$���
�	)�����
���

���������	�
�����������������������$�

�����
	�	���������������������	�

�
�	"��#�����������$����
���	�
���
���		��	�

����	��������
	���������
���$�����$
�"�

������������
����
�������

���		�0���)�����������$�����
����&����

�����$�����������������
�
�	�&������&
���

��������������
����$����
���		��	"�����

$
�
�������'�	�
$����������
����$�	������

�$���
�����������������		��	�������
����


��������
���"�#�����
������������		���

		������%������
������������������������

Agenda Item 7

Page 54



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����5�*�����"���������.�"�/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�5
��

�

��
��
� 
��
9�
!�
��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
	�
��
��

�����	��������������������
������������&�
�������������������������
������05���4������	1�

������		��	��������������
	��"��!�������
���	���������$�����
	�
	�	��&��
�������
����������&"�

�

!��������		������%������
����
	��$����	�����������	��� 
�
���� 
��
�
��4������	�
��
��&�
�������

����
��������
�����	�����������������������������������������������6�������%1�	���������


"�"������������������	�E�F��$�����
�����	�"��#��� !�=�
	��	�����	�����	�����������
���$����

�$����
���������	��������
�����������������
�	�����		�������
���
����$����������������'���	�

��������$
�	�$����������
���������	�
��&�����������
	�������������
��������$�
�����	��

���&������������
��������
������������"�

�������������
��	�����1	����	����
��)�	���������
��������
��	���	����
��������*����
	�����

��������������������		��	�������&��%������������������$��&����$��������������"��

�����	��������
	�	�����
	%�	���
��������		��	�����������&
����������������1	����������	
	�

���������������������������
���)�������
�����	��������������
	��	�����&
��
�����������������

������	
	��$����������������������������������$���&
�������������	���������$
��

����
	���$���������������������������
���	��
�������E�BE����	
	�&
�����������
��	�����"���

������������	�������
���������)�����������������������
����������05���&��������E�F��$�����

������������������	����������������
�����	�&�����	�������
�����������������������������

�
�����������
��������������
���"����������*����������
��������
��������)�
$������������$�����

������������������		��	�&�	�	��7�����&
��������'���������		�������������������+��	��

�����������,��$�	��78����������������������05�����������
�	�E�F��&���	�
��
������ !�=�

&���������	�$����&	A�

.��$��$��������$
������EF��$���������������	�	�+	��7����,�J�78���

���
��E�BE��
"�"�7�E��S�������
�
�����������$����������J�7����"�

LA 1

KMIF

LA 2 LA 3 LA 4

Development 

Vehicle (LABV)

LA 5

Project 

3

Project 

1
Project 

2

50% 

KMIF

50% 

Private 
Partner

LA 1

LA 2

LA 4

Development 

Return (£)

Land In
Land Payment 

(in lieu of 

Seed Funding)

Seed FundingSeed Funding

Other Investments

Agenda Item 7

Page 55



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����5�*�����"���������.�"�/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�5
��

�

��
��
� 
��
9�
!�
��
��
��
��
��
��
� 
	�
��
��

#�����	��7��E��

#��	��$
����	�����	
���
	�
����������
����$���������
���	����
��������	�	"�

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 56



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����+�*�8�9��0���#���"�#���-���������

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�5
4�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
� 

�
���

��
�

��

��
 


��
��
��
��
��
��
�

#��������&
�����/�
���&��%
������
�������������$����&
������������������&���&
����
��������

�		�����	�����������$���
���	�����"���

#���$����
	��
%���������	������$������	�����	:�����
	��
����$������������$�4��������		��	�����

���������
���
�
���$�$���	)�������
������������
��������������������������"�

�?���?���
������

#������������		��	������������������������
	����	A9�

�������/C����,���%�
//��/�

� <�����
������		��	:�

� (��9������
�����
������������
���
���	�������		��	:������

� -������������		��	�

����������	��������
$$���������������
	�
�	����������
*����������������&���������		���

����	�&
�������������������	�������$����������
����	�������������
���	������	�������
	�

�������"��

8�9���,�����"���-��?����/������$����,���%�
//��/�

���
	������$���4������	�������
�����&�����&
������������	��$�����		��	�����&
	��������
�����

�������$���"�#���$
�	�����
	
�����&�����
	�&�����������4�������&
�������	$��������		����������

$���)�$�������$����������
��������)����&�����������&
���%�������������$������		����������
���

��������������	����	)�����	
��������	$�����	���������$���"�

#����������
	������������������+�����������*��$$
�
����
���- #�����	)��	���	��
����
��	���
���

��,������&
�����	����4������	�����%�������������$����
���		��	:���&�����������
	�����

�����	����
������������4������	�������������������	�����	���������
	"�

�$�����$����
	��*�������������$�������	��$����
��	���
	�&
����������������	������)��
�����

����������	���������������������$����+&�
����������������	����$
����	�����$�����������,)�

�������������	����������������������������	:���
	�������������
����������	��������*��������

�	
�������	����
	���������������������
��)����
����������	
����$$
���	�������������	����

�	���	��0��������
���-�����������������"�

#����	���$��		��	�&
�������������������������
��
�
�����������
�1	��		��������������

	������)������������
���	��������	�����&A�

�,����������
//��/�

!��������
������		����������	����������
��������
����	��"�#�
	�
	��
%��������%������$����

�$���	�����������	����%)�&�
����������
����������&���$�����	�����$������	��$�����$
*���

���
��)��������
����	�����$�����$�������)������&
������������
�����
���������"����&�����	����

�������
����$���4������	���������&
�����
	�����	����	)�����&
�����������������������������	�

�$��������������"�!�������
��������$�����������$$������
	��������������%�������%�����������

&
�������
�������"�#�
	�&�������������		��
����/�
�������$���������%���&���	�
��������

��
��)���&������
���������$���������&���	�
�������������	��&������������������&
�������

4��������������������&������������������
�"�

�����,������������"�$������#"��6�
//��/�

(���������
����)�
������������
����		��	����
�������������$����������������&
���
����

��������$�&�	"�

��"�����+�*�8�9��0���#���"�#���-���������

Agenda Item 7

Page 57



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����+�*�8�9��0���#���"�#���-���������

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�5
5�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
� 

�
���

��
�

��

��
 


��
��
��
��
��
��
�

#����		������	
�������	�����	����
���	������	���)�����������	������	$�����"�>�����������

$�����������%�	���
	)����&�����������4����������	�	��
	�����������$����
�
	����
��)���&�����


��
	��
%���������������$$
�
����
$�����������������	�&
�����
	"�

!�������
���)������		�������������)����������
����	�����
	������
�	������
��������&���$�

����������"��
����������&���	�
������������	$�����������������)���������������������%�	�

��
	�&��%)��������������������
������
�	��������)������&	����������������������	���	��
����

����$���"�

������,$����
//��/�

-������������		��	�&
��������������
�������$��&��&�	:��
��������������������������	�

���'���	)�&
�������$��������
�
���������$��������$
�
	�������������������������
������/�
��

������
��)����	�����$��������������������������)���������		��	�&
���	
�������	����$�����	��

���	
�����
��"�!��
�)�����4����������������$�������	��$����
��	�
$�����&
	���������
��

�������)��������$�������������	�"�

#����������
����$��������������		��	����
�������������$������������������	������������

������
/�
���		��	�&
���������
���&������������$������������������		��	�&
��������������

	���)�����&�����������
�����������������������������������������$���"�

#����������������������������$��������������		��	�
����
$
������������
��	�������

������
�
�	�&����������"��#�����������
���*
	�	������$���������������	��������
���

�������������		��	�
���������������������
���"��#��������������$���
	�
	��������%���

�������
�����	�������$��
���$��		��	)�������������	�$$
�
����	��������&��������	����
	�
�����

�������
���6	���
���������	�����
���1�	�����	�6���������		������%������
���6"�����
	����
��)�

���
��
�
�����������������
����������
�	�$$
�
����	���������������$��		��	����'�	�
$�����

�	����
	�������$�	���������
���"�

<��������������
���
	������������
���
	��*�������&����������05�������	�����E�F�	��%��
��

�����		������%������
���)��	�����	�����������	��� 
�
���� 
��
�
��4������	�
�"��������
���

�������������		��	�
����
	�&�)�����$����&��������������������$
��$��������������	��������

�����4=����������$������
	�	������������������������
�������
������������&�
��������������$�

����
��	�������������������		��	�
	�����
	��"�

8�9�
//��/�	����-����#���������0���#���

!		��	����
���
��������$���)�&
��������*����
����$��������������		��	)�&
��������������������

����
	��
����$��������
���������"�#�
	�
	��
%����������$�����������%��������$������		��	)�����

4������	�	����������&�����$���
	"�

4�����
����������������		��	)�����
�
����������������	���
$
������'����	�����
�����
���
�)�

&��������������������������������	
	��$����
���*
	�
����	�������"�#�
	�&�����������������4=�

������������������
$��
�������������
	�����������������������
�������	
����������������
��)�


�$��	���������
���	�����)����������$�����$����9����������������
	%��
�
���
���&��%"���������

�
%���������������������	��������05����
���������������
������		��	��$�����/���������)���

��������������
������&����������/�
����$������������
�
����������	"�

��$��6�����?����/�����������#��/�

#���$������������&
�����������������
�����$����������	�����	�$��&���/�
������	��$�����

$���������������������"��������������
	��
�������
���
���
/�
���
����		��	�����������
$�������
	�

�
�
������������$���	����
��	�������"��#�
	�&
�������������	
����
���&�����4������	�&
��������

�������
���		��	)�������	�����	��
��
�������
���)�����&
������������/�
��������
/�
����������

Agenda Item 7

Page 58



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����+�*�8�9��0���#���"�#���-���������

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�5
6�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
� 

�
���

��
�

��

��
 


��
��
��
��
��
��
�

���
���������
����
	�������
���	���"�!���/�
������		�����$��������&���$����	���		���

�
/�
���
��	�&
�����������������
	���������������&��%
�������$�����$
��������
�	��$�����$���"�

�A#���-���?��#������
//��/�

>�
�	������$����
	���
���
�������������
���$���)�
��&
�����	�����
���������%���������$��������

+������	���������������������
	%����$
��,����
���	�����"�!	��*���
������	�&�����
����
	�

������)�������	
	�$���
���	������
	���������
�
������������$�
���	������&
��������/�
����

���������$���	���������
	�&
�������������������"�#�
	�
	�
�������������	��������������������	�

&
������$
����
������&������
���
���&
�������	����		��$�����$���"�#�
	�
	�������&
���
�������

��������	�&�����
������������"�

�������	��$�����������
���	�������������4������1	����
��)���
	�&
���������������������

����	���������������	�
��
	����������������������'����	�����
��������		)���	��������&
���

��	�&�����
������������"�

���8�?�������2���?�
���

<�����������
���$���
���	�����	)�������	���)����
�����������$����&
��)�������������	������

�
�������������������������
$���$�����$���A�

� ���
�����2��&��������

� (�&�.���	�����	�

� ��	
��		������������
�����������#�*������������
����
���+#��,�

� 4������
��������&
���

?�6������2��9�0��#���;?2�<�

#�����
	�����������
���$����2�����
�	�����������������������0�������
���	����
�����'���	�

&�
�������������2����
���
���$����
���
�����
�����	����������������������	)�	������
���

	�	��
��������
�����	�������������
	�����������
��
�������
��	���������������"�

����
$
�����&
��
����������C	������������������)�
��
	�����
�����
�������������2�������

&����������		����
���������
��
�
������&
��
�����'���	������&����������&
	���������������

$������
���
���	�����������������+	��'�������������!
������	,"�#�
	�	���������$��
�
����	���

&
�����������$����'���	�����������������C	�
���	��������
���
�)��������	�������	�����������

�������$���
�����	������
���	����������������������&�
���&����������&
	����������������

����
������������	�����'���	"������
����2��$�����
	�����������&
����	�	�������
���������
����

�������������	��$��������������������	�/��������������������
��"�

!���������������������
���	������
��������	����
������'���	�&�������������������%�
����

���������'���	)�&
������������		�����&
���$������������
������������������������������

��������������"�

���
	�0���C	�
�����
������
���	���2�����
�	�
���������������$�
���	�����	����
������

	�	��
�������������������&���&�
���&����������&
	����������������
�����
�����
�����
��

���	����$���"�

��9�8�$�/�>��#/�;�8><�

#���4������	����&
	��������	
������
��$���
���(�&�.���	�����	�������	����������

���������������������	����
������������������$���)������������������$�������(.��

������	�����		����
������"�<��������	
	����������$�����������	������������	���������

���������&
	��������
�����)���
	�(.��
	��*�����������	"��

Agenda Item 7

Page 59



���������������������������������������������
���

��"�����+�*�8�9��0���#���"�#���-���������

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�5
7�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
!�
� 

�
���

��
�

��

��
 


��
��
��
��
��
��
�

>#/���//�?����?����������0��#60���!���"��$���������"��6�;���<�

!������������������
�$��	�������������	��#���&
��
����������
	��������
�������)�
��
	�&
����

������
	��������
��
	��
%���������&
��
��������*�������	"�#���	�����	������������
��������
��

��������)���������
��������������
�����$��&����$�������
�$��	������������'���)�&�
�	��

����
�
���������$��������
$��
����	
��		�����	"��

#�
	�����
��	�����������������
��������
���
	��$�����	��$���������
$����������	�����
���)�����

��	�������������
�����
���	��
������
�$��	���������
�	��$"���������������������	���$����������


�$��	������������'���	������*��		
���$�������$����
��
�	���������$���)���&��������%�
���	������

���'����������	��������*����������������
��$�����
�����	�������
��
�"�

#������'���	����	�$���
�������������������������
��������������� !������&
�����������

$��������
�$��	��������)���������
���	������$����������
�����	�����"�

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 60



���������������������������������������������
���

��"������7�*���!�����,/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�5
8�

�

��
��
� 
��
�
�!
��
�P
���

��
��
�

<�����������������$���05�����	�����������������	�$$
�
����������
����������	)��������	��

�������	���������
����)����	
��������$�������&��%�&
��������/�
���"�!����
	�	����)�
��
	�

����������������������������	������	%����������
���������$�����������
���
����������

$
����
�����	���$�����&��%���/�
���������%��$��&����������*��	������$�������������&��%"�

#�����*��	����
	�$������������������������	�����������	���
�������
����$�����0������
�����
�$�

�*����
��	"�������������������������������)��������		��$��������
�������$���������	�����

&�����
������������������&
��������������
�	�
�����"�#�
	�&
�����/�
��������������������$����

���
	���&
���������	������"�

!��
����
�������������	���������$�����
	�	�����&
�����������������������)�&�
���
������&
���

�
���������4������	�
��	������������������$����
	�	�����"�#&�������	�	���������	���������

��	��������������
�����$�����$���:���	����
���������������&��%
��������"�

#���	����
���������	������������������$��
��������������	�����
��	�+���$��������
�$�

�*����
��	,�$���������������
����������"�-�����
�������������
��	����	������������$�������

��������
��)���
	���������������/�
�������������
�����&��%�����$����
����)�������&
�������

���	��������		
	�
���
���������
�������$���"�#���	����
���������&
�������	��������
���������

�������������$�����$���)�$���
����������&��%
��������"�

#���&��%
���������&
�����������&��%��������$����&
�����������
��&��%	�����	A�

� -������������$�����	��������������

� -������������$�4��'����4
���
���

� -������������$�2��������������������

#���&��%
���������
	��*����������������������$�����������$$
���	�$���������������
�"�������

$�������������������$$
����
������������������
$$�������
	�
��
��	���������/�
���"�

!�����������$���
	�	������$�����$���1	������������)�
��
	��*����������������$����&
���&
������

���
�����"�#�
	�&
�����	�����������������
�	������������
��������$��������$����&
�������

�������
����$�������������	)�	���
����������$����&
�������	�	
������	���		
���"�

� ����
������		��	"�#�
	�&
�����/�
����������	����
����
$���&����������	�����	�������
��

	������$�����$���)�����������	������
����������
�����	���		��	"�

� !������������
���
��)�&
������'���	���������������$�������������&�
�
��B�������
�
��"�

#�
	�&
���
��������������$������'���	��	�&�����	�$�������&��%
��������������'���	�&
���


��
�
�����������
�
�	"�#�
	�&
����������
�����������&
���������	�����������
	������	������

��%������
���
���������������$��������
$���$�����$���"�

� !�	�����������	��������������&
���������������������		��	���������
���������������
���

���'���	�����
����
$
��:���
	�&
�����������������
	��������
�������������
���
���	���	�

���������������		��$��		�		
��������������$��
	%�������������������
���)������	
���

�������������������	������&
���������������������������
	"��

� !���������$�����$�4������	�
��!��������"�#�
	�&
�����/�
������������������	������������

���$��������������&�����������	)�����$���$������&��	��������������������������
��"�

� !���������$�����$������5������B2�������4�������!��������"����
	�	����	�������������

�����	��������5�������
	�
��������
����
	�	����"�

� ���
	�����$��
	%	"�

�

�

��"������7�*���!�����,/�

Agenda Item 7

Page 61



���������������������������������������������
���

��"������7�*���!�����,/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�5
9�

�

��
��
� 
��
�
�!
��
�P
���

��
��
�

�

����"��������$������������!�����,/�

�

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 62



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�5
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�?���*��D�?
����?���H����������������������?����?������C�

�?��
?���>�����������
�����

�!�"#������#$$��%��

 �����������
��5�����	�
������$����&
�����������
����
$���&��	������
������������	����
	��

����������������������
�����������
�
������	����
���	��������+
$�����
�����,�����	$����		��	�

���
�"��

#�����&��	����
������&
����������
���������������
�
����$�
����������
����$����� ����
	��

�
����������������	������������
�"�.�&����)�����������������
��5�����	�&
����
%������������

�
*��$���&��	��������
�
�����
������+
$�����
�����,�����	$�����������������������

���'���	B
���	�����	"�#������
	
������������&��	���
������
������&
��������������������
��

�������������������
��������
�������	�����
$$����������
���
����$���&��	�

�������	��$�������������
������
�
���
���
�����������+	�����������	����  4,���
����������


����������
����$����� ����
	���
��)�����>���9��
�����&���+������
��������
����&
���


���	����������
��
���������&��	,�&
����
%���������
������
��	��$����	�&���9��
���
	�����

��
���������	��$���
�����������
�����������+���&
��	����
�����������������
	����������,"�

!$��������
��������
����$����� ����
	���
��)�
���	����������
��
���������&��	�������

���
�����"�!�������
��������������������
���������	�����������
�
�����
����������������������


�������
����������

��9�������/��-��/0�����,����"�,��������0���#���

����
����� �����2����������!��������+?>���>���>���>���9999��
���4�&����
���4�&����
���4�&����
���4�&��?,�9��	�����&����$�$
�	����	���"�

���
����������
����&����������������	���������)�	
�������� ����
	���
���&
����
	�������
	�

����
	
���
�����������������������������&����$������������������	���&"��

#�
	�&
���������
����������
���������������������
��5�����	�
��	��$����	A9��

�" 4���
�
���
���
������$����
	���
���
��
�����	�������$�	��
��)�������
��������
����������

��'���
��	�$�����������$
������&���9��
����$�
�	���������������$���������������	���

��	
�����������	����
����������"�!�	��$�����������$
���$���������������	������	
���
�	������


$�
��
	��
%���������
������&���9��
�����'���
���&
��
����������"�

�" #���������������
����	������������	������$�������������������
�	���
�
��������
�	�

����
�
���
���
	��
%�������
������������������
�����������	��
��)����
�������������

������
��&���9��
����$�
�	�����"�

8" #���������������
����	���������������
�	���	��
������������
��������������	�������

���
��
���
����$���&����������	��	���������������	�������������
���&
���
��

H" #���������������
����	�������������������2�
����������
	��������������������$�������

����	���$�>���9��
���4�&��	�+����?2�
�����?,������������������
�
���
���
������$����
	�

���	
	�����&
���
�"�

E" #���������������
����	����	
�����������
�
���
��	���������	���$�����&���9��
�����&���	���

����
������
���8� �����2����������!��������+ 2!�����,���������������������������

������������
�	��	��
�����	���
����	�����	�
"�"����������
��
	����A�

�" ��
�������
���&�
���
��
	�����������������
������$��������
�
�
��)���	��
��
������

�
�
���
������
�	���&��	�&�
���
	������
����
���������������&����������		������

����:��

�" ��
	
��������9�&���������T�������	)������&
�����������&
	�U:�����

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

Agenda Item 7

Page 63



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�6
�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�" ��
���	�����
���&�
�����������������$���������	�������������	���
$
�������"�

��"����/��������'�4�"���2�����$����
"��'77)�*�;I>����9��6���������/�$����

��9��/I<�

����
������
��	�������������
�
�	���&�����������&�����	���
��������	����������&������
���	�)�


���������	��$�����������	�����������������
��$����
��	�����������������������$�������

�����	�	��$�������������������������$�
�	�$
����
����$$�
�	"�

>����9��6�

!�������������
��������������&�
$�������	��&�����������������$$�������������&
����
�
��
��

��	�	������
	�
���	�������������������$������"��!���������	�����
���������
	�������
������
�
��

	�������������������$�����������	������������������
��5�����	���������������		�����


		��	�
�������
������������/�
������	�
�������
�����������
�
�����������������
������������

�$$������������&"�

!��������������$�������&��������
��������&
���		����
	��������
���
���$���������
�
�	����

������
�������%�������������
�&��������������������������$$������������&"�����
	�$��������

������
�����	���
�	��&��6�������
����
�
�1�
�������������&
�����������
��������	����������

���	��
��������������������$������"���

#���4������
�����������&�
���������������
�
�	���	����&�������������
	�����
	��������4�!�

+#���������������	�
������$�4���
���
����������!���������,"��������
�
����������
��	���/�
���

�����������	�������������������������������
��������
��	)�
�����
���#��������������$�

������������4����
��A�������$�4����
������ �����!�����
��!������
���
������@0�+�<�4,�

����������	��=�����!������
���������$�4����
���I��������	������
	��������4�!"�

#���%����'���
��	��$�����4������
�����������������	���)�&
��
����������$����&��%)������

���
����
���	����������	������$$�������)�������������	�	��
�������������������	���

��������������
	
��	�������%���
�������������&
�����������$�		
����������
��"��#��

�����	�����������������������
�
�	������$��$
��������	����'���
��	�����4������
��������	��	�����

����
����
��
�����	��������	�������%���
����������������������$����&
�������
��	A�

� !$$�����
�
��

� 4������������	�	��
���
�
��

� =�����$��������

� ���&���	�
���$��		��	�

� ����
�����'���
��	�

� 4����
���
��

!$$�����
�
��
	����
������������
��������'�������������������������������������$������
��

#�*"�������	
���
����$$�����
�
������������������
�
�	���	��������������������
	%�����

�������
��"���
	%�����	
	������
	%������������	������
�	�	�����������$���������%���
����

�������"�

��������
��������
	�������)����	��
		��	�&
�����	������������������������	
�����
����$�����������

������
�
�	C�$
���
�������
�������������������������
�����
�
	����
���
����$�
�����	
��		9�
%��

�������&
������	�����������)�	%
�����������
��)�����&
���������������������������������


�����	���$����������
��#�*�����	"��.�&�����
��
	�
�������������������
�C	��
	����
������

������
���&��������
�����	�	��$����������
��#�*�����	�����������&�����������	��	������

$����&
���
�	�����	
	��$����������������	�	���������$
�	"�

Agenda Item 7

Page 64



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�6
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

������
�
��)����������������	��	����
�����������	����������.�!������&
��	�$������	
���


���	������+&
���$���	�	�
$�
�����&���	�	��$�$
����
��������	,"��

����/�$����

��������
�����������&
������
���	�)�����2���������C	��������������������
�������������

�	���$�����
���	��������&��	���%�	�
���������������
	�����
	
���&�	�
��������������������

�����	�&�
������	
	������������������
��	����
����$
���������
��)��������
��	�������
�
�	�

��������������
����$�	�������
��������&
���������
�����������
���	����������$
������
�	�

����&$��"��

����*���
	
���
�	���&��	��$�
���	������������������
�
�	���	���������������������	��������

��
������
		��������������������$�����������	���
$
�����
����������
	��������4�!"��!�

������������
�����
��������
	���&����	�������$���������	���
�����	����	�����������
	�
	�

���	
	�����&
���
�	�!����������	�������������������������$���������
�8���������������������


	�������������������&
�����
	���&������	��"��

#�����
����������
��	������������������
��
���	������	������
�	������$
�	�����	
����	����
�	����
�	����
�	����
��

+�������
����������
����	���$������		,�����������
/�
�
���
/�
�
���
/�
�
���
/�
�
��+%���
����������������
��

���
������&����������,"��#���
�$����������������	����	�����������������
����$�
���	������


������
	��
	�
����$�������	���������
�����'���
��	�����
	������$�����������������
��������
��

������
�����"��.�&�����
��	����	��������
	����	����������������������
�
�	�����������������

���
������	����������
����������	����������������������	��$�	����
�������
/�
�
������

������
���)�
��&
��������������	�������������	
����&����
���
���
���
���������������
�������	
	�����

&
���������
��
�
�	��$�	����
�������
/�
�
�"�

#���������	���
$
������
	
��	�&�
����������������%���
������������&
�����������������

�����������$����
��	����	��$�
���	�����	�����
��	������������������������
���������	�����

��$���������	
���$����������	��$����
���	�����	�&�
�������	��'�������	������������������

���
��	"���

��"���������4�"���2�����$����
"���+3'�;I��"����������9��I<�*����������������

�0����"����#�0����%J/��#�"����/�

����
��������$����� �����2����������!����MD������
��	���������������
��	������������&���

�����������
���+&��������������
�����
��������*����
����)������&
����������
����$������

���������/�
	
�
�������
	��	����$����������������
���	,�&�
���
	���������������$��
�
����)����
	�

�������
������
��
���������)������
	��������$�����$����
��$����
��	"��.�&����)���������

������
�����	����������������&�����������
	�	���
�����
	������)�&�������������	��$�

����	)��������	���������&
��)���������������*�����
�������������&
����������������	�

�����
���������	��������	"��

#���&����?$����
��	?��������	������������
�	�������&��	��$���������������
�:�����	���������

�$��������
�
�
�	�4���
��������	������	�������
�"��!��������	���
����&
��)�����������������

���	���
�����
	���&���
	��$���������&"�

!���&���
	�����
��
������������������	��
��
	�������
���������	
������������$
�����"�

                                                
��2�
��������� �����2��������������	�����	�+	��������
�
������5���������,�-� 2"��#�
	���$����	�

���
	
��	�	�����	�����. �
��.�3������.�����	�
���Q�������������
��K�MM�L���!����

8���������
�������������	�������$����������������$����������
�C	�
���	�����	�
	���������*����
���������"�

Agenda Item 7

Page 65



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�6
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�$����������
������������
��&����
���������������	��$���	
�����������������������������

�����������	������
%������
��������������	�&�
������������&����&�	�����		���$��������

�
�
������'���
��"�

#�����&�����	�������	������$����������
�	��������	�	�
��������	������&�	�������
��

��&������
����������$����&���9��
��"��>�
�	��
����
��
����
��
	���		
���)�
�������$�������	�	�

��
	���	������������������������
��	��������
����
���$����������������&�	�������
���*���
	���$�

���������
�����&�����������������
��
���������&������������������������$�����
�����
���

�����������������
��
������"��#�����&�	�������	����&�����&��������������
����$������	��&�	�

$�����������
��
����������	���
����8D� 2!��MD����&���+��������������������&���������,�

���������������
��
�	��$)������
��
��
��������������&$����������
��"H�

#���
��
���������&��������������	���&����������	���$�������&�����	��������?
��
����������

����
��
������?"�

�����
���
�������������������������
������$������MMD�!���
	������
	�����
�����$����
���&
��
��

��������
����$�	���
������"�����&�
�	����������������
�����������
����������������	��������


��
�������������$���
��������$�
�	�$����
��	��������������
�	��$�
	�������$����
����$�����

������
��$������������	���$�	���
������"�

>��������&���
	����
����������
��
������)���������
	
��	��$�����	�������&�
������$�������

�
�
��$����
��	���	��������	
�������������	�����"�>�����������
	�����*���		��
�
������&��)�

��������������	�������%����	������
�
�������&��	���	��
���*���		�����	�����������������&�

�	���$����
��
���������&��"�

���$����*������
��������
�����	�E�����/��	�
���&�	�����&�������	&�������	���
��	�&����


��
���������������&
�������&�������	&�������	���
��	�&����
��
������������������������
�C	�

�����&
���$����
������
���������������������
	
��	������
�
���
��	��$��������������!���

�������
��������$����
��"��>�����	��������
	
��	�����
���������������	
�������)�&����
��

�
�������*���		�����
���
����������
	����	�������%�������������
�
���"�

����������	��
��&�	����������������	&�������	���
��	�&�����		���
����	�������
���������	��$�

��
	
�������B��%
��������$
��
������������$������
���������������$�
�����	������������

�����������������&�������
�����	
���������	�����	��$�����������������
�"�#���������

	�������������
	�
�������
�
��9���$�����$��
���	
$
���
��"�>�
�	��
��
�
���������
���

��������
��	����������	����	����������	�������	���������	��������	
�����������)���������

������
��
	�����������
������������������������
������������&
�������
�
�������������������

�*������$�
�	������&
������&
�����&��	����	��������"�#���������������
��
	�������
��������
��

����
���&
�������
������	)��*���
	
���	���
$
����&��	"������
�&��$������
����	��
������&���

�$������&
������$������������	�������+���������
���
������
����������������8)�4�������$�����

 2!��MD��!��,�
�����	��	&������
�
�
�	�����������������������	�
��
��������������$����
����$�

�����&
������$�����������������������
�
�	�������!��"��>�
�	���������
	���
�����	��������)�

������
��
��������
�	�����	��������
	��������������������	
�����
��	�$�����
	������	��"�

4�"���/$�>�����

����	�����$����� ����
	���
���	��	��������������	������
�����������?����������&����$�����������&����$�����������&����$�����������&����$�

����������������������������������������?�$���������������
�
�	"�>�����������)���
	�&
���������������>������
���4�&���
��

�������"����
	���	��
�����	�����&���$�����������������
��������?����
��������
��
�
����	�

��������������?"�����	
���������&��)�����������������
���������?
�����&��&�������?)�

                                                
H�.��	���$� ���	�9�5�����	�����
�������
����2�������5�����	����5���DN� 2��EO��

E�.�3������.�����	�
���Q�������������
��K�MM�L���!����

Agenda Item 7

Page 66



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�6
4�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

&��������������$������������
��������	�)�&
������&
�����������������&�������������������

���
���&���������$
������������������
�)�
�	������������	��	���	
�����������	����
����������"��

#��������	�����&���
	�	��'�������	�����������������	�+
�����
������
��	�����
�
������������

���
	���
��,"�.�&����)�������&���&���
	�
�����������������
	�����
�
�
�	�����
���������������

������
�
�	�$����������
��������	�	�����
������������������������������
���$���	���
��	�

�����������	�����������
���
����������
��"���
��
$
�����������
������
�
����������
��	�

?@9����	��	�;������	�!	�9�	�������	'�=���	�	�����	���9����:	"���	�9����	!��	�	����������	@9����	��	�;������	�!	�9�	�������	'�=���	�	�����	���9����:	"���	�9����	!��	�	����������	@9����	��	�;������	�!	�9�	�������	'�=���	�	�����	���9����:	"���	�9����	!��	�	����������	@9����	��	�;������	�!	�9�	�������	'�=���	�	�����	���9����:	"���	�9����	!��	�	����������	

'��'����	�9�	���9����:	����	"�	�9��	'��'����	�9�	���9����:	����	"�	�9��	'��'����	�9�	���9����:	����	"�	�9��	'��'����	�9�	���9����:	����	"�	�9��	�9����9	�	���'��:�9����9	�	���'��:�9����9	�	���'��:�9����9	�	���'��:"?O�#�
	�
	���$
�����	���������
�	�

!����������������
	������	��
���������������������
�������������
������$
�	����
��
�	�

��������
��@�
��	�!����MOE������������	��
�������4���
���������
���!���+(���������������,�

�MOM)������������
�
�����������	�
��������
�
�����
��
�
���������	�
�"�"�"�"����
	�����
����������
���

�$�����	������$���
	��
�
���
��������&
��������
�
��������	����&���������������������&����$�

���������������������
��������
$����  4���� 4�	���������
	�����		��"�����$�����������&"�

4�$�������/����	���G>���6������0��2���������9��������$,����"��

#�������	�������������
�������
������������
�
��$���������������
�
�	�����	�����  4������	
����

������������&�	�$
�	���������:���
�����������������&����	
�
����������	�&
�����������������

$�����
����$�������
�	����� 
�
����4������	�
�	"��#�����	
�
���
�������
������������
�	�

��	���������������������)�����������$�����	��������������������������DDDD���������	��	��	��	�������	�����	������	����

�����������	�����	�
�������������
��	�$��������
����$�������*����	��	"��#�����
	���&��$�

����	��	���
$
������
	
���$����	���$���?������?N�$������������	�	��$�	���
���ME� 2!����8�

+��&���������$������������
��������	������
���������
	���������$������������	���$�

����
������������
����$����
��	,�����&�
�	����
	���	�	
�
���
�
�	������������
	
��	�

�����
����
������2�������4�&����$���������������	
����
�����	������ ����
	���
���&
�������

���
����
��������������	������&��	�	
����
�������
�������
�&�&
������������
�
��������
	��
%���

�����������������������������
�
�	�&
�����������$�������������
���������������
�
�����
������


���	������	�����"�

#�����������&�����������$�  4	����� 4	�
��������
�������&�������&�����$�����������$�

����
�������	��C	���
�
��	�&�
���	������������	���$����  4�������� 4�
���������
����

�
����	�����	)�����������
	��	���������	����&������
	�	���
$
����"����

#�����������	�������	�����	
����������	������$�����>������
���4�&�����������
��
���������&���

+	���
������,��$����� ���������������$������������
�"�#�����	��
	������$����������������

���	
�����
��	�$��������	���$�����>������
���4�&����������  4B 4"�#�����������	�����
	
���

+�����	����������
��	,������	�����	A9��

�" �������������������
����������������
�	�>������
���4�&��	����������
����

�����������	������������
�	��&��$
����
���&���9��
��:�����

�" �����&�������	
���
���&�������������	���
���$���
���������$����������	������
	�


������
��	)�&�
�	��
��
	�����		����������������������������
�����$���	�����)�
��
	���	��

����		���������	
��������
��
�
���������	���
���
�	��$�
	�������
	��"�

?�A#���$���/��������44�����4��

                                                
O�������������	��H+�,�

D������	#��"��	������9	�������	/	����	)���������	��������	#�����"	8A33B>	�@�&	��/	CB33	D�9�	

��'����	�����	�''���	���	'�����"���	��	��������	��	�9�	/����	������E�

N�-�$
�����	�����������
�
������	����	�����������������������
�
�����������������
���	��
�������

����
�����	��
��"�

Agenda Item 7

Page 67



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�6
5�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

����������
�����$��$
������	����������$
�
�
����$���  4)������� 4)����
����	����
���������	�

��	���������
�����������	
��		�&
������
�&���������$
�"�#�����
	������������$
�
�
����$�

T����
��������	
��		U�&
��������������
�
����������������������	�
�	"�����
���HE��$�����

4������	�
��!����NM��!�����$
��	���	
��		��	�
�����
���T����������)��������
��)����

���$�		
��U"���

#��� �&�����
		
��M���	����%���
������
���������������$
�
�
����$����������?��	
��		?�	
����

������&�	�������
��	����/������	������
����������
���	���������
�
�
�	"������������������������

�����T��	
��		U)�&�	�	�$$
�
�����&
������
�������
���	���������
�
�
�	��	����������
���

�������"�#��� �&�����
		
���
�����
������
�	��
�&���$������
������
����������������
	
���
��

����9	/	&�"�����	DF223E	F1	�9	�	AC6"��!��������
��&�	�����)������������
������$���	��$������

��	�)�����������	��$������$������������	���$�
���	������&�	���������
����������	
��		)���
	�

&�	��������������	���������������	��&�	�T�����$�������
���	�
��������
������U)�������������

T����
�
�����
��$�����������
�
����$�
���	�����	"U�����&�	���������������������	
�
���&�����

�����������
$$������
$�����T�������'�����$����������&�	�����������������	�	������	���������
��


���	�����	?"�

<���O�5���MND����������������������������-#�������������	�����������������	���$�

�
�
�����������	�
�	��	������
����$��������������
����
���	������$���	"���
��������)��
�
����

�������	�
�	�����������������	��������	����������	����������������
���
	�	���������$���

@�
����0
������$���	�������	��$������������$���	"��

��9��������������/�	����>���6�

<������$�����$�
�����������$������
�&���������$
��$������  4���� 4�������	����������������$�

	�����
	��������&�����������
�������
���
�������������������������
�	�>���9��
���4�&��	�

9�&
������������
���������	���$���
	
�������"��

#�����
	�	���������
����
	�$����������	���$�(�&	�����������������
���
�����*
	�������$�

�������	�
�	��	�
��
��
����	������
$����������	�
��
	�$������&
���	����������������
�����

���
�������������
	���	���������+����
�����
����,����$
���������������
��
	�����
		
�������
�$���

�����������	
��		�
�	��$�
	�	�
�����
�������
������?&
������
�&�������$
�?��������������	�
������

�*
	�"���

��������
������  4	���������	
	���	�����������
��
	���������		���$�����������������
��
�	��$����

��������
�&���������$
��&����
�������	�
��������  4:�������)�������	
��		����
�
�
�	��$�����  4�

��	���������
�������&
������
�&���������$
�"�������)�������
	����	����������/�
�������$���

�������������$����  4����	�����
��������$
�	�
����������	"��#������������
�&���%���
	������

������/�
������	�$������������	�
�������������
�&���������$
�����������������������
�����

>���9��
���4�&��	������������	��"�#�����
	����
$$����������&��������������������
�
�	C�

�����	��
��&���
������������
����������������������
����		���
����?���9�������
��?�����

����$������������	���$���
	
�������)���������$����������������
�
���$������������	�
��&
���

	��
	$�������	���������������	�
�����
	���
����$�����	
��		��������
�&���������$
�"��

#�����	
�
���
	�	
�
����&
������������� 4	)����������		
�����		������
�������$������  4�
�������

��� 4�
	�������	��������������������������	�������
�
	
����$�
�����
�����		
�������	��

������������	������)�����
��	�������������
$$���������������������������	�
�"�

#�������������$������C	���
�������������>���9��
���4�&�����	��������
	�	������&��������

������
���	�	�
�	���&��	�����������
����� �����2����������!�����������	��������������)�

                                                
M�#��� �&�����
		
��C	����	�����
���4�����(���O��������� 
�
����4������	�
��!����M�D�

���(�&	�����+��	��������$�#�*�	,������	��K�MN�L���> ���8E�

Agenda Item 7

Page 68



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�6
6�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

������������+�	���	���������������������
�,�
	�����	��'�������������	��
��
��	�����
������

����
���8+�,��$������!��"�����		����)�������
������������
	�	�����	������
����$�����������

������
������������
��	����������������>���9��
���4�&��"���#�����
��������	��������
	�	�

�������������������
����)�$����*�����)�
���	��
�����������������$������������	�	��$�����

������
��&���9��
����$�
�	���������������
����
���	��
���������
���������������
�	�


���	������+������
�
����,������������
	�&
�����������		��
����%��������
����
�����
����$�����

���
�����
	
������������	����%��
�����	
����$�&���9��
��"�����	���
$
�����������
	�	�����

���������$�����?��
���?�����?
��
������?���'���
��	��$����������
���	���
���
���������
��

������
�
���&������&��	��������
������
��	�����
����	�����	"�

#���	������������$���9	����
�����&���$���������������
�
�	��������������������
������
�
�
�	�


�������
������$����
��	���������������
��	�ME��$����� 2!������+?#���
���4�&��?,�����

����������?������?����	����)�&�����
���)������	�������
�
�
����������������������
�
�	C��	��

�$�����>���9��
���4�&���������������
�
���
���
��  4	���� 4	"�#���2���������C	���
������

�����������
�����&�����%�	�
�������������
�����	
���	����������>������
���4�&�����������	���

�	�������	
	��$�����$����
���$���&�
�������	������#���
���4�&��"�

#�����
������
	�	�����������&A���

&�	�	������	�!	�������	B1	�!	�9�	&���	����/�����	��"��	�������	ADFE	�!	�9�	A333	&���	���9	��	�9�	

'��/�����	�!	���"�	��"	���/����	���	��=	��	���"�"�	�9��	��	��"�	�/�������	��	�	����������	

����	��	����������	=��9	�	=���,�����	'��'���(	&�	����/��:	��"�������	��	����������	=��9	�9�	

�;������	�!	�9�	=���,�����	!�������	��	��	��	�����"�"	��	�����9���	=9��9	�����	���9�������	���	

+���9�����"	��	"�	!��	�9�	'��'���	�!	����:���	��	��:	�!	�9���	��"����:	!��������	D���	�������	

B1DFED�E	�!	�9�	&��E(	�9�	���9���������	��	���"�	���!����"	�:	�9�	���"���	��"��	�������	��	

��	�������:	��'�����	!���,����"���	��"	�'���!��	'�����:	'�=��	=9��9	���	��	���"	��	

���<�������	=��9	�9�	=���,�����	'�=��(	�9���	��	��	�����	!��	�����"���	�9�	������������	��	

�������	����:	'��/�"�"	��	�������	GDAE	�!	�9�	A333	&��	��	9�/���	��:	�''��������	��	�9�	

�;������	�!	�9�	���"���	'�=��	!��	�9�	!����=���	��������		

H	�9�	�!!���	�!	�9�	'��9�������	��	�������	����:	��	�������	GDAE	��	��	'��/���	�����	���9�������	

!���	�����	�9�	=���,�����	'�=��	'�������:	��	�����	����:	7	��	�9����	+��/����	�������	��	

����������	'��'����	���	���	'��'����	=9��9	��	�9�����/��	!���	=��9��	�9�	���'�	�!	�9�	

�������	ADFE	=���,�����	'�=��I	9�=�/��	

H	�������	B1	���"���	��	�	��'�����	'�=��	=9��9	���9������	+!�������,������"	����������	

����/�����	��"	��	��:	��	�;������"	��	���<�������	=��9	��	����/��:	��	���/���	=9���	'�����:	

'��'���	��	��	��9��/�	�9�	'��������	�!	=���,�����(	

���"�#/�������,�9�������/��-��/0�����,����"�,��������0���#���

��$-�������������9��/�

#�����
��
�����$�����
�
�����&��	���	������
�	������
	������	���
���	�������	�����������

������
��
	����
����	����
���	����
�����������	�������	���� 4"��#��� 4�&�������/�
�����

��	
��		�����������
������&
������
�&���������$
�"��>�
�	������>���9��
�����&�������
�������

������������
�
�	���&������������
������� 4�$������
��&
�������������
��������	�	)����������

����������������������*���
	���$����	����&��	�
$�
��
	������	�����	���
	
���������	���

��
���������	�"��.�&���������������������
�
�	��������&�������������
�������$����� 2!�

                                                
1. 

11
 Government Guidance in relation to Section 95 and 96 Local Government Act 

2003 April 2007 

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 69



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�6
7�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

���8����
���	��$�����������	��������������
�	�$����
��	�������������������"��!�������

�	
���
�	�
���	��������&�������
����&
�������&���9��
���$����
���	����������&�����������

������
�
�	��������
�
�����
������ 4�&
������������	���$����
��
���&���9��
����������	�+
������

����
��,������������	�����
���	��
	$����� 4C	�����	�����������	
��		�&
������
�&���������$
�"���


������0��4�"���/$�>����

!$�������������������$����� ����
	���
��)���������������
��
����������&
����������������������

>���9��
�����&�������������$���
�	�����
���������
�
���
���
����� 4"�

�$����������
�����%������������������������������&����$������������
��
	���������������

	������������������������������������	�
�"���

@��
%������>���9��
�����&�����������
	
��)���������
	
��	������
��������������������&���

�����
�������*���		��
�
���
���&
������������������*���
	���$���������������&���$�����

�������
��������	�"��������������������	��H+�,�
��
	�������$
������������������*������$�����

���
�
�
�	"�#����$������
	����	����	�������������
���&�
�����	�������������$���

�������
��������	��������������	�������	������
�
��������%
�������������������������

�����	�	�����������
	����	����	�
���$����*�����)�����������������
��������	����	���������

��
���������	��+���������$�������������	�
������������	���
$�������
���������	��&�	�

�����������$������������
��������	�,"��#�
	�&����������������
���
��������������	"�

!����&�����������
������.��	���$�������	���	�	�����������
��
	���������
�����
���$�������

���$�
���������������������������	
�
����$�������������
�
�	�
�������
�������������
�������

���9�������
���������
��	"��.�&����������	������
�������������?�9�	��"���:���	'����	9���	

��	�9��	�����	���9�������	��"	�9���	���"���	����	9�/�	��	��	��	�	��/��	'��:���	!���"	=��9	�9�	

'��/���	��"	����������	������	��	���9	�	'�����/�	��"	������/�	=�:(	�9�:	�9���"	���	��	��	�	

"���"/�������	���	�9�:	�9���"	���	9�/�	��	�������"���	�"/������(	��;�����	��	�	'���������	

�����(	$�	��	���9�	��	����:	!��=��"	�9�	��-��������	�9��	���9	��"���	�9���"	��	���'�����	��"	

���"���	��	���9(	&	������	8��	��,�'�����/�>	���	���"�	��	�	���'��:	��"�	�!	�''��'������	��	

'�:�	��;	��"	��	��"?��

�����������		
��������������%�������
�����
�����������
����� 4��������������	���$�������

��&��	�������������	����������������&���������"���������
������
��&�����	���������
���
�������

��		
��������	������
���	��������&���
��	���
������ 2!����8�����
����&
���	���
�������

 2!��MD�"��$������&�	�������������	������������������
��&������
�������������
����
$�����

$����
��	�$���&�
�������
���	������&�	����������+&�
������������������������������&��,����

����������������	�����������
��&�	�$������������	�	��$�������������������������$�
�	�

$
����
����$$�
�	"������
�������	�)�����
���������������%������
�&����������
���	��������&���

&�	���?$����
��?�$���	���
������)�
����������		
�����������������������	���$���� 4�&�	��

��������������$��
�
����)����
	��������
������
��
���������������
���	�����"��#����������������


		��	���&�������������������
��������	���
�����������
�����������������������������
�
�	�

��%�������
�&������
��&
�����%���������	���
	%���������������	����������������&�������������

������"�

�$����� ����
	���
�����������	�������������
������
�
���
���
�����
�
�����������	�
���
�����)�

����	������������������������������	�	�����������&"�#��������&���������
�����
�
����

�������	�
��+���������$��������
���������
��������*��*�����
���	���	"�#���������������
��

5�����	�&���������
�
�������������	���
��������	�����
���	�+����*
	�
������
���	,�	�������	�

������
�	��
�
������	����	�+� �,�+?��������
���=��
���	��������
���=��
���	��������
���=��
���	��������
���=��
���	?,"�!	���� ��
	�	��'�������

                                                
���4���
������������������������ 2�

Agenda Item 7

Page 70



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�6
8�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

��������
�����*)�����%���
	�����������������������������
��5�����	�&������������

���
�
�������*�����"�

#���������������
��5�����	��������
���������
�
�����������������+<��
���8<��
���8<��
���8<��
���8,����
��
�
�����

��������
���=��
���	�+<��
���H<��
���H<��
���H<��
���H,"�>��&���������������<��
���H"�<��
���8�
	�	�����������

	
����������������
�
�����	����������	C�����������&�������������������������������

�����
��	�
�����&��������������������
��	����������	��������
�
���������	
	�&��������

��/�
����������
����������
	
�����%
����	����&����������������
���=��
��������������

5�����	�
�����������+�"�"�����0����4��	
�������,"��

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 71



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�6
9�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�������)B����24������?����
?���8��4��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

KCC

OPTION 3: SINGLE INTERMEDIARY VEHICLE

MEDWAY DISTRICT 

1

DISTRICT 

2

CLS PENSION FUND

KMIF LP

Agenda Item 7

Page 72



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�6
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�������&B�4
��������������?����
?���8��4���

�

�

4��������/����,�9��/����

4�&������-
	��	���$�(��9.��	
��� ����9�����
�����8� �����2����������!����MD�"�<������

����	$����$���������������������+���������
%������'����	��	
�
��
�	,���������������
��&
���

�����������
���
����������
�������?��	�����	
�����
���������������	�������������
���?�$���

���
�����������&
���������������
���
������������*�����������
������
���������$
������������

���	
�����
��������	��	������	������	�����	
�����
��"�@���������2�������-
	��	������	����

���8�������������
�
�	��������������
	��	���$������$�����		��������	�����	
�����
���
$�����

���	
�����������
	�&
������
��������������
������
������������$�������
�)�	��
������

���
����������&���9��
����$����
������A9�

�" 	��'�����������*
����������������$�7��:������

�" ����
���������
	��	���
	��������
�������
���:�����

�" 
$�
��
	�	��
	$
�����������������
	�����������	����	
�����������������������
������	�8"��

.��	
��� ����4�&��	�9�4��������$�����.��	
���!����MNE�+�	�"�����
���8�,A�@�������
	�������

������
�
�	��������������
	��	���$����	
��������+&
����������	�����$���������������$�������

����������
���8���$�����.��	
���!����MNE�&�
���H�����
��	���&�������
	��	���$�����������

                                                
�8�
"�"��������������&��	�&�
�������
��
���������
	��	����$���������������	��$������MD��!��"�#���

���	�������	��������������
	��	��	��$�����������������	���
����88��$�����#�&�������������

4����
���!����MM��+����������$��������
��������	�	,��������	�
��������������������$������	
���

�����	�	�����������.��	
���!����MME"�

�H�&
���������'��
��������������
	
��	��$������
����������

KCC

OPTION 4: SPECIFIC INTERMEDIARY VEHICLES

MEDWAY DISTRICT 

1

DISTRICT 

2

PENSION FUND

KMIF LP

CLS CLS CLS CLS

Agenda Item 7

Page 73



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�7
�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

$������	
��������	�	�����$�����������
	
����$�$��
�
�
�	�����������&
������	
��"�#���

����������$���������	�
		������2����������	����+�8"�,�&�
���&�������������������
����

�����������	�����	
�����
������	����������
������
	�����
����+	��������,"������������

����
����H������E� �����2����������!����MNN9�#���������������
�
�	�&
���������������
������

����������$������	����	��������������
����E� �����2����������!����MNN�+?	���
����E?�

���	���,�����*���
	��������&���������	���
����H�+�
����
���!		
	�����,�	�������&"�!�������

������
��&
�����	�������	���
����E����	����
$�
��&
	��	�����	�������������&��	�+
�����
���

>������
���4�&��	��������������&����$�����������,�$������������	�	�	�������
��	���
����H"�

�$�
�����	����)���������	���
���&
��������
�"��

������
�
��������
	���&�������������������
��&
������������
����E����	����
$�
���	�	�������&���


������
����H���������������&���$������	�������	�	��$����
���������
���&
�������������	�

�
	����
������
����H��������
���������	���&
�����?�����
���	�����$
�?�&�
�������
�������

�
	��	����$�����������		��������	�����	
�����
��"���

2����������	���	�&����
		����
��-�������������
�������
������	���
����E"�

4�&������-
	��	���$� ����9�����
����88�#�&�������������4����
���!����MM�A�#�
	��
��	�

������������
�
�	���&�������
	��	���$�����������$��������
��������	�	�
��	���������������

���	��������	��	�	�����*���
����
�����������	������������	���	���$������������������������

�����
��������	�	"���<�����	�����������
$��
	��	���$��������	
�����
�����		������������	��

������������	�������������
���"��(��2����������	���	"��

��9������,�������$�$-�������/��

�$����������
	����
���	��
��	�����	�
�����
����������
�����$���
�������������	
��)������$�����

��&��	� .!C	���:����������������
	�������&������$������������
����H� �����2����������

!����MNN�+����?!��!��!��!��?,�+4�&������4���
����
����
���!		
	������$���4�
������ ���.��	
��,"��

�
����
����		
	������$������������	�	��$���������
��	��H������E��$�����!���
������	�����

����
	
����$�$
����
����		
	���������������	���?!��	�9�	'��'����	�!�	��	��	����������	=��9	

�9�(((((�������������	((((((�����������	��	����������((((((�!	��:	'��'���:((((((�����"�"	��	��	

'��/����:	���	��	9������	�������"�����?���������
����������
���	����$
����
����		
	�����"��

�
����
����		
	������
������	���������
	
����$����������������"��+���'������������
��

�*����
��	,�����*���
	����
	���&��)� .!C	�������������	�����$���������������$�������������

����
����E��$�����!���+?��E����	�����E����	�����E����	�����E����	���?,"��

�� ��������
��A�@���������������
����$��	��������� ����������
��	������
��?�����
��?�

������
�
�	��������
�������������� �������	���������������$������
�������
		
���$���

������������
�����
������"�#����������������	������$������&
����������$�
�$��	���������

�����
	���������	�����	�����$�������������+
�����
�������	����)�$�������$�������������
��

������	�����	,"�������
���������
�
�	�������������������� �������	����	��������������
����

�$��������6	��9���
�����
�$��	��������1����'���	�����
������������	��
	$
����������
	�&�����

	������������������������$����
���&������"��

#��������&
��	A�#�����
	������������	����������&���������������������������	��	����


�������������&�����������&����
�	�����
�
��������	
��		�����	"��

?�2�4
��?���������

#��������&
���������������
���
���	������	������$������������	�	��$�	���
����8E��$�����

�
����
�������
��	�����5��%��	�!��������+��5!,"�!�����
���)����������&
��������������

����������������!�������
	������
�"��

Agenda Item 7

Page 74



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�7
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
���
����

?�"�$$��������/�

#�����$�������	
�
���
	���������������&
���
���	���������	����&�
��������	�������
���	����

&�����
���	��
������������%�������
�
��	�+
"��
�������������&
�������?5��%����������

����	����4�
��
���?����?5��4?,"�#������������
����	�����	�
��&�
������������+��������
��

4������	,�&
	��	����
���	�����	�$��������	�+�������
���������$���
���+	�����	��2�,�������'���	�

&�
��������������������������
�"�>�������
	�
	�������	�)����������&
���������������
����
��

��������������������	����������*����
���+�)�)����	����������������
	
����$�����
��	��$�

2�������������
��������	�������������
�$��	���������$���
��,"�����
������	��	���������

��������������	�$�������
�
�����&$����
�"��

>��������������
�����	����
���	��
�������������&
�������5��4A9��

�" �$�
���	�
��������	
�������
�����
���	����+&���������������������/�
����	
	,)�$���
���

	�������������
����������
���		������	:�

�" �$����������
	�����	����
���	����+���&�������
��������
���	������
	�	����������

�
$$�������+
"�"��	����������/�
�,,)�&��������������
	�����
�
��������$
�����)�5��4�

����	����������������%�������$�����������@���$�����������	�����&��������������


	�
���	�
����/�
�)�������������&�����������$����%�������������	�&�
����������

��$�������"�

 
�
����4������	�&�����������
�����
�	�&
�����������
���	��
�����������+&�������������������

�����
���
����$���	�����B����		��	�+��������������'���������,�
����	������
�������
����

������"�#�������	
	�����������
�	��/���������"�!��������		��	�����	$���
���&
�����������

������&
�������������!
��������$� ����2�
���
��	"��

!������
��������$���
����$����������+$����*�������2��$���	,�&
�����	�����������������
����


����	������
�������
����������"�!��
����������	
	�����������
�	�����"�������
�
��)�
�����

�����		
���������������������������&�����������	
���������
����	����
�������
���$����$���

��������	$����$�
���	������B�$���
���������'���	������	�	����&
�������������������

����$
�
����$��
��$������������	�	��$������������
�����
��"�#�
	�
	����	
	�����&
���

������
��2�
���
��	�����������
�����4��������
	%����
��������	�����	�
������������

5��
����
3����������
	�	�+����?�5�����
��������	������2�
���
��	?,"�

>��������'�������
���	�����&������&��������������)�������������������������	�
�)�

���
���		��	������������������
���		��	�+
��&�
�����	������	������
������	�&
�����������

��&�	������
���	�����	,"�

�?���?�������

����������������������������

#���������������
		��	�+
����������������	��	�,��		��
�����&
������������	����������������

	��
��
�����&�������	A9�

+�,�#����	����
	�������$����������+
"�"��������������$����������������4������	,�

+�,�4����������	�����������������+
"�"�
�	�
���	�����	�����������������,�

#�����	
�
����������	�����
	����	�$����&	�+	�����	������
��������	
	�����&,A9�

+�,�#����	����
	�������$���������A�#���������������	������&
�������������������
���������	�

+����������������
�����	
���$���,����	
����$���������������������	"�!����
�����	������


���	����	���������	����������������	����$�����$�������
�
��������		"�

Agenda Item 7

Page 75



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�7
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

+�,�#���
���	�����	����������������A�<���������)����������
	��
%�������������������
���

������
�"��$����
���	������
������	������������������$�&��%	)�����	����B���	���
��	�

	�$$
�
����������������4���
����������������
�C	�	�����
���&
�����������������&
�������

4���������������	"�

+�,�!���
��������$����������������������������A�����	����
����$�&����������������
	�
�	��$�

����������
���������
�)�����2�������4�������B�������������&
������������
�
������������"�

#�
	��������������
�������������4������	�+��������
������������������,���
����������	�������$�

��������"��

�	����
	�������$����������	����
	�������$����������	����
	�������$����������	����
	�������$�������������

#���$�����������	���������	
����$�����4���
����������	��������
��	����O�+
"�"�
�	�5�����	�

&��������������������������������������������	������	��������
�
�����
������$���,��	�����

5�����	�&
������
���	�
���
�����������������������������
������&��%	)�����	����	���
��	�

$����
�"�!�&����
�����
�$�&
��������������������������	��$�������������	$��	����������

�����������	������	����������������C��
���������	�	�$$
�
����������������4���
����������"��

�
���� 24�����
�����$���	�E���������	��������$��������������������
��&�
������
�
	���	�

�����+�������
�
	����
����$�����	������
	�	
������$����
����$������������������
�,�����

����	
	�������
	������$$����������������
�
���
����$�����0����4��	
���������	���5������

+
"�"�
��&�����������������������������������������������
��5�����	,"�#��������������
��

���
�
�����	����������	��
��
��	�
�������
���������	
���$��������)�������������������	������

�����	����
���
	�������������	
���$���	�	�����������������
���	��&
��������������
������

�������������������������������		"�

>�������&�������
�����	�������������	�����������
��
�������'�
������ 4�����������������
�����

���	��
	��������
�
���)���������
��	���������
�	�	���������	
��������������
��������	��$�

	�����
������	�����
�	�������������	����$�����$�������
�
���$�����
	������	��
$�����

��������
���������
�
���������
	�����������
�
��"�

����	�����	����	�����	����	�����	����	�����	����

�������	����������	
������&����������������
	�����������
���������
��$������������	�	��$�����

4���������������	"�#�������)��	���� 4)�
	�������	�����������
������	��
��&
������������

�������������������$���?��������
�������������$�
��
�
����	�����
��������������������?�

������������$
�
�
����$����������������������
����&�O"�����
	���&������
%������$����&
��
������

�������$���������
���������
�
�	�&���������$
�����	�?����		��
��
����$����$���������������

����?���������
���������
�
�	�������
�	����������������
����&�D"��$���
	�
	�������	�)��������

�*�����
�����	������������&��%	)�����	����B���	���
��	)�
��&
�����������������&
����@�����

@0�����
������������������	�E�N�+����?4���������������	?,"�

#���2�������4������)��	���	���������������������)�&
��������������	
����&�������
��
	���

��������
���������
��������������$
�
�
����$����������������������
����&�+�����
���
		��	�

	�����	�����������	�
�)�������������$���
���	��������,"�<����
�&�����������	�����
���
	������

                                                
�E�>
�������������$��*����
��	� ������4��	
��������!�����
����������������;��%	�
���4��	
�������	�

!�����
��&�
����������
�	�	���
$
������	����
	����������
�
	���������
��$���	�

�O��������
���8+�,+&,�4���
������������������
��	����O�

�D��������
���8+�,+*,�4���
������������������
��	����O�

�N�-
����
������HB�NB����$��������������4���
�����������$����������
���$�8��5��������H��������

�����
���
����$����������	�$��������&�����$�����
��&��%	���������	)�����
��	�������������	�����

����
��	���
��	���������	)��	�
�����������
��������������>���	���#���4���
����������	�

�������
��	����O)���"����O�(�"�E�

Agenda Item 7

Page 76



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�7
4�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��


��
	�������
%������������������$��������$����&
��
����
	���$
�
�
��"��$���
	�
	�������	�)��������

�*�����
�����	������������&��%	)�����	����B���	���
��	)�
��&
�����������������&
�������

4���������������	�+���������
��
	�������
%����������������������	�&
�����������������

�����+���
���������������2�������4������,������������2�������4������1	��&�������$"��

�����
$�������������B�������2�������4�������&�	���������������	������������������

����
����&�
��&����������������	
����
$�
���
��������/���������������
������������������

�����������������
���
��	�+�����
$���������$����4���������������	,"���$�
��
	�'���������������

�������%
����$$���
���������������������	��������������������
����������
�����	�����

��������
���������%��)������
��������������"�M���$�
��
	�'����������������������%
���

�$$���
���������������������	��������������������
����������
�����	�������������
������

���%��)������
��������������"�

>����	�����
������'���	�$���
���	�����)������
$����������
	�����������
���������
�)�
��
	�

���
%��������
��&
������������
������&��%	)�����	����B���	���
��	�	�$$
�
����������������

4���
�����������$������������	�	��$�����4���������������	"�.�&����)����������+�������

2�������4������B�����������
�	������$,�&
��������������
�&���
	��	�������$�����
���	������

�����
	��������		"�				

�����������)�������	���������������	������������		�$�������	�����
����$����'���	�	�����	���

?�����$������'���	?�	
�
����������������$�������������
����	��	�&������������������������������

$���
���	�����	"�				

����������������$����
������������������$����
������������������$����
������������������$����
������B����������
	���	���
��	B����������
	���	���
��	B����������
	���	���
��	B����������
	���	���
��	����

����	����
����$�&����������������
	�
�	��$�����������
���������
�)�
��&
����������������������

���
�������	����������$�������"�#�
	�������
�����������
�
�������������$�/����	�$���

	�������������	���
$
�������	����"��

#���2�������4�������B�������������&
���������������������
�
���"��#�
	��������������
���

����������4������	�+��������
������������������,���
����������	�������$���������"�#���

����
	
����$��
����
�������
��	�
	���4����!�	���
�������������$������/�
������	��$�����4���
��

��������	��������
��	����O)����������
	����	�������������$
����
���	���
��	�
���������
���

&
�������
		��)�������	�)�	�����������	$����$�	����
�
�	����������$
����
���
�	�������	�
��

����
����������	���
��	���������������
���������
�
�	������
	�������������
���������������

���%�	���
��	"�����
����
�������
��	�
������	�����	���
��	�����
������$�����������	"�

�
D��

�- #���������������&��������
�
����������������	$��	������������������+�		��
���
��
	���

�
�
�����������	�
�,���)���		
��)���	��	
�
����
�
�����������	�
���&��������������"�����

��
�$)��- #�&���������������������������������$���������������������	����	���������
�
����

�������C	�����
��
���
�����	�"��#�
	�
	���&�����	��'����������&���%�
$������
�������	��������


�����
���
�������
��������������	$����$������������$������
�
�����������	�
�"�

!	��� 
�
����4������	�
�)����������&
���������������	���*�����	�����������&
�������
�	��$����

	��'���������*����
������������
�	"����	����)�����
��
�
������������	�&��������	��'���������*�

���	����
������������
�	����������
���	�������
���+����
��������������������
������

���	
���$�����������	�&
�������$
��$�������
����*��*�����	����	,"�

                                                
�M�#�
	�$����&	�������	���9M�B�N�&�
���������������'�
������������&��������	���
��	������		
���

���������

����������
���O++�,+�,�

Agenda Item 7

Page 77



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�7
5�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

!����������
���=��
�����	����
	�����������
�
�����������	�+&�
���
	�����
�	��$�����	�������

$�����*������	�	,�&��������	��'��������������������������
�����*����
��"�

#���$������������������������������&
������=!#����"�#�������C	���
�����
�
�
�	�&
���������

����
���$���
���������'���	"�#�
	�
	���=!#��*��������
�
�"�#����$��������$����&
���������������

�����������=!#���
��������	��$��	:�����
�������������$
����
���������
���
	���������
�
���"�

#���=!#�����������������������������
����A9�

�" ��������
������������	�����������2�������4����������	��	��������������+�������

2�������4���������������������������
������	����=!#������,:����

�" �����������������������	�������&�
��������������������	��������
���
���	������

	���
��	�������� 
�
����4������	�������������������	��������
����������	���
��	����

���� 
�
����4������	�+��������$�����5������C	�$��	�������
�������$,"�����
��	���	��

��������		���������� 
�
����4������	�����
��&������������$���+���������������		��
��

�		���
��,�
$���������������������� 
�
����4������	���	�����$���$���
�	��������

������	���
��	�+=!#��*����,�����
		���
���
��	�$�����
	"�.�&����)�	����	��������	�

�����������	���
����*����
������	��������	�����$$���
������������
�����=!#���	�	�
��

�
����	�����	�&�����+.5������
���,�����	�������������	�"�!������������	�����
��

�����
	��
$$�����)�.5�������
�&����������������	�&
���	�	�
�
����������������

��������������	������$������������	���
��	�
	�����������������
�	��
�
�����������	"��

#�������������	
	�	������������
�&���������		
�����$
��������������������
�����	
�
���


	�������"�

����/�$�����"�������/��

#�������
�����*�	������
����
	�������		���	�������������
�
�
�	��$����������&
��������������


���	������$�����*������	�	)������������������	�������������
����������
���&�������

�
$$����������	
	��������)�����
�������$������	
���$����
���	���	�
$��������������
�	����

����
��B����
������
�
�
�	"�

���>�?��E�����2�
���4�
��2�

��,�����6���/�

���������*���
����
�
�����������	)����
������
�	�+�����		�	,������
	�����������	�
�����$
��

	����	�
�����
�
�����������	�
�������&�������������	������������
��	���������
����$�����

����C	��		��	"��!	����
�
�����������	�
�������
	�����	�������$�����*������	�	)������*�����

��
�	������		�	�&�������
	�������*��*������
�
�����������	"��!��������
�����$
��	����	�&�����

������&������&��������	�'�
��	����*������������	����������	��'����������
��
�
��������
����

��
�	�&���������&�5������'�
�	������		��	�������������������"�

��4��

�- #������
	�����+�,�����������'�
�
����������
��������������	�
��&����������
�
����

�������	�
���������	��
�����)������		
���
��
�����������������
�������
�����������	�
�)����


�����	��
���������:����+�,������������������	$���
����������������$�
�	�
�����	��
��	������

�������	�
�:�����

>�������������	�����
�������- #���������
���
��	��$���������������	�����������	�
�	������

+	��������������D"�"�,)���������
�������- #���������
���
������������&������%�&�����

����������������
�	�����������������$���������������	�
��&
��
�����������	��$�

�����
���
��"�

Agenda Item 7

Page 78



���������������������������������������������
���

��"��������*����/:����"#��$���:���!�����������
���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�7
6�

�

��
��
� 
��
��
�!
��
��
��
;��
� 
�

��
�
��
�;�
��
P�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�4
������
�����

���'��������������
�����������	�
��������������	��������)����������&
����
%���$�������������

������������
��	��������������	����"�.�&����)���
	�
	��	������������
		���&�����������&�����

����������
���
�����������&�
���&�������������&���	�����
��	���������������������&
��"��

#�����%�����������������$�������
	
�����%
�������+	�����	����!��
	�������
����,�

&
�����	��
������������	��
���
����$���������������������
��	��������������	����"��

#�
	�
	���$
����
���+�����������������,�
		������������������������%��������$
����
���

���
	��	"�


��������2��?�
������

@���������������!�)�
��
	��
%��������������$����� 
�
����4������	�&
�����������$������
��
�����	��


������������	����
�����	��
����'�
���������������		��
����+�������������"�"���	��	
�
��,"��

!��
����
	�
	���$
����
���+�����������������,�
		������������������������%��������$
����
���

���
	��	"�

�

�

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 79



���������������������������������������������
���


,,����!��G�4�6����0�"�����$,���/���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�7
7�

�

��
��
��

�P
��
F��
�(
��
��
��
��
��
��
 �

��
��
� 
��

�

�

-<�(<#�-� �#��
�

� �

�

�

����������������������������������������				

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 80



���������������������������������������������
���


,,����!��G�4�6����0�"�����$,���/���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�7
8�

�

��
��
��

�P
��
F��
�(
��
��
��
��
��
��
 �

��
��
� 
��

4�2
4��8��4������
?�����

4��������
?���?�8������

��%�����#��/����

#���4������	�&����������9$�����	����������	"�

5����������*�	�����������������������
���	A����	
	�
����$��
�
�����������	�+&
����
�
����

�
��
�
�,�����������������������+&
������
�
�����
��
�
�,"��

 
�
�����
��
�
��$����
�
�����������	A�#���4������	�&���������
�
�����������	"�#������
��

�
�
�����
��
�
�)���������������
��������
�����������$��������������"�

#���	$��	��$�
�����	�	�������	��'�������	���������������HF"��$�����4������	����������%����

���
�����������������
�&����������
���	��������
	�
	���		��$����
		��"��

���*
������	
	�$������$
���
	��
���
��	�+�"�"���������		��
��
���������
������
���	�������
���,"�

#�*�����	������)�	�����9��*����	�+	�����	�����������������
��4������	�����������	
���

$����
���	���	,��������	�$$�����*����%���"�

#�����
�
�����	���������4������	C�
�����	�	�	��������$�������������������	��������"�

�0�"�����$����������0��,�����������/�$����$��@���

#��� 4�
	�������	�����������
��	���������
�	��$�����������
������������	)������&����������

�������������+�$$�������	�����������������2�������4��������������	�����������������

�����$��$������
�
�����������	,"��

5����������*�����������*
�������������	A�
�����	�	���/�
����		
������"�!��
�)���
	�
	���		�

�$����
		����$�����4������	����������%�������
�����������������
�&����
���	�����"��

������	
��������	
��������	
��������	
��A����������������������*��$$
�
���)����%������������������$��*
�
�
���$����$
��

�
	��
���
��������������	"��

4�������4�
>�4�����
?���?�8���;44�<����

��%�����#��/����

#���4������	�&����������9$�����	����������	"�

#�������	�����������	���&����	
�������������	���	���	
����$����������������������
�����

�$�����  4"��$��&��4������	��
����������������$�����
	�����)������4��������������������	
�������

������"�

#����
��
�
���$�����4������	�
	��
�
���"���

���*
�
�
��I�	����$������	��$����������	�
������	����$������	��$���������"�#���

�����������	����������������$��*
���������$�����������/�
������	��$�����4������	�����&
������

�����������������������	�
���
�����������������������������
��"�����������
����$���

��������������������������
�	"�

 �&�������*
�9����������*����������&���/�
������	"��

#���	$��	��$�
�����	�	�������	��'�������	���������������HF"�#�
	�
	���		��$����
		����$�����

4������	����������%�������
�����������������
�&����
���	�����"�


,,����!��G�4�6����0�"�����$,���/���

Agenda Item 7

Page 81



���������������������������������������������
���


,,����!��G�4�6����0�"�����$,���/���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�7
9�

�

��
��
��

�P
��
F��
�(
��
��
��
��
��
��
 �

��
��
� 
��

#�*�����	������)�	�����9��*����	�	�����	�����������������
��4������	��������	�$$�����*�

���%���"��������*��*�����
���	���	�+���	
���$���	,���	����*��*����
��"��

#�����
�
�����	���������4������	C�
�����	�	�	��������$�������������������	��������"�

��
�
�����������	�������
��	�
		��	��$�������������
������
�
���
������������
���
�����	
����

������
	����������	�������������
��	�����"�

#���  4�
�	��$�����������
������������	)������&����������������������"�

��	�����������*
�������
�
���������4������	"���

������	
��������	
��������	
��������	
��A�(������������������������*�
��$$
�
����$��������
����*��*�����
���	���	"�

����
���4�������>��2�
?
�����;�42<����

��%�����#��/����

#���4������	�&����������9$�����	����������	"�

#����
��
�
���$�����4������	�
	��
�
���"�������4�������&
��������
����������
������������$�

���
����+$����*������7�,"�

 �&�������*
�"�

#�����
�
�����	���������4������	C�
�����	�	�	��������$�������������������	��������"�

������
	�������������
��	�������	���	�������������������%��������
������	��
���
���	������

���
�
��+�"�"�����������������	��5
�����	�-�����������!�����$���������		
�����	��

5
�����	�@�����-���������������,"�.�&���������%����
���	�$����	
�������� 2�	���������

&�	�
�������������$���������������������/�
�������$�������������	������%������

������	"�

#���� 2�
�	��$�����������
������������	)������&����������������������"�

#���� 2�	�������������
��	���	�����������*
�������
�
���������4������	"��#�
	�
	���		��$����

����������
$�����5�����	����
	��������
�
���
��������������������"�

!	�� 2	���������$������$
�������
	��
��	)��������������	����	������
	�%
����$�	������&�����

���������	���$�����$����
	��������������������$
�������
	��
������������4������	"�!�� 2�
	�

�����$������������������
����	���������$�����������"�

� 2	������������
�����*����������$������
	����
����&��������������*��$$
�
����$������� �����

!�����
��4������	�������������
������	
���$����
���	���"��

!���		������%�������
	������������$����$���
���������	�
���
���������������
���+
"�"����

����
�
������4������	�$���������
�������
	��	���$�������		��	,�����������������	�
���
�����

��������	��������/����������������������4������	������������������%"�

������	������	������	������	
��A
��A
��A
��A�(������������������������*�
��$$
�
���������
$$
��������������%
���

�
	��
���
��	"��

����
���4�������>���8
?���;�4�<����

��%�����#��/����

���
�
������
��������������������
��������
�����	�����"��

 �&�������*
�"��

Agenda Item 7

Page 82



���������������������������������������������
���


,,����!��G�4�6����0�"�����$,���/���

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�7
��

�

��
��
��

�P
��
F��
�(
��
��
��
��
��
��
 �

��
��
� 
��

#�������
�
����	�&�������������	����������	"�

#����
��
�
���$�����	����������	�
	��
�
���"�������	����������������������
����������
����

��������$����
����+$����*������7�,"�

����������
	���������������	$��	��$�
�����	�	�����"EF"�#�
	���&���*��
��
�
��
	���		��$���

����$
��
$�����4������	����
	��������
�
���
���
�����������������������������"��

������	������
�������
�%�������
	%���%���+
"�"����
���������
�����,�9�&�
���
	�����������������


�����
���$�����������"�!��������
��	��������������������$���
������������	������������������

��������������	����������������
���"��

����������������������� 2�+���������������&������������������������$
���$���
	���	������

�������������	��	�$�����������,"�

� �	������������
�����*����������$������
	����
����&��������������*��$$
�
����$������� �����

!�����
��4������	�������������
������	
���$����
���	���"��

#�����
�
�����	���������4������	C�
�����	�	�	��������$�������������������	��������������

����������� �����!�����
���
������	��������������$�
����$�
�����	�"��

#���� ��
�	��$�����������
������������	)������&����������������������"�

#���� ��	�������������
��	���	�����������*
�������
�
���������	����������	"�#�
	�
	���		��$�

�������������
$�����4������	����
	��������
�
���
��������������������"��

!���		������%�������
	������������$����$���
���������	�
���
���������������
���+
"�"����

����
�
������	����������	�$���������
�������
	��	���$�������		��	,��������������

���	�
���
�������������	��������/����������������������	����������	���������������

���%"�

������	
��������	
��������	
��������	
��A�(������������������������*�
��$$
�
���"�

Agenda Item 7

Page 83



���������������������������������������������
���


,,����!�'�*�������
�����$,�������#����6�?�#��/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�8
�

�

��
��
��

�P
��
�!
��
��
��
��
��
��
 �

��
��
��
��

�

��
�(
�

� 

�
��
�

�

��
���
�������4�
���������2�?������

?�4�
�����
���
�������4�
�����8�����

#�������������&�	��	�������	�������$�������	������������������
�������
����������
	�	�

���	�����	�������
�������
������$����������
��	�����������
��������������"��

�������	
�

�������������	��� ��������������������������������
��

�����������������������������

������������������������
��

��$)3>�*�&%�(�"�$�/��>&"&,3>�

�"#�$�*#��

�

�/#,�$E�$1/3"��&$��

�(�����>3*3&"�

�&,2�"*�#3&"�%&$�#+��>&*#*�&%�2$&)3'3"��*&>3�/�+&1*3"����Q��

� >&"*#$1>#3&"�&%�*&>3�/�+&1*3"��1"3#*��

� >/��$�">��&%�*3#�*�&"�-+3>+�*&>3�/�+&1*3"��#&�0��>&"*#$1>#�'�

� *3#���>@13*3#3&"�


"/3,3#�'A�

�122&$#�%&$���"'���,�'3�#3&"�

��$�/3>#3&"��3'�($�"#�

�

:��/3'�1"#3/�4����>�,0�$�

��4?�

�&*#�&%��//�$�,�'3�#3&"�-&$E�1"'�$#�E�"�#&-�$'*�0$3"�3"��>&"#�,3"�#�';�0$&-"%3�/'�&$�'�$�/3>#�

/�"'�0�>E�3"#&�"�-�1*�A�

��$��*&"�0/��/�)�/�&%�2$&%3#�,�.�0��3">/1'�'�%&$�>�$#�3"�#.2�*�&%�/�"'A�

�


2�#&��C�&%�#+���/3�30/��>&*#*�&%�#+��-&$E�$�@13$�'�

/�**�#+��3">$��*��3"�#+��)�/1��&%�#+��/�"'��%#�$�

$�,�'3�#3&"A�

�1*#�0��#+��,3"3,1,��,&1"#�"�>�**�$.�#&�0$3"��#+��

/�"'�12�#&���>&"'3#3&"�-+�$��3#�3*�*13#�0/��%&$��".�"�-�

1*�A�

(�"�$�/��"%$�*#$1>#1$���&$E*� �")�*#,�"#�3"���"�$�/�3"%$�*#$1>#1$��-&$E*�2$&)3'�'�%&$���"�$�/�210/3>�1*��$�#+�$�#+�"�

%&$���'�'3>�#�'�21$2&*��&$�0�"�%3>3�$.A�

�D�,2/�*Q�

� *#$��#*��"'�2�#+-�.*�

� 210/3>�*2�>�*�

� -�#�$F-�.*�

� *>+&&/*�

� 3,2$&)�,�"#�&%�210/3>�#$�"*2&$#�3"%$�*#$1>#1$��&$�$&�'�"�#-&$E*�

� 210/3>��,�"3#3�*�

� -�*#��#$��#,�"#�%�>3/3#3�*��"'�*�-����>&//�>#3&"�


"/3,3#�'A�

�&1*3"��(�2��1"'3"��

�

:��/3'�1"#3/�4����>�,0�$�

��4?�

($�"#*�%&$�2$&)3'3"��'-�//3"�*�%&$�*�/��&$�,�$E�#�$�"#�:3��&-"�$�&>>12�#3&"�&$�2$3)�#��

$�"#?�3"�&$'�$�#&�,��#�#+��'3%%�$�">��0�#-��"�>&*#��"'�)�/1�A�

($�"#*�>�"�0��2$&)3'�'�%&$�"�-�013/';�>&")�$*3&";��'�2#�#3&"��"'I&$�*10F'3)3*3&"�

2$&B�>#*�-+3>+�>&"#$301#��#&Q�

� *#$�#��3�*�%&$�$���"�$�#3"��"�3�+0&1$+&&'*;�2�$#3>1/�$/.�-+�$��#+�.��$��

>+�$�>#�$3*�'�0.���/3,3#�'�*122/.;�#�"1$��&$�$�"���&%��&&'�@1�/3#.�+&,�*R��"'�

� #+��2$&)3*3&"�&%�&-"�$I&>>12�#3&"��"'I&$�,�$E�#�$�"#�'�+&1*3"���#��%%&$'�0/��

2$3>�*�3"�2$�**1$�'�,�$E�#��$��*�-+�$���>>�**�%&$�/&-�$�3">&,��+&1*�+&/'*��"'�

E�.�-&$E�$*�3*�>&"*#$�3"�'A�

($�"#�,1*#�"&#�0��,&$��#+�"Q�

� #+����2�0�#-��"��/3�30/��>&*#*��"'�#+��*�/�*�

)�/1��&%�#+��+&1*�*�&"�>&,2/�#3&"��*�

'�#�$,3"�'�0.��"�3"'�2�"'�"#��+�$#�$�'�

�1$)�.&$��"'���

� 7C�&%�2$&B�>#�>&*#*��"'�

� #+��,3"3,1,�"�>�**�$.�#&��//&-�#+��2$&B�>#�

#&�2$&>��'A�

�"�/3*+��$&2�$#.��>+�,��

�

���3&"�/��")�*#,�"#��"'�

�,2/&.,�"#��3'�

�

:��/3'�1"#3/���4?�

($�"#�%&$�#+��0�*2&E���"'�*2�>1/�#3)��'�)�/&2,�"#�&%�2$�,3*�*��"'�013/'3"�*�%&$�

01*3"�**;�3"'1*#$3�/��"'�>&,,�$>3�/�21$2&*�*�0.�#+��2$3)�#��*�>#&$A���&)�$*�0&#+�#+��

>&"*#$1>#3&"�&%�"�-�013/'3"�*��"'�#+��$�"&)�#3&"��"'�>&")�$*3&"�&%��D3*#3"��013/'3"�*A�

�

�3D�'�1*��*>+�,�*�>�"�&"/.�0��*122&$#�'�-+�$��#+��$�*3'�"#3�/��/�,�"#�%&$,*���,3"&$�

2�$#�&%�#+��&)�$�//�2$&B�>#����/�**�#+�"��CA�

�6C�&%��/3�30/��>&*#*�1"#3/�4�A��A�4A���%�#+���1"'�

>�"�0��'��,�'�#&�0���"�����#+3*�3*�3">$��*�'�#&�

46C�&$��6C�#+�$��%#�$�1"#3/�4�A��A�4A�

�

�3'��-�$'�'�,1*#�"&#�0���$��#�$�#+�"�#+����2�

0�#-��"�#+��#&#�/��/3�30/��>&*#*��"'�#+���*#3,�#�'�

,�$E�#�)�/1��&"�>&,2/�#3&"A���+���3'��-�$'�'�#&�


,,����!�'�*�������
�����$,�������#����6�?�#��/�

Agenda Item 7

Page 84



���������������������������������������������
���


,,����!�'�*�������
�����$,�������#����6�?�#��/�

�

�

�

� �

�

� ��
��
�8
��

�

��
��
��

�P
��
�!
��
��
��
��
��
��
 �

��
��
��
��

�

��
�(
�

� 

�
��
�

�

�/3�30/��>&*#*�3">/1'�Q�

� �1$>+�*��&%�/�"'��"'I&$�2$&2�$#.��#�,�$E�#�)�/1��

� �$&%�**3&"�/�%��*�:/���/��D2�"*�*;�'�*3�"�%��*��#>?�

� �3#��3")�*#3��#3&"��"'�2$�2�$�#3&";�$�,�'3�#3&"��"'�'�>&"#�,3"�#3&"�

� �$&)3*3&"�&%�3"%$�*#$1>#1$���"'�/�"'*>�23"��

� �&"*#$1>#3&"�&$�$�%1$03*+,�"#�&%�013/'3"�*�

� �D#$��>&*#�%&$�,��#3"���")3$&",�"#�/�*#�"'�$'*��0&)��
��013/'3"�����1/�#3&"*�

� �/�""3"��&0/3��#3&"*�

� �"3#3�/�3")�*#,�"#�>&*#*�

� �$$�>&)�$�0/������

� �3"�">��>+�$��*�#�E3"���>>&1"#�&%��".�*�)3"�*�'1��#&��$�"#�2$&)3*3&"�

�122&$#�>�"��/*&�0���3)�"�%&$�*�$)3>�*�#&�*122&$#���2$&2�$#.�'�)�/&2,�"#�2$&B�>#�

-3#+&1#�>+�$���&$��#�/&-�$�#+�"�>&*#A���+���3'�3*�#+��'3%%�$�">��0�#-��"�#+��>&*#�&%�#+��

*�$)3>�*��"'�#+���,&1"#�>+�$��'A���

0��#+��/&-�$�&%�#+����2�&$�#+���3'�3"#�"*3#.A�

�+���3'�$�>323�"#�,1*#�>&"#$301#���#�/��*#��6C�&%�

�/3�30/��2$&B�>#�>&*#*�:�3#+�$�#+$&1�+�3#*�&-"�

$�*&1$>�*�&$�0.��D#�$"�/�%3"�">3"�?;�3"���%&$,�

-+3>+�3*�%$���&%��".�210/3>�*122&$#A�

�%�#+��3")�*#,�"#�3*�#&�0��3"�>�23#�/��**�#*�-3#+�

�/3�30/��>&*#*��0&)���
��6�,3//3&"�#+�"�#+��

�$�"#�-&1/'�"��'�#&�0��"&#3%3�'�3"'3)3'1�//.�#&�

#+���&,,3**3&"�%&$�>/��$�">��3%�#+��#&#�/��,&1"#�
&%��3'�%$&,��//�*&1$>�*��D>��'*���>�$#�3"�%3�1$�A��

�+�#�#+�#�%3�1$��3*�'�2�"'*�&"�-+�"�#+��

3")�*#,�"#�-�*�0�3"��,�'���"'�-+�#+�$��1"'�3*�

�"����A���

�"�/3*+��$&2�$#.��>+�,��

�")3$&",�"#�/��3'�

:��/3'�1"#3/���4?�

�

($�"#�%&$�#+��0�*2&E���"'�*2�>1/�#3)��'�)�/&2,�"#�&%�2$�,3*�*��"'�013/'3"�*�%&$�

01*3"�**;�3"'1*#$3�/��"'�>&,,�$>3�/�21$2&*�*�0.�#+��2$3)�#��*�>#&$A���&)�$*�0&#+�#+��

>&"*#$1>#3&"�&%�"�-�013/'3"�*��"'�#+��$�"&)�#3&"��"'�>&")�$*3&"�&%��D3*#3"��013/'3"�*A�

�&*#*�&%�3")�*#,�"#�3"��")3$&",�"#�/�2$&#�>#3&"�,��*1$�*Q�

� #&�'�/3)�$��")3$&",�"#�//.�%$3�"'/.�013/'3"�*��0&)��:&$�3"�#+���0*�">��&%?�

�22/3>�0/��
�I���*#�"'�$'*�

� #&�2$&)3'��%&$��"�$�.�*�)3"��,��*1$�*�

� %&$�3")�*#,�"#�3"�+3�+F�%%3>3�">.�>&��"�$�#3&"�2/�"#�

� %&$�#+��2$&,&#3&"�&%��"�$�.�%$&,�$�"�-�0/���"�$�.�*&1$>�*�

��#-��"��C�#&�9C�&%�#+���D#$��>&*#*�

"�>�**�$.�#&��>+3�)��#+���"�$�.��%%3>3�"#�,��*1$��

�*�>&,2�$�'�#&���*#�"'�$'�&$�$�%�$�">��

3")�*#,�"#;�'�2�"'3"��&"�#+��,��*1$��0�3"��

3,2/�,�"#�'A�

�

�")�*#,�"#�,1*#�0��"&#3%3�'�3%�3#��D>��'*��
�8A6�

,3//3&"�2�$�1"'�$#�E3"��2�$�3")�*#,�"#�2$&B�>#A�

�"�/3*+��$&2�$#.��>+�,��

�

�����")�*#,�"#��"'�

�,2/&.,�"#��3'�

�

:��/3'�1"#3/���4?�

($�"#�%&$�#+��0�*2&E���"'�*2�>1/�#3)��'�)�/&2,�"#�&%�2$�,3*�*��"'�013/'3"�*�%&$�

01*3"�**;�3"'1*#$3�/��"'�>&,,�$>3�/�21$2&*�*�0.�#+��2$3)�#��*�>#&$A���&)�$*�0&#+�#+��

>&"*#$1>#3&"�&%�"�-�013/'3"�*��"'�#+��$�"&)�#3&"��"'�>&")�$*3&"�&%��D3*#3"��013/'3"�*A�

�&*#*�&%�3")�*#,�"#�3"Q�

� #�"�30/���**�#*�&$�3"#�"�30/���**�#*�&$�

� �*#3,�#�'�-����>&*#*�&%��,2/&.,�"#�'3$�>#/.�>$��#�'�0.�#+��3")�*#,�"#�2$&B�>#;�

>�/>1/�#�'�&)�$���2�$3&'�&%�#-&�.��$*A�

�C�&%��/3�30/��>&*#*�3%��1"'�3*���*,�//��"#�$2$3*��

�

�C�&%��/3�30/��>&*#*�3%��1"'�3*���,�'31,�

�"#�$2$3*��

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

Appendix B 
 

  

 

Kent and Medway Investment Fund 
Frequently Asked Questions 
 
KCC has appointed CBRE and Pinsent Masons to develop proposals for a Kent and 
Medway Investment Fund.  The KMIF model was presented to a special meeting of 
Kent Joint Chief Executives in July alongside proposals to take forward the 
development and set up of the fund in partnership with local authorities. 
 
KMIF is a revolving fund providing finance to unlock regeneration and economic 
development across Kent.  It will invest on commercial terms in both public and 
private sector led projects that deliver regeneration outcomes.  Through shared local 
authority resource commitments it aims to lever significant private sector investment.          
 
The following ‘frequently asked questions’ have been prepared to assist Kent borough 
and district partners with internal decision making processes.      
 

Rationale 
Q.  How will KMIF provide added value for local authority partners over and 
above alternative LABV arrangements and / or investment in individual 
projects? 
A. Through local authorities working in partnership, KMIF will provide a critical mass 
of projects and access to recycled funds that could not be achieved by each local 
authority working in isolation.  Crucially, the proposed structure creates the potential 
for attracting a much broader mix of private sector investment – including institutional 
investors – that individual projects are unlikely to be able to access.   
 
Q. What is the justification for local authorities locking away investment over 

10 years? 
It is proposed that investments will be locked in for the life of the Fund to maximise 
benefits.  The benefit to local authority partners is the potential for investment in 
regeneration projects in their area.  Funds could be recycled up to 3 times over the 10 
year period increasing the opportunity for all authorities to benefit.  At the end of the 
Fund’s life the partners will be paid a return on their investment. 
 
 

Governance 
Q.  Are membership rights determined by the level of investment made by a 
local authority? 
A.  No.  The current proposals are for an equal partnership, subject to each partner 
meeting a minimum investment.  Any additional investment over this level will 
however attract a commensurate rate of return.   
 
Q.  What is the General Partner and what are the options for local authorities in 
its governance? 
A.  To retain their limited liability status, the Limited Partners cannot be involved in the 
day to day management and operation of the Fund.  The General Partner is therefore 
part of the governance arrangements to protect the interests of the local authorities.  

Agenda Item 7

Page 87



 
Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

Appendix B 
 

  

There are two main options for the local authority partners to consider in respect of 
the General Partner – the partners form a special purpose vehicle to act as the 
General Partner; or a General Manager is appointed to also be the Fund Manager.  
Both options ensure limited liability status is retained.  The distinction between them 
is differing levels of involvement in the management of the Fund.  Appointing a 
General Manager to act as a Fund Manager provides a more arms length 
arrangement for local authority partners regarding day to day operations, which could 
potentially make KMIF more attractive from a private sector investor perspective.  In 
practice the approach taken could embrace both options with a special purpose 
vehicle being created by the partners to act as General Managers in the early days of 
KMIF being established, and this role then transitioning to the Fund Manager at a 
later date.            
 
 

Investment & Return 
Q.  What level of investment will the local authority partners need to make? 
A.  Based on the experience of setting up the North West Evergreen Fund, the KMIF 
will need to be seeded with cash and assets totalling £20m to £30m in value from the 
local authority partners.  It is suggested that each partner authority will contribute 
around £2m in cash or equivalent assets to seed the fund.  The precise level of 
investment will be determined through the next stage of developing KMIF and is 
dependant upon the number of committed founding partners as well other potential 
investment such as the Kent Pension Fund.      
 
Q.  How will the local authorities raise the £2m? 
A.  It is for each local authority to decide how they contribute towards seeding the 
fund and whether this is through cash or equivalent value in assets.  Cash 
contributions are the most straightforward and tax efficient means of seeding the 
Fund.  The proposed KMIF model includes a LABV arm as a mechanism for utilising 
local authority assets within the Fund (as an alternative to cash) where there is a 
delivery strategy for these assets capable of providing a viable project.   
 
 
Q.  When will local authority partners need to commit their contribution to the 
Fund?  
A.   Commitments will need to be in place before the Fund is ready to be launched.  
Drawdown of funds will be phased as projects become ready for investment and are 
brought forward from the pipeline.   
     
Q.  What level of return can the local authority partners expect to achieve on 
their investment in the Fund? 
The level of return is dependant upon the risk profile the partners chose to invest in, 
as defined by the Investment Strategy.  It is also dependant upon the pipeline of 
projects coming forward and subsequent investment portfolio.  It is therefore difficult 
to predict the level of return expected this stage; however a higher risk strategy might 
deliver a 12% return before costs and a lower risk strategy deliver up to 8 % before 
costs.  The key added benefit is the delivery of regeneration outputs from this 
investment.   
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 88



 
Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

Appendix B 
 

  

 

Running Costs 
Q.  What are the ongoing running costs and how will these be met? 
A.  Running costs are estimated to be in the region of £500k p.a. based on 
Evergreen.  Once the Fund is fully operational these costs will be met through project 
fees and investment returns once they become available.  In the short term these 
costs would need to be met by the local authority partners.   
 
 

Project Pipeline 
Q.  What type of projects would the fund support? 
A.   It is proposed that KMIF will support both public and private sector led projects 
that are have difficulty in obtaining finance from traditional sources but are otherwise 
commercially viable (with KMIF investment) and which also deliver against 
regeneration targets.  The Investment Strategy, which defines investment priorities 
and guides the Fund Manager, is agreed by the KMIF partners.   
 
Q.  Who decides which project receive funding and in what order? 
A.   Investments are made by an independent Fund Manager in accordance with the 
Investment Strategy.  Only those projects supported by the local authority in which 
they fall will be considered for investment.  Projects that fulfil the investment criteria 
and are ready to be delivered will be supported first.  Where more than one project is 
‘investment ready’ the project scoring the highest against weighted investment criteria 
(and therefore offers greatest benefit to the Fund and the partners) will receive 
funding first.    
 
Q.  Can a member of the KMIF partnership specify which project its funding 
contribution is invested in? 
A.  No.  Partners investing at fund level commit to the Investment Strategy and the full 
investment portfolio.   
 
Q.  Is there scope to ring-fence investment to geographical areas? 
A.  Evergreen is made up of two pools – one specifically for Greater Manchester and 
one for Cheshire, Cumbria and Lancashire.  The potential for replicating this 
approach, based for example on an East / West split, could be explored further 
through the next stage of developing KMIF. 
 
Q.  What reassurances are there that projects will be funded in each of the local 
authority partners’ areas and when can they expect to see investments made? 
A.  Investments will be made according to the availability of suitable projects and the 
timing of investment is therefore dependant on the project pipeline.  The proposed 
KMIF model in its current format does not however undertake project development 
and delivery.  The founding partners will therefore need to consider whether they 
want to jointly fund a shared project development resource to provide additional 
capacity for the local authority partners to help bring forward viable projects.   
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 89



 
Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

Appendix B 
 

  

Q.  Will KMIF assist in indentifying development opportunities and developing 
project strategies? 
A.  No.  The model proposed is for an investment, not development, vehicle.  If a 
separate shared project development resource is established (or existing 
regeneration vehicles utilised) then it will undertake this role.      
 

Development & Set up of KMIF 
Q.  What is included in the next stage of work, how much will it cost and how 
long will it take?   
The next stage of work will focus on three key elements: the Investment Strategy; 
governance arrangements (including Vires and a review of legal issues); and the 
project pipeline.  It will flesh out the proposals and take KMIF forward to the point of 
being ready to launch.  It is expected to cost around £650,000.  Borough and District 
partners are being asked to contribute £25,000 each, with KCC to fund the remainder 
up to £500,000.  The development stage will take 9 – 12 months to complete.     
 
Q.  How will consultants be appointed to support the next stage of work? 
It is proposed that the next stage is openly procured as a single package.  Due to the 
value of the contract, it will be subject to OJEU.  The tender brief and specification will 
be developed by KCC Regeneration and Economy working with local authority 
partners.  Project governance arrangements will be established with partners to agree 
and oversee the procurement and delivery of this work.      
 
Q.  How is the Fund Manager appointed? 
A.  Procurement of the KMIF development will need to include specialist fund 
management advice.  This could be the same Fund Manager who will run the Fund 
on behalf of the KMIF partnership once it is established.  Alternatively, the Fund 
Manager that will take forward delivery of the KMIF could be procured separately at 
the Fund set up stage.  The approach to be taken will be agreed by the partners.   

Agenda Item 7

Page 90



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

 

By: Adele Harrison, Regeneration Manager, Kent County Council 
 
To: Kent Joint Chief Executives, 21st June 2011 

Subject: Kent & Medway Investment Fund 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

This report to Kent Joint Chief Executives provides a summary of the findings 
and key issues from a feasibility analysis undertaken to explore the potential for a 
Kent and Medway Investment Fund.  It outlines how the model could operate and 
is seeking the support of Medway and Kent District and Borough Councils to take 
forward the development and set up of the KMIF.  

 

1.  Recommendations 

It is recommended that Kent Joint Chief Executives agree to proceed with the 
next stage of work to develop and set up the Kent and Medway Investment Fund, 
accepting that: 

• Partners wishing to engage in the next stage jointly contribute the following 
amounts towards the development costs: KCC up to £500,000; Medway 
£50,000; Borough / District Councils £25,000, subject to each authority’s own 
internal approval processes.     

 

2.  Introduction  

The report is seeking Kent Joint Chief Executives’ ‘in principle’ support for the 
proposal to create a Kent and Medway Investment Fund and approval to proceed 
to the next stage of work focused on the development and set up of the Fund.   

CBRE has been appointed by KCC to develop proposals for a Kent and Medway 
Investment Fund.  An initial Scoping Paper was produced in February which 
introduced the concept of an Investment Fund based on experience of setting up 
an ‘Evergreen Fund’ in the North West.  A Feasibility Report has now been 
produced by CBRE setting out in more detail how a Kent and Medway 
Investment Fund could operate and is attached at Appendix 1.  This paper to 
Kent Joint Chief Executives highlights the key issues and considerations for local 

Agenda Item 7

Page 91



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

authority partners and sets out the next steps for taking forward the development 
and set up of a Kent and Medway Investment Fund 

Following circulation of the Scoping Paper, KCC and CBRE met with the Chief 
Executives of Medway and all Borough and District councils who expressed an 
initial interest.  The purpose of these meetings was to introduce the KMIF 
concept and explore the extent to which it could deliver against a range of 
aspirations.  The response from these meetings has been positive with ten of the 
twelve Districts indicating that they would like to be involved in working through 
the concept further.     

This feasibility stage is intended to outline an investment fund model for Kent and 
also identify, and make recommendations on, specific issues that will need to be 
addressed in setting up the Fund.  The next stage will be to establish formal 
project governance arrangements, involving Medway, Borough and District 
partners to take forward the development of the KMIF and agree the more 
detailed aspects of the structure and operation.       

Objectives  

3. The Kent and Medway Investment Fund aims to unlock regeneration and 
development by using local authority assets and funds to lever significant private 
sector investment. It will generate returns to be reinvested in a revolving fund in 
order to maximise benefits.   

The KMIF is underpinned by three key objectives: 

• To continue to deliver economic growth in a context of reduced central and 
local government funding streams; 

• To maximise value towards this from local authority owned assets and 
support the delivery of asset management strategies that assist regeneration.   

• To lever and unlock significant private sector investment across Kent.   
 
The primary purpose of KMIF is to enable regeneration through shared resource 
commitments.  It is not an asset management vehicle, nor is it focused on 
providing a source of income generation for the local authority partners.     
 
Rationale and Approach 
 
4. Finance markets have changed significantly in recent years with a severe 
contraction of bank lending following the global financial crisis.  This has had a 
direct impact on national and local property markets which in turn is constraining 
private sector led development.  KMIF will unlock development and optimise 
economic benefits by utilising local authority cash and assets to leverage private 
finance that would otherwise not be available.  It provides a direct response to 
current constraints on public sector funding and offers an alternative approach to 
traditional grant funding streams by maximising the efficient and effective use of 
local authority owned assets. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 92



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

KMIF will provide a commercial market return on investments and is not intended 
to provide gap funding.  It is therefore targeting projects that are marginal to the 
market – in other words, it does not supplant existing private finance but instead 
offers an alternative source of finance to enable projects to become viable.  It will 
provide finance for both public and private sector led projects that deliver against 
regeneration outputs.   
 
The model outlined in the Feasibility Report proposes the creation of a local 
authority led partnership that will pool cash and assets to create a Fund.  The 
partnership agrees an Investment Strategy that determines how the Fund will be 
invested, including output targets, level of risk, and rate of return on investment.  
Only projects that meet the criteria set out in the Investment Strategy will be 
supported by the Fund.  The partnership appoints an independent, professional 
Fund Manager to deliver the Investment Strategy.  Investments may be in the 
form of debt, equity or guarantee and returns will be recycled back into the Fund 
for reinvestment.  The model also makes provision for the local authority partners 
to achieve economies of scale and lever investment against pooled assets 
through a Local Asset Backed Vehicle established within the KMIF structure.  

KMIF will harness the benefits of scale that can be realised through local 
authorities working in partnership.  It is hoped that KMIF will be joined by most 
authorities within Kent to create a critical mass of projects and access to finance 
which makes it a size that becomes of interest to the private sector.  Based on 
the experience of setting up the North West Evergreen Fund, the KMIF will need 
to be seeded with cash and assets totalling £20m to £30m in value from the local 
authority partners.   

Key issues  

5.i Governance  

In order to remain attractive to the market it is important that the structure of 
KMIF is as simple and transparent as possible, whilst protecting the interests of 
the public sector partners.  The Feasibility Report recommends that the KMIF is 
established through a Limited Partnership as the simplest and most tax efficient 
structure that is also widely recognised by the market and would therefore be 
attractive to potential investors.  An analysis of the alternative options considered 
is provided within the Feasibility Report.   

In order to operate KMIF through a Limited Partnership structure (within which 
partners have limited liability) a General Partner (with unlimited liability) will also 
need to be established.  To retain their limited liability status, the Limited Partners 
cannot be involved in the day to day management and operation of the Fund, 
and this is delegated to the General Partner.  The Fund is then managed in 
accordance with the Investment Strategy defined by the local authority partners.   
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 93



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

There are two main options (within a LP structure) in respect of the General 
Partner arrangement: 
 

1. the partners form a special purpose vehicle to act as the General Partner.  
A separate Fund Manager is then appointed and managed by the General 
Partner.  This option offers the partners greater involvement in the 
operation of Fund by creating an additional layer of governance.  The 
General Partner can then determine the extent to which it delegates 
responsibilities to the Fund Manager.   

2. A General Partner is appointed by the Limited Partnership to also be the 
Fund Manager.  Although this is a more arms length option for the 
partners (as the partners would not be involved in the General Partner 
decision making), they retain control over the General Partner/ Fund 
Manager through the Partnership Agreement and Investment Strategy.  A 
review panel could be established to give the partners additional visibility 
over the performance of the General Partner.   

 
The founding partners will need to consider and agree the extent to which they 
want to be involved in the day to day management of the fund; balancing the 
need for appropriate scrutiny and control to protect their interest whilst ensuring 
structures do not become unnecessarily complex and remain attractive to the 
market.  In practice the approach could be a combination of the two options 
above. KMIF could initially be established with a SPV General Manager (option 
1) and then transition to option 2 at a later date.  This decision will need to be 
taken jointly with the local authority partners as part of the fund development 
stage.   
 
The objective is for all local authority participants to join KMIF at set up.  The 
more local authority partners involved at the outset then the greater the initial 
financial resource that the Fund can call upon.  Entry will be allowed at a later 
stage although penalties will need to apply to reflect: the initial setup costs; any 
increase in the value of the Fund; the reduced risk associated with late entry.  All 
partners will be required to invest a minimum sum to secure equal voting rights.  
Partners may choose to increase their investment either at Fund or project level 
and returns will be on a pro-rata basis.  Any additional investment will not impact 
on voting rights, which remain equal.   
 
 
5.ii Seeding the fund 
In order to make finance available for projects, the Fund must be seeded with a 
mix of local authority cash and assets.  It is not, however, intended to be a 
vehicle for holding local authority owned assets and partners will need to be 
selective in identifying the most appropriate assets to invest in the Fund.  The 
Fund will complement existing local authority asset management strategies by 
providing a mechanism for extracting value from key sites/ premises at Fund 
level (through a Local Asset Backed Vehicle) as well as making funding available 
for development projects.      
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 94



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

Although some local authorities have been successful in establishing Local Asset 
Backed Vehicles (LABVs), there may be insufficient scale in many areas for each 
District to take this approach individually.  Moreover, the KMIF structure builds 
upon the LABV arrangement by being capable of leveraging a much broader mix 
of institutional finance at the Fund and project levels.  
 
5iii Project Pipeline 
In developing proposals for the KMIF an initial potential project list has been 
drawn up.  These are exclusively public sector led projects.  Private sector led 
projects will equally be eligible to access the Fund providing they fulfil the 
investment criteria.  Further projects will be identified through an open call.   
 
Although several projects have been identified for investment by the Fund, 
development of the project pipeline will be a key element of the next stage of 
work.  The level of return achieved by the Fund is dependent upon the quality 
and spread of the investment portfolio and therefore the range of projects coming 
forward.  The Feasibility Report highlights the need for appropriate capacity to 
support and develop pipeline projects to ensure they are investment-ready.  Each 
partner authority will be able to promote or ‘sponsor’ projects for inclusion in the 
Fund pipeline, however whether they also retain individual responsibility for 
project development or whether this is resourced collectively will need to be 
determined at the next stage of work.    
  
 
5.iv Regional Growth Fund  
A programme based bid to the Regional Growth Fund (RGF), Round 2 is 
currently being prepared for the KMIF.  An Expression of Interest has been 
submitted and the full bid will need to be prepared by the end of June.  If 
successful, RGF funds will be used to complement KMIF investment and bring 
forward additional projects that otherwise would not meet KMIF criteria.  The 
KMIF can only invest in commercially viable projects.  RGF will therefore be used 
to bridge any viability gap enabling projects to access KMIF.    
 
Due to the RGF qualifying criteria it will not be possible to bid for additional funds 
to be used Kent wide.  Instead, the RGF funding will be geographically targeted 
towards those Districts with lower employment levels and higher dependency on 
public sector employment.  Typically projects in these areas are often less likely 
to be economically viable for KMIF support without additional funding due to the 
nature of the property markets.  RGF will therefore augment KMIF and help 
balance the portfolio of investment in regeneration across Kent.   
 
It is important to recognise that the prospect of a successful bid for KMIF may 
however be limited.  RGF is a highly competitive process with criteria which 
clearly favours northern regions with greater employment dependency on the 
public sector.  This is evidenced from the experience of Round 1 and the fact that 
only one bid was awarded in the South East.  Although RGF would increase the 
investment capacity of KMIF, the proposed model is not dependant on RGF.   
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 95



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

Financial Implications 

6 If there is commitment to take forward the KMIF there are three funding 
streams required to develop and implement KMIF with financial implications for 
local authority partners: 

i.  KMIF development costs (including setting up the governance structure) 

ii.  Seeding the Fund 

iii.  Running costs 

i. KMIF Development Costs 
Funding will be required to take forward the development and set up of the KMIF 
at a cost of around £650,000.  It is proposed that the Borough and District 
partners are asked to contribute £25,000 each towards these costs, Medway 
contribute £50,000 and KCC fund the remainder, up to £500,000.  Contributions 
will be subject to partners’ internal approval processes.    

ii. Local Authority contribution to Seeding the Fund 
KCC will need to determine how it will make its contribution to seeding the fund 
based on its availability of cash and appropriate assets.  Local authority partners 
can either commit assets as a contribution to seeding the Fund or derive the 
value themselves and release cash to the Fund.  The latter is more tax efficient 
and allows authorities to retain control of their assets.  It is expected that local 
authority partners’ investment in the Fund will be informed by existing asset 
management and collaboration strategies. 

The financial commitment to seeding the Fund will not need to be made until the 
Fund is ready to be established, following further development work at the next 
stage.  The level of investment required will be dependant upon the number of 
local authority partners.  Assuming a minimum of ten partners commit to setting 
up the Fund it is anticipated that each partner will be asked to make a 
contribution in the region of £2m - £3m.  Although the financial commitments will 
need to be in place, funds will only be drawn down from the partners to the Fund 
as projects are brought forward for investment.  

It is intended that in order to maximise the value and return on the Fund there will 
be a financial lock in period for the lifetime of the Fund, expected to be for a 10 
year period.  The founding partners may want to consider making provision for 
dividend payouts, subject to the performance of the Fund.  At this stage it is not 
possible to estimate the level of return that could be achieved by the Fund.  The 
return is entirely dependent on the risk profile partners choose to invest in which 
will be defined in the Investment Strategy.  It is also subject to the development 
of the pipeline and timing of investments.  There are no benchmarks available 
from the North West Evergreen Fund as this has only recently been established.     

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 96



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

iii.  Running Costs 
 
Running costs, based on the North West Evergreen Fund, will be in the region of 
£500,000 per annum including legal fees, administration and fund management 
costs.  This figure could vary depending on the precise structure and approach 
adopted in Kent.  It could also be considerably less in the initial years as the 
Fund Manager costs could be charged as a percentage of the value of the Fund.  
These costs could be met from a combinations of sources: contributions from 
partners; fees charged to the projects (through the loan); and returns to the fund 
(once these become available).   

Legal Implications 

7. Pinsent Masons were appointed by KCC to work alongside CBRE and 
provide legal advice on the emerging proposals, with a specific focus on the 
Fund governance structure, Vires and State Aid implications.  A full analysis of 
these issues is provided in the appended report.  

7.i Vires 
The legal analysis concludes that Well-Being Powers under the Local 
Government Act allow local authority partners to establish and participate in the 
proposed KMIF based on the current model and concept.  Well Being Powers 
apply providing the primary purpose of the fund is to deliver regeneration 
outcomes and not to raise money (except possibly as a beneficial side effect).  
These powers will be replaced by a general power of competence under the 
Localism Bill, which is expected to be enacted in late autumn, and which may 
serve to limit tax exemptions currently in place.  The provisions currently 
proposed under the Localism Bill will require authorities to trade through a 
company structure, ruling out the use of a Limited Partnership for the purpose of 
the KMIF.  Tax exemptions under the LP structure will no longer be available, 
therefore increasing the operating costs of the KMIF and impacting on its 
financial viability.   In order to guard against this and create flexibility for the 
future operation of the KMIF, it is possible to create a shell KMIF partnership by 
October in advance of the Localism Bill.   

7.ii State Aid 

KMIF is based on the principle that it will invest according to market rates and 
therefore will not contravene state aid rules.  There may be circumstances where 
it would be beneficial to invest on less commercial terms to achieve regeneration 
outcomes and this will be possible in geographic areas where exemptions apply 
(specifically the East Kent Assisted Area) 

Agenda Item 7

Page 97



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

Next steps , Phasing & Procurement 
 
8. The feasibility stage of work has focused on the fund concept, how it could 
operate and the key decisions that will need to be made in setting up the KMIF.  
This report asks Chief Executives whether they support the concept in principle 
and whether they want to jointly take forward the development and set up of 
KMIF.  Providing sufficient Districts signal an interest, they will be asked to 
contribute to the financial cost of the next stage of work (as outlined under 
section 4).   
 
The next stage will comprise three main work streams:  

• Development of the Investment Strategy 

• Development of the Project Pipeline 

• Development of the Governance Structure 
 
Due to the inter-dependencies between the different elements and to also 
achieve better value for money, it is proposed that the KMIF development stage 
will therefore be openly procured as a single package.  Breakpoints will be built 
into the work programme around key decision gateways in order to manage the 
potential risk and exposure to KCC and partners.  It is important to note that 
CBRE and Pinsent Masons are not advising on the specification for this second 
stage of work to prevent a conflict of interest arising should they wish to submit a 
tender.  The tender brief and specification will be developed by KCC 
Regeneration and Economy working with the local authority partners.  The local 
authority partners jointly taking forward this next stage of work will collectively 
agree the procurement process, specification and phasing of work.    
 
An indicative timetable is attached at Appendix 2.  This is intended to outline the 
principle work-streams for the next stage of work.  This will be developed in more 
detail following the appointment of consultancy support.  
 
Procurement of the KMIF development will need to include specialist fund 
management advice.  This could possibly be the same Fund Manager who will 
run the Fund on behalf of the KMIF partnership once it is established.  This single 
appointment would ensure continuity of advice from development stage through 
to implementation and the partners could still retain the right not to proceed with 
the Fund by inserting an appropriate breakpoint after the development stage.  
Alternatively, the Fund Manager that will take forward delivery of the KMIF could 
be procured separately at the Fund set up stage.  The appointment of the Fund 
Manager in both scenarios could be limited to an initial two year fixed period to 
allow partners to retain flexibility while the Fund is being established.  The 
partners will in any case have the power to remove the Fund Manager in the 
event that performance targets are not achieved.   
 
Based on the experience and timescales for setting up the North West Evergreen 
Fund, it is anticipated that the development stage will take a minimum of nine 
months to complete.  An interim project governance structure, involving the 
District partners interested in taking forward the Fund, will be established to 
oversee the procurement and delivery of the development stage.  This 

Agenda Item 7

Page 98



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

governance structure will comprise a Steering Group (with senior representation) 
to oversee strategic decisions, and a Working Group reporting into it.  A key 
output from the development stage could be the creation of a shell Limited 
Partnership by October in anticipation of the Localism Bill (as noted in section 7) 
and to ensure flexibility is retained in determining the most appropriate delivery 
structures.    
   

Consultation and Communication 

9. KCC Regeneration and Economy has led the development of KMIF 
proposals but has been supported by a working group involving representation 
from SEEDA, Medway and KCC cross directorate expertise from Legal, Finance 
and Property.  Meetings have also been held with ten Districts who expressed an 
interest in the KMIF concept to explore how the proposed model could deliver 
against their aspirations.    

KCC colleagues in Legal , Finance and Property have provided some initial 
comments on the Feasibility Report and raised a number of points that will need 
to be addressed during the next stage of work.  These comments are listed in the 
table below and are intended to provide an indication of some of the issues and 
the relevant work stream.  This list is by no means exhaustive and it is expected 
that local authority partners will have other concerns that need to be addressed 
through the development work.  An outline timetable for progressing the work-
streams is attached at appendix 2. 

 Issue Stage / work-stream at 
which it will be 
addressed 

Governance Voting and control 
rights.  Mechanisms to 
prevent viable proposals 
from being blocked 

Legal review 

Investment Strategy  

 Level of control afforded 
by the General Partner.  
Whether it is more 
difficult to remove the 
Fund Manager if they 
are also the General 
Partner.   

Legal review 

Outcomes How market return is 
balanced against 
regeneration priorities 

Investment Strategy  

Agenda Item 7

Page 99



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

 

Procurement  Whether Fund Manager 
is procured at Fund 
development stage or 
whether FM is 
appointed after 
Investment Strategy is 
written and fund is ready 
to be implemented 

Establish interim 
governance and procure 
advisors.   

Seeding the Fund Approach and basis for 
valuing assets. 

Agree partner 
contributions 

Financial Implications How the annual running 
costs will be met.   

Legal review and 
governance 

 Financial modelling to 
determine anticipated 
level of return and 
sensitivity analysis 

Financial modelling 

Project Pipeline Process for identifying 
new projects and private 
sector input 

Call for projects 

Discussions with SEEDA and HCA are ongoing regarding the future of the Kent 
and Medway portfolio of assets and liabilities.  At this stage it is anticipated that 
the proposed HCA Stewardship arrangements and KMIF could operate in 
parallel, with KMIF providing the finance for projects brought forward under the 
Stewardship portfolio.   

Initial soft market testing suggests there is private sector interest for KMIF.  
Skanska, Denne and Aviva have all expressed an interest and invited further 
discussions.  The Kent Pension Fund has also indicated that they could be willing 
to invest between £10m - £20m and has requested that the proposals be 
presented to the Superannuation Fund Committee.   

It is accepted that any commitment to the development of KMIF by local authority 
partners may need to go through internal sign off arrangements.  The Kent Joint 
Chief Executives may want to advise whether they would like the Feasibility 
Report, findings and recommendations to be presented to Kent Forum. 

Risk Management 

10. In committing to the next stage of developing the KMIF, local authority 
partners are making financial commitments towards the cost of this work (as 
outlined in section 6).  These would be abortive costs if it was decided not to 
proceed with the set up stage.   

It is important to note that agreement to proceed with the development and set 
up stage does not equate to a ten year financial commitment to the KMIF.  The 
precise level of investment required from each partner to seed the fund will need 
to be determined through the next stage of work.   

Agenda Item 7

Page 100



Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 
 

Item No. 7 - Appendix C 
 

 

 
The limited partnership structure ensures that the risk to the local authorities is 
limited to their investment as KMIF would not in itself be raising debt.  The 
proposals make provision for partners to exit from KMIF providing they sell their 
stake (which admittedly may not be easy in the early years).  All partners can 
collectively agree to close KMIF at any time.   
 
There is potential risk that the proposed call for projects could raise expectation 
and this would need to be carefully managed in terms of how this was presented 
to the market.   

Conclusion 

11. The KMIF concept offers an innovative alternative to delivering strategic 
and large scale regeneration in a way that is attractive to the market and capable 
of levering significant investment.  It complements and builds upon existing local 
authority asset management strategies.  It provides a means of unlocking 
development and delivering against regeneration targets against a backdrop of 
reduced public sector spending.   

The Feasibility Report outlines how the KMIF could operate and identifies the 
specific issues that will need to be agreed by partners in order for it to be set up.  
The Kent Joint Chief Executives are asked whether they are supportive of taking 
forward the fund concept.  Providing there is sufficient support, a project 
governance structure will then be established along with a project budget to 
progress the development and set up stage.   

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 P
A

G
E

 
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
1

1
2
4

/1
0

/2
0
1

1

B
u

d
g

e
t 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 S
h

e
e

ts
 f

o
r 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

1

C
o

n
te

n
ts

1
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ri
e
s
 

2
O

v
e
ra

ll 
S

u
m

m
a
ry

 

3
O

v
e
ra

ll 
S

u
m

m
a
ry

 b
y
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

4
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 S

a
la

ry
 M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

5
D

ir
e

c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

ra
d

in
g

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

6
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

In
c
o
m

e

7
S

ta
ff

in
g

 S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s

8
R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

9
C

a
p

it
a
l

1
0

In
c
o
m

e
 G

ra
p
h
s

Agenda Item 8

Page 103



IT
E

M
 1

(1
)

B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

-
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 -
 A

s
 a

t 
3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

O
v

e
ra

ll
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
P

o
s
it

io
n

1
.

S
ix

 m
o

n
th

s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

 s
h

o
w

 a
n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
fa

v
o
u
ra

b
le

 v
a
ri
a
n

ce
 o

f 
£
3

1
,0

0
0
, 

a
 r

e
d
u

ct
io

n
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

. 

2
.

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 i
s
 f
o

re
c
a
s
t 
to

 b
e
 £

6
0
,0

0
0
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
t;
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e

 p
re

vi
o
u

s 
m

o
n
th

. 

K
e
y
 I

s
s

u
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a

r 
to

 d
a
te

3
.

In
c
o

m
e

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
c
o

m
e
 i
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d
 i
s
 f
o
re

c
a

s
t 
to

 b
e

 b
e
tt
e

r 
th

a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r-
e
n
d

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

lig
h
tl
y 

h
ig

h
e
r 

ra
te

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
, 

a
n
d
 a

 f
a

v
o
u
ra

b
le

 f
o

re
c
a
s
t 

is
 s

h
o
w

n
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 
p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

4
.

L
o
o

ki
n
g
 a

t 
th

e
 o

th
e
r 

m
a

in
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
, 
th

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 d

if
fi
cu

lt
. 

C
a
r 

P
a

rk
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 h

a
s 

c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 i
ts

 t
re

n
d
 o

f 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 

v
a
ri

a
n

ce
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 s
h
o

w
in

g
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 v

a
ri

a
n

ce
. 
B

u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l,
 L

a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
, 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d

 O
n
-s

tr
e
e
t 
P

a
rk

in
g
 

c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 s

h
o
w

 a
d
v
e
rs

e
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s.

5
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

h
e
a

d
 o

f 
p

ro
fi
le

, 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 f

a
v
o
u

ra
b
le

 v
a

ri
a
n

c
e
 a

t 
p
re

s
e

n
t,

 b
u
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e
 

a
n
y 

im
p
a

c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a

r-
e
n

d
 r

e
su

lt
s
. 

6
.

P
a
y
 c

o
s

ts
 t
h
e
 f
a

vo
u
ra

b
le

 t
re

n
d

 h
a

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 i
s
 n

o
w

 £
1
9
1
,0

0
0
. 

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 

s
h
o

w
in

g
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

u
n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d
; 

in
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 t
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 o

ff
s
e
t 

b
y 

a
g

e
n

c
y 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

, 
b
u
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

fa
v
o
u

ra
b

le
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e
s
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 
fo

r 
ye

a
r-

e
n

d
. 

 

7
.

O
th

e
r 

6
6
,0

0
0
, 
d

u
e

 t
o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

u
e

l 
a

n
d

 w
a
s
te

 d
is

p
o

sa
l 
c
o

s
ts

. 
  

Y
e
a

r 
E

n
d

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

8
.

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e

vi
e
w

 b
y 

H
e
a
d

s
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
, 
th

e
 y

e
a

r-
e

n
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 i
s
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

to
 b

e
 £

6
0

,0
0

0
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 b
u

d
g
e
t,
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 

w
h

e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

m
o
n
th

. 
A

d
v
e
rs

e
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 f
o
re

c
a

s
t 
to

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 f

a
c
t 
th

a
t 

s
o

m
e

 s
a
v
in

g
s 

fr
o
m

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
re

 n
o
t 
e

xp
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u

ll 
ye

a
r 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

va
ri

a
b

le
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 B

u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n

tr
o
l 
a
n
d
 O

n
-s

tr
e
e
t 

p
a
rk

in
g
. 

F
a
v
o
u
ra

b
le

 v
a

ri
a
n

c
e

s 
h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

fo
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

s
o
m

e
 s

a
la

ry
 b

u
d

g
e
ts

. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 104



IT
E

M
 1

(2
)

R
is

k
 a

re
a
s

9
.

p
ro

p
e

rt
y 

re
la

te
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l,
 B

u
ild

in
g

 C
o
n
tr

o
l,
 L

a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

a
p
it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

 r
e
m

a
in

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
a

n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 s
tr

u
g
g

lin
g
 ;

 

th
e
 B

e
n
e

fi
ts

 w
o

rk
lo

a
d
 i
s 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
in

g
 a

t 
a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
th

a
n
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e

 r
e

c
e

s
s
io

n
 (

3
0
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 w

o
rk

 v
o
lu

m
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 M

a
y 

a
n
d
 

A
u

g
u
s
t)

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 h

a
vi

n
g
 a

n
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 (

th
o

u
g

h
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

);
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

T
a

x 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
, 
th

o
u
g
h
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r,

 c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

s
q
u

e
e
z
e
d

 h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
; 
a
n

d

d
ie

s
e
l 
p
ri

c
e

s 
c
o

n
ti
n
u
e
 a

t 
a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n

d
 t

h
e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

s
e
e

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
ye

a
r 

is
 c

o
n

ti
n
u
in

g
. 

1
0
.S

ta
ff

 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

re
m

a
in

s
 r

e
la

ti
ve

ly
 l
o

w
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 b
u
t 

p
u
ts

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 t

h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 y

e
a

rs
. 

C
o
n

v
e

rs
e

ly
, 

in
 s

o
m

e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
a
re

a
s
, 
e

xp
e
ri

e
n
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

 a
re

 p
ro

v
in

g
 d

if
fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 a

n
d

 s
o
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

 
a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
. 

W
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

o
o

l 
o
f 

tr
a

in
e
d
 s

ta
ff
. 

1
1
.P

la
n

n
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y 

fr
o

m
 n

e
w

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
, 
re

m
a
in

 r
is

k
 a

re
a
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e
a

rs
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 o

n
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 n

o
te

, 
th

e
 B

u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n

tr
o
l 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r 
p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h
 T

o
n
b

ri
d
g

e
 a

n
d

 M
a
lli

n
g
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 

n
o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s 

c
a

s
e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 E
n

v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 D

a
rt

fo
rd

 B
o

ro
u

g
h
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h
 

th
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

a
p
p

ro
v
a
l 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
 a

t 
b
o
th

 c
o

u
n
c
ils

. 

C
o
n
ta

c
ts

:

P
a
v
 R

a
m

e
w

a
l

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

e
xt

 7
2
9

8
T

ri
c
ia

 M
a
rs

h
a
ll

H
e
a
d

 o
f 
F

in
a
n

ce
 a

n
d
 H

R
e

xt
 7

2
0

5
A

d
ri

a
n
 R

o
w

b
o
th

a
m

F
in

a
n

c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e
r

e
xt

 7
1
5

3

Agenda Item 8

Page 105



IT
E

M
 1

(3
)

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

S
e

rv
ic

e
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

d
a

te

 (
M

in
us

 is
 b

ad
 

ne
w

s)
 

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

£
0

0
0

E
xp

la
n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

)

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s

6
1

5
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

fr
o
m

 s
a

le
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 h
e
a

lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
to

 o
th

e
r 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
.

S
T

A
G

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

A
rt

s
 C

e
n
tr

e
2

5
In

v
o

ic
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 S

ta
g

 f
o

r 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

e
n

d
in

g
 3

0
th
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

n
o
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
3

rd
 O

c
to

b
e

r.
  

T
o

u
ri

s
m

1
3

In
v
o

ic
e
 f

o
r 

T
o

u
ri

s
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

w
a

it
e
d

.

P
a

rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 
C

h
ild

 (
E

xt
 

F
u

n
d

e
d
)

1
4

E
xt

e
rn

a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 r
e
c
e

iv
e
d

 i
n
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e
. 

W
ill

 b
e
 z

e
ro

 a
t 

y
e

a
r 

e
n
d

.

P
a

rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 
H

o
m

e
 O

ff
ic

e
 (

E
xt

 
F

u
n
d

e
d
)

4
3

E
xt

e
rn

a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o
r 

w
h
o
le

 y
e

a
r 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e

. 
W

ill
 b

e
 z

e
ro

 a
t 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
.

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

S
a

la
ri
e

s
 

 E
xt

 
F

u
n
d

e
d

-1
1

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 w

ill
 o

ff
s
e

t 
th

is
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
e

xt
e

rn
a
ll
y
 f

u
n
d
e

d
 e

xp
e

n
d

it
u
re

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 z
e

ro
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d
.

C
a
p

it
a

l 
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
a

rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

-1
0

T
h
is

 r
e

la
te

s
 t

o
 e

xt
e

rn
a
lly

 f
u
n

d
e
d

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 b
id

 f
o

r 
d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

to
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

is
 n

il 
a
t 

y
e

a
r 

e
n
d
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 f

u
n
d

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr

e
a

d
y
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

b
u
t 

a
re

 h
e
ld

 i
n
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

C
a
p

it
a

l 
 P

a
ri

s
h
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

2
8

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
, 

th
e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 v

ill
a

g
e
 h

a
ll 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
ill

 p
o

s
s
ib

ly
 c

o
m

e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 d
u
ri

n
g

 t
h

is
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
ye

a
r 

to
ta

lli
n

g
 u

p
 t

o
 £

2
0
K

.

F
u

tu
re

 I
s
s
u

e
s
/R

is
k
 A

re
a

s

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
  

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 106



IT
E

M
 1

(4
)

D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

1
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

S
e

rv
ic

e
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

d
a

te

 (
M

in
us

 is
 b

ad
 

ne
w

s)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

£
0

0
0

E
xp

la
n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

)

L
o

c
a
l 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

4
0

5
T

h
e

 v
a
ri

a
n
c
e

 i
s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 d
u
e

 t
o

 a
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
in

 t
h
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
o

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
b

o
d

ie
s
 f

o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

to
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n
t 

re
q

u
e

st
s 

th
is

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
 v

a
ri

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
a

la
ri
e

s
 

b
u
d

g
e

t 
d

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

la
y
 i
n
 f

ill
in

g
 a

 v
a

c
a

n
t 

p
o

s
t.

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

 D
e

v
. 

C
o
n
tr

o
l

2
0

3
S

e
v
e
ra

l 
s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

e
d

 r
e

d
u
c
e
d

 h
o

u
rs

. 
V

a
c
a

n
c
y
 n

o
t 

fi
lle

d
 a

t 
s
ta

rt
 o

f 
y
e

a
r.

  
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 F

e
e

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
b

u
t 

S
1
0

6
 a

n
d

 p
re

-a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

in
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
 a

t 
p
re

s
e

n
t.

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

S
a

la
ri
e

s
5

5
5

8
S

e
v
e
ra

l 
s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

e
d

 r
e

d
u
c
e
d

 h
o

u
rs

. 
V

a
c
a

n
c
y
 n

o
t 

fi
lle

d
 a

t 
s
ta

rt
 o

f 
y
e

a
r.

V
a

ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 d
u
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 t
ri

a
l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

p
o

s
t.

F
u

tu
re

 I
s
s
u

e
s
/R

is
k
 A

re
a

s

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
  

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 107



IT
E

M
 1

(5
)

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
&

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
1
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

S
e

rv
ic

e
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

d
a

te

 (
M

in
us

 is
 b

ad
 

ne
w

s)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

£
0

0
0

E
xp

la
n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

)

B
u
ild

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l

-5
0

-4
1

In
c
o
m

e
 £

4
5

,0
0

0
 b

e
lo

w
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
fi
le

 f
o

r 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 w

o
rk

. 
F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

to
ta

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

£
4

3
0
,0

0
0
 a

g
a

in
st

 
a

n
 i
n
c
o

m
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
o
f 

£
4

8
0
,0

0
0

.

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 £

3
0
,0

0
0
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 s

tr
u
c
tu

ra
l 
c
h
e
c
k
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t.

B
u
d

g
e

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

s 
in

c
o

m
e

 o
f 

£
3
4

,0
0

0
 f

o
r 

s
h
a

ri
n
g

 B
u

ild
in

g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r 
w

it
h
 T

o
n

b
ri
d

g
e
 a

n
d
 M

a
lli

n
g

 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

o
n
 a

 5
0

:5
0
 b

a
s
is

. 
T

h
is

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

e
n
c
e

d
 o

n
 3

rd
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
1

, 
(£

2
1

,0
0
0

 
s
h
o

rt
fa

ll)
.

C
C

T
V

-1
3

-3
0

B
u
d

g
e

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 £

4
8
,0

0
0

 u
n
id

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 K

e
n
t 

P
o

lic
e

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

. 
S

a
v
in

g
s 

o
n
 t

ra
n

s
m

is
s
io

n
 c

o
s
ts

.

C
le

a
n
 A

ir
1

8
£

2
0

,0
0

0
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

 o
f 

C
o

n
s
u
lt
a

n
ts

 p
ro

fi
le

d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 s

p
e

n
t,

 b
u
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 s

p
e

n
t 

la
te

r 
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a

r.
  

O
n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
-5

2
-2

5
In

c
o
m

e
 £

2
2

,0
0

0
 b

e
lo

w
 p

ro
fi
le

 d
u
e

 m
a

in
ly

 t
o
 d

a
y 

ti
c
k
e

ts
 a

n
d

 p
e

n
a

lt
y
 c

h
a

rg
e

 n
o

ti
c
e

s.

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 

P
a

rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 H
u
b

 
(T

ra
d

in
g

)

1
2

P
o

s
it
io

n
 s

h
o
w

n
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
ly

. 
A

n
y
 y

e
a
r-

e
n

d
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 b
y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 R

e
g

im
e

-2
3

-3
0

B
u
d

g
e

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 £

3
0
,0

0
0

 (
p

ro
fi
le

 £
1

5
,0

0
0

) 
fo

r 
b

ri
n
g

in
g

 t
w

o
 n

e
w

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 L

ic
e

n
s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

n
e
w

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 n
o
t 

y
e
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

.

P
a

rk
s 

&
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

-2
1

-2
0

B
u
d

g
e

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
£

2
0
,0

0
0
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 H

o
lly

b
u

s
h
 B

o
w

ls
 C

lu
b
 f

o
r 

re
n
t 

to
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

a
c
tu

a
l 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 B

o
w

ls
 G

re
e

n
, 

(o
r 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

th
e

 G
re

e
n
 w

it
h
 f

u
ll 

m
a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 l
ia

b
ili

ty
).

 N
e

g
o
ti
a

ti
o

n
s 

u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
a
g

re
e
d

, 
in

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
, 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

to
 t

a
k
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

u
n
ti
l 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

2
. 

 

O
th

e
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 o
ff

s
e

t 
b
y
 s

a
vi

n
g

s
 o

n
 E

s
ta

te
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

G
ro

u
n

d
s 

a
n

d
 P

a
rk

s 
R

u
ra

l 
b

u
d

g
e
ts

.

P
a

rk
s 

 R
u
ra

l
1

8
2

0
S

m
a

ll 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

ve
r 

a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
b
u
d

g
e

t 
h
e

a
d

in
g

s
. 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

-3
1

-7
0

B
u
d

g
e

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 £

1
0
0

,0
0

0
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
h
a

re
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 D

a
rt

fo
rd

 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n

c
il,

 (
£

8
,3

3
3

/m
o

n
th

).
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 a

c
h
ie

ve
d

 u
n
ti
l 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

2
. 
S

o
m

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

b
y
 n

o
t 

fi
lli

n
g

 
v
a
c
a

n
t 

p
o

s
ts

 p
e

n
d

in
g

 s
h
a

re
d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

 £
1
3

,6
0

0
 i
n
c
o

m
e
 i
s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 D

a
rt

fo
rd

 B
o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

S
h
a

re
d
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

  

R
e
fu

s
e

 C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
3

2
3

0
In

c
o
m

e
 a

b
o

v
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 f
o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

re
d

it
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

fo
u
rt

h
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
in

 2
0

1
0
/1

1
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
re

 n
o
t 

b
o
o

k
e

d
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 o
ld

 y
e

a
r,

 (
a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
o

m
e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 b

o
o

k
e
d

 b
a

c
k
).

 
F

ir
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n
c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 n

o
w

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
.

Agenda Item 8

Page 108



IT
E

M
 1

(6
)

S
e

rv
ic

e
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

d
a

te

 (
M

in
us

 is
 b

ad
 

ne
w

s)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

£
0

0
0

E
xp

la
n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

)

S
tr

e
e

t 
N

a
m

in
g

6
1

0
In

c
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

c
h
a

rg
in

g
 e

x
c
e
e

d
in

g
 b

u
d
g

e
ts

.

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 
 D

ir
e

c
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
5

S
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
p

ri
n
ti
n
g

 a
n
d
 m

o
b
ile

 p
h

o
n
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

ve
s
ti
g
a

te
d
. 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

, 
b

u
t 

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 n

e
e

d
 

to
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

d
ri

ve
r 

a
n

d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 t
ra

in
in

g
.

T
a

xi
s

1
6

In
c
o
m

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 p

ro
fi
le

 d
u
e

 t
o

 d
ri

v
e

r 
lic

e
n

c
e
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 s

p
re

a
d
 o

v
e

r 
th

re
e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a

rs
.

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

S
a

la
ri
e

s
 

O
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

4
1

S
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 D

ir
e

c
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

sa
la

ri
e

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n
 t

ra
d

in
g

 a
c
c
o

u
n
ts

, 
o

ff
s
e

t 
b

y
 e

xp
e

n
d

it
u
re

 o
n
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 
m

a
in

ta
in

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
.

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

S
a

la
ri
e

s
 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

1
6

3
0

S
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 s

a
la

ri
e

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d

g
e

ts
.

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

S
a

la
ri
e

s
 

P
a

rk
in

g
 &

 
A

m
e

n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

1
6

2
5

O
n
e
 C

iv
il 

E
n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
p

o
s
t 

n
o
t 

fi
lle

d
 a

n
d

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
le

te
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t.

 R
e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

u
d
g

e
ts

 f
o

r 
c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

n
-s

tr
e

e
t 

p
a
rk

in
g

.

C
a
p

it
a

l 
P

la
y
g

ro
u

n
d
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n
ts

1
9

W
o
rk

 o
n
 p

la
y
g
ro

u
n
d

 i
n
 E

d
e

n
b
ri

d
g

e
, 

c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e

xt
e

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 n

o
w

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
, 

to
 m

a
tc

h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 O

rd
e
r 

n
o

w
 p

la
c
e

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
s 

to
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

.

C
a
p

it
a

l 
 V

e
h
ic

le
 

P
u
rc

h
a

s
e

s
2
7

0
D

e
la

y
s 

o
n
 n

e
w

 v
e

h
ic

le
 d

e
liv

e
ri

e
s
. 

V
e

h
ic

le
 r

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 o

ve
ra

ll 
b

u
d

g
e

t.
  

A
n
y
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

u
n

d
e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 r

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

fu
n
d

.

D
ir
e

c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

T
ra

d
in

g
 A

c
c
o

u
n
ts

-6
5

-2
3

S
u
rp

lu
s
 a

t 
e

n
d

 o
f 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

is
 £

5
1
,0

0
0
 a

g
a

in
st

 p
ro

fi
le

d
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 o

f 
£
1

1
7
,0

0
0
. 

D
ie

s
e

l 
c
o

s
ts

 £
1
7

,0
0
0

 o
v
e
r 

b
u
d

g
e

t.
 L

a
te

s
t 

d
ie

s
e

l 
c
o

s
t 

a
t 

£
1

.1
2
 p

e
r 

lit
re

. 
H

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 b

u
d
g

e
te

d
 c

o
s
t 

fo
r 

d
is

p
o

sa
l 
o
f 

tr
a

d
e
 w

a
s
te

 a
n

d
 

c
e
s
s
p

o
o

ls
.

F
u

tu
re

 I
s
s
u

e
s
/R

is
k
 A

re
a

s

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
&

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

  
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 109



IT
E

M
 1

(7
)

F
in

a
n

c
e
 &

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e
s

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
1
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

S
e

rv
ic

e
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

d
a

te

 (
M

in
us

 is
 b

ad
 

ne
w

s)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

£
0

0
0

E
xp

la
n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

)

A
M

F
 A

rg
y
le

 R
o

a
d

1
1

T
im

in
g

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e

 o
n

ly
, 

n
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

n
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

. 

A
M

F
 L

e
is

u
re

-2
4

T
im

in
g

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e

 o
n

ly
, 

n
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

n
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.

A
M

F
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 &
 

S
a

la
ri
e

s
1

0
U

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 I

T
 c

o
s
ts

. 
In

v
e

st
ig

a
ti
n

g
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

p
ro

fi
le

 i
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t.

 

D
a
rt

fo
rd

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 H
u
b

 
(S

D
C

 C
o

st
s
)

-4
1

A
ll 

c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s,

 B
e

n
e
fi
ts

, 
A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 F

ra
u
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 D

a
rt

fo
rd

 B
C

 n
o

w
 s

h
o

w
n
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r.

 
E

xp
e

n
d

it
u
re

 a
c
ro

s
s
 b

o
th

 a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 a
n
d
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 d
u
e

 f
ro

m
 D

B
C

 
c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

. 
 

E
s
ta

te
s 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

B
u
ild

in
g

s

-1
7

T
im

in
g

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e

 o
n

ly
, 

n
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

n
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.

M
a
rk

e
ts

4
0

8
5

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
, 

re
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t.

M
e
m

b
e
rs

1
0

1
0

d
e

d
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 

R
e
v
e

n
u
e

s
 &

 
B

e
n
e

fi
ts

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

-1
8

5
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

th
a

t 
a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 s

h
a

re
d
 5

0
:5

0
 w

it
h
 D

B
C

 a
n
d

 f
u

n
d

e
d
 f

ro
m

 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
.

A
d
m

in
 E

xp
e

n
s
e

s
 

 F
in

a
n
c
e

1
2

K
e

e
p
in

g
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 b

u
t 

n
o
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 f
o

re
c
a
s
t 

a
t 

th
is

 s
ta

g
e
. 

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 

O
ff

ic
e
s

8
1

8
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

re
fl
e

c
ts

 l
ik

e
ly

 u
n

d
e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
n
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 c

o
s
ts

 (
£

1
0
k
) 

p
lu

s
 i

n
c
o

m
e
 f

ro
m

 M
o
a

t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 f

ro
m

 1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1
 (

£
8

k
).

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 
C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
3

1
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g

 b
e
lo

w
 e

st
a
b

li
s
h
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 l
o

w
e

r 
g

ra
d
e

d
 s

ta
ff

, 
a
ls

o
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
is

 c
o

d
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e

 u
n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d
. 

In
v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
n
g

 t
h
e

 u
s
e
 o

f 
a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 l
e

v
e
ls

 
s
o
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

u
n
c
h

a
n
g

e
d

 a
t 

p
re

s
e

n
t.

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 F
u
n
c
ti
o

n
2

2
1

0
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

re
fl
e

c
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
n
 p

a
y 

c
o

s
ts

. 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e

c
t 
fu

ll 
u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 
to

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 b

u
y
 i
n
 e

x
tr

a
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
n

 k
e

y 
p
ro

je
c
ts

.

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 
 L

o
c
a

l 
O

ff
ic

e
s

-2
5

S
w

a
n
le

y
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
a

id
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
o

ff
ic

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

O
c
t 

to
 M

a
rc

h
. 

T
o
 a

m
e

n
d

 p
ro

fi
le

 a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

.

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 
P

ro
p
e

rt
y 

F
u

n
c
ti
o

n
1

8
1

2
R

e
fl
e
c
ts

 u
n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d
 o

n
 p

a
y
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

y
e

a
r 

(p
a

rt
 o

f 
s
a
v
in

g
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 p

la
n
n

e
d
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a

rs
).

Agenda Item 8

Page 110



IT
E

M
 1

(8
)

S
e

rv
ic

e
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

d
a

te

 (
M

in
us

 is
 b

ad
 

ne
w

s)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

£
0

0
0

E
xp

la
n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

)

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

S
a

la
ri
e

s
5

1
2

2
U

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h
e

a
d
in

g
s
, 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b

o
v
e

.

C
a
p

it
a

l 
S

e
ve

n
o

a
k
s 

T
o

w
n
 

C
e
n
tr

e

6
7

T
im

in
g

 o
f 

e
xp

e
n
d

it
u
re

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

is
 h

e
a

d
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t;

 n
o

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
to

 d
a

te
. 

F
u

tu
re

 I
s
s
u

e
s
/R

is
k
 A

re
a

s

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
F

in
a

n
c

e
 &

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
  

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 111



IT
E

M
 1

(9
)

H
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

1
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

S
e

rv
ic

e
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

d
a

te

 (
M

in
us

 is
 b

ad
 

ne
w

s)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

£
0

0
0

E
xp

la
n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

)

P
ri

va
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
8

1
4

A
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

n
o
w

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

s 
th

e
 C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a

n
g
e

 w
o

rk
 (

p
o

st
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a
te

d
 m

a
k
in

g
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s)

.

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

S
a

la
ri
e

s
-1

5
-1

3
A

g
e

n
c
y
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u

si
n
g

 d
u
e
 t

o
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 l
e

a
v
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
. 

C
o

s
t 

m
e

t 
fr

o
m

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l 

fu
n

d
in

g
.

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

S
a

la
ri
e

s
 E

xt
 

F
u

n
d

e
d

2
4

S
a

v
in

g
s
 m

a
d

e
 f

ro
m

 o
ri
g

in
a

l 
C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

p
o
s
t.

C
a
p

it
a

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 

G
ra

n
ts

1
8

5
It

 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 p

re
d
ic

t 
w

h
e

n
 w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

B
o

tt
o
m

 l
in

e
 i
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t.

C
a
p

it
a

l 
 W

K
H

A
 

A
d

a
p

s
 f

o
r 

D
is

a
b

le
d

-4
5

It
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 p

re
d
ic

t 
w

h
e

n
 w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

B
o

tt
o
m

 l
in

e
 i
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t.

C
a
p

it
a

l 
 R

H
P

C
G

 
1
0

-1
1
 S

D
C

-1
5

E
xt

e
rn

a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 a
n
d
 n

il 
c
o

s
t 

to
 S

D
C

.

C
a
p

it
a

l 
 H

e
v
e
r 

R
o
a

d
 G

y
p

s
y
 S

it
e

-1
6

6
A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
it
 i
s
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
. 

H
o

w
e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e
re

 h
a

s 
b
e

e
n
 a

 d
e

la
y 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

s
 a

t 
th

e
 

H
e

v
e
r 

R
o

a
d

 s
it
e
 a

t 
th

e
 m

o
m

e
n
t 

d
u
e

 t
h
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y 

c
h

a
rg

e
s
. 

S
D

C
, 

o
n
 t

h
e

ir
 

b
e

h
a

lf
, 

is
 t

ry
in

g
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 t
h
e
 t

a
ri
ff

 r
e

d
u
c
e

d
. 

It
 i
s
 h

o
p

e
d
 w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u
m

e
 a

s
 s

o
o

n
 a

s 
p
o

s
s
ib

le
. 

C
a
p

it
a

l-
H

e
v
e
r 

R
o
a

d
 G

y
p

s
y
 S

it
e

 
 B

o
m

b
 D

is
p
o

s
a

l

-1
0

E
xt

e
rn

a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 a
n
d
 n

il 
c
o

s
t 

to
 S

D
C

.

F
u

tu
re

 I
s
s
u

e
s
/R

is
k
 A

re
a

s

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

  
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 112



IT
E

M
 1

(1
0
)

IT
 &

 F
a

c
il
it

ie
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry

S
e

rv
ic

e
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

d
a

te

 (
M

in
us

 is
 b

ad
 

ne
w

s)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

£
0

0
0

E
xp

la
n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

)

A
M

F
 I

T
-8

9
 O

c
to

b
e

r,
 c

o
n
tr

a
ry

 t
o

 p
ro

fi
le

. 
E

n
d

 o
f 

y
e

a
r 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 p

e
r 

b
u
d

g
e
t.

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 

O
ff

ic
e
s
 

F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s

1
1

S
m

a
ll 

u
n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 c

o
d

e
s
, 

e
n
d

 o
f 

y
e

a
r 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 p

e
r 

b
u
d

g
e

t.

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
A

d
m

in
2

0
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
-n

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
n
g

 t
e
le

p
h
o

n
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d

 m
in

o
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

n
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
s
ta

g
e

 v
s
 p

ro
fi
le

.

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 
 I

T
4

7
A

w
a

it
in

g
 D

R
 i
n
v
o

ic
e

, 
n
e

w
 s

c
a

n
n

e
r 

p
u
rc

h
a

s
e

d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
n

o
t 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
a

s
 p

e
r 

p
ro

fi
le

.

F
u

tu
re

 I
s
s
u

e
s
/R

is
k
 A

re
a

s

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
IT

 &
 F

a
c
il

it
ie

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
  

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 113



IT
E

M
 1

(1
1
)

L
e
g

a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry

S
e

rv
ic

e
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

d
a

te

 (
M

in
us

 is
 b

ad
 

ne
w

s)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

£
0

0
0

E
xp

la
n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

)

A
c
ti
o

n
 &

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

-1
7

A
d

v
e
rs

e
 v

a
ri

a
n
c
e

 i
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o
 a

 5
0

%
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
n

s
u
lt
a

n
ts

 e
n

g
a
g

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 E

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 s

h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h
 D

a
rt

fo
rd

 B
C

 a
n
d
 l
e

g
a

l 
fe

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e

la
ti
n
g

 t
o
 a

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 A

p
p

e
a

l 
a
t 

A
m

h
e

rs
t 

H
ill

.

A
n
 A

c
ti
o

n
 &

 D
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

R
e

s
e
rv

e
 i
s 

in
 p

la
c
e
 f

ro
m

 w
h
ic

h
 m

o
n
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

ra
w

n
 d

o
w

n
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n
d

 f
o
r 

a
n

y
 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t

2
7

5
0

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 A
w

a
rd

 C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
-p

ro
fi
le

d
 s

in
c
e
 l
a

s
t 

m
o
n
th

. 
T

h
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 i
s
 

d
u
e

 t
o

 a
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

u
n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

p
ro

fi
le

 o
n
 A

u
d
it
 F

e
e

s
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 i
n
v
o

ic
e

s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
re

c
e

iv
e
d

. 
It
 i
s
 

fo
re

c
a

s
t 

th
a

t 
A

u
d
it
 F

e
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 £

5
0
k
 l
o

w
e
r 

th
a

n
 f

ir
s
t 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 t
h
is

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 a

 r
e

v
is

e
d
 f

o
re

c
a

st
 

fo
r 

th
a

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
lin

e
. 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 o

th
e
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
u
d

g
e
t.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
a

vi
n
g

s
9

-4
1

V
a

c
a
n
t 

P
o

st
s 

sa
v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n
 m

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 y
e
a

r 
a

n
d
 t

h
e
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 
 

H
o

w
e

ve
r 

a
d

v
e
rs

e
 v

a
ri

a
n
c
e

 o
f 

£
4
1

k
 r

e
m

a
in

s 
a
c
ro

s
s 

th
e

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

w
it
h
 o

n
e
-o

ff
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
.

E
le

c
ti
o
n

s
1

0
C

a
s
h
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

ra
w

n
 d

o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 r
e

s
e
rv

e
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 f

o
r 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
e

le
c
ti
o

n
s 

w
h
e

n
 t

h
e

 e
xa

c
t 
c
o

s
ts

 a
re

 
k
n
o

w
n
.

S
u
p
p

o
rt

 
 L

e
g

a
l 

F
u

n
c
ti
o

n
-2

8
-2

5
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 f
u
ll 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
S

1
0

6
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

£
3
0

k
. 

N
o
w

 e
x
p

e
c
ti
n
g

 s
im

ila
r 

in
c
o
m

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 t

o
 2

0
1
0

/1
1

 o
f 

£
5
k
. 

M
a
rk

e
t 

c
o

n
d
it
io

n
s 

n
o

t 
c
o

n
d

u
c
iv

e
 t

o
 r

a
is

in
g

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 S
1

0
6

 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

.

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

S
a

la
ri
e

s
4

0
4

0
U

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 s

a
la

ri
e

s
, 

o
ff

se
tt

in
g
 n

o
n
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

in
c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 s

h
a

ri
n
g

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 T

o
n
b

ri
d

g
e
 a

n
d
 M

a
lli

n
g

 
(L

e
g

a
l)
 a

n
d

 M
a

id
s
to

n
e
 (

D
e

m
o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
).

 

F
u

tu
re

 I
s
s
u

e
s
/R

is
k
 A

re
a

s

In
c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 l
a
n
d

 c
h
a

rg
e

s
 s

e
a
rc

h
e

s
 (

b
u
d

g
e

t 
o

f 
£
1

8
5
k
) 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

 v
e
ry

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 a

re
a

. 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
le

g
a

l 
a
c
ti
o

n
 n

o
w

 u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 P

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
S

e
a
rc

h
 

c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 r

e
c
o

u
p

in
g
 m

o
n
ie

s 
e

x
p

e
n

d
e
d

 u
n
d

e
r 

p
re

vi
o

u
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
.

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
L

e
g

a
l 

&
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

  
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 114



2
. 

 O
v
e

ra
ll

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
1
0
/1

1

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

1
 -

 

F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
c
c
ru

a
ls

)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

 1
1
5

 6
1

 5
4

4
6
.9

 5
5
8

 4
5
3

 1
0
5

1
8
.9

1
,1

5
4

 1
,1

3
9

 1
5

 8
8
7

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 1
0
5

 9
9

 6
6
.1

 6
9
9

 6
2
8

 7
1

1
0
.2

1
,3

8
0

 1
,3

7
8

 2
 1

,6
7
2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

 1
5
6

 1
9
4

- 
3
8

-2
4
.0

 
 1

,5
2
2

 1
,5

6
7

- 
4
4

-2
.9

 
2
,8

7
0

 3
,0

1
6

- 
1
4
6

 3
,9

7
9

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

 4
1

 5
2

- 
1
1

-2
5
.6

 
 5

0
9

 4
8
3

 2
7

5
.2

9
2
6

 9
1
2

 1
4

 1
,0

1
4

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 4
1
9

 4
0
6

 1
2

2
.9

 3
,2

8
9

 3
,1

3
0

 1
5
9

4
.8

6
,3

2
9

 6
,4

4
4

- 
1
1
5

7
,5

5
2

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

 3
9
0

 4
3
4

- 
4
4

-1
1
.1

 
 2

,3
9
3

 2
,5

2
8

- 
1
3
5

-5
.6

 
4
,7

6
1

 4
,6

2
6

 1
3
5

 5
,5

8
9

IT
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

 1
1
9

 1
8
2

- 
6
3

-5
3
.1

 
 7

9
6

 8
0
4

- 
8

-1
.0

 
1
,6

5
5

 1
,6

5
5

 -
 1

,7
0
4

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 1
0
9

 1
0
9

- 
0

-0
.2

 
 6

4
0

 6
3
4

 7
1
.0

1
,3

6
8

 1
,3

8
4

- 
1
6

 1
,5

6
4

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

 6
1
8

 7
2
5

- 
1
0
7

-1
7
.3

 
 3

,8
2
9

 3
,9

6
5

- 
1
3
6

-3
.6

 
7
,7

8
3

 7
,6

6
4

 1
1
9

8
,8

5
7

N
E

T
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 (

1
)

 1
,0

3
7

 1
,1

3
2

- 
9
5

-9
.1

 
 7

,1
1
8

 7
,0

9
5

 2
3

0
.3

1
4
,1

1
2

 1
4
,1

0
8

 4
1
6
,4

0
9

A
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 t
o
 A

m
o
u
n
t 
to

 b
e
 m

e
t 
fr

o
m

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 V

a
ri
a
n
c
e

 -
 6

1
- 

6
1

-
 -

- 
2
4

 2
4

-
 -

 -
 -

 7
2

D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

ra
d
in

g
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

- 
1
4

- 
8

- 
6

- 
4
2
.9

- 
1
1
7

- 
5
1

- 
6
6

- 
5
6
.4

- 
7
4

- 
5
1

- 
2
3

- 
1
7

C
a
p
it
a
l 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d

- 
4

- 
4

- 
0

- 
0
.0

- 
2
4

- 
2
4

- 
0

- 
0
.0

- 
4
7

- 
4
7

 -
- 

4
7

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d

- 
1
6

- 
1
6

- 
0

- 
0
.1

- 
9
8

- 
9
8

 0
 0

.1
- 

2
2
0

- 
2
2
0

 -
- 

2
1
6

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 C

o
s
ts

 -
 a

ll
 -

 -
 -

-
 -

 1
5

- 
1
5

-
 -

 -
 -

 2
4
4

N
E

T
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 (

2
)

 1
,0

0
2

 1
,1

6
5

- 
1
6
2

-1
6
.2

 
 6

,8
7
9

 6
,9

1
3

- 
3
4

- 
0
.5

 1
3
,7

7
1

 1
3
,7

9
0

- 
1
9

 1
6
,4

4
5

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

G
ra

n
t

- 
4
2
8

- 
4
2
8

 -
0
.0

- 
2
,5

7
1

- 
2
,5

7
1

 -
 -

- 
5
,1

4
1

- 
5
,1

4
1

 -
- 

6
,3

4
8

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 R

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
- 

S
D

C
- 

7
6
7

- 
7
6
7

 -
0
.0

- 
4
,6

0
0

- 
4
,6

0
0

 -
 -

- 
9
,1

9
9

- 
9
,1

9
9

 -
- 

9
,1

7
2

N
E

T
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 (

3
)

- 
1

9
3

- 
3

0
- 

1
6

2
8

4
.2

- 
2

9
1

- 
2

5
7

- 
3

4
- 

1
1

.7
- 

5
6

9
- 

5
5

0
- 

1
9

 9
2

5

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

c
o
m

e

N
e
t 
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

- 
1
9
3

- 
3
0

- 
1
6
2

 8
4

- 
2
9
1

- 
2
5
7

- 
3
4

- 
1
1
.7

- 
5
6
9

- 
5
5
0

- 
1
9

 9
2
5

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
Im

p
a
ir
m

e
n
t

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

 -
 -

In
te

re
s
t 
a
n
d
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
In

c
o
m

e
- 

1
6

- 
2
7

 1
0

-6
4
.0

 
- 

8
5

- 
1
5
1

 6
5

 7
6
.5

- 
1
5
3

- 
2
3
2

 7
9

- 
3
3
5

O
v
e
ra

ll 
to

ta
l

- 
2
0
9

- 
5
7

- 
1
5
2

 2
0

- 
3
7
6

- 
4
0
8

 3
1

 6
5

- 
7
2
2

- 
7
8
1

 6
0

 5
9
0

P
la

n
n
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
ti
o
n
 (

fr
o
m

)/
to

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

 7
2
2

 7
2
2

 -
 -

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

 -
 -

 -
 -

- 
1
7
1

S
u
rp

lu
s

-
- 

5
9

 6
0

 4
1
9

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 2

_
S

u
m

m
a
ry

IT
E

M
 2

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 115



3
. 

N
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 -

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 b

y
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

re
a

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
1
0
/1

1

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

1
 -

 F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
c
c
ru

a
ls

)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

A
c
tu

a
l

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

S
D

C
 F

u
n

d
e
d

8
 t

o
 1

2
 p

ro
je

c
t

 2
- 

6
 8

 4
0

6
.8

 1
1

 1
0

 1
 7

.5
 2

3
 2

3
 -

 2
3

A
rt

s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

 0
 0

- 
0

-
 0

 0
 0

-
- 

0
- 

0
 -

 5

A
ll 

W
e
a
th

e
r 

P
it
c
h

- 
0

- 
0

- 
0

-
- 

1
- 

1
 0

 8
.2

- 
2

- 
2

 -
- 

2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

c
ti
v
it
y

 -
 0

- 
0

-
 -

 0
- 

0
-

 -
-

 -
 -

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
s

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
- 

6
 6

-
 -

- 
1
5

 1
5

- 
1
2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 1

6
 1

7
- 

1
- 

6
.4

 1
0

1
 9

4
 6

 6
.3

 2
0

1
 2

0
1

 -
 1

6
7

T
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

 4
 4

 0
 9

.7
 2

7
 2

4
 3

 1
1

.5
 5

5
 5

5
 -

 5
1

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

 3
 3

 0
 0

.4
 2

4
 3

0
- 

6
- 

2
4
.1

 4
1

 4
1

 -
 1

9

G
ra

n
ts

 t
o
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

 1
 1

 0
 1

.4
 1

8
0

 1
7

9
 1

 0
.3

 1
8

6
 1

8
6

 -
 2

2
5

H
e
a
lt
h
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 3
 4

- 
0

- 
6
.6

 2
0

 2
0

- 
0

- 
0
.5

 3
9

 3
9

 -
 5

0

L
e
is

u
re

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

 8
 8

- 
0

- 
0
.4

 1
3

0
 1

2
8

 3
 2

.0
 3

3
0

 3
3

0
 -

 4
4
6

L
e
is

u
re

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

 -
 -

 -
-

 1
0

 1
0

 0
 2

.4
 2

2
 2

2
 -

 2
0

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
.

 1
 0

 1
 5

5
.6

 6
 4

 2
 3

3
.1

 1
3

 1
3

 -
 1

3

S
p
o
rt

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
- 

0
 0

-
 -

-
 -

- 
3
6
4

S
T

A
G

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 2

5
 -

 2
5

 1
0

0
.0

 7
5

 5
0

 2
5

 3
3

.3
 1

0
0

 1
0

0
 -

 1
0
0

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 1

 1
 0

 0
.2

 8
 8

 0
 2

.8
 1

7
 1

7
 -

 2
2

T
o

u
ri

s
m

 1
5

 1
 1

4
 9

6
.6

 3
9

 2
7

 1
3

 3
1

.9
 5

3
 5

3
 -

 3
9

W
e

s
t 

K
e

n
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 2
 2

- 
0

- 
2
.0

- 
7

- 
7

- 
0

- 
3
.5

 0
 0

 -
 -

Y
o
u
th

 6
 5

 1
 2

3
.3

 3
8

 3
3

 5
 1

1
.9

 7
6

 7
6

 -
 8

4

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
(S

D
C

 F
u

n
d

e
d

)
 8

8
 4

0
 4

8
 5

4
.6

 6
6

2
 6

0
5

 5
7

 8
.7

 1
,1

5
4

 1
,1

3
9

 1
5

 8
8

6

E
x
te

rn
a
ll
y
 F

u
n

d
e
d

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 C

h
ild

 -
 9

- 
9

-
 -

- 
1
4

 1
4

-
 0

 0
 -

 -

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 H

o
m

e
 O

ff
 9

 1
 7

 8
6

.3
- 

3
1

- 
7
4

 4
3

 1
4

1
.9

- 
0

- 
0

 -
 -

C
h
o
o
s
in

g
 H

e
a
lt
h
 W

K
 P

C
T

 1
9

 0
 1

8
 9

7
.5

- 
7
3

- 
6
7

- 
7

- 
9
.2

 0
 0

 -
 -

F
a
lls

 P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n

 -
 6

- 
6

-
 -

- 
1

 1
-

 -
-

 -
 -

P
C

T
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
- 

1
 1

-
 -

-
 -

 -

L
o
c
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 5

- 
5

-
 -

 5
- 

5
-

 -
-

 -
 -

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
(E

x
t 

F
u

n
d

e
d

)
 2

7
 2

1
 6

 2
2

.4
- 

1
0
4

- 
1
5
2

 4
8

 4
6

.2
 0

 0
 -

 -

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
 1

1
5

 6
1

 5
4

 4
6

.9
 5

5
8

 4
5

3
 1

0
5

 1
8

.9
 1

,1
5

4
 1

,1
3

9
 1

5
 8

8
6

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 3

_
H

O
S

IT
E

M
 3

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 116



3
. 

N
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 -

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 b

y
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

re
a

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
1
0
/1

1

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

1
 -

 F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
c
c
ru

a
ls

)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

A
c
tu

a
l

D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

B
ri
d
le

w
a
y
s
 /
 F

o
o
tp

a
th

 D
iv

e
rs

io
n
s

 0
 0

 0
-

 1
 1

 0
 0

.3
 2

 2
 -

 2

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 4
 4

 0
 1

.6
 2

3
 2

3
 0

 2
.0

 4
7

 4
7

 -
 7

5

L
o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 3
2

 3
1

 1
 3

.3
 1

9
9

 1
5

9
 4

0
 1

9
.9

 4
4

6
 4

4
1

 5
 4

8
8

L
D

F
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 -
 1

- 
1

-
 -

 1
- 

1
-

 -
-

 -
 -

P
la

n
n
in

g
 -

 A
p
p
e
a
ls

 1
2

 5
 7

 5
7

.1
 7

8
 7

4
 4

 4
.5

 1
5

1
 1

6
1

- 
1
0

 1
8
7

P
la

n
n
in

g
 -

 C
o
u
n
te

r
- 

0
- 

0
- 

0
-

- 
0

- 
0

- 
0

-
- 

1
- 

1
 -

 -

P
la

n
n
in

g
 -

 D
e
v
. 
C

o
n
tr

o
l

 3
4

 3
7

- 
3

- 
1
0
.1

 2
5

3
 2

3
4

 2
0

 7
.8

 4
4

6
 4

4
3

 3
 6

0
6

P
la

n
n
in

g
 -

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t

 2
1

 2
0

 1
 6

.1
 1

3
1

 1
2

6
 4

 3
.1

 2
5

8
 2

5
4

 4
 2

8
1

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l

 3
 1

 1
 4

2
.8

 1
4

 1
0

 4
 3

1
.3

 3
0

 3
0

 -
 3

4

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
.

 -
- 

0
 0

-
 -

- 
0

 0
-

 -
-

 -
 1

T
o

ta
l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 1
0

5
 9

9
 6

 6
.1

 6
9

9
 6

2
8

 7
1

 1
0

.2
 1

,3
8

0
 1

,3
7

8
 2

 1
,6

7
4

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 3

_
H

O
S

IT
E

M
 3

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 117



3
. 

N
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 -

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 b

y
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

re
a

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
1
0
/1

1

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

1
 -

 F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
c
c
ru

a
ls

)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

A
c
tu

a
l

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
a
n

d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
 1

 -
 1

 1
0

0
.0

 4
 -

 4
 1

0
0

.0
 8

 8
 -

 -

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 C

C
T

V
 1

 1
 0

 4
3

.4
 5

 2
 4

 6
8

.7
 1

1
 1

1
 -

 1
5

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 0

 1
- 

1
-

 3
 4

- 
1

- 
3
9
.4

 6
 6

 -
 3

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 2
 7

- 
5

- 
2
6
2
.7

 1
1

 8
 3

 2
9

.8
 2

2
 2

2
 -

 3
1

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
y
g
ro

u
n
d
s

 1
 -

 1
 1

0
0

.0
 7

 1
 5

 8
1

.2
 1

3
 1

3
 -

 -

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

u
b
lic

 T
o
ile

ts
 1

 1
- 

0
- 

9
.9

 7
 1

 6
 7

9
.1

 1
4

 1
4

 -
 6

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

- 
1
3

- 
9

- 
4

- 
3
1
.2

- 
8
0

- 
3
0

- 
5
0

- 
6
2
.3

- 
1
2
3

- 
8
2

- 
4
1

- 
3
8

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

s
- 

1
5
9

- 
1
5
5

- 
4

- 
2
.7

- 
7
8
8

- 
7
8
4

- 
4

- 
0
.5

- 
1
,5

5
4

- 
1
,5

6
4

 1
0

- 
1
,4

7
5

C
C

T
V

 1
2

 1
6

- 
5

- 
3
8
.1

 1
3

8
 1

5
1

- 
1
3

- 
9
.5

 2
3

0
 2

6
0

- 
3
0

 2
6
4

C
iv

il 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 1
 0

 1
 7

4
.8

 6
 5

 1
 2

2
.9

 1
1

 1
1

 -
 4

1

C
le

a
n
 A

ir
 7

 6
 1

 1
3

.6
 7

2
 5

5
 1

8
 2

4
.3

 1
1

6
 1

1
6

 -
 1

0
0

C
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 L

a
n
d

 4
 4

 0
 8

.8
 2

5
 2

3
 2

 8
.9

 5
1

 5
1

 -
 4

9

D
a
n
g
e
ro

u
s
 S

tr
u
c
tu

re
s

 2
 1

 1
 3

4
.6

 1
1

 1
1

- 
0

- 
3
.8

 2
2

 2
2

 -
 2

0

O
n
-S

tr
e
e
t 

P
a
rk

in
g

- 
2
6

 2
- 

2
8

- 
1
0
7
.7

- 
1
7
4

- 
1
2
3

- 
5
2

- 
2
9
.7

- 
3
4
7

- 
3
2
2

- 
2
5

- 
2
2
2

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y

 5
 5

 0
 7

.4
 2

9
 2

8
 1

 4
.8

 5
9

 5
9

 -
 5

6

E
s
tM

a
n
 -

 G
ro

u
n
d
s

 8
 1

4
- 

6
- 

8
0
.8

 4
5

 4
4

 1
 2

.6
 9

1
 9

1
 -

 7
8

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 H

e
a
lt
h

 4
 4

 0
 3

.3
 2

4
 2

6
- 

2
- 

7
.8

 3
5

 3
5

 -
 3

1

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
-

 -
 -

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 H
u
b
 (

T
ra

d
in

g
)

 0
- 

3
 3

-
- 

1
- 

1
3

 1
2

 1
,9

4
6

.2
 -

-
 -

 -

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 R

e
g
im

e
- 

7
- 

0
- 

7
- 

9
7
.0

 1
3

 3
6

- 
2
3

- 
1
8
1
.9

 3
 3

3
- 

3
0

 4
9

M
in

ib
u
s

 1
 -

 1
 1

0
0

.0
 4

 1
 4

 8
6

.9
 9

 9
 -

 3
3
3

N
o
is

e
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

 7
 7

- 
0

- 
1
.3

 4
2

 4
0

 1
 3

.4
 8

8
 8

8
 -

 9
0

P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 R

e
c
.G

rd
s

 8
 1

1
- 

3
- 

3
0
.9

 4
0

 6
1

- 
2
1

- 
5
1
.4

 8
8

 1
0

8
- 

2
0

 1
3
1

P
a
rk

s
 -

 R
u
ra

l
 9

 3
 6

 7
0

.1
 5

1
 3

3
 1

8
 3

5
.8

 8
1

 6
1

 2
0

 1
0
7

P
e
s
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l

 -
 -

 -
-

- 
0

 -
- 

0
-

- 
0

- 
0

 -
 4

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h

 3
2

 2
6

 6
 1

9
.9

 1
9

6
 2

2
6

- 
3
1

- 
1
5
.8

 3
9

0
 4

6
0

- 
7
0

 5
4
1

P
u
b
lic

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 0
 0

 0
-

 1
 1

 0
 1

5
.9

 1
 1

 -
 1

R
e
fu

s
e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 1
4

7
 1

4
4

 3
 1

.9
 1

,1
2

8
 1

,0
9

6
 3

2
 2

.8
 2

,1
5

5
 2

,1
2

5
 3

0
 2

,1
3
4

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

 1
 0

 1
 8

2
.7

 4
 4

 0
 5

.0
 8

 8
 -

 9

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
 1

 1
 1

 4
8

.0
 7

 4
 3

 4
4

.9
 1

4
 1

4
 -

 1
3

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 D
ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 -
 0

- 
0

-
 -

 0
- 

0
-

 -
-

 -
 -

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 H
e
a
lt
h

 2
 1

 1
 4

8
.2

 1
1

 8
 3

 2
5

.8
 2

3
 2

3
 -

 1
6

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 1
 0

 0
 5

7
.4

 4
 2

 2
 4

7
.0

 9
 9

 -
 4

S
tr

e
e
t 
N

a
m

in
g

 1
 1

 0
 1

4
.0

 6
 1

 6
 8

9
.8

 1
3

 3
 1

0
 6

S
tr

e
e
t 
C

le
a
n
s
in

g
 9

8
 1

0
0

- 
2

- 
1
.6

 6
1

3
 6

2
0

- 
6

- 
1
.0

 1
,2

2
4

 1
,2

2
4

 -
 1

,3
9
9

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 D

ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 4
 4

 0
 5

.4
 2

4
 9

 1
5

 6
2

.4
 4

9
 4

9
 -

 4
0

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 3

_
H

O
S

IT
E

M
 3

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 118



S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 1

 1
 1

 4
3

.3
 8

 6
 2

 2
6

.7
 1

6
 1

6
 -

 5
4

T
a

x
is

- 
2

- 
3

 1
 2

1
.0

- 
7

- 
2
3

 1
6

 2
3

6
.7

- 
1
4

- 
1
4

 -
- 

1
9

A
ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 (

E
x
t 
F

u
n
d
e
d
)

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
-

 -
 -

P
u
b
lic

 C
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
s

 2
 5

- 
3

- 
1
7
4
.0

 3
2

 3
2

- 
1

- 
2
.3

 4
9

 4
9

 -
 1

0
7

T
o

ta
l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
a

n
d

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 1
5

6
 1

9
4

- 
3
8

- 
2
4
.0

 1
,5

2
2

 1
,5

6
7

- 
4
4

- 
2
.9

 2
,8

7
0

 3
,0

1
6

- 
1
4
6

 3
,9

7
8

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 3

_
H

O
S

IT
E

M
 3

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 119



3
. 

N
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 -

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 b

y
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

re
a

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
1
0
/1

1

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

1
 -

 F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
c
c
ru

a
ls

)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 A

rg
y
le

 R
o
a
d

 4
 1

5
- 

1
1

- 
2
5
0
.8

 2
5

 1
5

 1
1

 4
1

.5
 5

1
 5

1
 -

 3
8

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 O

th
e
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s

 3
 -

 3
 1

0
0

.0
 1

5
 1

8
- 

3
- 

1
8
.6

 3
0

 3
0

 -
 4

8

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 L

e
is

u
re

 1
3

 2
1

- 
8

- 
6
0
.8

 7
7

 1
0

1
- 

2
4

- 
3
1
.5

 1
5

3
 1

5
3

 -
 2

0
9

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 S

e
w

a
g
e
 T

re
a
tm

e
n
t 
P

la
n
ts

 1
 -

 1
 1

0
0

.0
 5

 1
 4

 8
4

.1
 1

0
 1

0
 -

 3

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 &
 S

a
la

ri
e
s

 9
 7

 3
 2

9
.7

 5
7

 4
7

 1
0

 1
7

.6
 1

1
4

 1
1

4
 -

 1
2
0

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 A
d
m

in
 -

 6
- 

6
-

 -
 6

- 
6

-
- 

1
5
0

- 
1
5
0

 -
 8

3
3

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 G
ra

n
ts

- 
5
6

- 
5
6

 0
 0

.0
- 

3
4
5

- 
3
4
5

 0
 0

.0
- 

6
5
9

- 
6
5
9

 -
- 

6
5
9

B
u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n

 1
 0

 1
 7

6
.3

 6
 3

 3
 4

2
.9

 1
2

 1
2

 -
 2

1

C
iv

ic
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

 0
 0

- 
0

-
 1

3
 7

 6
 4

5
.1

 1
4

 1
4

 -
 3

9

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s
 -

 2
- 

2
-

 -
 2

- 
2

-
 -

-
 -

 4
3
3

D
a
rt

fo
rd

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 H
u
b
 (

S
D

C
 c

o
s
ts

)
 1

6
6

 1
2

8
 3

7
 2

2
.4

 8
3

2
 8

7
2

- 
4
1

- 
4
.9

 1
,5

8
7

 1
,5

8
7

 -
 2

2
2

E
s
tM

a
n
 -

 B
u
ild

in
g
s

- 
1
2

- 
1
1

- 
1

- 
6
.9

- 
2
9

- 
1
3

- 
1
7

- 
5
7
.0

- 
9
2

- 
9
2

 -
- 

2
6

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

d
v
a
n
c
e
s

 0
 -

 0
-

 2
 3

- 
1

- 
5
9
.6

 4
 4

 -
 5

H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

re
m

is
e
s

 0
- 

2
 2

-
- 

1
1

- 
7

- 
4

- 
3
9
.4

- 
1
0

- 
1
0

 -
 3

4

L
o
c
a
l 
T

a
x

- 
1
7

- 
1
3

- 
4

- 
2
2
.0

- 
8
8

- 
8
6

- 
3

- 
2
.9

- 
3
9
2

- 
3
9
2

 -
 2

2
4

M
a
rk

e
ts

- 
1
8

- 
2
3

 5
 3

0
.7

- 
9
2

- 
1
3
2

 4
0

 4
4

.0
- 

1
9
4

- 
2
7
9

 8
5

- 
1
9
1

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 3
1

 2
6

 5
 1

6
.8

 1
6

4
 1

5
4

 1
0

 6
.2

 3
4

2
 3

3
2

 1
0

 3
2
1

M
is

c
. 
F

in
a
n
c
e

 1
3

2
 1

4
6

- 
1
4

- 
1
0
.4

 7
1

8
 7

1
3

 6
 0

.8
 2

,0
3

1
 2

,0
3

1
 -

 1
,9

2
7

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 2

7
- 

2
7

-
 -

 1
8

5
- 

1
8
5

-
 -

-
 -

 1
1

9

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
 0

 1
- 

0
-

 2
 2

 0
 3

.2
 5

 5
 -

 6

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 2
 1

 1
 4

6
.9

 9
 4

 6
 6

1
.9

 1
9

 1
9

 -
 8

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 F
in

a
n
c
e

 3
- 

1
 5

 1
4

2
.5

 1
9

 6
 1

2
 6

6
.4

 3
8

 3
8

 -
 3

6

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 P
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l

 1
 0

 1
 8

4
.7

 6
 7

- 
1

- 
1
6
.5

 1
3

 1
3

 -
 1

0

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 0

 -
 0

-
 2

 1
 1

 5
2

.9
 4

 4
 -

 3

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
s

 1
7

 3
7

- 
2
0

- 
1
1
3
.0

 3
1

0
 3

0
3

 8
 2

.4
 4

1
1

 3
9

3
 1

8
 4

0
9

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 4

0
 3

5
 4

 1
1

.1
 2

3
8

 2
0

7
 3

1
 1

3
.1

 4
9

6
 4

9
6

 -
 4

3
8

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 E

x
c
h
e
q
u
e
r 

a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

 1
1

 1
1

 0
 3

.7
 6

6
 6

4
 2

 3
.1

 1
2

0
 1

2
0

 -
 1

2
2

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 F

u
n
c
ti
o
n

 1
6

 1
2

 4
 2

3
.4

 9
6

 7
4

 2
2

 2
3

.4
 2

3
1

 2
2

1
 1

0
 1

8
0

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
A

d
m

in
 1

1
 1

0
 1

 6
.2

 7
9

 8
2

- 
3

- 
4
.3

 1
4

4
 1

4
4

 -
 2

1
5

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 L

o
c
a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
s

 0
 2

3
- 

2
2

-
 2

4
 4

9
- 

2
5

- 
1
0
5
.6

 4
8

 4
8

 -
 4

9

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 1

- 
1

-
 -

-
 -

 3

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 P

e
rs

o
n
n
e
l

 1
3

 1
6

- 
3

- 
2
4
.9

 9
6

 1
0

4
- 

8
- 

8
.1

 1
8

5
 1

8
5

 -
 2

1
4

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 F

u
n
c
ti
o
n

 9
 6

 3
 3

4
.2

 5
3

 3
5

 1
8

 3
4

.7
 1

0
7

 9
5

 1
2

 7
6

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
 8

 1
1

- 
3

- 
3
9
.7

 4
3

 4
5

- 
2

- 
3
.6

 8
8

 8
8

 -
 9

8

T
o

ta
l 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 3
9

0
 4

3
4

- 
4
4

- 
1
1
.1

 2
,3

9
3

 2
,5

2
8

- 
1
3
5

- 
5
.6

 4
,7

6
1

 4
,6

2
6

 1
3

5
 5

,5
8

7

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 3

_
H

O
S

IT
E

M
 3

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 120



3
. 

N
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 -

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 b

y
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

re
a

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
1
0
/1

1

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

1
 -

 F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
c
c
ru

a
ls

)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

A
c
tu

a
l

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

u
rv

e
y
s

 2
 -

 2
 1

0
0

.0
 8

 -
 8

 1
0

0
.0

 1
7

 1
7

 -
 2

2

E
n
e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

- 
8

 2
- 

9
- 

1
2
3
.7

 1
2

 4
 7

 6
4

.0
 4

 4
 -

 2
6

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
C

o
m

m
s

 7
 6

 1
 7

.9
 6

0
 5

2
 9

 1
4

.6
 1

2
7

 1
2

7
 -

 1
2
7

G
y
p
s
y
 S

it
e
s

- 
2

- 
3

 1
 4

1
.7

- 
7

- 
5

- 
1

- 
2
1
.1

- 
1
4

- 
1
4

 -
- 

2

H
o
m

e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 (

p
re

v
. 

C
a
re

 a
n
d
 R

e
p
a
ir
)

 -
 -

 -
-

 3
9

 3
9

 0
 1

.2
 3

9
 3

9
 -

 5
7

H
o
m

e
le

s
s

 9
 1

7
- 

9
- 

9
6
.8

 5
2

 5
8

- 
6

- 
1
2
.0

 1
1

9
 1

1
9

 -
 1

2
3

H
o
u
s
in

g
 2

0
 2

4
- 

4
- 

1
7
.6

 2
2

4
 2

2
5

- 
1

- 
0
.5

 3
8

8
 3

8
8

 -
 4

0
8

H
o
u
s
in

g
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

 2
 0

 1
 8

4
.4

 1
0

 6
 4

 3
7

.9
 2

0
 2

0
 -

 8

H
o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o
n
 -

 T
ra

ilb
la

z
e
r

- 
4

- 
2

- 
2

- 
5
9
.2

- 
0

 4
- 

5
-

 0
 0

 -
 -

N
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 S

to
c
k
 S

u
rv

e
y
s

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 -

 -
-

 1
5

 1
5

 -
 1

5

K
C

C
 L

o
a
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 -

- 
0

 0
-

 -
- 

0
 0

-
 -

-
 -

 -

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 1

6
 1

3
 3

 1
8

.5
 9

6
 8

8
 8

 8
.3

 1
9

2
 1

7
8

 1
4

 2
1
4

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 1

 1
 0

 4
.2

 6
 9

- 
3

- 
5
0
.0

 1
3

 1
3

 -
 2

2

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
A

d
m

in
 -

- 
0

 0
-

 -
- 

7
 7

-
 -

-
 -

- 
1
1

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 F

u
n
d
in

g
- 

1
- 

7
 6

 4
2

9
.8

 7
 7

 -
 0

.0
 0

 0
 -

 -

L
e
a
d
e
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 0

 0
- 

0
-

 2
 2

- 
0

- 
0
.6

 5
 5

 -
 5

T
o

ta
l 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 4

1
 5

2
- 

1
1

- 
2
5
.6

 5
0

9
 4

8
3

 2
7

 5
.2

 9
2

6
 9

1
2

 1
4

 1
,0

1
4

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 3

_
H

O
S

IT
E

M
 3

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 121



3
. 

N
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 -

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 b

y
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

re
a

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
1
0
/1

1

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

1
 -

 F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
c
c
ru

a
ls

)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

A
c
tu

a
l

IT
 &

 F
a
c
il

it
ie

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 I
T

 1
3

 7
1

- 
5
8

- 
4
6
7
.9

 5
6

 1
4

5
- 

8
9

- 
1
6
0
.3

 3
0

0
 3

0
0

 -
 1

9
2

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 I
T

 2
 1

 2
 7

5
.3

 1
2

 8
 4

 3
0

.8
 2

4
 2

4
 -

 2
1

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
s
 -

 F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

 2
3

 2
0

 2
 1

0
.0

 1
2

0
 1

0
9

 1
1

 9
.4

 2
5

6
 2

5
6

 -
 2

4
8

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
A

d
m

in
 2

0
 2

9
- 

1
0

- 
4
9
.6

 1
4

9
 1

2
9

 2
0

 1
3

.1
 2

9
1

 2
9

1
 -

 3
3
0

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 I
T

 6
2

 6
1

 1
 1

.6
 4

6
0

 4
1

2
 4

7
 1

0
.3

 7
8

5
 7

8
5

 -
 9

1
3

T
o

ta
l 

IT
 &

 F
a

c
il

it
ie

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
 1

1
9

 1
8

2
- 

6
3

- 
5
3
.1

 7
9

6
 8

0
4

- 
8

- 
1
.0

 1
,6

5
5

 1
,6

5
5

 -
 1

,7
0

4

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 3

_
H

O
S

IT
E

M
 3

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 122



3
. 

N
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 -

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 b

y
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

re
a

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

2
0
1
0
/1

1

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

1
 -

 F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
c
c
ru

a
ls

)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

A
c
tu

a
l

L
e
g

a
l 

a
n

d
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

A
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

 1
 1

5
- 

1
5

- 
2
,3

7
4
.5

 3
 2

0
- 

1
7

- 
6
2
4
.9

 6
 6

 -
 1

2

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 A

d
m

in
 5

 4
 1

 1
6

.4
 4

4
 4

0
 4

 8
.1

 8
3

 8
3

 -
 1

0
0

C
o
rp

 M
g
m

t
 5

2
 8

7
- 

3
5

- 
6
7
.6

 4
2

3
 3

9
6

 2
7

 6
.4

 9
4

3
 8

9
3

 5
0

 1
,0

1
2

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

a
v
in

g
s

 1
2

 -
 1

2
 1

0
0

.0
 9

 -
 9

 1
0

0
.0

- 
4
3

- 
2

- 
4
1

 -

E
le

c
ti
o
n
s

 6
- 

3
5

 4
2

 6
5

2
.8

 2
8

 1
8

 1
0

 3
5

.2
 6

6
 6

6
 -

 5
6

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 L

e
g
is

la
ti
o
n

 1
0

 8
 2

 2
3

.7
 1

6
 1

3
 4

 2
2

.7
 1

6
 1

6
 -

 1
4

L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

- 
8

- 
9

 1
 1

3
.4

- 
6
6

- 
6
4

- 
2

- 
3
.4

- 
1
1
3

- 
1
1
3

 -
- 

9
6

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

 0
 -

 0
-

- 
0

 5
- 

5
-

 1
 1

 -
 8

R
e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 

E
le

c
to

rs
 1

0
 1

7
- 

7
- 

7
5
.6

 5
5

 5
3

 3
 4

.6
 1

3
8

 1
3

8
 -

 1
1
9

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 -

 L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

 6
 2

 4
 7

0
.8

 3
5

 3
1

 4
 1

0
.1

 7
1

 7
1

 -
 6

0

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 L

e
g
a
l 
F

u
n
c
ti
o
n

 1
5

 2
0

- 
6

- 
3
6
.9

 9
4

 1
2

2
- 

2
8

- 
2
9
.4

 2
0

0
 2

2
5

- 
2
5

 2
7
8

T
o

ta
l 

L
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 1
0

9
 1

0
9

- 
0

- 
0
.2

 6
4

0
 6

3
4

 7
 1

.0
 1

,3
6

8
 1

,3
8

4
- 

1
6

 1
,5

6
3

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 3

_
H

O
S

IT
E

M
 3

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 123



4
. 

 C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

 S
a

la
ry

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

P
e

ri
o

d
P

e
ri

o
d

P
e

ri
o

d
P

e
ri

o
d

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

1
 -

 F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
c
c
ru

a
ls

)

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

, 
P

.A
. 

&
 S

e
c
re

ta
ri
a

t
 1

8
 1

8
 0

 0
.4

 1
0

8
 1

1
0

- 
2

- 
2

.2
 2

1
6

 2
1

6
 -

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
s
 D

e
p

t
 1

8
 1

8
 0

 0
.4

 1
0

8
 1

1
0

- 
2

- 
2

.2
 2

1
6

 2
1

6
 -

D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 P

.A
. 

&
 S

e
c
re

ta
ri
a

t
 2

3
 2

4
- 

1
- 

5
.8

 1
3

6
 1

3
6

- 
0

- 
0

.2
 2

7
1

 2
7

1
 -

F
in

a
n
c
e
 &

 H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

 2
3

9
 2

3
2

 7
 3

.1
 1

,4
3

7
 1

,3
8

7
 5

1
 3

.5
 2

,8
8

9
 2

,8
6

7
 2

2

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 5
8

 5
1

 7
 1

1
.8

 3
6

4
 3

2
4

 4
0

 1
1

.1
 7

3
9

 6
9

9
 4

0

IT
 &

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
 6

7
 6

7
 0

 0
.4

 4
0

2
 3

9
3

 9
 2

.2
 8

0
4

 8
0

4
 -

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

 3
8

6
 3

7
3

 1
3

 3
.4

 2
,3

3
9

 2
,2

3
9

 1
0

0
 4

.3
 4

,7
0

2
 4

,6
4

0
 6

2

D
ir
e

c
to

r,
 P

A
 a

n
d

 S
e

c
re

ta
ri
a

t
 1

4
 1

4
- 

0
- 

2
.0

 8
4

 8
3

 1
 1

.2
 1

6
8

 1
6

8
 -

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

 3
4

 3
5

- 
1

- 
2

.8
 2

1
6

 2
1

5
 1

 0
.5

 4
3

0
 4

3
0

 -

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 2

8
6

 2
7

5
 1

1
 3

.8
 1

,7
1

5
 1

,6
7

3
 4

1
 2

.4
 3

,4
2

9
 3

,4
2

9
 -

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 6
0

 5
7

 3
 4

.7
 3

6
1

 3
4

5
 1

6
 4

.4
 7

2
2

 6
9

2
 3

0

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 2

6
 2

5
 2

 5
.9

 1
5

9
 1

5
8

 0
 0

.3
 3

1
8

 3
1

8
 -

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 1
4

1
 1

3
4

 6
 4

.6
 8

8
0

 8
2

5
 5

5
 6

.2
 1

,7
3

5
 1

,6
7

7
 5

8

B
u

ild
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l
 3

0
 2

6
 3

 1
0

.5
 1

7
7

 1
8

5
- 

8
- 

4
.2

 3
5

4
 3

5
4

 -

H
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 4
5

 5
2

- 
7

- 
1

5
.6

 2
6

8
 2

8
3

- 
1

5
- 

5
.6

 5
3

6
 5

4
9

- 
1

3

P
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 A
m

e
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 4

3
 4

0
 3

 6
.6

 2
5

8
 2

4
1

 1
6

 6
.4

 5
1

6
 4

9
1

 2
5

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

 6
7

9
 6

5
9

 2
0

 2
.9

 4
,1

1
9

 4
,0

0
9

 1
0

9
 2

.6
 8

,2
0

9
 8

,1
0

9
 1

0
0

S
u

b
 t

o
ta

l
 1

,0
8

3
 1

,0
5

0
 3

3
 3

.0
 6

,5
6

6
 6

,3
5

9
 2

0
6

 3
.1

 1
3

,1
2

7
 1

2
,9

6
5

 1
6

2

C
o

u
n

c
il 

W
id

e
 -

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

P
o

s
ts

- 
2

 -
- 

2
- 

1
0

0
.0

- 
1

5
 -

- 
1

5
- 

1
0

0
.0

- 
5

2
- 

5
2

 -

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 A
w

a
rd

 C
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y

- 
2

0
 -

- 
2

0
- 

1
0

0
.0

 -
 -

 -
-

 4
8

 4
8

 -

T
O

T
A

L
 S

D
C

 F
u

n
d

e
d

 S
a
la

ry
 C

o
s
ts

 1
,0

6
1

 1
,0

5
0

 1
1

 1
.0

 6
,5

5
1

 6
,3

5
9

 1
9

1
 2

.9
 1

3
,1

2
3

 1
2

,9
6

1
 1

6
2

E
x
te

rn
a

lly
 F

u
n

d
e

d
 &

 F
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 (

g
ro

s
s
 f

ig
u

re
s
).

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
in

g
s
 h

e
re

 a
re

 m
a

tc
h

e
d

 b
y
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
t 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
w

a
s
 s

e
t.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 E
x
t.

 6
 7

- 
1

- 
2

2
.4

 3
6

 4
7

- 
1

1
- 

2
9

.1
 7

3
 7

3
 -

H
o

u
s
in

g
 E

x
t.

 1
 1

1
- 

9
- 

7
3

3
.7

 6
5

 6
3

 2
 2

.5
 1

3
0

 1
2

6
 4

 7
 1

8
- 

1
1

- 
1

4
5

.2
 1

0
1

 1
1

0
- 

9
- 

8
.8

 2
0

3
 1

9
9

 4

T
O

T
A

L
 A

ll 
S

a
la

ry
 C

o
s
ts

 1
,0

6
9

 1
,0

6
8

 1
 0

.0
 6

,6
5

2
 6

,4
7

0
 1

8
3

 2
.7

 1
3

,3
2

6
 1

3
,1

6
0

 1
6

6
-

-
 -

L
e
s
s
 A

llo
c
s
 t

o
 T

ra
d
in

g
 a

/c
s
 i
n
c
 E

x
t 

F
u
n
d
e
d
 T

A
S

K
- 

2
4

4
- 

2
2

9
- 

1
5

- 
6

.1
- 

1
,4

6
3

- 
1

,4
1

6
- 

4
7

- 
3

.2
- 

2
,9

2
5

- 
2

,9
2

5
 -

L
e
s
s
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 C

a
p

it
a
l 
a
n
d
 A

s
s
e
t 

m
a
in

t.
 e

tc
- 

3
- 

3
- 

0
- 

0
.6

- 
1

8
- 

1
7

- 
1

- 
3

.5
- 

3
5

- 
3

5
 -

C
o

u
n

c
il 

W
id

e
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

P
o

s
ts

 2
 -

 2
 1

0
0

.0
 1

5
 -

 1
5

 1
0

0
.0

 5
2

 5
2

 -

C
h

e
c

k
 t

o
ta

l 
to

 P
a

y
 C

o
s

ts
 (

B
u

d
g

e
t 

b
o

o
k

 p
a

g
e

9
)

 8
2

4
 8

3
6

- 
1

3
- 

1
.6

 5
,1

8
7

 5
,0

3
7

 1
5

0
 2

.9
 1

0
,4

1
8

 1
0

,2
5

2
 1

6
6

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  

 4
_
S

a
la

ri
e
s

IT
E

M
 4

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 124



D
IR

E
C

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£

'0
0

0
£

'0
0

0
£

'0
0

0
%

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e

R
e

fu
s
e

-1
7
2

-1
7
2

0
%

-1
,0

2
5

-1
,0

2
8

0
%

3
-2

,0
5
1

-2
,0

5
2

1
5
0

2
3

2
7

1
0
1

-2
1
0
3

S
tr

e
e

t 
C

le
a

n
in

g
-9

6
-9

6
0
%

-5
7
5

-5
7
8

0
%

2
-1

,1
5
1

-1
,1

5
7

6
3
6

3
1

5
7
3

4
3

3
0

T
ra

d
e

-2
9

-2
4

-1
7
%

-5
-2

1
4

-1
9
9

-7
%

-1
5

-3
9
0

-3
7
0

-2
0

-4
2

-1
4

-2
8

-4
6

-5
-4

1

W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

-5
1

-4
6

-9
%

-5
-3

0
4

-2
6
4

-1
3
%

-4
0

-6
0
9

-5
6
7

-4
2

-1
5

2
0

-3
5

-2
9

-7
-2

2

G
re

e
n

 W
a

s
te

-4
1

-4
0

-1
%

-2
5
7

-2
5
8

1
%

2
-3

7
6

-4
2
0

4
4

-1
0
3

-7
8

-2
5

-8
4

-7
0

-1
4

P
re

m
is

e
s
 C

le
a

n
in

g
-2

1
-1

7
-2

3
%

-5
-1

2
9

-1
0
5

-1
9
%

-2
4

-2
5
8

-2
1
2

-4
6

-8
7

-1
4

-1
5

8
-2

3

C
e

s
s
p

o
o

ls
-2

3
-2

1
-1

2
%

-3
-1

4
0

-1
2
0

-1
5
%

-2
0

-2
8
0

-2
4
0

-4
0

-3
1

-9
-2

2
-6

3
-2

2
-4

1

P
e

s
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
l

-1
2

-9
-2

2
%

-3
-5

8
-5

9
1
%

1
-8

0
-8

5
5

-1
8

-1
8

-1
1

G
ro

u
n

d
s

-1
1

-1
1

0
%

-6
8

-6
8

0
%

-1
3
5

-1
3
7

2
9

4
6

9
-1

1
0

F
le

e
t

-6
8

-6
4

-6
%

-4
-4

0
8

-3
7
7

-8
%

-3
1

-8
1
6

-8
1
6

-5
5

D
e

p
o

t
-2

2
-2

7
2
2
%

5
-1

4
4

-1
2
3

-1
4
%

-2
1

-2
9
0

-2
3
0

-6
0

3
-6

9
-2

0
1
0

-3
0

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y

-4
-4

0
%

-2
2

-2
2

0
%

-4
5

-4
5

1
-5

5
2

-4
6

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

-5
5
1

-5
3
2

-3
%

-1
9

-3
,3

4
4

-3
,2

0
0

-4
%

-1
4
4

-6
,4

8
1

-6
,3

3
1

-1
5
0

-1
1
7

-5
1

-6
5

-7
4

-5
1

-2
3

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re

R
e

fu
s
e

1
7
9

1
7
6

2
%

3
1
,0

7
6

1
,0

5
1

2
%

2
5

2
,1

5
1

2
,0

5
0

1
0
1

S
tr

e
e

t 
C

le
a

n
in

g
1
0
2

1
0
1

1
%

1
6
1
2

6
0
9

0
%

3
1
,2

2
3

1
,2

0
0

2
3

T
ra

d
e

2
9

3
0

-3
%

-1
1
7
2

1
8
5

-7
%

-1
3

3
4
4

3
6
5

-2
1

W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

4
8

4
8

1
%

1
2
9
0

2
8
4

2
%

6
5
7
9

5
6
0

1
9

G
re

e
n

 W
a

s
te

2
8

3
4

-2
3
%

-6
1
5
4

1
8
0

-1
7
%

-2
6

2
9
3

3
5
0

-5
7

P
re

m
is

e
s
 C

le
a

n
in

g
2
0

1
8

9
%

2
1
2
1

1
1
1

8
%

1
0

2
4
3

2
2
0

2
3

C
e

s
s
p

o
o

ls
1
8

1
9

-3
%

-1
1
0
9

1
1
0

-1
%

-2
2
1
7

2
1
8

-1

P
e

s
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
l

7
6

1
4
%

1
4
0

4
1

-2
%

-1
8
0

8
4

-4

G
ro

u
n

d
s

1
3

1
1

1
4
%

2
7
7

7
1

8
%

6
1
4
4

1
3
6

8

F
le

e
t

6
8

6
3

7
%

5
4
0
8

3
7
2

9
%

3
6

8
1
6

8
1
6

D
e

p
o

t
2
1

1
4

3
2
%

7
1
4
7

1
1
7

2
0
%

3
0

2
7
0

2
4
0

3
0

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y

4
4

8
%

2
3

1
8

2
3
%

5
4
7

4
1

6

T
o

ta
l 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
3
7

5
2
4

3
%

1
4

3
,2

2
8

3
,1

4
8

2
%

7
9

6
,4

0
7

6
,2

8
0

1
2
7

N
e
t

-1
4

-8
-4

1
%

-6
-1

1
7

-5
1

-5
6
%

-6
5

-7
4

-5
1

-2
3

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 

b
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

N
e

t 
A

c
tu

a
l 

b
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 

b
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

N
e

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

b
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

N
e

t 
A

c
tu

a
l 

b
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

B
u

d
g
e

t
F

o
re

c
a

s
t

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

N
e

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

b
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

A
N

N
U

A
L

 N
E

T
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
e
p

-1
1

B
u

d
g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l 
/ 

B
u
d
g

e
t

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

B
u

d
g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l 
/ 

B
u
d
g

e
t

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

P
E

R
IO

D
Y

-T
-D

A
N

N
U

A
L

Y
-T

-D
 N

E
T

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 5

_
D

ir
 S

e
rv

IT
E

M
 5

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 125



IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls
B

u
d

g
e

t 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

1
1

/1
2

1
1

/1
2

A
P

R
6

1
,8

4
7

3
1

,4
3

1
2

1
,7

2
2

1
1

,1
0

5
1

0
,6

1
7

2
1

,7
0

0

M
A

Y
5

4
,7

8
3

3
6

,8
3

1
2

1
,9

8
3

1
2

,5
9

1
9

,3
9

2
2

2
,0

0
0

J
U

N
5

1
,5

9
8

3
6

,1
6

4
2

5
,3

4
2

1
4

,6
7

7
1

0
,6

6
5

2
5

,3
0

0

J
U

L
5

3
,0

0
6

3
3

,3
6

1
2

5
,4

9
8

1
5

,2
6

9
1

0
,2

2
9

2
5

,5
0

0

A
U

G
3

8
,7

0
9

2
7

,8
5

8
2

9
,4

4
6

1
5

,4
4

2
1

4
,0

0
4

2
9

,4
0

0

S
E

P
3

7
,5

3
4

2
3

,5
3

2
2

6
,5

8
6

1
6

,2
1

5
1

0
,3

7
1

2
6

,6
0

0

O
C

T
4

0
,5

2
4

2
6

,3
5

2
1

6
,7

4
8

2
2

,0
0

0

N
O

V
4

0
,9

8
2

2
5

,2
5

4
1

7
,8

4
6

2
2

,0
0

0

D
E

C
3

5
,8

6
9

2
4

,2
4

0
1

8
,4

6
0

2
2

,0
0

0

J
A

N
3

9
,4

2
3

2
7

,8
3

2
1

8
,3

0
2

2
2

,0
0

0

F
E

B
3

6
,4

5
5

2
2

,5
0

1
1

5
,6

9
8

2
2

,0
0

0

M
A

R
3

2
,6

9
4

2
0

,7
2

3
1

3
,6

4
7

2
2

,0
0

0

5
2

3
,4

2
4

3
3

6
,0

7
9

1
5

0
,5

7
7

1
8

6
,0

0
0

6
5

,2
7

8
2

8
2

,5
0

0

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

 (
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls
B

u
d

g
e

t 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

1
1

/1
2

1
1

/1
2

A
P

R
6

1
,8

4
7

3
1

,4
3

1
2

1
,7

2
2

1
1

,1
0

5
1

0
,6

1
7

2
1

,7
0

0

M
A

Y
1

1
6

,6
3

0
6

8
,2

6
2

4
3

,7
0

5
2

3
,6

9
6

2
0

,0
0

9
4

3
,7

0
0

J
U

N
1

6
8

,2
2

8
1

0
4

,4
2

6
6

9
,0

4
7

3
8

,3
7

3
3

0
,6

7
4

6
9

,0
0

0

J
U

L
2

2
1

,2
3

4
1

3
7

,7
8

7
9

4
,5

4
5

5
3

,6
4

2
4

0
,9

0
3

9
4

,5
0

0

A
U

G
2

5
9

,9
4

3
1

6
5

,6
4

5
1

2
3

,9
9

1
6

9
,0

8
4

5
4

,9
0

7
1

2
3

,9
0

0

S
E

P
2

9
7

,4
7

7
1

8
9

,1
7

7
1

5
0

,5
7

7
8

5
,2

9
9

6
5

,2
7

8
1

5
0

,5
0

0

O
C

T
3

3
8

,0
0

1
2

1
5

,5
2

9
1

0
2

,0
4

7
1

7
2

,5
0

0

N
O

V
3

7
8

,9
8

3
2

4
0

,7
8

3
1

1
9

,8
9

3
1

9
4

,5
0

0

D
E

C
4

1
4

,8
5

2
2

6
5

,0
2

3
1

3
8

,3
5

3
2

1
6

,5
0

0

J
A

N
4

5
4

,2
7

5
2

9
2

,8
5

5
1

5
6

,6
5

5
2

3
8

,5
0

0

F
E

B
4

9
0

,7
3

0
3

1
5

,3
5

6
1

7
2

,3
5

3
2

6
0

,5
0

0

M
A

R
5

2
3

,4
2

4
3

3
6

,0
7

9
1

8
6

,0
0

0
2

8
2

,5
0

0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 F
O

R
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
1

8
6

,0
0

0

F
O

R
E

C
A

S
T

 O
U

T
T

U
R

N
2

8
2

,5
0

0

C
O

D
E

:-
Y

H
A

A
9

6
9

0
0

N
.B

.

1
) 

T
h

e
s

e
 a

re
 t

h
e

 g
ro

s
s

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

re
c

e
ip

ts
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n

  
  

th
e

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d

2
) 

In
te

re
s

t 
d

u
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 L

a
n

d
s

b
a

n
k

i 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
h

a
s

 b
e

e
n

  
  

re
m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
s

 a
s

 f
ro

m
 2

5
/6

/2
0

0
8

F
u

n
d

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
1

.1
2

9
4

%

7
 D

a
y
 L

IB
ID

0
.4

5
7

3
%

3
 M

o
n

th
 L

IB
ID

0
.7

0
4

9
%

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

7
0
,0

0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

2
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

8
0
0
0
0

1
0
0
0
0
0

1
2
0
0
0
0

1
4
0
0
0
0

1
6
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
8
/0

9
A

c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
0
/1

1
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
0
/1

1

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0

8
0
0
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

1
,2

0
0
,0

0
0

1
,4

0
0
,0

0
0

1
,6

0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
8

/0
9

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

0
/1

1
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
0

/1
1

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 R

E
T

U
R

N
S

0

1
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0

5
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1
A

c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2
B

u
d
g
e
t 

1
1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a
s
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 R
E

T
U

R
N

S

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0 A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

1
1

/1
2

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 6

_
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

IT
E

M
 6

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 126



S
T

A
F

F
IN

G
 S

T
A

T
IS

T
IC

S

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1
1

B
D

G
T

 B
O

O
K

S
T

A
F

F
A

G
E

N
C

Y
C

A
S

U
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

 /
 V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

S
A

U
G

U
S

T

F
T

E
F

T
E

S
T

A
F

F
F

T
E

T
O

T
A

L
S

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

 O
ff

ic
e

3
.6

1
2
.4

1
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
.4

1
1
 F

T
E

 p
o
s
t 

d
e
le

te
d
 w

e
f 

1
0
/6

/1
1
 -

 0
.4

1
 t

e
m

p
 p

o
s
t 

w
e
f 

1
1
/7

.
2
.4

1

S
U

B
 T

O
T

A
L

3
.6

1
2
.4

1
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
.4

1
2
.4

1

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

D
ir
e
c
to

r,
 S

e
c
re

ta
ri
e
s
 

5
.5

0
6
.6

3
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
.6

3

B
u
d
g

e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 S

e
c
re

ta
ri
a
t 

(a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 H

R
) 

1
 P

/T
 p

o
s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 h

o
u
rs

. 
0
.6

8
 

p
o
s
t 

w
e
f 

2
5
/7

.
6
.6

3

F
in

a
n
c
e
 &

 H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

8
2
.4

2
8
0
.2

6
2
.0

0
1
.1

0
8
3
.3

6
In

c
lu

d
e
s
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 T

e
a
m

 &
 2

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 &
 L

o
c
a
l 
T

a
x
 A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
.

8
1
.3

8

L
e
g

a
l,
 E

le
c
to

ra
l,
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 

P
o
lic

y
 &

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

1
7
.1

2
1
4
.2

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
4
.2

2
1
3
.5

4

L
e
g
a
l,
 E

le
c
to

ra
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
5
.5

1
1
2
.4

1
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
.4

1
1
1
.7

3

P
o
lic

y
 &

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

1
.6

1
1
.8

1
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
.8

1

N
o
w

 1
.6

1
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
 t

o
 L

e
g
a
l,
 E

le
c
to

ra
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
m

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

0
.2

 w
o
rk

e
d
 i
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o
m

m
s
 b

u
t 

in
c
. 

in
 P

&
P

.
1
.8

1

IT
 &

 F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

2
4
.4

6
2
6
.4

3
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
6
.4

3
2
 T

e
m

p
 p

o
s
ts

 (
1
 i
IT

 &
 1

 F
a
c
) 

s
o
 2

 o
v
e
r 

B
d
g

t 
F

T
E

.
2
5
.4

3

S
U

B
 T

O
T

A
L

1
2
9
.5

0
1
2
7
.5

4
2
.0

0
1
.1

0
1
3
0
.6

4
1
2
6
.9

8

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 &
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

D
ir
e
c
to

r,
 P

A
 &

 S
e
c
re

ta
ri
a
l

2
.0

0
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
.0

0
2
.0

0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

1
0
.7

4
1
0
.2

4
0
.0

0
0
.9

9
1
1
.2

3
1
 p

o
s
t 

is
 p

a
rt

 e
x
te

rn
a
lly

 f
u
n
d
e
d
. 

1
1
.3

9

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
&

 O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
6
1
.9

8
1
5
1
.4

2
1
1
.7

6
0
.3

5
1
6
3
.5

3
1
6
3
.7

5

S
D

S
 &

 C
C

T
V

1
2
0
.1

0
1
1
2
.3

1
1
1
.7

6
0
.3

5
1
2
4
.4

2
In

c
lu

d
e
s
 G

ro
u
n
d
s
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
.

1
2
3
.8

7

E
n
v
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
2
5
.0

2
2
4
.2

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
4
.2

5
2
4
.2

5

P
a
rk

in
g
 &

 A
m

e
n
it
y

1
6
.8

6
1
4
.8

6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
4
.8

6
1
4
.8

6

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

5
1
.3

4
4
4
.5

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
4
.5

5
4
4
.5

5

B
u
ild

in
g

 C
o
n
tr

o
l

7
.8

1
6
.8

1
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
.8

1
P

lu
s
 1

 S
e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r.

7
.8

1

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

1
5
.1

7
1
3
.8

9
1
.0

9
0
.0

0
1
4
.9

8
1
 p

o
s
t 

is
 p

a
rt

 e
x
te

rn
a
lly

 f
u
n
d
e
d
. 

1
5
.1

2

S
U

B
 T

O
T

A
L

2
4
9
.0

4
2
2
8
.9

1
1
3
.8

5
1
.3

4
2
4
4
.1

0
2
4
4
.6

2

E
X

T
E

R
N

A
L

L
Y

 F
U

N
D

E
D

 P
O

S
T

S

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

2
.0

4
2
.5

4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
.5

4
2
.5

4

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
&

 O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

3
.4

1
4
.3

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
.3

0
1
 p

o
s
t 

is
 p

a
rt

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 S

D
C

 (
s
e
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

).
 

4
.3

0

S
U

B
 T

O
T

A
L

5
.4

5
6
.8

4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
.8

4
6
.8

4

T
O

T
A

L
S

3
8
7
.6

0
3
6
5
.7

0
1
5
.8

5
2
.4

4
3
8
3
.9

9
3
8
0
.8

5

3
9
1
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t,

 1
3
 c

a
s
u
a
ls

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 p

a
id

 i
n

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 7

_
S

ta
ff

IT
E

M
 7

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 127



 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

3
1

/3
/1

1

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 m

o
n

th

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

 

to
 d

a
te

B
a

la
n

c
e

 a
s

 

a
t 

3
0

/9
/1

1
3

1
/3

/1
2

3
1

/3
/1

2

b
u

d
g

e
t

fo
re

c
a

s
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s

  
  
 F

ir
s
t 
T

im
e

 S
e

w
e

ra
g

e
9

1
5

0
0

9
1

5
0

0

  
  
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 R
e

lie
f 
R

o
a

d
 C

o
m

p
e

n
s
a

ti
o

n
 (

1
)

1
,5

6
6

0
-2

7
1

,5
3

9
0

0

  
  
 A

c
c
u

m
u

la
te

d
 A

b
s
e

n
c
e

s
1

5
2

0
0

1
5

2
1

5
2

1
5

2

  
  
 O

th
e

rs
8

5
0

-3
3

5
2

0
0

2
,7

1
8

0
-6

0
2

,6
5

8
1

5
2

1
5

2

C
a

p
it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

(G
ro

s
s
)

7
6

3
7

6
5

8
2

8
1

,3
6

9
1

,3
6

9

N
o

te
: 
th

is
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 w
ill

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 a
t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

ip
ts

 a
re

 u
s
e

d
 t
o

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

E
a

rm
a

rk
e

d
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

s

  
  
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 (
2

)
4

,3
1

5
0

-3
,3

1
5

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

  
  
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

r'
s
 S

u
p

e
ra

n
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 (

2
)

2
,5

6
9

0
-2

,5
6

9
0

0
0

  
  
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n

 (
2

)
0

0
5

,8
2

4
5

,8
2

4
5

,8
1

2
5

,8
2

4

  
  
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

ta
b

ili
s
a

ti
o

n
2

,4
3

6
0

0
2

,4
3

6
3

4
1

2
,4

3
6

  
  
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
s
u

b
s
id

y
1

,1
9

2
0

0
1

,1
9

2
7

0
1

1
,1

1
7

  
  
 L

D
F

5
7

4
-1

3
-2

2
5

5
2

2
6

7
5

5
2

  
  
 V

e
h

ic
le

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l
5

6
4

0
2

8
5

9
2

6
0

8
6

0
8

  
  
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

4
1

8
0

3
5

4
5

3
0

0

  
  
 R

e
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 (

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 T
e

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
)

3
5

8
0

-2
1

3
3

7
7

5
3

0
0

  
  
 C

a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 I
te

m
s

3
4

1
0

-2
0

3
2

1
0

0

  
  
 A

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

3
1

4
0

-9
3

0
5

3
0

0
3

0
0

  
  
 V

e
h

ic
le

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

2
6

4
0

0
2

6
4

2
4

6
2

4
6

  
  
 O

th
e

rs
8

2
4

-4
-2

4
8

0
0

3
2

2
3

2
2

1
4

,1
6

9
-1

7
-9

3
1

4
,0

7
6

9
,6

7
2

1
2

,7
0

5

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d

  
  
  
R

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 M

in
im

u
m

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

  
  
 A

v
a

ila
b

le
 B

a
la

n
c
e

2
,2

1
3

2
,2

1
3

2
,2

1
3

3
,7

1
3

3
,7

1
3

3
,7

1
3

T
O

T
A

L
2

1
,3

6
3

1
4

,9
0

6
1

7
,9

3
9

N
o

te
s

2
. 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
(1

3
/1

2
/1

0
) 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

llo
w

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

n
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

 o
f 
£

1
m

, 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 b
a

la
n

c
e

s
 

fr
o

m
 t
h

e
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

r'
s
 S

u
p

e
ra

n
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 b

e
 m

o
v
e

d
 t
o

 a
 n

e
w

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

 R
e

s
e

rv
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 

b
e

 u
s
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 t
e

n
-y

e
a

r 
p

e
ri
o

d
 e

q
u

a
lly

 t
o

 s
m

o
o

th
 t
h

e
 r

u
n

d
o

w
n

 o
f 
th

e
s
e

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
.

1
. 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 R
e

lie
f 
R

o
a

d
 C

o
m

p
e

n
s
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
o

 p
re

d
ic

t 
a

s
 i
t 
is

 d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 t
im

in
g

 

o
f 
a

g
re

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
e

n
s
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
m

s
.

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 8

_
R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

IT
E

M
 8

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 128



9
. 

 C
a

p
it

a
l

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
ri

o
d

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

Y
-T

-D
Y

-T
-D

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 1

1
 -

 F
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
c
c
ru

a
ls

)

 V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

C
O

M
M

D
E

V
L
o
c
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 1

0
- 

1
0

-
 -

 -
 -

C
O

M
M

D
E

V
P

a
ri
s
h
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 7
 -

 7
 1

0
0
.0

 2
8

 -
 2

8
 1

0
0
.0

 7
1

 7
1

 -

E
N

V
O

P
S

P
la

y
g

ro
u
n
d
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 6
 -

 6
 1

0
0
.0

 2
3

 4
 1

9
 8

2
.5

 5
9

 5
9

 -

E
N

V
O

P
S

V
e
h
ic

le
 P

u
rc

h
a
s
e
s

 1
2
7

 1
6
4

- 
3
8

- 
2
9
.7

 5
0
6

 2
3
6

 2
7
0

 5
3
.4

 1
,2

6
6

 1
,2

6
6

 -

F
IN

S
E

R
V

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

C
a
p
it
a
l)
 (

L
K

F
)

 1
8

 3
 1

4
 8

1
.4

 7
0

 3
 6

7
 9

5
.4

 1
7
5

 1
7
5

 -

F
IN

S
E

R
V

H
o
rt

o
n
 K

ir
b
y
 V

ill
a
g

e
 H

a
ll

 -
 0

- 
0

-
 -

 3
- 

3
-

 -
 -

 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

G
ra

n
ts

 6
9

 1
8

 5
1

 7
4
.4

 2
8
5

 1
0
0

 1
8
5

 6
5
.0

 6
9
9

 6
9
9

 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

W
k
h
a
 A

d
a
p
s
 F

o
r 

D
is

a
b
 F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 C

o
s
ts

 A
d
v
a
n
c
e
s
-H

s
g

 -
 7

- 
7

-
 -

 4
5

- 
4
5

-
 -

 -
 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

R
H

P
C

G
 1

0
-1

1
 S

D
C

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 1

5
- 

1
5

-
 -

 -
 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

R
H

P
C

G
 -

 D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 G
ra

n
ts

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 7

- 
7

-
 -

 -
 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

R
H

P
C

G
 -

 E
m

p
ty

 H
o
m

e
s

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 2

- 
2

-
 -

 -
 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

R
H

P
C

G
 -

 H
M

O
 G

ra
n
ts

 -
 2

- 
2

-
 -

 5
- 

5
-

 -
 -

 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

H
e
v
e
r 

R
o
a
d
 G

y
p
s
y
 S

it
e
 -

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 1

1
- 

1
1

-
 -

 -
 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

H
e
v
e
r 

R
o
a
d
 G

y
p
s
y
 S

it
e
 -

 A
m

e
n
it
y
 B

lo
c
k
s

 3
4

 0
 3

4
 9

9
.0

 1
3
7

 2
1

 1
1
6

 8
4
.4

 3
4
3

 3
4
3

 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

H
e
v
e
r 

R
o
a
d
 G

y
p
s
y
 S

it
e
 -

 G
ro

u
n
d
 W

o
rk

s
 -

 2
7

- 
2
7

-
 -

 2
7
0

- 
2
7
0

-
 -

 -
 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

H
e
v
e
r 

R
o
a
d
 G

y
p
s
y
 S

it
e
 -

 P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 W
o
rk

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 1

- 
1

-
 -

 -
 -

H
O

U
S

IN
G

H
e
v
e
r 

R
o
a
d
 G

y
p
s
y
 S

it
e
 -

 B
o
m

b
 D

is
p
o
s
a
l

 -
 -

 -
-

 -
 1

0
- 

1
0

-
 -

 -
 -

L
E

G
A

L
M

o
d
e
rn

 G
o
v
t 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
 2

 -
 2

 1
0
0
.0

 6
 -

 6
 1

0
0
.0

 1
6

 1
6

 -

 2
6
2

 2
2
1

 4
1

 1
5
.5

 1
,0

5
6

 7
4
3

 3
1
3

 2
9
.6

 2
,6

2
8

 2
,6

2
8

 -

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

G
ra

n
ts

 b
u
d
g

e
t 

s
h
o
w

n
 n

e
t 

o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

g
ra

n
t.

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 9

_
C

a
p
it
a
l

IT
E

M
 9

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 129



C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 I
N

C
O

M
E

 F
IG

U
R

E
S

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

A
C

T
U

A
L

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 

1
0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 

1
1
/1

2
, 

w
h
e
re

 a
 

m
in

u
s
 i
s
 'b

a
d
 

n
e
w

s
'

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
'S

 

P
R

O
F

IL
E

D
  

  
  

  

B
U

D
G

E
T

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
, 

w
h
e
re

 a
 m

in
u
s
 

is
 'b

a
d
 n

e
w

s
'

A
N

N
U

A
L

 

B
U

D
G

E
T

A
n

n
u

a
l 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
S

1
,0

2
2
,8

8
6

3
8
,1

3
2

1
,0

2
6
,2

5
6

-3
,3

7
0

2
,0

3
6
,4

9
1

2
,0

3
6
,4

9
1

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

3
1
2
,6

0
7

1
7
,6

5
3

3
3
3
,6

3
8

-2
1

,0
3

0
6
5
1
,6

6
9

6
1
1
,6

6
9

L
A

N
D

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S
9
6
,6

4
2

6
,2

5
1

1
0
1
,5

9
6

-4
,9

5
4

1
8
5
,0

1
0

1
8
5
,0

1
0

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
2
1
4
,5

8
1

-2
9

,7
4

4
2
7
6
,4

4
6

-6
1

,8
6

5
5
1
4
,4

5
9

4
4
3
,4

5
9

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

2
6
7
,2

7
5

1
0
5
,9

8
5

2
8
6
,0

8
4

-1
8

,8
0

8
5
9
3
,9

2
0

5
4
3
,9

2
0

1
,9

1
3
,9

9
3

1
3
8
,2

7
8

2
,0

2
4
,0

2
0

-1
1

0
,0

2
7

3
,9

8
1
,5

4
8

3
,8

2
0
,5

4
8

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  
 1

0
_
G

ra
p
h
s
 (

S
u
m

m
a
ry

)
IT

E
M

 1
0

2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 130



1
0

_
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

 G
ra

p
h

s

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
S

 (
H

W
C

A
R

P
K

)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls

In
c
re

a
s
e

  
/ 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r'
s

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 1
1

/1
2

1
1

/1
2

(A
c
tu

a
ls

-B
u

d
g

e
t)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

1
A

P
R

1
4

9
,5

3
7

1
4

4
,0

5
2

1
6

1
,7

0
7

1
7

,6
5

4
1

5
3

,5
3

7
8

,1
6

9

2
M

A
Y

1
3

9
,1

8
1

1
4

6
,2

4
7

1
6

8
,7

2
2

2
2

,4
7

4
1

6
2

,2
1

3
6

,5
0

9

3
J

U
N

1
6

6
,6

2
1

1
7

2
,7

8
8

1
8

0
,3

6
8

7
,5

8
0

1
8

3
,4

2
7

-3
,0

5
9

4
J

U
L

1
5

5
,2

9
6

1
7

6
,7

1
7

1
7

1
,9

6
0

-4
,7

5
7

1
7

2
,8

8
0

-9
1

9

5
A

U
G

1
4

8
,4

2
3

1
7

0
,5

5
8

1
6

7
,3

3
6

-3
,2

2
1

1
7

2
,0

9
2

-4
,7

5
5

6
S

E
P

1
5

1
,4

9
0

1
7

4
,3

9
2

1
7

2
,7

9
3

-1
,5

9
9

1
8

2
,1

0
8

-9
,3

1
4

7
O

C
T

1
7

0
,8

6
9

1
7

9
,1

5
3

-1
7

9
,1

5
3

1
8

5
,1

7
8

8
N

O
V

1
4

6
,9

7
4

1
6

6
,6

7
3

-1
6

6
,6

7
3

1
7

3
,2

0
7

9
D

E
C

1
4

5
,3

6
9

1
2

9
,8

9
1

-1
2

9
,8

9
1

1
4

6
,7

8
8

1
0

J
A

N
1

5
1

,4
2

8
1

7
1

,9
7

8
-1

7
1

,9
7

8
1

7
6

,5
3

2

1
1

F
E

B
1

4
0

,3
7

2
1

5
8

,9
8

6
-1

5
8

,9
8

6
1

6
3

,1
1

2

1
2

M
A

R
1

5
7

,8
3

8
1

7
2

,0
1

2
-1

7
2

,0
1

2
1

6
5

,4
1

7

1
,8

2
3

,3
9

6
1

,9
6

3
,4

4
6

1
,0

2
2

,8
8

6
-9

4
0

,5
6

0
2

,0
3

6
,4

9
1

-3
,3

7
0

2
,0

3
6

,4
9

1

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
S

 (
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls

C
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

  
/ 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
B

u
d

g
e

t 
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r'
s

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

0
9

/1
0

 t
o

 1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

(C
o

lu
m

n
 E

-G
)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

A
P

R
1

4
9

,5
3

7
1

4
4

,0
5

2
1

6
1

,7
0

7
1

7
,6

5
4

1
5

3
,5

3
7

8
,1

6
9

M
A

Y
2

8
8

,7
1

8
2

9
0

,2
9

9
3

3
0

,4
2

8
4

0
,1

2
9

3
1

5
,7

5
0

1
4

,6
7

8

J
U

N
E

4
5

5
,3

3
8

4
6

3
,0

8
7

5
1

0
,7

9
6

4
7

,7
0

9
4

9
9

,1
7

7
1

1
,6

1
9

J
U

L
6

1
0

,6
3

4
6

3
9

,8
0

5
6

8
2

,7
5

7
4

2
,9

5
2

6
7

2
,0

5
7

1
0

,7
0

0

A
U

G
7

5
9

,0
5

7
8

1
0

,3
6

2
8

5
0

,0
9

3
3

9
,7

3
1

8
4

4
,1

4
8

5
,9

4
5

S
E

P
9

1
0

,5
4

7
9

8
4

,7
5

4
1

,0
2

2
,8

8
6

3
8

,1
3

2
1

,0
2

6
,2

5
6

-3
,3

7
0

O
C

T
1

,0
8

1
,4

1
5

1
,1

6
3

,9
0

7
-1

,1
6

3
,9

0
7

1
,2

1
1

,4
3

4

N
O

V
1

,2
2

8
,3

8
9

1
,3

3
0

,5
8

0
-1

,3
3

0
,5

8
0

1
,3

8
4

,6
4

1

D
E

C
1

,3
7

3
,7

5
8

1
,4

6
0

,4
7

0
-1

,4
6

0
,4

7
0

1
,5

3
1

,4
2

9

J
A

N
1

,5
2

5
,1

8
6

1
,6

3
2

,4
4

8
-1

,6
3

2
,4

4
8

1
,7

0
7

,9
6

2

F
E

B
1

,6
6

5
,5

5
8

1
,7

9
1

,4
3

4
-1

,7
9

1
,4

3
4

1
,8

7
1

,0
7

4

M
A

R
1

,8
2

3
,3

9
6

1
,9

6
3

,4
4

6
-1

,9
6

3
,4

4
6

2
,0

3
6

,4
9

1
2

,0
3

6
,4

9
1

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

1
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

 B
R

E
A

K
D

O
W

N

H
W

C
A

R
P

K
 

 A
c

tu
a

l 

(C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

) 
 B

u
d

g
e

t
(M

o
n

th
ly

)

D
A

Y
 T

IC
K

E
T

S
 *

**
0

7
9

1
,7

6
1

7
8

0
,0

5
6

1
3

3
,9

6
1

E
X

C
E

S
S

 /
 P

E
N

A
L

T
Y

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S
 *

**
1

/*
**

3
7

8
,1

8
0

8
0

,0
0

5
1

1
,6

1
6

S
E

A
S

O
N

 T
IC

K
E

T
S

 *
**

2
1

4
4

,5
9

6
1

6
2

,1
4

1
2

7
,1

6
2

 O
T

H
E

R
 (

in
c
.R

e
s
.P

k
g
)

**
*9

4
,2

1
6

2
3

5

 W
A

IV
E

R
S

3
4

0
4

7
0

-
-

R
E

N
T

9
4

5
0

0
4

,0
6

4
4

,0
5

2
2

0

1
,0

2
2

,8
8

6
1

,0
2

6
,2

5
6

1
7

2
,7

9
3

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
S

0

2
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

8
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
2
0
,0

0
0

1
4
0
,0

0
0

1
6
0
,0

0
0

1
8
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0

A
c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2

B
u
d
g
e
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

S
 I

N
C

O
M

E
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

in
c

.S
e

a
s

o
n

s
 &

 E
x

c
e

s
s

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0

1
,5

0
0

,0
0

0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0

2
,5

0
0

,0
0

0

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 -
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
  

 1
0
_

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
 G

ra
p

h
s

IT
E

M
 1

0
2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 131



1
0

_
O

n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

G
ra

p
h

s

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 (
H

W
D

C
R

IM
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls

In
c
re

a
s
e

  
/ 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r'
s

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 1
1

/1
2

1
1

/1
2

(A
c
tu

a
ls

-B
u

d
g

e
t)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

1
A

P
R

4
1

,7
9

5
4

5
,1

4
6

4
7

,0
4

6
1

,8
9

9
5

3
,5

2
4

-6
,4

7
8

2
M

A
Y

4
5

,1
7

0
4

2
,3

2
8

4
5

,4
0

8
3

,0
7

9
5

0
,3

3
6

-4
,9

2
9

3
J

U
N

3
9

,8
2

8
4

9
,8

7
2

5
3

,6
6

6
3

,7
9

3
5

5
,5

8
4

-1
,9

1
8

4
J

U
L

6
3

,7
4

2
6

5
,7

8
4

6
8

,3
7

6
2

,5
9

2
6

7
,9

9
5

3
8

1

5
A

U
G

4
4

,9
9

9
4

4
,9

1
0

5
0

,3
5

0
5

,4
4

0
5

3
,5

1
3

-3
,1

6
3

6
S

E
P

4
2

,3
2

5
4

6
,9

1
3

4
7

,7
6

2
8

4
9

5
2

,6
8

7
-4

,9
2

4

7
O

C
T

4
6

,1
4

5
4

2
,8

3
2

-4
2

,8
3

2
4

9
,4

5
4

8
N

O
V

4
3

,3
7

4
4

5
,6

0
7

-4
5

,6
0

7
5

2
,2

9
1

9
D

E
C

4
3

,2
4

2
3

7
,4

5
2

-3
7

,4
5

2
5

3
,4

7
4

1
0

J
A

N
3

8
,0

7
5

4
4

,7
2

0
-4

4
,7

2
0

4
8

,5
8

5

1
1

F
E

B
4

4
,5

3
7

5
0

,5
6

8
-5

0
,5

6
8

5
6

,3
6

9

1
2

M
A

R
5

0
,1

0
0

5
6

,7
6

1
-5

6
,7

6
1

5
7

,8
5

9

5
4

3
,3

3
2

5
7

2
,8

9
4

3
1

2
,6

0
7

-2
6

0
,2

8
7

6
5

1
,6

6
9

-2
1

,0
3

0
6

1
1

,6
6

9

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 (
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls

C
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

  
/ 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
B

u
d

g
e

t 
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r'
s

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

0
9

/1
0

 t
o

 1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

(C
o

lu
m

n
 E

-G
)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

A
P

R
4

1
,7

9
5

4
5

,1
4

6
4

7
,0

4
6

1
,8

9
9

5
3

,5
2

4
-6

,4
7

8

M
A

Y
8

6
,9

6
5

8
7

,4
7

5
9

2
,4

5
3

4
,9

7
8

1
0

3
,8

6
0

-1
1

,4
0

6

J
U

N
E

1
2

6
,7

9
3

1
3

7
,3

4
7

1
4

6
,1

1
9

8
,7

7
2

1
5

9
,4

4
3

-1
3

,3
2

5

J
U

L
1

9
0

,5
3

5
2

0
3

,1
3

1
2

1
4

,4
9

5
1

1
,3

6
4

2
2

7
,4

3
8

-1
2

,9
4

3

A
U

G
2

3
5

,5
3

3
2

4
8

,0
4

1
2

6
4

,8
4

5
1

6
,8

0
4

2
8

0
,9

5
1

-1
6

,1
0

6

S
E

P
2

7
7

,8
5

9
2

9
4

,9
5

4
3

1
2

,6
0

7
1

7
,6

5
3

3
3

3
,6

3
8

-2
1

,0
3

0

O
C

T
3

2
4

,0
0

4
3

3
7

,7
8

6
-3

3
7

,7
8

6
3

8
3

,0
9

1

N
O

V
3

6
7

,3
7

7
3

8
3

,3
9

3
-3

8
3

,3
9

3
4

3
5

,3
8

2

D
E

C
4

1
0

,6
1

9
4

2
0

,8
4

5
-4

2
0

,8
4

5
4

8
8

,8
5

6

J
A

N
4

4
8

,6
9

4
4

6
5

,5
6

5
-4

6
5

,5
6

5
5

3
7

,4
4

1

F
E

B
4

9
3

,2
3

2
5

1
6

,1
3

3
-5

1
6

,1
3

3
5

9
3

,8
1

0

M
A

R
5

4
3

,3
3

2
5

7
2

,8
9

4
-5

7
2

,8
9

4
6

5
1

,6
6

9
6

1
1

,6
6

9

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

1
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

 B
R

E
A

K
D

O
W

N

H
W

D
C

R
IM

 A
c

tu
a

l 

(C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

) 
 B

u
d

g
e

t
(M

o
n

th
ly

)

P
E

N
A

L
T

Y
 N

O
T

IC
E

S
3

4
0

3
6

3
,7

2
2

7
3

,5
0

0
1

0
,2

5
4

W
A

IV
E

R
S

3
4

0
4

2
,7

4
6

2
,5

6
2

3
0

0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

 P
E

R
M

IT
S

3
4

0
6

2
8

,0
5

8
2

4
,0

0
0

3
,4

6
4

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

3
3

0
0

1
8

0
,7

4
5

1
9

5
,7

7
6

2
8

,4
3

2

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

E
R

M
IT

S
3

4
0

8
3

7
,3

3
6

3
7

,8
0

0
5

,3
1

3

O
T

H
E

R
9

9
9

9
-

-
-

3
1

2
,6

0
7

3
3

3
,6

3
8

4
7

,7
6

2

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0

1
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

7
0
,0

0
0

8
0
,0

0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0

A
c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2

B
u
d
g
e
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 I
N

C
O

M
E

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

3
0

0
,0

0
0

4
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

6
0

0
,0

0
0

7
0

0
,0

0
0

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 -
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
  

 1
0
_

O
n

-S
tr

e
e

t 
G

ra
p

h
s

IT
E

M
 1

0
2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 132



1
0

_
L

a
n

d
 C

h
a

rg
e

s
 G

ra
p

h
s

L
A

N
D

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S
 (

L
P

L
N

D
C

H
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls

In
c
re

a
s
e

  
/ 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r'
s

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 1
1

/1
2

1
1

/1
2

(A
c
tu

a
ls

-B
u

d
g

e
t)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

1
A

P
R

1
3

,2
2

5
1

4
,4

6
3

1
1

,8
3

6
-2

,6
2

7
1

6
,2

7
8

-4
,4

4
1

2
M

A
Y

1
5

,4
8

5
1

8
,7

1
8

1
6

,3
0

3
-2

,4
1

5
2

1
,1

4
7

-4
,8

4
4

3
J

U
N

1
4

,6
8

2
1

4
,8

1
2

1
7

,9
9

4
3

,1
8

2
1

6
,6

2
5

1
,3

6
9

4
J

U
L

1
5

,4
1

6
1

7
,7

0
0

1
8

,9
8

7
1

,2
8

8
1

9
,8

6
6

-8
7

9

5
A

U
G

1
6

,7
9

9
1

2
,0

7
4

1
6

,6
5

8
4

,5
8

4
1

3
,3

8
4

3
,2

7
4

6
S

E
P

1
7

,9
4

3
1

2
,6

2
4

1
4

,8
6

3
2

,2
3

9
1

4
,2

9
6

5
6

6

7
O

C
T

1
5

,5
5

8
1

3
,7

1
0

-1
3

,7
1

0
1

5
,4

0
0

8
N

O
V

1
6

,6
9

7
1

4
,3

3
9

-1
4

,3
3

9
1

6
,0

9
0

9
D

E
C

1
0

,3
7

5
7

,4
3

9
-7

,4
3

9
8

,6
5

6

1
0

J
A

N
1

1
,2

2
7

1
0

,7
3

1
-1

0
,7

3
1

1
2

,1
0

5

1
1

F
E

B
2

0
,1

1
9

1
0

,9
9

9
-1

0
,9

9
9

1
2

,4
8

5

1
2

M
A

R
2

2
,4

4
2

1
6

,9
8

3
-1

6
,9

8
3

1
8

,6
7

8

1
8

9
,9

6
8

1
6

4
,5

9
2

9
6

,6
4

2
-6

7
,9

5
0

1
8

5
,0

1
0

-4
,9

5
4

1
8

5
,0

1
0

L
A

N
D

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S
 (

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls

C
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

  
/ 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
B

u
d

g
e

t 
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r'
s

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

0
9

/1
0

 t
o

 1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

(C
o

lu
m

n
 E

-G
)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

A
P

R
1

3
,2

2
5

1
4

,4
6

3
1

1
,8

3
6

-2
,6

2
7

1
6

,2
7

8
-4

,4
4

1

M
A

Y
2

8
,7

1
0

3
3

,1
8

2
2

8
,1

4
0

-5
,0

4
2

3
7

,4
2

5
-9

,2
8

5

J
U

N
E

4
3

,3
9

1
4

7
,9

9
4

4
6

,1
3

4
-1

,8
6

0
5

4
,0

5
0

-7
,9

1
6

J
U

L
5

8
,8

0
7

6
5

,6
9

4
6

5
,1

2
2

-5
7

2
7

3
,9

1
6

-8
,7

9
4

A
U

G
7

5
,6

0
6

7
7

,7
6

8
8

1
,7

8
0

4
,0

1
2

8
7

,3
0

0
-5

,5
2

0

S
E

P
9

3
,5

5
0

9
0

,3
9

1
9

6
,6

4
2

6
,2

5
1

1
0

1
,5

9
6

-4
,9

5
4

O
C

T
1

0
9

,1
0

8
1

0
4

,1
0

2
-1

0
4

,1
0

2
1

1
6

,9
9

6

N
O

V
1

2
5

,8
0

5
1

1
8

,4
4

1
-1

1
8

,4
4

1
1

3
3

,0
8

6

D
E

C
1

3
6

,1
8

0
1

2
5

,8
8

0
-1

2
5

,8
8

0
1

4
1

,7
4

2

J
A

N
1

4
7

,4
0

7
1

3
6

,6
1

0
-1

3
6

,6
1

0
1

5
3

,8
4

7

F
E

B
1

6
7

,5
2

6
1

4
7

,6
1

0
-1

4
7

,6
1

0
1

6
6

,3
3

2

M
A

R
1

8
9

,9
6

8
1

6
4

,5
9

2
-1

6
4

,5
9

2
1

8
5

,0
1

0
1

8
5

,0
1

0

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

1
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

 B
R

E
A

K
D

O
W

N

L
P

L
N

D
C

H
 R

e
c

e
iv

e
d

 

(M
o

n
th

) 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 

(M
o

n
th

)

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 (
M

o
n

th
 

1
0

/1
1

)
(C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

)

S
e

a
rc

h
e

s
 R

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 -

 P
a

p
e

r
£

1
0

5
5

0
2

7
.3

%
3

8
.9

%
3

2
3

S
e

a
rc

h
e

s
 R

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 -

 E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
£

8
6

9
5

5
1

.9
%

4
3

.4
%

6
3

5

S
e

a
rc

h
e

s
 R

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 -

 P
e

rs
o

n
a

l
£

0
3

8
2

0
.8

%
1

7
.7

%
2

8
3

1
8

3
1

0
0

.%
1

0
0

.%
1

,2
4

1

L
A

N
D

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S

0

5
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

2
5
,0

0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0

A
c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2

B
u
d
g
e
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 L

A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

 I
N

C
O

M
E

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0

2
0

,0
0

0

4
0

,0
0

0

6
0

,0
0

0

8
0

,0
0

0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
2

0
,0

0
0

1
4

0
,0

0
0

1
6

0
,0

0
0

1
8

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 -
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
  

 1
0
_

L
a

n
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s
 G

ra
p

h
s

IT
E

M
 1

0
2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 133



1
0

_
B

u
il
d

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
G

ra
p

h
s

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 (

D
V

B
C

F
E

E
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls

In
c
re

a
s
e

  
/ 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r'
s

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 1
1

/1
2

1
1

/1
2

(A
c
tu

a
ls

-B
u

d
g

e
t)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

1
A

P
R

3
6

,5
0

5
3

0
,2

8
4

2
6

,5
8

3
-3

,7
0

1
5

0
,8

7
9

-2
4

,2
9

7

2
M

A
Y

3
6

,5
9

8
3

6
,3

3
0

2
8

,0
0

8
-8

,3
2

2
5

0
,8

7
9

-2
2

,8
7

1

3
J

U
N

3
4

,4
3

0
3

6
,7

0
1

4
3

,8
7

8
7

,1
7

7
4

6
,0

7
4

-2
,1

9
6

4
J

U
L

3
3

,9
1

7
5

1
,6

4
9

4
4

,9
0

2
-6

,7
4

7
4

1
,2

7
0

3
,6

3
2

5
A

U
G

3
6

,2
8

5
4

3
,1

9
9

3
5

,3
2

1
-7

,8
7

8
4

1
,2

7
0

-5
,9

4
9

6
S

E
P

4
2

,7
7

0
4

6
,1

6
3

3
5

,8
9

0
-1

0
,2

7
4

4
6

,0
7

4
-1

0
,1

8
4

7
O

C
T

3
6

,9
9

5
4

2
,0

4
4

-4
2

,0
4

4
4

1
,2

7
0

8
N

O
V

3
5

,0
8

5
2

7
,4

6
9

-2
7

,4
6

9
4

1
,2

7
0

9
D

E
C

1
9

,9
7

4
1

2
,6

9
5

-1
2

,6
9

5
4

1
,2

7
0

1
0

J
A

N
2

7
,9

0
4

3
6

,0
3

6
-3

6
,0

3
6

2
2

,0
5

2

1
1

F
E

B
1

8
,3

2
4

2
2

,9
3

5
-2

2
,9

3
5

4
1

,2
7

0

1
2

M
A

R
4

7
,5

4
6

3
6

,8
3

3
-3

6
,8

3
3

5
0

,8
8

1

4
0

6
,3

3
1

4
2

2
,3

3
9

2
1

4
,5

8
1

-2
0

7
,7

5
7

5
1

4
,4

5
9

-6
1

,8
6

5
4

4
3

,4
5

9

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 (

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls

C
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

  
/ 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
B

u
d

g
e

t 
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r'
s

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

0
9

/1
0

 t
o

 1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

(C
o

lu
m

n
 E

-G
)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

A
P

R
3

6
,5

0
5

3
0

,2
8

4
2

6
,5

8
3

-3
,7

0
1

5
0

,8
7

9
-2

4
,2

9
7

M
A

Y
7

3
,1

0
4

6
6

,6
1

4
5

4
,5

9
1

-1
2

,0
2

3
1

0
1

,7
5

9
-4

7
,1

6
8

J
U

N
E

1
0

7
,5

3
3

1
0

3
,3

1
4

9
8

,4
6

9
-4

,8
4

5
1

4
7

,8
3

3
-4

9
,3

6
4

J
U

L
1

4
1

,4
5

0
1

5
4

,9
6

3
1

4
3

,3
7

1
-1

1
,5

9
2

1
8

9
,1

0
3

-4
5

,7
3

2

A
U

G
1

7
7

,7
3

5
1

9
8

,1
6

2
1

7
8

,6
9

2
-1

9
,4

7
0

2
3

0
,3

7
2

-5
1

,6
8

1

S
E

P
2

2
0

,5
0

5
2

4
4

,3
2

5
2

1
4

,5
8

1
-2

9
,7

4
4

2
7

6
,4

4
6

-6
1

,8
6

5

O
C

T
2

5
7

,5
0

0
2

8
6

,3
6

9
-2

8
6

,3
6

9
3

1
7

,7
1

6

N
O

V
2

9
2

,5
8

4
3

1
3

,8
3

8
-3

1
3

,8
3

8
3

5
8

,9
8

6

D
E

C
3

1
2

,5
5

8
3

2
6

,5
3

4
-3

2
6

,5
3

4
4

0
0

,2
5

6

J
A

N
3

4
0

,4
6

2
3

6
2

,5
7

0
-3

6
2

,5
7

0
4

2
2

,3
0

8

F
E

B
3

5
8

,7
8

6
3

8
5

,5
0

5
-3

8
5

,5
0

5
4

6
3

,5
7

8

M
A

R
4

0
6

,3
3

1
4

2
2

,3
3

9
-4

2
2

,3
3

9
5

1
4

,4
5

9
4

4
3

,4
5

9

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

1
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

 B
R

E
A

K
D

O
W

N

D
V

B
C

F
E

E
 A

c
tu

a
l 

(C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

) 
 B

u
d

g
e

t
(M

o
n

th
ly

)

P
la

n
 F

e
e

3
0

6
6

1
3

0
,6

5
9

1
6

6
,1

1
9

2
3

,9
5

5

In
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 F

e
e

3
0

6
7

8
3

,9
2

2
9

3
,3

2
9

1
1

,9
3

5

O
th

e
r

9
9

9
9

-
1

6
,9

9
8

-

2
1

4
,5

8
1

2
7

6
,4

4
6

3
5

,8
9

0

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L

0

1
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0

A
c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2

B
u
d
g
e
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 I
N

C
O

M
E

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
2

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 -
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
  

 1
0
_

B
u

ild
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
G

ra
p

h
s

IT
E

M
 1

0
2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 134



1
0
_

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
G

ra
p

h
s

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 (
D

V
D

E
V

C
T

)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls

In
c
re

a
s
e

  
/ 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
B

u
d

g
e

t
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r'
s

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 1
1

/1
2

1
1

/1
2

(A
c
tu

a
ls

-B
u

d
g

e
t)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

1
A

P
R

4
6

,2
1

7
4

9
,7

8
6

4
0

,5
1

5
-9

,2
7

1
5

8
,5

6
0

-1
8

,0
4

4

2
M

A
Y

2
5

,4
3

5
4

4
,4

5
6

3
7

,7
2

2
-6

,7
3

4
2

5
,9

2
4

1
1

,7
9

8

3
J

U
N

5
6

,0
5

2
6

1
,2

1
4

4
6

,5
4

3
-1

4
,6

7
1

5
3

,1
2

0
-6

,5
7

7

4
J

U
L

2
9

,3
3

9
6

6
,1

4
5

3
5

,9
0

3
-3

0
,2

4
1

4
7

,6
8

0
-1

1
,7

7
7

5
A

U
G

2
3

,1
4

3
7

9
,9

4
2

5
7

,9
8

0
-2

1
,9

6
2

4
7

,6
8

0
1

0
,3

0
0

6
S

E
P

4
8

,9
8

2
3

3
,6

1
0

4
8

,6
1

1
1

5
,0

0
1

5
3

,1
2

0
-4

,5
0

9

7
O

C
T

5
6

,8
1

3
3

7
,2

4
6

-3
7

,2
4

6
4

7
,6

8
0

8
N

O
V

7
9

,8
1

2
4

9
,7

5
1

-4
9

,7
5

1
4

7
,6

8
0

9
D

E
C

1
0

1
,3

5
1

5
1

,3
4

1
-5

1
,3

4
1

4
7

,6
8

0

1
0

J
A

N
4

8
,5

8
5

2
3

,6
5

0
-2

3
,6

5
0

5
8

,5
6

0

1
1

F
E

B
5

2
,5

1
2

3
1

,6
2

2
-3

1
,6

2
2

4
7

,6
8

0

1
2

M
A

R
6

1
,6

3
5

2
8

,1
1

6
-2

8
,1

1
6

5
8

,5
5

6

6
2

9
,8

7
5

5
5

6
,8

7
9

2
6

7
,2

7
5

-2
8

9
,6

0
4

5
9

3
,9

2
0

-1
8

,8
0

8
5

4
3

,9
2

0

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 (
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

)

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c
tu

a
ls

A
c

tu
a

ls

C
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

  
/ 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
B

u
d

g
e

t 
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r'
s

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

0
9

/1
0

 t
o

 1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

(C
o

lu
m

n
 E

-G
)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t

A
P

R
4

6
,2

1
7

4
9

,7
8

6
4

0
,5

1
5

3
,5

6
9

5
8

,5
6

0
-1

8
,0

4
4

M
A

Y
7

1
,6

5
2

9
4

,2
4

2
7

8
,2

3
7

2
2

,5
9

0
8

4
,4

8
4

-6
,2

4
6

J
U

N
E

1
2

7
,7

0
4

1
5

5
,4

5
7

1
2

4
,7

8
1

2
7

,7
5

3
1

3
7

,6
0

4
-1

2
,8

2
3

J
U

L
1

5
7

,0
4

3
2

2
1

,6
0

1
1

6
0

,6
8

4
6

4
,5

5
9

1
8

5
,2

8
4

-2
4

,6
0

0

A
U

G
1

8
0

,1
8

6
3

0
1

,5
4

3
2

1
8

,6
6

4
1

2
1

,3
5

7
2

3
2

,9
6

4
-1

4
,3

0
0

S
E

P
2

2
9

,1
6

8
3

3
5

,1
5

3
2

6
7

,2
7

5
1

0
5

,9
8

5
2

8
6

,0
8

4
-1

8
,8

0
8

O
C

T
2

8
5

,9
8

1
3

7
2

,3
9

9
8

6
,4

1
8

3
3

3
,7

6
4

N
O

V
3

6
5

,7
9

3
4

2
2

,1
5

0
5

6
,3

5
7

3
8

1
,4

4
4

D
E

C
4

6
7

,1
4

4
4

7
3

,4
9

1
6

,3
4

7
4

2
9

,1
2

4

J
A

N
5

1
5

,7
2

9
4

9
7

,1
4

1
-1

8
,5

8
8

4
8

7
,6

8
4

F
E

B
5

6
8

,2
4

0
5

2
8

,7
6

3
-3

9
,4

7
7

5
3

5
,3

6
4

M
A

R
6

2
9

,8
7

5
5

5
6

,8
7

9
-7

2
,9

9
6

5
9

3
,9

2
0

5
4

3
,9

2
0

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

1
C

U
M

U
L

A
T

IV
E

 B
R

E
A

K
D

O
W

N

D
V

D
E

V
C

T
 A

c
tu

a
l 

(C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

) 
 B

u
d

g
e

t
(M

o
n

th
ly

)

P
la

n
n

in
g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 F

e
e

s
3

0
0

9
2

5
3

,6
3

6
2

4
0

,8
4

8
4

5
,8

6
1

S
1

0
6

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
3

1
0

6
9

0
0

2
5

,0
0

2
9

0
0

O
th

e
r

9
9

9
9

-
-

-

P
re

-a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 F

e
e

s
9

4
3

0
1

1
2

,7
3

9
2

0
,2

3
4

1
,8

5
0

2
6

7
,2

7
5

2
8

6
,0

8
4

4
8

,6
1

1

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

0

2
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

8
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
2
0
,0

0
0

A
P

R
M

A
Y

J
U

N
J
U

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R

A
c
tu

a
ls

0
9
/1

0

A
c
tu

a
ls

1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
ls

1
1
/1

2

B
u
d
g
e
t

1
1
/1

2

C
U

M
U

L
A

T
IV

E
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 I
N

C
O

M
E

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

3
0

0
,0

0
0

4
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

6
0

0
,0

0
0

7
0

0
,0

0
0

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2

£

A
c
tu

a
ls

 0
9

/1
0

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
0

/1
1

A
c
tu

a
ls

 1
1

/1
2

B
u

d
g
e

t 
 1

1
/1

2

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  

 1
0
_

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
G

ra
p
h
s

IT
E

M
 1

0
2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 135



1
0
_

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
G

ra
p

h
s

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 -

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
  

 1
0
_

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
G

ra
p
h
s

IT
E

M
 1

0
2
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
1

Agenda Item 8

Page 136



F
in

a
n
c
e
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p
 -

 2
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1

It
e
m

 N
o

. 
 9

F
in

a
n

c
e

 A
d

v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 2

0
1

1
/1

2

a
s

 a
t 

e
n

d
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

ta
rg

e
t

a
c
tu

a
l

n
o

te
s

g
ra

p
h

%

M
o
n
th

ly
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
b
a
la

n
c
e
 £

0
0
0

2
7
,9

8
3

2
9
,7

5
0

1
,7

6
7

6
.3

%
T

o
ta

l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 a
t 
m

o
n
th

 e
n
d
.

1

P
re

c
e
p
ts

 a
re

 p
a
id

 i
n
 1

0
 i
n
s
ta

lm
e
n
ts

 o
f 

ro
u
g
h
ly

 £
6
m

, 
b
u
t 
n
o
t 
in

 J
u
n
e
 o

r 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

 T
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
w

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 c

a
s
h
fl
o
w

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 
2
 p

re
c
e
p
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 g
o
 o

u
t 
in

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
. 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fi
g
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 

to
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 S

h
e
e
t 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/1

1
.

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 c

o
s
t 
p
e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 (

n
o
n
 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
) 

£

2
,8

8
7

2
,7

8
1

-1
0
6

-3
.7

%
T

a
rg

e
t 
is

 a
n
n
u
a
l 
p
a
y
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
d
iv

id
e
d
 b

y
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
ft

e
s
, 

fi
g
u
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

c
a
s
u
a
l 
s
ta

ff
.

2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ft
e
s

3
8
8

3
8
4

-4
-1

.0
%

T
a
rg

e
t 
is

 b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 f

te
s
.

3

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 %

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
5
8
.8

5
8
.9

0
.1

0
.2

%
L
P

IF
S

 1
9
. 
M

o
n
th

ly
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
-

N
N

D
R

 %
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
6
0
.5

5
9
.7

-0
.8

-1
.3

%
L
P

IF
S

 2
0
. 
M

o
n
th

ly
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
.

-

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 p

a
y
e
rs

 %
 o

n
 d

ir
e
c
t 
d
e
b
it

7
0
.0

7
6
.5

6
.5

9
.3

%
L
P

IF
S

8
 -

 %
 o

n
 d

ir
e
c
t 
d
e
b
it

4

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
re

tu
rn

 %
0
.9

0
1
.1

3
0
.2

3
2
5
.5

%
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 r

e
tu

rn
 o

n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

. 
T

a
rg

e
t 
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n

5

3
 m

o
n
th

 L
IB

ID
0
.7

0

7
 d

a
y
 L

IB
ID

0
.4

6

S
u
n
d
ry

 d
e
b
to

rs
: 
d
e
b
ts

 o
v
e
r 

2
1
 d

a
y
s
 £

0
0
0

3
5

3
2

-3
-8

.6
%

2
1
 d

a
y
s
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

s
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
re

m
in

d
e
r 

is
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

3
 w

k
s
.

6

S
u
n
d
ry

 d
e
b
to

rs
: 
d
e
b
ts

 o
v
e
r 

6
1
 d

a
y
s
 £

0
0
0

2
0

2
9

9
4
5
.0

%
6
1
 d

a
y
s
 i
s
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 r

e
m

in
d
e
r 

is
 i
s
s
u
e
d

7

(d
e
b
ts

 e
x
c
lu

d
e
 i
te

m
s
 o

n
 '
in

d
e
fi
n
a
te

 h
o
ld

',
 e

.g
. 
d
e
b
to

rs
 i
n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
)

K
C

C
 o

w
e
d
 £

6
,0

0
0
 f

o
r 

th
e
 8

-1
2
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
s
 a

t 
3
0
/0

9
/1

1
.

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

Agenda Item 9

Page 137



Finance Advisory Group - 2  November 2011

Item No. 9

Finance Advisory Group Finance Indicators 2011/12

as at end September 2011

Graph 1

Actual Target 2010/11

Apr 24,450 22,090 21,750

May 24,450 23,355 23,550

Jun 30,750 29,914 31,950

Jul 31,750 29,381 30,950

Aug 31,250 29,881 31,350

Sep 29,750 27,983 30,350

Oct 29,548 31,850

Nov 29,115 31,350

Dec 33,510 35,250

Jan 33,576 36,250

Feb 27,950 29,850

Mar 20,692 22,550

Graph 2 Ctax Collected

Actual Target 2010/11 Actual Target

Apr 2,955 2,887 2,963 Apr 11.4 11.3

May 2,710 2,887 2,805 May 21.0 20.9

Jun 2,801 2,887 2,835 Jun 30.7 30.4

Jul 2,574 2,887 2,580 Jul 40.1 40.0

Aug 2,864 2,887 2,751 Aug 49.5 49.3

Sep 2,781 2,887 2,667 Sep 58.9 58.8

Oct 2,887 2,725 Oct 68.9

Nov 2,887 2,731 Nov 78.2

Dec 2,887 2,941 Dec 87.6

Jan 2,887 2,806 Jan 96.9

Feb 2,887 2,756 Feb 98.0

Mar 2,887 2,756 Mar 98.5

Graph 3 NNDR Collected

Actual Target 2010/11 Actual Target

Apr 396 388 429 Apr 13.2 11.8

May 396 388 431 May 22.9 22.1

Jun 386 388 430 Jun 32.2 31.4

Jul 383 388 433 Jul 41.0 41.7

Aug 381 388 441 Aug 50.8 51.5

Sep 384 388 444 Sep 59.7 60.5

Oct 388 433 Oct 69.9

Nov 388 432 Nov 78.9

Dec 388 426 Dec 87.9

Jan 388 423 Jan 96.6

Feb 388 418 Feb 97.6

Mar 388 418 Mar 98.1

Graph 4

Actual Target 2010/11

Apr 79.2 70.0 67.5

May 76.8 70.0 67.8

Jun 76.7 70.0 68.1

Jul 76.6 70.0 68.1

Aug 76.6 70.0 68.2

Sep 76.5 70.0 68.1

Oct 70.0 68.1

Nov 70.0 67.9

Dec 70.0 67.8

Jan 70.0 67.7

Feb 70.0 67.7

Mar 70.0 68.8

Graph 1 - Monthly Investment Balance

10,000

14,000

18,000

22,000

26,000

30,000

34,000

38,000

A
pr

M
ay Ju

n
Ju

l
A
ug

S
ep O

ct
N
ov

D
ec Ja

n
Feb M

ar

£
0
0
0

Actual

Target

2010/11

Graph 2 - Av. monthly cost per employee

2,400

2,600

2,800

3,000

3,200

3,400

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

£

Actual

Target

2010/11

Graph 3 - Number of ftes

370

390

410

430

450

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Actual

Target

2010/11

Graph 4 - Council Tax % on direct debit

66

68

70

72

74

76

78

80

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

%

Actual

Target

2010/11

Agenda Item 9

Page 138



Finance Advisory Group - 2  November 2011

Item No. 9

Graph 5

Actual Target 3m LIBID 7d LIBID Actual 2010/11

Apr 1.03 0.90 0.67 0.45 1.90

May 1.11 0.90 0.67 0.45 1.86

Jun 1.12 0.90 0.66 0.45 1.78

Jul 1.13 0.90 0.67 0.45 1.67

Aug 1.13 0.90 0.68 0.45 1.57

Sep 1.13 0.90 0.70 0.46 1.46

Oct 0.90 1.37

Nov 0.90 1.31

Dec 0.90 1.26

Jan 0.90 1.22

Feb 0.90 1.20

Mar 0.90 1.18

Graph 6

Actual Target 2010/11

Apr 23 35 117

May 77 35 52

Jun 38 35 33

Jul 28 35 40

Aug 35 35 29

Sep 32 35 33

Oct 35 46

Nov 35 49

Dec 35 74

Jan 35 76

Feb 35 47

Mar 35 17

Graph 7

Actual Target 2010/11

Apr 17 20 14

May 19 20 22

Jun 28 20 19

Jul 22 20 23

Aug 22 20 25

Sep 29 20 17

Oct 20 26

Nov 20 26

Dec 20 46

Jan 20 48

Feb 20 17

Mar 20 15

Graph 5 - Investment Return %

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

A
pr

M
ay Ju

n
Ju

l
A
ug

S
ep O

ct
N
ov

D
ec Ja

n
Feb M

ar

%

Actual

Target

3m LIBID

7d LIBID

Actual 2010/11

Graph 6 - Sundry debts over 21 days

10

30

50

70

90

110

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

£
0
0
0

Actual

Target

2010/11

Graph 7 - Sundry debts over 61 days

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

£
0
0
0

Actual

Target

2010/11

Agenda Item 9

Page 139



Finance Advisory Group - 2  November 2011

Item No. 9

Agenda Item 9

Page 140



Finance Advisory Group - 2 November 2011

Item No.  9

Finance Advisory Group Finance Indicators 2011/12

as at end September 2011

Description target actual notes graph

%

Monthly investment balance £000 27,983 29,750 1,767 6.3% Total investments at month end. 1

Precepts are paid in 10 instalments of roughly £6m, but not in June or 

December. Therefore, we receive cashflow benefits until the last 2 precept 

payments go out in February and March. The target figures have been updated 

to reflect the Balance Sheet position as at 31/03/11.

Average monthly cost per employee (non 

cumulative) £

2,887 2,781 -106 -3.7% Target is annual pay budget divided by budget ftes, figures include agency and 

casual staff. 2

Number of ftes 388 384 -4 -1.0% Target is budgeted ftes. 3

Council Tax % collected for 2010/11 58.8 58.9 0.1 0.2% LPIFS 19. Monthly cumulative figures -

NNDR % collected for 2010/11 60.5 59.7 -0.8 -1.3% LPIFS 20. Monthly cumulative figures. -

Council Tax payers % on direct debit 70.0 76.5 6.5 9.3% LPIFS8 - % on direct debit 4

Investment return % 0.90 1.13 0.23 25.5% Cumulative return on investments. Target is budget assumption 5

3 month LIBID 0.70

7 day LIBID 0.46

Sundry debtors: debts over 21 days £000 35 32 -3 -8.6% 21 days is taken as the base as the first reminder is issued after 3 wks. 6

Sundry debtors: debts over 61 days £000 20 29 9 45.0% 61 days is when the third reminder is issued 7

(debts exclude items on 'indefinate hold', e.g. debtors in administration)

KCC owed £6,000 for the 8-12s project as at 30/09/11.

Variance

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 141



Finance Advisory Group - 2nd  November 2011

Item No. x

Finance Advisory Group Finance Indicators 2011/12

as at end September 2011

Graph 1

Actual Target 2010/11

Apr 24,450 22,090 21,750

May 24,450 23,355 23,550

Jun 30,750 29,914 31,950

Jul 31,750 29,381 30,950

Aug 31,250 29,881 31,350

Sep 29,750 27,983 30,350

Oct 29,548 31,850

Nov 29,115 31,350

Dec 33,510 35,250

Jan 33,576 36,250

Feb 27,950 29,850

Mar 20,692 22,550

Graph 2 Ctax Collected

Actual Target 2010/11 Actual Target

Apr 2,955 2,887 2,963 Apr 11.4 11.3

May 2,710 2,887 2,805 May 21.0 20.9

Jun 2,801 2,887 2,835 Jun 30.7 30.4

Jul 2,574 2,887 2,580 Jul 40.1 40.0

Aug 2,864 2,887 2,751 Aug 49.5 49.3

Sep 2,781 2,887 2,667 Sep 58.9 58.8

Oct 2,887 2,725 Oct 68.9

Nov 2,887 2,731 Nov 78.2

Dec 2,887 2,941 Dec 87.6

Jan 2,887 2,806 Jan 96.9

Feb 2,887 2,756 Feb 98.0

Mar 2,887 2,756 Mar 98.5

Graph 3 NNDR Collected

Actual Target 2010/11 Actual Target

Apr 396 388 429 Apr 13.2 11.8

May 396 388 431 May 22.9 22.1

Jun 386 388 430 Jun 32.2 31.4

Jul 383 388 433 Jul 41.0 41.7

Aug 381 388 441 Aug 50.8 51.5

Sep 384 388 444 Sep 59.7 60.5

Oct 388 433 Oct 69.9

Nov 388 432 Nov 78.9

Dec 388 426 Dec 87.9

Jan 388 423 Jan 96.6

Feb 388 418 Feb 97.6

Mar 388 418 Mar 98.1

Graph 4

Actual Target 2010/11

Apr 79.2 70.0 67.5

May 76.8 70.0 67.8

Jun 76.7 70.0 68.1

Jul 76.6 70.0 68.1

Aug 76.6 70.0 68.2

Sep 76.5 70.0 68.1

Oct 70.0 68.1

Nov 70.0 67.9

Dec 70.0 67.8

Jan 70.0 67.7

Feb 70.0 67.7

Mar 70.0 68.8

10,000

14,000

18,000

22,000

26,000

30,000

34,000

38,000

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

£
0
0
0

Graph 1 - Monthly Investment Balance

Actual

Target

2010/11

2,400

2,600

2,800

3,000

3,200

3,400

£

Graph 2 - Av. monthly cost per employee

Actual

Target

2010/11

370

390

410

430

450

Graph 3 - Number of ftes

Actual

Target

2010/11

66

68

70

72

74

76

78

80

%

Graph 4 - Council Tax % on direct debit

Actual

Target

2010/11

(Item No. x)2

Agenda Item 9

Page 142



Finance Advisory Group - 2nd  November 2011

Item No. x

Graph 5

Actual Target 3m LIBID 7d LIBID Actual 2010/11

Apr 1.03 0.90 0.67 0.45 1.90

May 1.11 0.90 0.67 0.45 1.86

Jun 1.12 0.90 0.66 0.45 1.78

Jul 1.13 0.90 0.67 0.45 1.67

Aug 1.13 0.90 0.68 0.45 1.57

Sep 1.13 0.90 0.70 0.46 1.46

Oct 0.90 1.37

Nov 0.90 1.31

Dec 0.90 1.26

Jan 0.90 1.22

Feb 0.90 1.20

Mar 0.90 1.18

Graph 6

Actual Target 2010/11

Apr 23 35 117

May 77 35 52

Jun 38 35 33

Jul 28 35 40

Aug 35 35 29

Sep 32 35 33

Oct 35 46

Nov 35 49

Dec 35 74

Jan 35 76

Feb 35 47

Mar 35 17

Graph 7

Actual Target 2010/11

Apr 17 20 14

May 19 20 22

Jun 28 20 19

Jul 22 20 23

Aug 22 20 25

Sep 29 20 17

Oct 20 26

Nov 20 26

Dec 20 46

Jan 20 48

Feb 20 17

Mar 20 15

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

%

Graph 5 - Investment Return %

Actual

Target

3m LIBID

7d LIBID

Actual 2010/11

10

30

50

70

90

110

£
0
0
0

Graph 6 - Sundry debts over 21 days

Actual

Target

2010/11

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

£
0
0
0

Graph 7 - Sundry debts over 61 days

Actual

Target

2010/11

(Item No. x)3

Agenda Item 9

Page 143



P
age 144

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

FINANCE ADVISORY GROUP – 2 NOVEMBER 2011 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY UPDATE 

Report of the: Deputy Chief Executive & Director of Corporate Resources 

Status: For consideration 

Executive Summary:  Members approved the Investment Strategy as part of the 
budget-setting process in December 2010. In considering that Strategy Members 
were advised that, given the current economic climate, the Strategy would need to 
be monitored and reviewed, where necessary, during the year.  

This report gives details of recent developments in the financial markets and 
changes to credit ratings.  

This report supports the Key Aim of effective management of Council resources. 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. B. Ramsay 

Head of Service Head of Finance and Human Resources – Mrs. Tricia Marshall 

Recommendation:  That the report and Members views be noted. 

General Background 

1 The Council aims to achieve the optimum return on its investments 
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. The Council 
approved the current Investment Strategy for 2011/12 at the Council meeting 
on 16 December 2010.  

2 Credit ratings form the basis of investment decisions and the matrix supplied 
by the Council’s treasury advisers, Sector Treasury Services Ltd (Sector), 
encapsulates credit rating data to provide suggested counterparties and 
maturity limits. 

Economic Background 

Global Economy 

3 Over the last few months the Euro zone sovereign debt crisis has continued 
with Spain, and particularly Italy, being the focus of renewed market concerns 
that they may soon join with Greece, Ireland and Portugal in needing 
assistance.  This uncertainty and the lack of a co-ordinated or credible Euro 
zone response, left commentators concerned over the potential impact of 
sovereign default and resulting effect on the Euro zone banking sector.  The 
approval by various countries of the €440bn bail out fund in September has 
brought temporary relief to financial markets but this does not provide a 

Agenda Item 10

Page 145



 

Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

credible remedy to the scale of the Greek debt problem or the sheer 
magnitude of the potential needs of other countries for support. 

4 This, coupled with political difficulties in the US over their plans to address the 
budget deficit, the size and control over the US sovereign debt, and the 
subsequent loss of the AAA credit rating from Standard and Poor’s, has led to 
a much more difficult and uncertain outlook for the world economy. Growth 
prospects in the US, UK and the Euro zone have been lower than expected, 
with future prospects similarly cut.  Whilst not a central view, concerns of a 
double dip recession in some Western countries have increased. World stock 
markets fell in the second quarter of 2011/12 as a consequence. 

UK Economy 

5 Following zero growth in the final half of 2010/11 the UK economy grew by a 
weaker than expected 0.1% in the first quarter of 2011/12, providing a knock 
on effect to future growth prospects.  Growth prospects will be governed by 
UK consumer sentiment, which is currently subdued due to falling disposable 
income.  Higher VAT, overhanging debt, high inflation and concerns over 
employment are likely to weigh heavily on consumers into the future. 

6 The announcement by the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee 
(MPC) on 6 October 2011 of a second round of quantitative easing (QE) of 
£75bn emphasised how seriously the MPC now views recession as being a 
much bigger concern than inflation.  Although inflation remains stubbornly 
high, the MPC’s expectation of future falls resulting in an undershoot of its 2% 
target opened the way for this new round of QE.   

7 International investors continue to view UK government gilts as being a safe 
haven from the EU sovereign debt crisis.  The consequent increase in demand 
for gilts has helped to add downward pressure on gilt yields and sent PWLB 
borrowing rates to low levels. 

Outlook for the next six months of 2011/12 

8 There remain huge uncertainties in economic forecasts due to the following 
major difficulties:  

• the increase in risk that the UK, US and EU could fall into recession 

• the likely political gridlock in the US preventing significant government 
fiscal action to boost growth ahead of the Presidential elections in 
November 2012 

• the potential for a major EU sovereign debt crisis which could have a 
significant impact on financial markets and the global and UK economies 

• the degree to which government austerity programmes will dampen 
economic growth; 

• the potential for further QE, and the timing of this in both the UK and US 

Agenda Item 10

Page 146



 

Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

• the speed of recovery of banks’ profitability and balance sheet 
imbalances  and the risk of substantial losses being incurred on EU 
sovereign debt. 

9 The overall balance of risks is weighted to the downside: 

• The expectation is for low growth in the UK to continue, with a low Bank 
Rate to continue for at least 24 months, coupled with a possible further 
extension of QE.  This will  keep investment returns depressed. 

• The expected longer run trend for PWLB borrowing rates is for them to 
rise, primarily due to the need for a high volume of gilt issuance in the 
UK, and the high volume of debt issuance in other major western 
countries.  However the current safe haven status of the UK may 
continue for some time, postponing any increases until 2012. 

Credit Rating Issues 

10 As a result of the recent economic and financial market developments, our 
treasury management consultants, Sector Treasury Services, are stressing 
the importance of a cautionary investment stance. They have suggested that 
duration limits are temporarily  restricted to a maximum of 3 months and this 
advice has been followed over the last few months. 

11 This limit applies to all entities on the suggested Sector Credit Ratings List 
with the following exceptions: 

a) UK Government and related entities such as Local Authorities. Their 
suggested duration limit will remain at 5yrs. 

b) UK semi-nationalised institutions (Lloyds / RBS). The current significant 
UK government ownership of these entities is seen as providing 
significant comfort to investors. 

 c) Money Market Funds. 

12 The above temporary changes are not a significant change of view, but aimed 
to stress the need for caution when making new investments. It is believed 
that current market uncertainty warrants this revision and it is hoped that if 
Euro zone governments formally agree to extend their support mechanisms 
then some of the excessive risk indicator movements that have been seen in 
recent weeks will be reversed. However, until market circumstances begin to 
stabilise then Sector believe that such a prudent investment approach should 
be taken. 

13 However, Sector have stressed that they do not believe clients should be 
unduly worried about prior investment decisions, rather that by restricting new 
investments to the above limits client portfolios will be allowed to lower risk 
naturally as investments mature. This should not require a change of the 
formal investment strategy, merely an operational restriction of that strategy. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 147



 

Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

14 More recently, a raft of downgradings have been announced by the Ratings 
Agencies both to sovereign and individual bank ratings. A number of UK 
institutions as well as Spanish and Italian ones have been affected. 

Future Investment Options 

15 Members will be aware that our list of potential counterparties has shrunk over 
the last few years, such that increases to individual lending limits were 
required in order to provide sufficient opportunity to place investments. 

16 With the potential for removal of more institutions should global conditions 
worsen, an alternative approach may need to be considered. The questions 
that need to be addressed are: 

a) Are we comfortable with the current counterparties on our lending list and 
the cash limits applying to them? 

b) If not, or if conditions worsen, should a move to more secure investments 
such as lending to the Debt Management Office’s Account Deposit 
Facility or opening of Money Market Funds be considered? 

17 Members’ views on these issues are sought. Details of the up to date 
investment portfolio and current lending list will be circulated at the meeting 
and background to the alternative types of investment option will be available 
for discussion. 

Key Implications 

Financial implications  

18 The management of the Council’s investment portfolio and cash-flow 
generated balances plays an important part in the financial planning of the 
authority with interest receipts in the order of £186k supporting the revenue 
budget for 2011/12.  The security of its capital and liquidity of its investments 
is of paramount importance. Restricting the number of counterparties for 
deposits increases the risk of not achieving the interest receipts budget for 
2011/12. 

Legal, Human Rights etc.  

19 None. 

Impact on and Outcomes for the Community  

20 Investment income is used to support the revenue budget, providing funding 
for Council services that would otherwise have to be met from higher fees and 
charges or by service reductions. 

Risk Assessment Statement 

21 Treasury management has two main risks:- 

Agenda Item 10

Page 148



 

Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

a) Fluctuations in interest rates can result in a reduction in income from 
investments; and 

b) a counterparty to which the Council has lent money fails to repay the loan 
at the required time. 

 Consideration of risk is integral in the Council’s approach to treasury 
management. 

22 The movement towards having a restricted lending list of better quality 
institutions but higher individual limits with those institutions reduces the 
chances of a default. But if a default did occur, the potential loss would be 
greater. Previously, the preference was to have smaller investments with a 
greater range of institutions. 

23 These risks are mitigated by the annual investment strategy which has been 
prepared on the basis of achieving the optimum return on investments 
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.  However, Members 
should recognise that in the current economic climate, these remain significant 
risks and that the strategy needs to be constantly monitored. 

Sources of Information: Annual Investment Strategy report (Council 16 
December 2010, Cabinet 13 December 2010, 
Performance and Governance Committee 16 
November 2010) 

CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
in the Public Services (2009)  

Sector Treasury Services Ltd. - economic 
updates, monthly investment reports and credit 
rating lists 

Contact Officer(s): Roy Parsons - ext. 7204 

Dr. Pav Ramewal 
Deputy Chief Executive & Director of Corporate Resources 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 149



 

Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 150



   

Finance Advisory Group – 2 November 2011  

 

FORWARD PROGRAMME FOR FINANCE ADVISORY GROUP 

 

Topic 2 November 2011 25 January 2012 28 March 2012 May/June 2012 

Annual Accounts     

Budget  Risks and Assumptions 
for Budget 2012/13 

  

Financial Monitoring Sept 2011 results Dec 2011 Results Feb 2012 results April 2012 results 

Financial Performance 
Indicators 

September 2011 December 2011 February 2012 April 2012  

Treasury Management  Treasury Management 
Strategy 2012/13 

  

Invitee Building Control Budget    

Other  Costs and Savings in 
Partnership Working 

Pensions Investments 

Revenues and Benefits 
Partnership Working 

 

 
 

A
genda Item

 11

P
age 151



P
age 152

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Notes of meeting of the Group held on 27 July 2011
	4 Matters Arising including actions from last meeting
	5 Referrals from Performance & Governance Committee:
	7 Kent and Medway Investment Fund
	Item 07 - KMIF App A - CBRE Feasibility Study
	Item 07 - KMIF App B -  FAQs
	Item 07 - KMIF App C -  paper to KJCE

	8 Financial Results 2011/12 - to the end of September 2011
	9 Financial Performance Indicators 2011/12 - to the end of September 2011
	Item 09 - Financial Performance Indicators 201112 - Sept 11

	10 Investment Strategy Update
	11 Forward Programme

